BACKUP Service Manual

GALANT

1989-1990-1991-1992-1993 Volume 2 Body & Electrical

FOREWORD

This Service Manual has been prepared with the latest service information available at the time of publication. It is subdivided into various group categories and each section contains diagnostic, disassembly, repair, and installation procedures along with complete specifications and tightening references. Use of this manual will aid in properly performing any servicing necessary to maintain or restore the high levels of performance and reliability designed into these outstanding vehicles.

This BACKUP DSM manual is to be used ONLY as a BACKUP. Please DO NOT REDISTRIBUTE WHOLE SECTIONS. This BACKUP was sold to you under the fact that you do indeed OWN a GENUINE DSM MANUAL. It CANNOT BE considered a REPLACEMENT (Unless your original manual was lost or destroyed.)

Please See README.TXT or README.HTML for additional information.

Thank you. Gimmiemymanual@hotmail.com

WE SUPPORT VOLUNTARY TECHNICIAN CERTIFICATION THROUGH National Institute for AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE EXCELLENCE



Mitsubishi Motors Corporation reserves the right to make changes in design or to make additions to or improvements inits products without imposing any obligations upon itself to install them on its products previously manufactured

© 1992 Mitsubishi Motors Corporation

Reprinted in USA

GROUP INDEX

General
Fusible Link and Fuse Location
Inspection Terminal Location
Grounding Location
Diode Location
Junction Block
Centralized Junction
Inspection of Harness Connector
Configuration Diagrams
Circuit Diagrams
Steering 37
4 Wheel Steering System
(4995) Body
Exterior
Heater, Air Conditioning
Engine Electrical 16
Chassis Electrical54
Alphabetic Index

NOTE:

For information concerning all components other than the electrical system and onvehicle service procedures for engines and transmissions, refer to Volume 1 "Chassis & Body" of this paired Service Manual. For overhaul procedures of engines or transmissions, refer to the separately issued Engine Service Manual or Manual/Automatic Transmission Service Manual.

FUSIBLE LINK AND FUSE LOCATION

<Engine compartment> A B С



<Up to 1990 models (vehicles without ABS)>

6



<Interior>



13A0218

Symbol Name В Dedicated fuse block Fusible link box (main fusible links and sub С fusible link) D Multi-purpose fuse block А Sub fusible link-block

NOTE

(1) For details of fusible link and fuse, refer to P.12.(2) The "Name" column is arranged in alphabetical order.



<Up to 1990 models (vehicles with ABS)> <From 1990.5 models>





INSPECTION TERMINAL LOCATION

Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
Engine speed detection connector* <dohc></dohc>	С	Oxgen sensor check connector <dohc></dohc>	D
Fuel pump check connector	А	Data link connector	E
Ignition timing adjustment connector	В		

NOTE

(1)*: <From 1990 models>
(2) The "Name" column is arranged in alphabetical

order.

<Engine compartment>





ł



<Interior>

-৩৪



3

GROUNDING LOCATION

<Engine compartment>









TSB Revision





. K





<Luggage compartment>





From 1990 models

<DOHC-FWD>





DIODE LOCATION

Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
Diode (4WS fluid level warning light circuit)	А	Diode (auto-cruise control circuit)	А
Diode (ABS circuit)	B		
		Diode (sunroof circuit) <from 1="" 199="" models=""></from>	С
Diode (ACTIVE-ESC circuit)	L C		
Diode (A/T fluid temperature warning	├	Diode (thett-alarm system circuit)	A,C
light circuit) <awd-a t=""></awd-a>	A		

NOTE

The "Name" column is arranged in alphabetical order.

<Interior>



<From 1991 models>





<Up to 1990 models>

n



Diode (for ABS circuit)

16A0544

7



TSB Revision

.





GENERAL – Junction Block





Front side





Reverse side

TSB Revision

11

CENTRALIZED JUNCTION

M16BB--

MAIN FUSIBLE LINK (direct connection to battery's positive \oplus terminal)

No.	Circuit	Housing color	Rated capacity (A)
1	Generator circuit	Black*', Blue* ²	80* ¹ , 100* ²
2	ABS circuit (control unit power supply)	Blue	20
3	ABS circuit (hydraulic unit power supply)	Yellow	60

NOTE

*1:<1989 models>

*2: <From 1990 models>

<Vehicles without ABS>



1990 models



16A0335







<Vehicles with ABS>

1989 models

From 1990 models





TSB Revision

SUB FUSIBLE LINK (relay box inside engine compartment, fusible link box)

No.	Circuit	Housing color	Rated capacity (A)
1	Junction block (Multipurpose fuse ⑤, ⑪, ⑫, ⑬, ⑭, ⑮, ⑰) A/C circuit	Yellow	60
2	Power window circuit	Pink	30
3	ACTIVE-ECS circuit	Green	40
4	Defogger circuit	Pink	30
5	ignition switch and generator circuit	Pink	30
6	Radiator fan motor and condenser fan motor circuit	Pink	30
7	Headlight and tail light circuit	Green	40
8	MFI circuit	Blue	20
9	Automatic seatbelt circuit <from 1990="" models=""></from>	Pink	30



<Vehicles without ABS>

1990 models



From 1990.5 models





<Vehicles with ABS>

Power supply	circuit	No.	Rated capacity (A)	Load circuit
Ignition	IG2	1	10	EPS control unit
Switch		2	10	Heater relay, blower switch, defogger timer, power window relay (Vehicles without ETACS), sunroof power relay (Vehicles without ETACS), ABS power relay, ACTIVE-ECS power relay
	ACC	3	10	Clock, motor antenna, radio, ETACS control unit*4
		4	15	Remote-controlled mirror switch, cigarette lighter
Battery		5	15	Door lock relay
'gnition switch	IG2	6	10	Power/Economy change over switch , over drive switch , park/neutral position switch , ELC 4-speed automatic transaxle control module, auto-cruise con- trol unit
	ACC	7	15	Wiper and washer, ETACS control unit* ³ , wiper relay
		8	10	Headlight relay, horn
	IG1	9	10	Combination meter, auto-cruise control switch, motor antenna, ETACS control unit, seat belt timer*', clutch pedal position switch
		10	10	Hazard switch
Battery		11	20	ACTIVE-ECS power relay
		12	20	-
		13	20	Sunroof relay
		14	30	Heater relay
		15	15	Stop light, auto-cruise control unit <m t=""></m>
gnition witch	IG1	16	10	Back-up light <m t="">, park/neutral position switch </m>
lattery		17	10	MFI control unit, clock, dome light, luggage compartment light, door light, map light (Vehicles without sunroof), radio, ETACS control unit, sunroof relay (Vehicles with ETACS), combination meter, ELC 4-speed automatic transaxle control module, key re- minder switch, automatic seatbelt control unit ^{*2}
		18	10	-

MULTI-PURPOSE FUSE (inside junction block)

NOTE *1:<1989 models> *2: <From 1990 models> *3:<Up to 1990 models> *4: <From 1991 models>



DEDICATED FUSE (relay box inside engine compartment)

Power supply circuit	No.	Rated capacity (A)	Housing color	Circuit
Battery	1	10	Red	Hazard light circuit
Taillight relay (Battery)	2	10	Red	Taillight circuit
Headlight relay (Battery)	3	10	Red	Upper beam indicator
Battery	4	15 1	Blue	ECS circuit
	5	10	Red	A/C compressor circuit
	6	25, 30*	transparent	Condenser fan motor circuit
Headlight relay (Battery)	7	15	Blue	Fog light circuit

NOTE *: DOHC <From 1992 models>



CENTRALIZED RELAY

Classification		Name	Classification		Name							
Relay box in- side engine compartmentA-01XHeadlight relayPassenger compartmentA-02XTaillight relayA-02XTaillight relayA-03XRadiator fan motor relay (HI)A-04XRadiator fan motor relay (LO)A-05XGenerator relay	A-01X	Headlight relay	Passenger	C-72X	Power window relay							
	A-02X	Taillight relay	relay box	relay box	relay box	relay box	relay box	relay box	relay box	relay box C-	C-73X	Door lock relay
		C-74X	Seat belt timer* ¹ Theft-alarm starter relay* ²									
	A-04X	Radiator fan motor relay (LO)										
	A-05X	Generator relav		C-/5X	Defogger timer							
	A-06X	ACTIVE-ECS solenoid valve power relay										
	A-07X	A/C compressor clutch relay										
	A-07-1X	Fog light relay										

NOTE

*1:<1989 models>

*2: <From 1991 models>

<Relay box inside engine compartment>



<Passenger compartment relay box>



16A1259

IOD or STORAGE CONNECTOR <From 1991 models>

Classification	Name	
Relay box inside engine compartment	A-07-2X	IOD or Storage Connector

NOTE

IOD: Ignition Off Draw

<Relay box inside engine compartment>





INSPECTION OF HARNESS CONNEC-TOR MIGCAAA

CONTINUITY AND VOLTAGE TEST FOR CONNECTOR

Following procedures shall be followed for testing continuity and voltage at connector in order to prevent improper contact and deterioration of waterproof in connector.

CONVENTIONAL (NON-WATERPROOF) CONNECTOR

Check shall be done by inserting a probing needle from harness

side. WATER PROOF CONNECTOR

Caution

Do not insert probing needle from harness side as it will deteriorates waterproof and cause for rusting. To inspect the energized circuit, use the **ECI** checker.

CHECK FOR IMPROPER ENGAGEMENT OF TERMI-NAL

When terminal stopper of connector is out of order, engagement of male and female terminals becomes improper even when connector itself is engaged perfectly and terminal sometimes slips out to rear side of connector. Ascertain, therefore, that each terminal does not come off connector by pulling each harness wire.

ENGAGING AND DISENGAGING OF CONNECTOR TERMINAL

Connector which gives loose engagement shall be rectified by removing female terminal from connector housing and raise its lance to establish securer engagement. Removal of connector housing and raise its lance to establish securer engagement. Removal of connector terminal used for ECI and ELC 4 A/T control circuit shall be done in the following manner.



COMPUTER CONNECTOR

(1) Insert screwdriver [1.4 mm (.06 in.) width] as shown in the figure, disengage front holder and remove it.





HOW TO DIAGNOSE

M16DAAC

The most important point in troubleshooting is to determine "Probable Causes". Once the probable causes are determined, parts to be checked can be limited to those associated with such probable causes. Therefore, unnecessary checks can be eliminated. The determination of the probable causes must be based on a theory and be supported by facts and must not be based on intuition only.

TROUBLESHOOTING STEPS

If an attempt is made to solve a problem without going through correct steps for troubleshooting, the problem symptoms could become more complicated, resulting in failure to determine the causes correctly and making incorrect repairs. The four steps below should be followed in troubleshooting.



INFORMATION FOR DIAGNOSTIC

This manual contains the cable diagrams as well as the individual circuit drawings, operational explanations, and troubleshooting hints for each component required to facilitate the task of troubleshooting. The information is compiled in the following manner:

- (1) Cable diagrams show the connector positions, etc., on the actual vehicle as well as the harness path.
- (2) Circuit drawings show the configuration of the circuit with all switches in their normal positions.
- (3) Operational explanations include circuit drawings of voltage flow when the switch is operated and how the component operates in reaction.
- (4) Troubleshooting hints include numerous examples of problems which might occur, traced backward in a common-sense manner to the origin of the trouble. Problems whose origins may not be found in this manner are pursued through the various system circuits.

NOTE

Components of ECI, ETACS, ECS, etc. with ECU do not include 3 and 4 above. For this information, refer to a manual which includes details of these components.



INSPECTION

1. Visual and aural checks

Check relay operation, blower motor rotation, light illumination, etc. visually or aurally. The flow of current is invisible but can be checked by the operation of the parts.

2. Simple checks

For example, if a headlight does not come on and a faulty fuse or poor grounding is suspected, replace the fuse with a new one or ground the light to the body by a jumper wire to determine which part is responsible for the problem.

3. Checking with instruments

Use an appropriate instrument in an adequate range and read the indication correctly. You must have sufficient knowledge and experience to handle instruments correctly.

INSPECTION INSTRUMENTS

In inspection, make use of the following instruments.

1. Test lights

A test light consists of a 12V bulb and lead wires. It is used to check voltages or shortcircuits.

2. Self-power test light

A self-power test light consists of a bulb, battery and lead wires connected in series. It is used to check continuity or grounding.

1660226			
TSB F	Revision		



3. Jumper wire A jumper wire is used to close a

A jumper wire is used to close an open circuit. Never use one to connect a power supply directly to a load.

4. Voltmeter

A voltmeter is used to measure the circuit voltage. Normally, the positive (red lead) probe is applied to the point of voltage measurement and the negative (black lead) probe to the body ground.

5. Ohmmeter

An ohmmeter is used to check continuity or measure resistance of a switch or coil. If the measuring range has been changed, the zero point must be adjusted before measurement.

CHECKING SWITCHES

In a circuit diagram, a switch is represented by a symbol and in the idle state.

- 1. Normal open or normal close switch
 - Switches are classified into those which make the circuit open and those which make the circuit closed when off.





2. SWITCH CONNECTION

This figure illustrates a complex switch. The continuity between terminals at each position is as indicated in the table below.

Terminal No.	1	2	3	4	5	6
OFF						
1 st stage	0 —				\sim	-0
2nd stage	0—			0		0
3rd stage	0		0			-0
4th stage	0	-0				0

NOTE

-O denotes continuity between terminals. \cap

CHECKING RELAYS

- 1. When current flows through the coil of a relay, its core is magnetized to attract the iron piece, closing (ON) the contact at the tip of the iron piece. When the coil current is turned off, the iron piece is made to return to its original position by a spring, opening the contact (OFF).
- 2. By using a relay, a heavy current can be turned on and off by a switch of small capacity. For example, in the circuit shown here, when the switch is turned on (closed), current flows to the coil of the relay. Then, its contact is turned on (closed) and the light comes on. The current flowing at this time to the switch is the relay coil current only and is very small.
- 3. The relays may be classified into the normal open type and the normal close type by their contact construction.

NOTE

The deenergized state means that no current is flowing through the coil and the energized state means that current is flowing through the coil.



When a normal close type relay as illustrated here is checked, there should be continuity between terminals (1) and (2) and between terminals 3 and 4 when the relay is deenergized, and the continuity should be lost between terminals 3 and 4 when the battery voltage is applied to the terminals 1 and 2. A relay can be checked in this manner and it cannot be determine if a relay is okay or faulty by checking its state only when it is deenergized (or energized).

CHECKING FUSES

A blade type fuse has test taps provided to allow checking of the fuse itself without removing it from the fuse block. The fuse is okay if the test light comes on when its one lead is connected to the test taps (one at a time) and the other lead is grounded. (Change the ignition switch position adequately so that the fuse circuit becomes live.)

CAUTIONS IN EVENT OF BLOWN FUSE

When a fuse is blown, there are two probable causes as follows : One is that it is plown due to flow of current exceeding its rating. The other is that it is blown due to repeated on/off current flowing through it. Which of the two causes is responsible can be easily determined by visual check as described below.

(1) Fuse blown due to current exceeding rating

The illustration shows the state of a fuse blown due to this cause. In this case, do not replace the fuse with a new one hastily since a current heavy enough to blow the fuse has flowed through it. First, check the circuit for shorting and check for abnormal electric parts. Only after the correction of such shorting or parts, fuse of the same capacity should be used as a replacement. Never use a fuse of lager capacity than the one that has blown. If such a fuse is used, electric parts or wirings could be damaged before the fuse blows in the event an overcurrent occurs again.



(2) Fuse blown due to repeated current on/off

The illustration shows the state of a fuse blown due to repeated current on/off. Normally, this type of problem occurs after fairly long period of use and hence is less frequent than the above type. In this case, you may simply replace with a



CHECKING CABLES AND WIRES

- 1. Check connections for looseness, rust and stains.
- 2. Check terminals and wires for corrosion by battery electrolyte, etc.
- 3. Check terminals and wires for open circuit or impending open circuit.
- Check wire insulation and coating for damage, cracks and degrading.
- 5. Check conductive parts of terminals for contact with other metallic parts (vehicle body and other parts).
- 6. Check grounding parts to verify that there is complete continuity between attaching bolt(s) and vehicle body.
- 7. Check for incorrect wiring.
- 8. Check that wirings are so clamped as to prevent contact with sharp corners of the vehicle body, etc. or hot parts (exhaust manifold, pipe, etc.).
- 9. Check that wirings are clamped firmly to secure enough clearance from the fan pulley, fan belt and other rotating or moving parts.
- 10. Check that the wirings between the fixed parts such as the vehicle body and the vibrating parts such as the engine are made with adequate allowance for vibrations.

HANDLING ON-VEHICLE BATTERY

When checking or servicing does not require power from the onvehicle battery, be sure to disconnect the cable from the battery (-) terminal. This is to prevent problems that could be caused by shorting of the circuit. Disconnect the (-) terminal first and reconnect it last.

Caution

16C380

1. Before connecting or disconnecting the negative cable, be sure to turn off the ignition switch and the lighting switch.

(If this is not done, there is the possibility of semiconductor parts being damaged.)

2. For MFI-equipped models, after completion of the work steps [when the battery's negative (--) terminal is connected], warm up the engine and allow it to idle for approximately five minutes under the conditions described below, in order to stabilize engine control conditions, and then check to be sure that the idling is satisfactory.

Engine coolant temperature: **85–95°C (185–203°F)** Lights, electric fans, accessories: OFF Transaxle: neutral position

(A/T models: "N" or "P") Steering wheel: neutral (center) position



TROUBLESHOOTING

A circuit consists of the power supply, switch, relay, load, **ground.** etc. There are various methods to check a circuit including an overall check, voltage check, shortcircuit check and continuity check. Each of these methods is briefly described in the following.

1. VOLTAGE CHECK

- (1) Ground one lead wire of the test light. If a voltmeter is used instead of the test light, ground the grounding side lead wire.
- (2) Connect the other lead wire of the test light to the power side terminal of the switch connector. The test light should come on or the voltmeter should indicate a voltage.
- (3) Then, connect the test light or voltmeter to the motor connector. The test light should not come on, or the voltmeter should indicate no voltage. When the switch is turned on in this state, the test light should come on, or the voltmeter should indicate a voltage, with motor starting to run.
- (4) The circuit illustrated here is normal but if there is any problem such as the motor failing to run, check voltages beginning at the connector nearest to the motor until the faulty part is identified.

2. CHECKING FOR A SHORT-CIRCUIT

Because the fuse has blown, it is probable that there is a short-circuited circuit. Follow the procedures below to narrow down the short-circuit location.







Self power test light (or ohmmeter)

3. CHECKING CONTINUITY

Short-circuit between

the connector and the illumination light.

- (1) When the switch is in the OFF position, the self power test light should come on or the ohmmeter should read 0 ohm only when the terminals 1 and 2 are interconnected.
- (2) When the switch is the ON position, the self power test light should come on or the ohmmeter should read 0 ohm only when the terminals 3 and 4 are interconnected.

28

NOTES

CONFIGURATION DIAGRAMS

CONTENTS

Dash Panel <dohc></dohc>	56
Dash Panel <sohc></sohc>	52
Engine and Transaxle	44
Engine Compartment <dohc (non-turbo)=""></dohc>	36
Engine Compartment < DOHC (Turbo) >	40
Engine Compartment <sohc></sohc>	32
How to Read Configuration Diagrams	31
Instrument Panel	64
Interior <dohc></dohc>	62
Interior <sohc></sohc>	60
Luggage Compartment	66
Overall Configuration Diagram	30
Rear Under Floor	68

M16VA-

OVERALL CONFIGURATION DIAGRAM



<u>30</u>

HOW TO READ CONFIGURATION DIAGRAMS

M16VCAEb

The wiring diagrams are prepared in such a way that the arrangement of connectors for each vehicle, and the routing of each harness, can be easily understood for each individual wiring section.



31





ENGINE COMPARTMENT <SOHC>



A-57 Crankshaft position sensor and camshaft position sensor <Up to 1990 models>






38 CONFIGURATION DIAGRAMS - Engine Compartment < DOHC (Non-Turbo)>

ENGINE COMPARTMENT < DOHC (Non-Turbo)>





40 CONFIGURATION DIAGRAMS - Engine Compartment < DOHC (Turbo)>

ENGINE COMPARTMENT <DOHC (Turbo)>









A-59

- A-60 Fuel pump check connector
- A-61 Ignition timing adjustment connector
- A-62 Brake fluid level sensor
- A-63 _

Remarks

- (1) For details concerning the ground point (example: 1), refer to P.4. "-" means that the connector with code-number is not
- (2) used.
- (3) The mark \star shows the standard mounting position of wiring harness.
- (4)*1: Up to 1990 models (5) *: From 1991 models



































<u>60</u>



- D-39 1 Body wiring harness and front door wiring
- D-40 harness combination (left side)

- (1) The mark \star shows the standard mounting position of
-),

- D-46-2 Outer switch
- D-47 Power/Economy changeover switch <A/T>
- D-48 Remote-control mirror switch











<u>66</u>



<u>67</u>



CIRCUIT DIAGRAMS

CONTENTS

249 ACTIVE-Electronic Control Suspension (ECS) Circuit 199 Air Conditioning Circuit 292 Auto-Cruise Control Circuit Cigarette Lighter Circuit. 54-106 Defogger Circuit 54-156 ELC 4-Speed Automatic Transaxle Circuit 158 Fog Light Circuit 54-46 Headlight Circuit ------ 54-41 Horn Circuit 54-104 Luggage Compartment Light, Glove Compartment Light and 96 MFI Circuit Power Distribution Circuit 76 Power Window Circuit 182 Remote Controlled Mirror Circuit 235 Tail light, Position Light, Side Marker Light and License Plate Light Circuit 54-48 Turn Signal Light and Hazard Light Circuit 54-72

Wiper and Washer Circuit

HOW TO READ CIRCUIT DIAGRAMS

M16VGAHb

The circuit of each system from the fuse (or fusible link) to ground is shown. The power supply is shown at the top and the ground at the bottom to facilitate understanding of how the current flows.





CONNECTOR/GROUND INDICATIONS




SYMBOLS

The various devices and equipment identified in circuit diagrams are represented by the symbols described below.

Battery	Body ground	Single bulb	Resistor	Diode	Capacitor
- d ⁺	오	Ð			L L
Fuse	Equipment ground	Dual bulb	Variable resistor	Zener diode	Crossing of wires without connection
\$	_ <u>_</u>	(Land		4	
Fusible link	Ground within	Speaker	Coil	Transistor with	Crossing of wires connection
o ~> 0	<u> </u>				
Connector	Motor	Horn	Pulse generator	Buzzer	Chime
Female side Male side		m		The	
Fhyristor	Piezo-electric	Thermister	Light-emitting	Photo diode	Photo transistor
\$		$- \bigotimes -$		*	Ğ
-					1640353

WIRING COLOR CODES

Wire colors are identified by the following color codes.

Example: 1.25F-GB



Code	Wire color	Code	Wire color
В	Black	Р	Pink
Br	Brown	R	Red
G	Green	Sb	Sky blue
Gr	Gray	V	Violet
L	Blue	w	White
Lg	Light green	Y	Yellow
0	Orange		

ĩ

(1) No code indicates 0.5 mm² (.0008 in.²).
(2) Cable color code in parentheses indicates 0.3 mm² (.0005 in.²).

NOTE

If a cable has two colors, the first of the two color code characters indicates the basic color (color of the cable coating) and the second indicates the marking color.

NOTES





POWER DISTRIBUTION CIRCUIT (CONTINUED) (1989 MODEL)









POWER DISTRIBUTION CIRCUIT (CONTINUED) (1990 MODELS)









POWER DISTRIBUTION CIRCUIT (CONTINUED) (1990.5 models)









POWER DISTRIBUTION CIRCUIT (CONTINUED) (From 1991 models)

Non-turbo



XX35-AC-H0112A-NM

TSB Revision







POWER DISTRIBUTION CIRCUIT (CONTINUED) (From 1991 models)

Turbo



KX35-AC-H0113A-NM











CIRCUIT DIAGRAMS - MFI Circuit <SOHC>



<u>100</u>

















CIRCUIT DIAGRAMS - MFI Circuit < SOHC>








COMPONENT LOCATION <8 VALVE>



Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
Air conditioning compressor clutch relay	J	Ignition coil (ignition power transistor)	F
Air conditioning switch	0	ignition timing adjustment terminal	R
Crankshaft position sensor and camshaft posi-	G	Injector	
		Multiport fuel injection relay	Ν
Data link connector	S		•
EGR solenoid < California>	<u>к</u>	Oxygen sensor	A
	l	Park/neutral position switch 	М
EGR temperature sensor <california></california>	L .		1,1
Engine control module	0	rower steering pressure switch	U
	<u>v</u>	Throttle position sensor	D
Engine coolant temperature sensor	E		
Evaporative emission purge solenoid	н	Vehicle speed sensor (reed switch)	Р
		T Volume air flow sensor (incorporating intake air temperature sensor and barometric pres-	В
Fuel pump check terminal	Т		
Idle speed control motor (closed throttle posi- tion switch, idle speed control motor position sensor)	с	sure sensor)	

NOTE The "Name" column is arranged in alphabetical order.







6EM0154









COMPONENT LOCATION <16 VALVE>





Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
Air conditioning compressor clutch relay	A	Ignition coil (ignition power transistor)	L
Air conditioning switch	Т	Ignition timing adjustment terminal	к
Camshaft position sensor and crankshaft posi-	M	Injector	Н
tion sensor		Multiport fuel injection relay	U
Check engine/malfunction indicator lamp	S		NI
Dete liek connector		Oxygen sensor	N
		Park/Neutral position switch (A/T)	В
EGR solenoid <california></california>	1	Reiver steering pressure switch	P
EGR temperature sensor <california></california>	0		
	·	Throttle position sensor (with closed throttle position switch)	E
Engine control module	V		
Engine coolant temperature sensor	F	Vehicle speed sensor (reed switch)	R
Evaporative emission purge solenoid	J	Volume air flow sensor (with incorporated in- take air temperature sensor and barometric pressure sensor)	С
Fuel pump check terminal	G		
Idle air control motor	D		

NOTE The "Name" column is arranged in alphabetical order.















121











MFI CIRCUIT (CONTINUED)

















÷

ø











140









143


NOTES

CIRCUIT DIAGRAMS - MFI Circuit < DOHC>











COMPONENT LOCATION





Symbol Name Symbol Name С Air conditioning compressor clutch relay Κ Idle air control motor (stepper motor) 0 G Air conditioning switch Ignition coil (ignition power transistor) R E Closed throttle position switch (fixed SAS) Ignition timing adjustment terminal J Injector Crankshaft position sensor and camshaft posi-Н tion sensor Y Knock sensor Data link connector S Ν Multiport fuel injection relay Q Engine control module Park/neutral position switch <A/T> V F Engine coolant temperature sensor U Power steering pressure switch EGR solenoid L Ď Throttle position sensor EGR temperature sensor Μ Х Turbocharger waste gate solenoid Evaporative emission purge solenoid ł Ρ Vehicle speed sensor (reed switch) Fuel pressure solenoid W Volume air flow sensor (incorporating intake Т Fuel pump check terminal air temperature sensor and barometric pres-В sure sensor) Heated oxygen sensor А

NOTE

The "Name" column is arranged in alphabetical order,

TSB Revision

6EM0166

6FU0843





CIRCUIT DIAGRAMS - MFI Circuit < DOHC>









T.

6EM0322

TSB Revision

3







į

COMPONENT LOCATION

Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
Condenser fan motor relay (HI)	A	Radiator fan motor relay (HI)	В
Condenser fan motor relay (LO)	A	Radiator fan motor relay (LO) <vehicles air="" an="" conditioning="" with=""></vehicles>	В















÷

<u>162</u>







i,

P. Same

TSB Revision













Ļ













COMPONENT LOCATION

Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
Data link connector	F	Pulse generator A	А
4 A/T control module	н	Pulse generator B	A
MFI control module	I	Solenoid valve	С
Oil temperature sensor	D	Throttle position sensor	В
Power (PWR)/Economy (ECO) switch	G	Vehicle-speed sensor	E

NOTE

The "Name" column is arranged in alphabetical order.

C and D are built into the transaxle. < From 1991 models>



1750157

C

 \mathbb{T}




COMPONENT LOCATION

Name	Symbol
Seat belt timer	A















j.



<Vehicles with ETACS (1989 models)>





<Vehicles with ETACS (1990 models)>





<Vehicles with ETACS (From 1991 models)> Non-Turbo





<Vehicles with ETACS (From 1991 models)> Turbo





COMPONENT LOCATION

Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
ETACS control unit	А	Power window relay	В







I

Ť







AIR CONDITIONING CIRCUIT (1989 models) (CONTINUED)























COMPONENT LOCATION

Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
Air conditioning compressor clutch relay	А	Air conditioning engine coolant temperature switch (for compressor magnetic clutch)	D
Air conditioning switch	н	Engine coolant temperature switch (for radiator fan motor)	D
Air-inlet sensor	E	Radiator fan motor relay (LO, Hi)	А
Air-thermo sensor	G	Refrigerant-temperature sensor	В
Auto compressor control unit	F	Heater relay	_
Condenser fan motor relay (LO, HI)	С		

NOTE

The "Name" column is arranged in alphabetical order.









16A0485











NOTES








6

TSB Revision







ETACS CONTROL UNIT DOOR LOCK POWER RELAY **E**/ VD, 85-LB 0.85-LR ΒrΥ ö പ 0. 85-LB 0. 85-LR LB LR LR ĽВ D-02 123 7891011121314 12 5 З 13 4 4 D-16 D-32 12×34 12×34 Ð ЧĽ LB LR LB LB LR ţ 1 1 Ъ ţ. ŧ ţ ш З 2 З L 1 З D-23 D-14 D-20 M LOCK ₹ 12 34 12 34 12 LOCK M) M đ FRONT DOOR ACTUATOR (RIGHT SIDE) REAR ELCOR LC ACTUATOR (RIGHT' SIDE) LOCK LOCK REAR DOOR LOCK ACTUATOR (LEFT SIDE) = 9 ETACS CONTROL ETACS CONTROL A/ (YB) (MY) FRONT DOOR LIGHT FRONT DOOR LIGHT ΥW ΨY FRONT DOOR SWITCH (LEFT SIDE FRONT DOOR SWITCH (RIGHT SIDE) D-24 2 2 D-33 OFF OFRA TON OFF TON 127 চাঁহ

TSB Revision



<u>223</u>









₫ 6





BR-Y

ВŖ

СОСК

D-02

1234 15878 9101112131415161718

D-14

1 3 1

Û

6





COMPONENT LOCATION

Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
Door lock control unit <sohc></sohc>	А	ETACS control unit <dohc></dohc>	Δ
Door lock relay	В		













COMPONENT LOCATION

Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
ETACS control unit	В	Wiper relay	А











<u>235</u>

























COMPONENT LOCATION

Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
Diode (From 1991 models)	В	Sunroof control relay	С
ETACS control unit	А	Sunroof power relay	С



<From 1991 models>







16A0535











KX35-AC-H1526A-NN














KX35-AC-H1527A-NM























COMPONENT LOCATION

Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
ACTIVE-ECS air compressor relay	А	G sensor	Р
ACTIVE-ECS control unit	I	Headlight relay	В
ACTIVE-ECS indicator	F	High-pressure switch	S
ACTIVE-ECS power relay	M	Low-pressure switch	S
ACTIVE-ECS return pump relay	A	Rear actuator	Н
ACTIVE-ECS solenoid valve power relay	В	Rear height sensor	J
Air compressor	Q	Rear pressure sensor	
	I L	Rear solenoid valve	I I
Exhaust solenoid valve [for vehicle-height adjustment)	Q	Reserve tank (incorporated within the return pump)	S
		Steering wheel angular-velocity sensor	G
Flow control solenoid valve	R	Stop light switch	Ν
Front actuator	С	Throttle-position sensor	E
Front height sensor	D	Vehicle-speed sensor	к
Front solenoid valve	0		

NOTE

The "name" column is arranged in alphabetical order



CIRCUIT DIAGRAMS - ACTIVE-Electronic Control Suspension (ECS) Circuit 271



272 CIRCUIT DIAGRAMS ~ ACTIVE-Electronic Control Suspension (ECS) Circuit





Reserve tank 12A0172

NOTES



274



275

























COMPONENT LOCATION

<FWD >

Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
ABS control unit	E	Diode	G
ABS motor relay	А	Front speed sensor	В
ABS power relay	F	Rear speed sensor	D
ABS valve relay	А	Stop light switch	Н
ABS warning light	С		

NOTE

The "name" column is arranged in alphabetical order.






CIRCUIT DIAGRAMS - Anti-Lock Braking System (ABS) Circuit













TSB Revision

290 CIRCUIT DIAGRAMS – Anti-Lock Braking System (ABS) Circuit

<awd>

Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
ABS control unit	F	Diode	н
ABS motor relay	A	Front speed sensor	В
ABS power relay	н	G-sensor (front)	G
ABS valve relay	А	G-sensor (rear)	E
ABS warning light	С	Rear speed sensor	D
Brake fluid pressure switch	J	Stop light switch	1













<u>293</u>























NOTES





0

LIGHT

STOP

TSB Revision

2-B

흘

C-69

12345 6788



IGNITION S<u>WITCH (1G1)</u> SUB FUSIBLELINK@ BW 1234 5678 5-WR C-43 أب C-01 12345 6789 1011121314151617181920 J/B 9 AUTO-CRUISE CONTROL UNIT 10A Ð ¥ Ĭ <u>C-44</u> ¥ ≸ <u>C-39</u> MOTOR DRIVE IC BW Å ₽ 4 ₹ 2 2 5 4 111 7 20 ĬЗ 8 13 BW Σ ¥50 19` 8 C-69 RESUME SET (LO) (GW)SELF FOLDING CIRCUIT 7.1 9 ŝ COLUMN SWITCH 3 1 C-36 OFF OFF Ton (AUTO-CRUISE) CONTROL SWITCH ğ TON CRUISE J/B 15 6 15A (∽₩∿ Ð 6 9 Ы 13 85-GW C-44 ш 9 16 12345 6789101112 17 18 C-09 BW 12345 6789 1011121314151617181920 ö 8 COMBINATION (CRUISE INDICATOR LIGHT 1 AUTO-CRUISE 9 CONTROL ACTUATOR and 2-B 文 82 A-54 (LG) C-52 ſM ē 12345678 9 10112314151617 2 6 LR 19 (LG) R 0.85-GW DIODE 85-GW C-49 2 (TB)0 2 STOP LIGHT SWITCH OPEN CONNECTOR 12 34 C-48 OFF 🕹 OFF ON TON Ð C-47 85-G 4 6 (ILW) o. 1234 567 8910111213141516 C-39 85-G 12345 6789101112 C-44 ö 12345 6789 2011121314151617181920 C-69 STOP LIGHT **TSB** Revision











ANTO ADDING AGAITOOL AIDALUT (AGAITIMUED)









NOTES

COMPONENT LOCATION

Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
Accelerator pedal switch 	м	Closed throttle position switch (fixed SAS) <dohc></dohc>	D
Auto-cruise control actuator <electrical type=""></electrical>	С	Idle speed control motor (closed throttle posi- tion switch, idle speed control motor position sensor) <sohc></sohc>	D
Auto-cruise control actuator <vacuum type=""></vacuum>	В		
Auto-cruise control switch	J	Park/neutral position switch 	А
Auto-cruise control unit	F	Overdrive switch 	I L
Auto-cruise control vacuum pump <vacuum type=""></vacuum>	С	Stop light switch	Ν
		Throttle position sensor	£
Auto-cruise indicator light	I	Vehicle speed sensor (Reed switch)	н
Clutch pedal position switch <m t=""></m>	0	4-speed automatic transaxle control module	κ
Diode	G		

NOTE The "Name" column is arranged in alphabetical order.

<Engine compartment>





<Interior>















324 CIRCUIT DIAGRAMS - Electronic Control Power Steering (EPS) Circuit


COMPONENT LOCATION

Name	Symbol
E.P.S. control unit	Α
E.P.S. mode selector switch	I B
Data link connector	С



















COMPONENT LOCATION

J



Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
Automatic seat belt control unit	С	Fasten switch	A
Automatic seat belt motor	E	Key reminder switch	I
Automatic seat belt motor relay	D	Outer switch	F
Buckle switch	G	Seat belt warning light	J
Buzzer	К	Release switch	Н
Door latch switch	В	-	



٠,





ঙ

2

A

Automatic seat belt motor relay

19403





THEFT-ALARM SYSTEM CIRCUIT (CONTINUED)





COMPONENT LOCATION

Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
Diode	D	Security light	F
Diode	E	Theft-alarm headlight relay	А
Diode	E	Theft-alarm horn relay	В
ETACS control unit	С	Theft-alarm starter relay	D

NOTE

The "Name" column is arranged in alphabetical order.









NOTES

M37AA--

STEERING

CONTENTS

E.P.S CONTROL UNIT AND E.P.S. MODE SELECTOR SWITCH	59
POWER STEERING GEAR BOX	32
POWER STEERING HOSES	58
POWER STEERING OIL PUMP	48
SERVICE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURES	15
Bleeding	22
E.P.S. Solenoid Check	19
Fluid Level Check	21
Fluid Replacement	21
Oil Pressure Switch Check	24
Oil Pump Pressure Test	23
Stationary Steering Effort Check	18
Steering Angle Check	15
Steering Wheel Centering	16
Steering Wheel Free Play Check	15
Steering Wheel Return to Center Check	19
Tie Rod End Ball Joint Starting Torque Check	15

The Rod End Ball Joint Variation Check	15
V-Belt Tension Check	. 21
SPECIAL TOOLS	5
SPECIFICATIONS	2
General Specifications	2
Lubricants	4
Sealants and Adhesives	4
Service Specifications	2
Torque Specifications	3
STEERING WHEEL AND SHAFT	25
TROUBLESHOOTING	6
E.P.S. Circuit Diagram	
No Change of The Steering Effort Characteris- tic When The E.P.S. Mode-Select Switch is Used.	
Required Steering Effort is Always Great	
Steering Effort Remains Light at Moderate and High Speeds	

SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

ltems	_	Specifications
Gear box		
Steering gear type		Rack and pinion
Oil pump		
Oil pump type		Vane type
Displacement	cm ³ /rev. (cu.in./rev.)	9.6 (.59)
Relief set pressure	MPa (psi)	8 (1,138)

SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS

Specifications Items Standard value mm (in.) 11 (.43) Steering wheel free play (with engine stopped) Steering angle Inner wheel FWD, AWD-M/T $37^{\circ}30' \pm 2$ AWD-A/T 35°00'±2 Outer wheel 30°40' FWD, AWD-M/T 29°20' AWD-A/T Tie rod end ball joint starting torque N m (in.lbs.) 0.5-2.5 (4-22) N (lbs.) Stationary steering effort Conventional power steering 37 (8) 4WS power steering 37 (8) E.P.S.* 28 (6) V-belt deflection mm (in.) 6-9 (.24-.35) Oil pump pressure MPa (psi) 7.5-8.2 (1,067-1,166) Pressure gauge valve closed 0.8-1.0 (114-142) Pressure gauge valve opened EPS* solenoid current 0.9-1.1 А N m (in.lbs.) 0.6-1.3 (5-11) Total pinion torque N(lbs.)8-20 (1.9-4.6) Tie-rod joint swing resistance Tie-rod joint swing torque N m (in.lbs.) 2-5 (17-43) limit Steering wheel free play (when hydraulic operation) mm (in.) 30 (1.2) Variation of tie rod end ball joint shaft direction mm (in.) 1.5 (.059) Oil pump pressure Pressure gauge valve opened MPa (psi) 1.5 (213) Space between vane and rotor mm (in.) 0.06 (.0024) Shaft backlash of pump body bushing and pulley assembly mm (in.) 0.1 (.004)

NOTE

*: E.P.S.-Electronic-controlled Power Steering

TSB Revision

M37CB--

TORQUE SPECIFICATIONS

M37CC--

37A-3

Items	Nm	ft.lbs.
Steering wheel and shaft		
Steering wheel lock nut	35-45	25-33
Lower bracket	8-12	6-9
Tilt bracket installation bolt	8-12	6 - 9
Joint assembly	15-20	11-14
Column tube clamp	6 - 8	4 - 5
Steering gear box		
Joint assembly	15-20	11-14
Pressure hose to gear box	12-18	9-13
Return tube to gear box	12-18	9-13
Tie rod end to knuckle	24-34	17-25
Stay to crossmember	70-80	51-58
Stabilizer bar bracket	30-42	22–30
Front roll stopper insulator nut	5065	36-47
Centermember to body	80-100	58-72
Front exhaust pipe to rubber hanger	10–15	7-11
Front exhaust pipe mounting bolt	30–40	22-29
Front exhaust pipe mounting nut		
<fwd></fwd>	40-50	29-36
<awd></awd>	30-40	22-29
Gear box mounting bracket to crossmember	60-80	43-58
Tie rod end lock nut	50-55	36-40
Tie rod to rack	80-100	58-72
Feed tubes	12-18	9-13
End plug	50-70	36-51
Pinion and valve assembly to self-locking nut	20-30	14-22
Rack support cover locking nut	5070	36-51
Solenoid valve	15-22	11–16
PCV cap assembly	15-22	11–16
Valve housing installation bolts	17-26	12-19
4WS oil line to gear box	30-40	22-29
Connector	12-18	9-13
Feed tube clamp	4 - 6	3 - 4
)il pump		
Pressure hose to oil pump	14–21	10–15
Oil pump to oil pump bracket	35-45	25-33
Heat protector installation nut	9-14	7–10
Oil pump bracket to engine		
Front side	25-33	18-24
Left side	35-45	25-33
Oil reservoir installation bolt	9-14	7–10
Oil reservoir bracket installation bolt	9-14	7–10
Pump cover to pump body	18-22	13-16
Suction connector to pump body	6-10	4 - 7
Connector to pump body	50-70	36-51
Terminal assembly to pump body	25–30	18-22

<u>37A-4</u>

STEERING – Specifications

Items	Nm	ft.lbs.
eering Hoses		
Cooler tube to body	9-14	7–10
Cooler tube clamp	3.0-4.5	2 - 3
Return tube to body	9-14	7–10
Pressure tube to gear box	12-18	9-13
Return tube to gear box	12–18	9-13
Pressure hose to body	9-14	7–10
Pressure hose to oil pump	14-21	10–15
Pressure hose to pressure tube	30–40	22-29
Pressure hose bracket	9-14	7–10

LUBRICANTS

M37CD--

ltems		Specified lubricant Quantity	
Steering	Bellows	Silicone grease	As required
year bux	Rack and pinion	Repair kit grease	
	Bearing O-ring Oil seal Rack cover Pinion and valve assembly seal ring part	Automatic transmission fluid "DEXRON II"	
Oil pump	Flow control valve Friction surface of rotor, vane, cam ring and pump cover O-ring Power steering fluid	Automatic transmission fluid "DEXRON II"	0.9 dm ³ (.95 qt.)
	i elle elle elle elle elle elle elle el		0.0 u m (.00 qi.)

SEALANTS AND ADHESIVES

M37CE--

Items		Specified sealant and adhesive
Power steering gear box	End plug screw Power steering rack support cover screw	3M ATD Part No.8663 or equivalent

SPECIAL TOOLS

M37DA--

37A-5

ТооІ	Number	Name	Use
Store B	MB991113-01 OPTIONAL: AVAIL	Steering linkage puller ABLE FROM O.T.C.	Disconnection of tie-rod end
3	MB991006-01	Preload socket	Measurement of the pinion shaft preload
	MB991269 <1989 models> MB991341 <from 1990="" mod<="" td=""><td>Scan tool (Multi-use tester <mut>) dels></mut></td><td>Checking the solenoid valve current control function</td></from>	Scan tool (Multi-use tester <mut>) dels></mut>	Checking the solenoid valve current control function
\sim	(For the number Precautions bet	ROM pack (for scan tool) , refer to GROUP 00- fore service.	Checking the solenoid valve current control function
	MB991139	Dummy speed oscillator	Checking the solenoid valve current control function Checking of stationary steering effort during simulated high-speed driving
13E111	MB990662-01	Oil pressure gauge assembly	Measurement of oil pressure
	MB990993 or MB991217	Power steering oil pressure gauge adapter (pump side)	Measurement of oil pressure
	MB990994	Power steering oil pressure gauge adapter (hose side)	Measurement of oil pressure
	MB991204	Torque wrench socket	Adjustment of rack support Removal of rack support cover

<u>37A-6</u>

Tool	Number	Name	Use
	GENERAL SERVICE TOOL	Bearing and oil seal installer set (Refer to GROUP 26)	Installation of the oil seal and bearing
	MB991120	Needle bearing puller	Removal of rack housing needle bearing
	MB991317	Seal ring installer	Compression of the seal rings after re- placement of the pinion seal rings
	MB990776-01	Front axle base	Installation of the dust cover

TROUBLESHOOTING

M37EAAK

v

Symptom	Probable cause	Remedy
Steering operation is "hard" (at low speed and in all gears), or there is notable torque un- evenness when the	Loose V-belt	Adjust
	Insufficient fluid *1	Replenish
	Fluid leakage * ²	Retighten or replace
steering wheel is turned	Twisted or damaged hoses	Correct the routing or replace
	No increase in oil pump pressure	Repair or replace (oil pump, gear box)
	Incorrect mounting of the steering gear box on the crossmember	Retighten
	Twisted firewall cover with steering shaft	
	Malfunction of the E.P.S. control unit, re- lated to wiring	Refer to troubleshooting guide related to E.P.S. control
	During operation of the E.P.S. control unit fail-safe function	
	Improper front wheel alignment	Adjust
	Damaged V-belt	Replace
	Excessive friction around steering linkage	
	Pinion and valve malfunction (seal damage, etc.)	
	Rack piston seal damage	
	Malfunction of ball joint(s) (excessive swinging torque or starting torque)	
	TSB Revision	

3	7	' <i>F</i>	1-	7

Symptom	Probable cause	Remedy		
The steering wheel does not return properly	Incorrect front wheel alignment	Adjust		
	Friction of steering shaft joint and/or body grommet	Correct or replace		
	Rough turning of tie rod end and/or ball joint	Apply grease or replace		
	Excessive turning resistance of tie rod ball joint	Replace		
	Gear sliding or rotating part if damaged			
	Bent rack	•		
	Incorrect installation of gear box cross-	Replace		
		Retighten		
	Malfunction of the E.P.S. control unit, or related to wiring	Refer to troubleshooting guide related to E.P.S. control		
	During operation of the E.P.S. control unit fail-safe function			
_ack of driving stability	Loosened steering linkage ball joint	Retighten or replace		
	Malfunction of ball joint(s) (insufficient swinging torque or starting torque)	Replace		
	Loose installation of gear box and CrOSS- member	Retighten		
Drifts to one side	Tires (Assuming that the tire inflation pressure, tire wear, front alignment, and front wheels are all normal)	Rotate		
Steering effort remains ight at moderate and high speeds	Malfunction of control unit or wiring (The engine speed signal and vehicle-speed signal are both not being input)	Refer to "Trouble Symptom 1" of the flow-chart type troubleshooting guide		
	Malfunction of solenoid or P.C.V.	Check fluid in fluid reservoir for cleanliness		
Required steering effort 3 always great.	Damaged or disconnected harness be- tween ground and the data link connector (E.P.S. terminal), or short-circuit	With the ignition key at the ON position, check whether or not the voltage be-	Repair the harness.	
	Malfunction of control unit	the data link connector (E.P.S. terminal) is 0.7V.	Replace the control unit.	
.bnormal noise (hissing sound, whistling sound) - -	Air in system due to insufficient fluid	Replenish or bleed air		
	Air trapped in pipes	Retighten or replace or bleed air		
	Crushed suction hose	Replace		
Abnormal noise (creak- ing sound, squeaking sound)	Slipping V-belt	Adjust or replace		

Symptom	Probable cause	Remedy	
Abnormal noise (creak-	Damaged V-belt	Replace	
sound, squeaking	Burned out oil pump		
Abnormal noise (rattling	Loose gear box bracket mounting	Retighten	
sound, clunking sound)	Loose oil pump bracket and/or oil pump mounting bolts		
	Loose steering linkage or bail joint		
	Play in steering linkage or ball joint	Replace	
	Interference between chassis and piping	Repair	
Noticeable fluid low noise with vehicle stop-	Malfunction of the E.P.S. control unit, re- lated to wiring	Refer to troubleshooting guide related to E.P.S. control	
at neutral position	During operation of the E.P.S. control unit fail-safe function		
	Malfunction of solenoid valve or oil passage switching valve	Replace	

NOTE (1) *1 Because fluid leakage is a possible, check carefully. Especially check the inside of the gear bellows for leakage.

*² Because the gear-box-to-piping coupling is sealed by an O-ring, carefully check whether it is damaged before retightening.

(3) A soft humming sound can be heard from the oil pump when the steering wheel is turned while the vehicle is standing still. This sound is caused by the pulsing of the fluid inside the pump, and does not indicate a malfunction. If the steering wheel is turned while the brake pedal is being depressed, some sound may be heard from the brakes. (4)

This sound is caused by the sticking of the brake pads as the tires turn, and does not indicate a malfunction. (5) When the steering wheel is turned while the vehicle is standing still, hissing sounds can be heard. These sounds are

caused by the fluid flowing through the pressure control valve, and do not indicate a malfunction.

(6) Before replacing the steering gear box assembly, thoroughly check whether or not the electric system of the E.P.S. is normal.

E.P.S. (related to control)

Symptom	Malfunction system	Check items, Reference check	
1. Steering effort remains light at moderate and high	Control unit	Steering effort (full turn simu- lated by tester)	37A-18
speeds		E.P.S. solenoid current relative to vehicle speed change	37A-19
	Steering gear box	E.P.S. solenoid activation	37A-19
		P.C.V. activation	
	Vehicle speed sensor	Vehicle speed sensor operation	-
2. Required steering effort is always great.	Steering gear box	E.P.S. solenoid valve continuity	З́7А-19
		E.P.S. solenoid activation	37A-19
		P.C.V. activation	-
	Wiring harness or fuse	Fuse blown or not	
		E.P.S. solenoid harness	-
	Control unit	*Fail-safe system activation	-
		Each harness continuity, and control unit power supply cir- cuit	-
		Control unit activation	37A-59
3. No change of the steering effort characteristic when	E.P.S. mode-select switch	Continuityof E.P.S. mode- select switch	37A-59
switch is used.	Control unit	Each harness continuity, and control unit power supply cir- cuit	-
		Control unit activation	37A-59

NOTE

(1) For checking procedures for each problem, refer to the flow-chart type of troubleshooting guide on the following

page. (2) To release the fail-safe system where indicated by the * symbol, set the ignition switch to the "ACC" or "LOCK" position, and then start the engine once again. (3) P.C.V. = Pressure control valve

37A-10







E.P.S. CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

*: <From 1990 models>



LOCATION OF E.P.S. CONTROL COMPONENTS

Name	Symbol
E.P.S. control unit	A
E.P.S. mode selector switch	В
Data link connector	С





















SERVICE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURES

STEERING WHEEL FREE PLAY CHECK

- 1. With engine running (hydraulic operation), set front wheels straight ahead.
- 2. Measure the play on steering wheel circumference before wheels start to move when slightly moving steering wheel in both directions.

Limit: 30 mm (1.2 in.)

- 3. When play exceeds the limit, check for play on steering shaft connection and steering linkage. Correct or replace.
- 4. If the free play still exceeds the limit value set steering wheel straight ahead with engine stopped. Load 5 N (1 lb.) towards steering wheel circumference and check play.

Standard value (steering wheel play with engine stopped): 11 mm (.**43**

If the play exceeds the standard value, remove steering gear box and check total pinion torque.

M37FDBK

1. Set front wheels on turning radius gauge and measure steering angle.

<FWD, AWD-M/T> Inner wheel 37°30′± 2" Outer wheel 30°40 <AWD-A/T> Inner wheel 35°00′± 2" Outer wheel 29°20′

 When not within the standard value, it is probably a toe problem. Adjust toe (Refer to GROUP 26-Service Adjustment Procedures) and recheck.

TIE ROD END BALL JOINT VARIATION CHECK (SHAFT DIRECTION) M37FPAB

2. Set a caliper gauge as illustrated and measure the displacement with the ball stud compressed.

(.**059** in.)

3. If the measured displacement exceeds the limit, replace the tie-rod end.

Caution

Even if the variation is within the limit, check ball joint starting torque.

TIE ROD END BALL JOINT STARTING TORQUE CHECK M37FEBC

1. Disconnect tie rod and knuckle with special tool.

Be sure to tie the cord of the special tool to the nearby part.



2. Move ball joint stud several times and install nut on stud. Measure ball joint starting torque.

Standard value: 0.5-2.5 Nm (4-22 in.lbs.)

- 3. When starting torque exceeds the standard value, replace tie rod end.
- 4. When the starting torque is under the standard value, check for play or ratcheting in ball joint. If none of these, it is still serviceable.

M37FNAC

STEERING WHEEL CENTERING SIMPLIFIED STEERING WHEEL CENTERING

Determing Steering Wheel's off Center

- 1. for the road test, take along chalk or tape and a ruler.
- 2. Drive straight ahead on an uncambered level surface.
- 3. When the vehicle's wheels are pointing straight ahead, mark the steering wheel hub and column cover with a chalk or tape line.
- 4. Stop the vehicle and line up the marks on the hub and column cover.
- 5. Place a tape strip or mark on the steering wheel rim.
- 6. Hold a ruler next to the rim as shown in the illustration, and then steer the steering wheel until it is in the desired centered position.
- 7. Record the distance the strip or mark on the rim has moved. This is how far the steering wheel is off center. If it is more than 16 mm (5/8 in.) aff center, it can be centered by indexing it ten degrees towards the center.

Indexing Steering Wheel to Center It

The steering wheel shaft has 36 splines, allowing the steering wheel to be indexed in ten-degree increments.

- 1. Remove the steering wheel.
- 2. Without disturbing the position of the steering wheel shaft, re-install the wheel as near on-center as possible.



PRECISION STEERING WHEEL CENTERING

In general, the tie rods are adjusted to steer the front wheels in the same direction that the steering wheel is off center. If the steering wheel is off center to the left, center it by adjusting the tie rods to make the front wheels steer toward the left, and vice versa.

- 1. Mark the tie rods and tie rod ends with chalk before loosening the lock nuts.
- 2. Hold the tie rod with a wrench and loosen the lock nut.
- 3. Hold the tie rod end with a wrench and turn the tie rod the desired number of turns.

For 2" or 6 mm (.25 in.) at the steering wheel rim 1/5 turn of tie rods

4. Tighten the lock nut to the specified torque, taking care not to turn the tie rod.



STATIONARY STEERING EFFORT CHECK M37FFAM

- With the vehicle stopped on a flat, paved surface. turn the steering wheel to the straight ahead position.
- 2. Start the engine and set it to 1 ,000 \pm 100 rpm.

Caution

After checking the engine rpm, there **must** be a return to the standard idling **rpm**.

3. Attach a spring balance to the outer circumference Of the steering wheel and measure the steering force required to turn the steering wheel from the straight ahead position to the left and right (within a range of 1.5 turns).

Also check to be sure that there is no significant fluctuation of the required steering force.

Standard value:

Steering effort <Conventional Power Steering> <4WS Power Steering>

	37 N (8 ibs.) or less
< E.P.S. >	28 N (6 Ibs.) or less
Fluctuation allowance	6 N (1.3 Ibs.) or less

- 4. If the measured force exceeds the standard value, refer to the troubleshooting (Refer to P.37A-9) and make the checks and adjustments described there.
- 5. For models equipped with the E.P.S., the vehicle speed is detected by the E.P.S. solenoid, thereby changing the required steering effort, and therefore, after checking the E.P.S. solenoid, a tester should be used to input simulated-speed signals so that the required stationary steering effort during simulated high speed driving can be checked.

For information concerning the checking of the E.P.S. solenoid and the set up of the tester, refer to P.37A-19.

 Check whether or not the required steering effort when the turn is started is 1.5 to two times the standard value shown in item (3) when simulatedspeed signals of the values indicated below are input.

<Reference value>

Stationary steering effort at simulated high speed

42-56 **N** (9.3-12.3 **lbs**.)

Input value of simulated-speed signals When switch OFF (NOR mode):

170 km/h (106 mph) or more

When switch ON (SP mode):

80 km/h (50 mph) or more

(2) If there is no change of the required steering effort, refer to the troubleshooting guide (P.37A-9) for the procedures for checking the various components.

NOTE

It is also possible to make the check described in step (5), without using the tester, by short-circuiting the E.P.S. terminal and the ground terminal of the data link connector, as shown in the illustration at the left.



(3) For 4-speed A/T models, when making the check in step (5), there will be a 3-speed hold by the fail-safe function. Therefore, be sure to disconnect the negative (--) terminal of the battery for ten seconds or longer in order to cancel the 3-speed hold after completion of checks by using the tester.

Caution

- 1. Never drive the vehicle with the tester connected or data link connector short circuit.
- 2. The driving test used for making checks while the vehicle is moving should be done in a safe place.

STEERING WHEEL RETURN TO CENTER CHECK

To make this test, conduct a road test and check as follows.

- 1. Make both gradual and sudden turns and check the steering "feeling" to be sure that there is no difference in the steering force required and the wheel return between left and right turns.
- 2. At a speed of 35 km/h (22 mph), turn the steering wheel 90°, and release the steering wheel after 1 or 2 seconds. If the steering wheel then returns 70° or more, the return can be judged to the satisfactory.

NOTE

There will be a momentary feeling or "heaviness" when the wheel is turned quickly, but this is not abnormal. (This is because the oil pump discharge amount is especially apt to be insufficient during idling.)





E.P.S. SOLENOID CHECK SOLENOID CONTINUITY CHECK

M37FRAB

Check for continuity, by using an ohmmeter, between the solenoid valve terminal and the disconnection of the solenoid valve connector.

SOLENOID CURRENT CHECK

- 1. Set up the scan tool or dummy speed oscillator as follows.
 - (1) Turn the ignition switch to ACC or LOCK, and apply the parking brake.

NOTE

The fail-safe system will be activated when the engine is raced for approximately 15 seconds at an engine speed of 2,300 rpm of higher, and the solenoid current will be cut, but the fail-safe system can be cancelled by switching OFF the engine and then restarting it.



- (2) For the dummy speed oscillator, set the speed-selection switch to 0 km/h (0 mph).
- (3) Connect the connector of the tester to the data link connector at the side part of fuse block, and then connect the connector for the power supply to the cigarette lighter socket (chassis side).
 For models equipped with the auto-cruise control system, the main switch must be switched OFF.
- (4) Start the engine and let it idle.
- (5) For the scan tool, input the simulated vehicle speed, using the vehicle-speed signal function. If the simulated vehicle speed cannot be input, a message will be displayed on the tester's display; move the vehicle ahead 0.3 to 0.4 m(.98 to 1.31 ft.) if such a message is displayed.
- (6) For the dummy speed oscillator, set the vehicle-speed selection switch to 10-20 km/h (6– 12 mph), and check to be sure that the monitor light is flashing. If it remains steadily illuminated rather that flashing, move the vehicle forward about 0.3-0.4 m(.98-1.31 ft.) until it begins flashing.
- 2. Disconnect the wiring harness connector (the waterproof connector in the engine compartment) of the E.P.S. solenoid valve, and then connect a voltmeter between the solenoid valve connector and the harness at the body side.

Caution Do not ground the solenoid terminal.

3. Check to be sure that the solenoid current is within the standard value range when the vehicle speed is 0 km/h (0 mph), and that it decreases as the vehicle speed is increased.

Standard value: 0.9–1.1A at vehicle speed of 0 km/h (0 mph)

- 4. If the solenoid current does not decrease when simulatedspeed signals for an increased speed are input, refer to the troubleshooting guide (P.37A-9).
- 5. For 4-speed automatic transaxle models, when the tester is used, there will be a 3-speed hold by the fail-safe function.

Therefore, be sure to disconnect the negative (--) terminal of the battery for ten seconds or longer in order to cancel the 3-speed hold after completion of checks by using the tester.

Caution

- 1. Never drive the vehicle with the tester connected.
- 2. The driving test used for making checks while the vehicle is moving **should** be done in a safe place.



V-BELT TENSION CHECK

M37FHAI

37A-21

 Check to be sure that the belt is not damaged and that the V-belt is correctly attached to the groove of the pulley. NOTE

If there is abnormal noise or belt slippage, check the belt tension and check for unusual wear or abrasion, or damage, of the pulley contact surface, and for scars or scratches on the pulley.

2. Press in V-belt at the illustrated position with about 100 N (22 lbs.) and measure deflection.

Standard value: 6-9 mm (.24-.35 in.)

- 3. If there is a deviation from the standard value range, make an adjustment of the belt tension by following the procedures described below.
 - (1) Loosen bolts A, B and C (for holding the oil pump).

- (2) Place a bar or similar object against the body of the oil pump, and, while manually providing the suitable amount of tension, adjust the amount of flexion of the belt.
- (3) Tighten bolts A, B and C (for holding the oil pump).
- (4) Check the amount of flexion of the belt; readjust if necessary.

Caution

The check should be made after turning the engine one time or more in the regular direction of rotation (to the right).

FLUID LEVEL CHECK

M37FIAI

- Park the vehicle on a flat, level surface, start the engine, and then turn the steering wheel several times to raise the temperature of the fluid to approximatery 50-60°C (122-140°F).
- 2. With the engine running, turn the wheel all the way to the left and right several times.
- 3. Check the fluid in the oil reservoir for foaming or milkiness.

Check the difference of the fluid level when the engine is stopped, and while it is running. If the fluid level changes considerably, air bleeding should be done.

FLUID REPLACEMENT

M37FJAJ

- 1. Raise the front wheels on a jack, and then support them with rigid racks.
- 2. Disconnect the return hose connection.
- 3. Connect a vinyl hose to the return hose, and drain the oil into a container.

4. Disconnect the high-tension cable, and then while operating the starting motor intermittently, turn the steering wheel all the way to the left and right several times to drain all of the fluid.

Caution

Be careful not to position the high-tension cable near the **carburettor** or the delivery pipe.

- 5. Connect the return hoses securely, and then secure it with the clip.
- 6. Fill the oil reservoir with the specified fluid up to the lower position of the filter, and then bleed the air.

Specified fluid: Automatic transmission fluid "DEXRON II"

BLEEDING

M37FKAG

- 2. Manually turn the oil pump pulley a few times.
- 3. Turn the steering wheel all the way to the left and to the right five or six time.

4.

ing the starting motor intermittently, turn the steering wheel all the way to the left and right five or six times (for

Caution

- 1. During air bleeding, replenish the fluid supply so that the level never falls below the lower position of the filter.
- 2. If air bleeding is done while engine is running, the air will be broken up and absorbed into the fluid; be sure to do the bleeding only while cranking.
- 5. Connect the ignition cable, and (idling).
- 6.
- no air bubbles in the oil reservoir. 7.
- to the specified position on the level gauge.
- 8. Confirm that there is very little change in the fluid level
- 9. Check wheter or not the change in the fluid level is less than 5 mm (.2 is running.

Caution

(.2 in.) or

more, the air has not been completely bled from the

- 2. If the fluid level rises suddenly after the engine is stopped, the air has not been completely bled.
- 3. If air bleeding is not complete, there will be abnormal noises from the pump and the flow-control

the life of the pump, etc.


M37ELAE



OIL PUMP PRESSURE TEST

CHECKING THE OIL PUMP RELIEF PRESSURE

- 1. Disconnect the pressure hose from the oil pump, and then connect the special tools.
- 2. Bleed the air, and then turn the steering wheel several times while the vehicle is not moving so that the temperature of the fluid rises to approximately 50-60°C(122-140°F).
- 3. Start the engine and idle it at 1 ,000 \pm 100 rpm.
- 4. Fully close the shut-off valve of the pressure gauge and measure the oil pump relief pressure to confirm that it is within the standard value range.

Standard value: 7.5-8.2 MPa (1,067-1,166 psi) Caution

Pressure gauge shut-off valve must not remain closed for more than 10 seconds.

- 5. If it is not within the standard value, overhaul the oil pump.
- 6. Remove the special tools, and then tighten the pressure hose to the specified torque.
- 7. Bleed the system.

CHECKING THE PRESSURE UNDER NO-LOAD CONDI-TIONS

- 1. Disconnect the pressure hose from the oil pump, and then connect the special tools.
- Bleed the air, and then turn the steering wheel several times while the vehicle is not moving so that the temperature of the fluid rises to approximately 50-60°C(122-140°F).
- 3. Start the engine and idle it at 1,000 \pm 100 rpm.
- 4. Check whether or not the hydraulic pressure is the standard value when no-load conditions are created by fully opening the shut-off valve of the pressure gauge.

Standard value: 0.8-1.0 MPa (114-142 psi) Limit: 1.5 MPa (213 psi)

- 5. If it is not within the standard value, the probable cause is a malfunction of the oil line or steering gear box, so check these parts and repair as necessary.
- 6. Remove the special tools, and then tighten the pressure hose to the specified torque.
- 7. Bleed the system.



CHECKING THE STEERING GEAR RETENTION HYDRAULIC PRESSURE

- 1. Disconnect the pressure hose from the oil pump, and then connect the special tools.
- Bleed the air, and then turn the steering wheel several times while the vehicle is not moving so that the temperature of the fluid rises to approximately 50-60°C (122-140°F).
- 3. Start the engine and idle it at 1,000 \pm 100 rpm.
- 4. Fully close and fully open the shut-off valve of the pressure gauge.
- 5. Turn the steering wheel all the way to the left or right; then check whether or not the retention hydraulic pressure is the standard value.

Standard value: 7.5-8.2 MPa (1,067-1,166 psi)

6. When not within the standard value, overhaul the steering gear box.

Remeasure fluid pressure.

- 7. Remove the special tools, and then tighten the pressure hose to the specified torque.
- 8. Bleed the system.

OIL PRESSURE SWITCH CHECK

M37FUAA

- 1. Disconnect the pressure hose from the oil pump, and then connect the special tools.
- 2. Bleed the air, and then turn the steering wheel several times while the vehicle is not moving so that the temperature of the fluid rises to approximately 50-60°C(122-140°F).
- 3. The engine should be idling.
- 4. Disconnect the connection of the connector for the oilpressure switch, and place an ohmmeter in position.
- 5. Gradually close the shut-off valve of the pressure gauge and increase the hydraulic pressure then check whether or not the hydraulic pressure that activates the switch is the standard value.

Standard value: 1.5-2.0 MPa (213-284 lbs.)

6. Gradually open the shut-off valve and reduce the hydraulic pressure; then check whether or not the hydraulic pressure that deactivates the switch is the standard value.

Standard value: 0.7-1.2 MPa (100-171 lbs.)

- 7. Remove the special tools, and then tighten the pressure hose to the specified torque.
- 8. Bleed the system.

STEERING WHEEL AND SHAFT

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION

<1989 models>



37A-25

37A-26







INSPECTION

M37GGAD

M37GFAK

- Check the steering shaft for damage and deformation.
- Check the joints for play, damage, or rough movement. •
- Check the joint bearing for wear and damage. •
- Check the tilt bracket for cracks and damage. •
- Check the column bushing for damage.
- Check the dust cover for damage.



SERVICE POINTS OF REASSEMBLY **18. APPLICATION OF GREASE TO BEARING**

M37GHAW

- (1) Apply a coating of multipurpose grease to the sliding part of the bearing.
- (2) Using a tool, press the oil seal into the column tube lower.



37A-29

37A-28



Horn pad installation bracket

SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

2. REMOVAL OF HORN PAD

<Type 1>

The horn pad can be removed by pressing upward.

<Type 2>

(1) Remove the screws on the back of the steering wheel.

(2) Push up on the lower part of the horn pad, and the horn pad will come off upwards.

Caution

Take care when removing the horn pad as the horn switch harness is connected.

4. REMOVAL OF STEERING WHEEL

Remove the steering wheel by using a steering wheel puller.

Caution

Do not hammer on the steering wheel to remove it; doing so may damage the collapsible mechanism.

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

2. INSTALLATION OF HORN PAD

<Type 2>

(1) Screw on the horn pad installation bracket.

Т

(2) Push down on the horn pad from above so that it is accurately aligned with the direction arrows, and install the horn pad.

TSB Revision

13A0399

M37GBAP







12. INSTALLATION OF COLUMN TUBE CLAMP

(1) Slide the colum tube and adjust so that dimension A in the figure is the standard value.

Standard value: 24.8-25.2 mm (.98-.99 in.)

(2) Install the column tube clamp at the position where the dimension shown in the figure is obtained.

8. INSTALLATION OF STEERING LOCK/7. STEERING LOCK BRACKET/6. STEERING LOCK INSTALLATION SPECIAL BOLT

- (1) When installing the steering lock and steering lock bracket to the column tube, temporarily install the steering lock in alignment with the column boss.
- (2) After checking that the lock works properly, tighten the special bolts until the head twists off.

Caution

The steering lock bracket and blots must be replaced with new ones when the steering lock is installed.

- 4. INSTALLATION OF JOINT ASSEMBLY/3. BEARING/ 2. COVER ASSEMBLY
 - (1) Install the cover assembly on the joint assembly.
 - (2) Fill the inside of the bearing with multipurpose grease.
 - (3) Install the bearings to the shaft on the joint assembly.
 - (4) Wrap vinyl tape approximately one and one-half times around the concave circumferences of the bearings, and then press fit the bearings into the cover assembly.
 - (5) Apply multipurpose grease to the mating surfaces of the joint and cover assemblies.

POWER STEERING GEAR BOX

M37PA--





136658

MB991113-01 OPTIONAL

SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

7. DISCONNECTION OF TIE-ROD END

Using the special tool, disconnect the tie rod from the knuckle.

Caution

- 1. Be sure to tie the cord of the special tool to the nearby part.
- 2. Loosen the nut but do not remove it.

14. REMOVAL OF GEAR BOX ASSEMBLY

- (1) Move the rack completely to the right and then remove the gear box from the crossmember.
- (2) While tilting the gear box downward, remove it to the left.

Caution

When removing the gear box, pull it out carefully and slowly to avoid damaging the boots.

INSPECTION

М37РСАВ

CHECK THE TIE ROD FOR SWING RESISTANCE

- (1) Give 10 hard swings to the tie rod.
- (2) Measure the tie rod swing resistance with a spring scale. Standard value: 8-20N (1.9-4.6 lbs.)

[2-5 N m (17-43 in.lbs.)]

(3) If the measured value exceeds the standard value, replace the tie rod assembly.

NOTE

Even if the measured value is below the standard value, the tie rod which swings smoothly without excessive play may be used.





M37PBAB



GEAR BOX FOR TOTAL PINION TORQUE

Using the special tool, rotate the pinion gear at the rate of one rotation in approximately 4 to 6 seconds to check the total pinion torque.

Standard value: 0.6-1.3 Nm (5-11 in.lbs.)

NOTE

Measure the pinion torque through the whole stroke of the rack.

If the measured value is not within the standard range, first adjust the rack support cover, and then check the total pinion torque again.

If the total pinion torque cannot be adjusted to within the standard value range by adjusting the rack support cover, check the rack support cover, rack support spring, rack support and replace any parts necessary.



SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

15. INSTALLATION OF MOUNTING RUBBER/14. GEAR BOX ASSEMBLY

When installing the mounting rubber, align the projection of the mounting rubber with the indentation in the crossmember to install the gear box.

M37PDAB

DISASSEMBLY AND REASSEMBLY

M37PE--

37A-35









37A-39





SERVICE POINTS OF DISASSEMBLY

6. REMOVAL OF BELLOWS BANDS

Using a screwdriver or similar tool, loosen and then remove the bellows band.



8. REMOVAL OF TAB WASHER

Unstake the tab washer which fixes the tie rod and rack with a chisel.



MB991204

14. REMOVAL OF END PLUG

Disconnect end plug caulking and remove end plug.

17. REMOVAL OF RACK SUPPORT COVER

Using the special tool, remove the rack support cover from the gear box.

22. REMOVAL OF P.C.V. CAP ASSEMBLY < E.P.S.>

Remove the P.C.V. cap assembly from the valve housing.

Caution

Do not uncrimp the upper crimp of the PCV cap assembly, because to do so will result in a change of the adjustment pressure.

13R0578

Crimped place

13R0542

TSB Revision

M37PFAN



29. REMOVAL OF BALL BEARING/30. OIL SEAL

Using a socket, remove the oil seal and the ball bearing from the valve housing simultaneously.

31. REMOVAL OF CIRCLIP

- (1) Turn the rack stopper clockwise until the end of the circlip comes out of the slot in the rack housing.
- (2) Turn the rack stopper counterclockwise to remove the

Pull out the rack slowly.

At this time also take out the rack stopper and the rack bushing simultaneously.

Partially bend oil seal and remove from rack bushing.

Do not damage oil seal press fitting surface.



39. REMOVAL OF BALL BEARING

Use a brass bar or special tool to remove the ball bearing from the gear housing.

40. REMOVAL OF NEEDLE ROLLER BEARING

Use the special tool to remove the needle roller bearing from the rack housing.

Caution

Do not open special tool excessively to prevent damaging housing interior.

41. REMOVAL OF OIL SEAL/42. BACK-UP WASHER

Use a piece of pipe or similar tool to remove the back-up washer and oil seal from the gear housing.

Caution

Be careful not to damage the inner surface of the rack cylinder of the gear housing.

INSPECTION

RACK

- Check the rack tooth surfaces for damage or wear.
- Check the oil seal contact surfaces for uneven wear.
- Check the rack for bends.

PINION AND VALVE ASSEMBLY

- Check the pinion gear tooth surfaces for damage or wear.
- Check for worn or defective seal ring.

BEARING

- Check for roughness or abnormal noise during bearing operation.
- Check the bearing for play.
- Check the needle roller bearings for roller slip-off.

OTHERS

- Check the cylinder inner surface of the rack housing for damage.
- Check the bellows for damage, cracking or deterioration.
- Check the rack support for uneven wear or dents.
- Check the rack bushing for uneven wear or damage.

TSB Revision

M37PGAF



SOLENOID VALVE

• Remove the solenoid valve connector, and then check whether or not there is continuity between the two terminals.

• While pressing the solenoid end inward by using a finger, connect to the battery and then check whether or not the solenoid is pushed out.

SERVICE POINTS OF REASSEMBLY M37PHAW

42. INSTALLATION OF BACK-UP WASHER/41. OIL SEAL

(1) Apply a coating of the specified fluid to the outside of the oil seal.

Specified fluid: Automatic transmission fluid "DEXRON II"

(2) Using a tool, press the back-up washer and the oil seat into the rack housing to the specified position (where the upper surface of the press-in guide coincides with the stepped part of the press-in tool).

40. INSTALLATION OF NEEDLE ROLLER BEARING

(1) Apply specified fluid to housing, bearing and oil seal press fitting surface.

Specified fluid: Automatic transmission fluid "DEXRON II"

(2) Press fit needle roller bearing with a tool. Caution

Press fit straight as valve housing is aluminum.

39. INSTALLATION OF BALL BEARING

Use a tool to press fil ball bearing.







36. INSTALLATION OF OIL SEAL/35. O-RING

(1) Apply a coating of the specified fluid to the outside of the oil seal and o-ring.

Specified fluid: Automatic transmission fluid "DEXRON II"

(2) Use the general service tool to press fit oil seal until it touches rack bush end.

34. INSTALLATION OF RACK ASSEMBLY

(1) Apply a coating of repair kit grease to the rack teeth face.

Caution

Do not close the vent hole in the rack with grease.

- (2) Cover rack serrations.
- (3) Apply specified fluid on cover.

Specified fluid: Automatic transmission fluid "DEXRON II"

(4) Match oil seal center with rack to prevent retainer spring from slipping and slowly insert rack from power cylinder side.

33. INSTALLATION OF RACK BUSHING ASSEMBLY

Wrap the rack end with vinyl tape, apply a coating of the specified fluid, and then install the rack bushing and rack stopper.

Specified fluid: Automatic transmission fluid "DEXRON II"

Caution

Do not allow oil seal retainer spring to slip out.

31. INSTALLATION OF CIRCLIP

Insert circlip to rack stopper hole through cylinder hole. Turn rack stopper clockwise and insert circlip firmly.

Caution

Insert circlip to rack stopper hole whilst turning rack stopper clockwise.







- (2) Apply repair kit grease to pinion gear and housing bearing.
- (3) Wrap vinyl tape around the serrated part so that the oil seal won't be damaged when the pinion and valve assembly is installed to the valve housing.
- (4) Mount the pinion and valve assembly to the valve housing.

25. INSTALLATION OF OIL SEAL

Using a tool, press the oil seal into the valve housing.

Caution

In order to eliminate a seal malfunction at the valve housing alignment surface, the upper surface of the oil seal should project outward approximately 1 mm (.039 in.) from the housing edge surface.

21. INSTALLATION OF O-RING <EPS>

Caution

The O-ring for the solenoid valve is a thermal-resistant O-ring. It is painted white on its outer circumference to distinguish it from other O-rings, and care should be taken to use the correct one.



14. INSTALLATION OF END PLUG

(1) Apply the specified sealant to the threaded part of the end plug.

Specified sealant: **3M** ATD Part **No.8663** or equivalent

(2) Secure the threaded portion of the end plug at two places by using a punch.

. ADJUSTMENT OF TOTAL PINION TORQUE

- (1) Position rack at its centre. With special tool, tighten rack support cover to 15 Nm (11ft.lbs.).
- (2) In neutral position, rotate pinion shaft clockwise one turn/4–6 seconds with special tool. Return rack support cover 30°–60° and adjust torque to the standard value.

Standard value: 0.6-1.3 Nm (5-11 in.lbs.)



Caution

- 1. When adjusting, set the standard value at its highest value.
- 2. Assure no ratcheting or catching when operating rack towards the shaft direction.

NOTE

When it cannot be adjusted within the specified return angle, check rack support cover components or replace.

(3) After adjusting, lock rack support cover with lock nut.

9. INSTALLATION OF TIE ROD

After installing tie rod to rack, fold tab washer end (2 locations) to tie rod notch.

4. INSTALLATION OF DUST COVER

- (1) Pack dust cover interior and lip with multipurpose grease.
- (2) Apply specified sealant to dust cover.

Specified sealant: **3M** ATD Part **No.8663** or equivalent

(3) Using the special tool, press dust cover to tie rod end.

2. INSTALLATION OF TIE ROD END

Screw in tie rod end to have its right and left length as illustrated. Lock with lock nut.

M37RA-

POWER STEERING OIL PUMP

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



M37RBAI

SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

2. DISCONNECTION OF RETURN HOSE

- (1) Remove the reservoir cap and disconnect the return hose from the reservoir to drain the fluid.
- (2) Jack up the front wheels.
- (3) Disconnect the high tension cable and turn the engine over several times to drain the fluid from the gear box.

INSPECTION

M37RCAA

- Check the V-belt for cracks.
- Check the pulley assembly for uneven rotation.



SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION 3. CONNECTION OF SUCTION HOSE

M37RDAI

When connecting the suction hose to the oil pump, the amount of insertion should be as shown in the illustration. NOTE

Install the hoses so that they are not twisted and so that they do not come in contact with any other parts.

(1) Replenish automatic transmission fluid. (Refer to P.37A-21.)

Specified fluid: Automatic transmission fluid "DEXRON II"

- (2) Bleed air. (Refer to P.37A-22.)
- (3) Check the oil pump pressure. (Refer to P.37A-23.)







S.

<u>37A-52</u>







SERVICE POINTS OF DISASSEMBLY

8. REMOVAL OF PULLEY ASSEMBLY

Tap the rotor side of the shaft lightly with a plastic hammer, and take out the pulley assembly.

INSPECTION

M37RGAK

M37RFAM

- Check the flow control spring for wear.
- Check the shaft of the pulley for wear and bend.
- Check the groove of rotor vane for "stepped" wear.
- Check the contact surface of cam ring and vanes for "stepped" wear.
- Check the vanes for breakage.

CHECK OF GAP BETWEEN VANE AND ROTOR GROOVE

Install vane to rotor groove as illustrated. Measure the gap between vane and rotor groove with thickness gauge. Limit: 0.06 mm (.0024 in.)

CHECK OF SHAFT BACKLASH OF PUMP BODY BUSHING AND PULLEY ASSEMBLY

- (1) Place a dial gauge at the end of the shaft of the pulley assembly.
- (2) Move the pulley assembly up and down, and measure the play.

Limit: 0.1 mm (.004 in.)

27. INSTALLATION OF SPRING

SERVICE POINTS OF REASSEMBLY

M37RHBI

Fit the spring to the oil pump body with the larger-diameter end at the terminal assembly side.





26. /24. INSTALLATION OF O-RINGS

Apply specified fluid on O-rings to install.

Specified fluid: Automatic transmission fluid "DEXRON II"

No.	I.D. × Width mm (in.)	identification color
21	3.8 13×× 1.9 1.9 (.51(.15×× .0748).0748)	Blue I

17. INSTALLATION OF FLOW CONTROL VALVE

- (1) If the flow control valve is to be replaced, install the flow control valve to the oil pump body corresponding with the body identification mark (A, B, C). <Up to 1990 models>
- (2) Apply the specified fluid to the outside of the flow control valve.

Specified fluid: Automatic transmission fluid "DEXRON II"

16. INSTALLATION OF O-RINGS

Apply specified fluid on O-rings to install.

Specified fluid: Automatic transmission fluid "DEXRON II"

No.	I.D. x Width mm (in.)	Identification color
1	11 x 1.9 (.43 x .0748)	Yellow
2	13 × 1.9 (.51 × .0748)	Blue
3	Up to 1990 models	
	15.8 × 2.4 (.62 × .0945)	-
	From 199 1 models	
	17.8 × 2.4 (.70 × .0945)	-
4	13.5 x 1.5 (.53 x .0590)	Red



13. INSTALLATION OF O-RING



11. / 10. INSTALLATION OF O-RINGS

Apply specified fluid on O-rings to install.

Specified fluid: Automatic transmission fluid "DEXRON II"

ļ	No.	I.D. x Width mm (in.)	Identification color
	2 1	47.2 16.8 xx 2.4 2.4 (1.86 (.66 xx .0945).0945)	

9. INSTALLATION OF SIDE PLATE

Align the dowel pin of the pump body with the dowel pin hole of the side plate to install the side plate.

7. INSTALLATION OF ROTOR

Install the rotor to the pulley assembly so that the rotor's punch mark is at the pump cover side.

6. INSTALLATION OF SNAP RING

Lift the rotor and check to be sure that the snap ring is in the countersunk par-t.

5. INSTALLATION OF VANE/4. CAM RING

(1) Apply specified fluid to vane and cam ring friction surface.

Specified fluid: Automatic transmission fluid "DEXRON II"

Up to 1990 models Dowel pin hole Punch mark Dowel pin Dowel pin 13w039





(2) <Up to 1990 models>

Align the dowel pins of the pump body with the dowel holes of the cam ring, and then install so that the cam ring's punch mark is at the pump body side.

<From 1991 models>

Align the dowel pin cutouts in the side plate with the dowel pin holes in the cam ring and direct the punch mark on the cam ring toward the pump body to install the cam ring.

(3) Apply specified fluid to the vanes and install the vanes on the rotor, paying close attention to the installation direction.

Specified fluid: Automatic transmission fluid "DEXRON II"

POWER STEERING HOSES

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



TSB Revision

M37TA--


E.P.S. CONTROL UNIT AND E.P.S. **MODE SELECTOR SWITCH INSPECTION**

М37КАСВ

37A-59

E.P.S. MODE SELECTOR SWITCH

Check for continuity between terminals when the switch is OFF and when ON.

	1	2	3	-	4
OFF (NOR)	0	0	0	<u> </u>	þ
ON (SP)	0	0	0	•	P

NOTE

 \odot - \odot indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.



E.P.S. CONTROL UNIT

To check the E.P.S. control unit, refer to the electroniccontrolled power steering (control related) troubleshooting guide, and check by measuring the voltage or current of each terminal.

Caution

When checking terminal voltage when the ignition key is ON, never ground the No.2 terminal (IG_2 power supply), the No.7 terminal (solenoid valve positive side), or the No.8 terminal (solenoid valve negative side).

NOTES

4-WHEEL STEERING SYSTEM (4WS)

CONTENTS

M37AA--1

CONTROL VALVE	12
POWER CYLINDER	9
REAR OIL LINE	13
REAR OIL PUMP	15
SERVICE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURES	4
Ball Joint Rotation Starting Torque	Q
	0
Bleeding	4
Function Check	6
Rear Oil Pump Discharge Flow Volume Check	6

SPECIAL TOOLS	3
SPECIFICATIONS	2
General Specifications	2
Lubricants	3
Service Specifications	2
Torque Specifications	2
TROUBLESHOOTING	4

SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

items		Specifications
Power steering gear box		
Туре		Rack and pinion
Oil pump		
Туре		Vane type
Displacement	cm³/rev. (cu.in./rev.)	9.6 (.59)
Relief set pressure	MPa (psi)	8 (1,138)
Rear oil pump		
Туре		Vane type
Displacement	cm³/rev.(cu.in./rev.)	3.3 (.20)
Relief set pressure	MPa (psi)	4 (569)
Power cylinder		
Туре		Hydraulic double action type
Stroke	mm (in.)	20 (.78) [one side 10 (.39)]

SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS

Items		Specifications
Standard value		
Rear oil pump displacement [at speedometer reading of 50 for 30 seconds]	km/h (31 mph) dm ³ (qts.)	Approx. 1 .0 (1.06)
Power cylinder ball joint rotation starting torque	Nm (in.lbs.)	0.5 (4) or less
Power cylinder tie rod swing	N (lbs.)	9-55 (2-12)
Power cylinder slide resistance	N (lbs.)	67 (1 5) or less

TORQUE SPECIFICATIONS

Items	Nm	ft.lbs.
Power cylinder to crossmember	34 - 50	25-36
Flared oil line nuts	12 18	9 - 1 3
Power cylinder to trailing arm	50 – 65	26-47
Tie rod end to cylinder assembly	34 – 50	25-36
Bleeder screw	6 - 8	4 - 6
Control valve to crossmember	9–14	7 – 10
Feed tube to rear oil pump	14 – 21	10 – 15
Pipe to No. 1 crossmember	4 - 6	3 - 4
Pipe clamp	9–14	7–10
Pipe clamp	4 - 6	3 - 4
Control pipe prestoure tube	30 – 40	22-29
Rear oil pump to differential carrier	19 – 28	14–20

M37CA--1

M37CB-1

M37CC--1

LUBRICANTS

Items	Specified lubricants	Quantity
Power steering fluid	Automatic transmission fluid "DEXRON "	1.45 dm ³ (1.53 qts.)
Dust cover	Silicone grease	As required

SPECIAL TOOLS

M37CD--1

Tool	Number	Name	Use
	M 8990993	Power steering oil pressure gauge adaptor	Measurement of fluid flow volume
	MB991230	Air bleeder set	Air bleed

TROUBLESHOOTING

Before inspecting, check the following items:

- Ensure that the suspension has not been modified
- Tire and wheel size, specifications, air pressure, balance and amount of wear
- Steering wheel type
- Wheel alignment

- Oil pump drive belt tension
- Power steering fluid level, and air in the system

M37EACA

١.

- Engine idle speed and smooth even idle
- Oil leakage

Malfunction symptom	Malfunctioning system	Inspection item
4WS does not operate	Power cylinder	Tie rod swing torque
		Power cylinder slide resistance
	Rear oil pump	Flow volume check
	Control valve	
Poor steering feeling Feeling of friction in steering Poor steering return	Steering gears and linkage	Front rack and pinion assembly cracks or deformation
Steering wheel efforts	Control valve	Oil leakage from control valve joint
excessive	Power cylinder	Oil leakage from piston rod
	Oil line	Pressure hose breakage
	Oil reservoir	Oil reservoir deformation or oil leakage
Rear wheels cannot be steered Poor rear wheels return Hydraulic pressure for rear wheel is constantly high	Control valve	Stuck control valve spool
	Power cylinder	Stuck power cylinder
	Rear oil pump	Relief valve remains open
Long rear wheel steering	Power cylinder	Excessive power cylinder friction
delay Poor steering response		Looseness in power cylinder tie rod ball joint
Poor steering return		There may be ball joint damage
Poor rear wheel steering	Control valve	Oil leakage from control valve spool
response Poor rear wheel steering range	Power cylinder	Oil leakage from power cylinder
	Rear oil pump	Extreme oil pump internal wear
Poor steerability (extreme tire wear)	Power cylinder	Tie rod length improperly adjusted after toe-in adjustment

SERVICE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURES BLEEDING

- (1) Bleed air from power steering system. (Refer to GROUP 37A-Service Adjustment Procedures.)
- (2) Lift up the vehicle.

WARNING

All wheels must be off the ground.

(3) Start the engine and let it idle.



- (4) Loosen the bleeder screw on the left side of the control valve and set the special tool to the bleeder screw.
- (5) Turn the steering wheel all the way to the left, immediately returning it half way back.

At this time confirm that air is discharged with the fluid. NOTE

To keep the power steering reservoir full during the bleeding procedure.

- (6) Repeat step (5) two or three times, then check to ensure that all air has been bled from the system.
- Remove the special tool after tightening the bleeder screw. (7) Repeat steps (4) through (6) for the right side bleeder
- screw, turning the steering wheel to the right this time.
- (8) Loosen the power cylinder bleeder screw and place the special tool on the bleeder screw.

Caution

Loosen the bleeder screw about 30 to 45 degrees, and secure it with the special tool (rotation prevention metal fixtures) so as not to be loosened more.

(9) Start the engine and raise the engine speed with the front wheels steered straight until the indicated speed is 70-80 km/h(43-50 mph) to operate the oil pump for the rear wheels.

Caution

Take special care as all four wheels will be rotating. NOTE

The oil pump for the rear wheels will circulate when the engine speed is raised but the fluid will not circulate in the tube (special tool).

(10)Maintain an indicated speed of about 30–40 km/h (19-25 mph), turning the steering wheel all the way to both left and right.

Pressure will rise and air will circulate inside the tube (special tool). Check to ensure that this air is discharged into the oil reservoir.

(11)Repeat step (10) several times until all air in the system has been bleed.



(12)Ensure that the difference in the fluid levels at the power steering pump reservoir when the engine is running and when it is stopped are within 5 mm (.20 in.)

If the difference exceeds 5 mm (.20 in.), there is still air in the system and it must be bled again.

Caution

If air has not been completely bled from the system, the pump will make a humming sound or an unusual noise will come from the flow control valve; this also contributes to **shortened** pump life.

FUNCTION CHECK

M37FBBA

- (1) Raise the vehicle so that all four wheels may turn freely.
- (2) Start the engine, running the vehicle at an indicated speed of about 80 km/h (50 mph).
- (3) Rapidly turn the steering wheel all the way to left and right, checking to ensure that the rear wheels steer to the same directions as the front wheels.



REAR OIL PUMP DISCHARGE FLOW VOLUME CHECK M37FBCA

- (1) Perform the following steps before removing the feed tube.
 - ① Raise the vehicle, supporting the differential carrier with a transmission jack.
 - ② Remove the center and rear exhaust pipes, suspending them from the body with wire.
 - ③ Remove the differential support member.

④ Remove the rear shock absorber Jower installation.

- ⑤ Remove the crossmember bracket.
- (2) Verify there are no interferences, then carefully lower the rear suspension assembly.

Caution

Use a transmission jack (lift) when lowering the rear suspension assembly.



(3) Remove the nut at the rear oil pump and flare nut at the control valve, then remove the feed tube.

Caution

Place a plug in the control valve feed tube installation hole.

- (4) Install the special tool onto the rear oil pump.
- (5) Connect a rubber hose about 1.5 m (4.9 ft.) in length to the special tool, then place the other end into a container by which flow volume may be measured [a graduated cylinder of about 2 dm³ (2.1 qts) capacity].
- (6) Start the engine. increase speed slowly, then hold the indicated speed of 50 km/h (31 mph), measuring discharge flow volume for 30 seconds.

Caution

While performing this work, continuously add fluid into the oil reservoir.

Standard value: Approximately 1 .0 dm³ (1.06 qts.)

(7) If the discharge flow volume is extremely high or low, the rear oil pump should be replaced.





BALL JOINT ROTATION STARTING TORQUE CHECK

(1) Holding the power cylinder tie rod with a wrench, disconnect the tie rod and trailing arm.

(2) After swinging the ball joint stud several times, install the stud nut, then measure the ball joint rotation starting torque.

Standard value: 0.5 Nm (4 in.lbs.) or less

- (3) If the rotation starting torque exceeds the standard value, replace the tie rod end.
- (4) If the rotation starting torque is less than the standard value. check that the ball joint is not loose and operates smoothly. If not, replace the tie rod end.









SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

M37KBAA

5. REMOVAL OF POWER CYLINDER INSTALLATION NUTS

Holding the power cylinder tie rod with a wrench, remove the power cylinder installation nuts.

INSPECTION

М37КСАА

- TIE ROD SWING TORQUE INSPECTION
- (1) Swing the tie rod ten times, hard.
- (2) Point the tie rod end down, then attach a spring balance as shown in the illustration to measure swing resistance.

Standard value: 9-55 N (2-12 lbs.)

- (3) If the swing resistance exceeds the standard value, replace the tie rod.
- (4) If the swing resistance is less than the standard value, the ball joint may be reused as long as it is not loose and operates smoothly.

POWER CYLINDER SLIDE RESISTANCE CHECK

- (1) Place the piston in a neutral position.
- (2) Wrap a wire around the tie rod end, then measure slide resistance with a spring balance as shown in the illustration.

Standard value: 67 N (15 lbs.) or less

- (3) If the slide resistance exceeds the standard value, replace the power cylinder.
- (4) If the slide resistance is less than the standard value, the power cylinder may be reused as long as it is not loose and slides smoothly.

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION M37KDAA

7. INSTALLATION OF POWER CYLINDER/6. POWER CYL-INDER INSTALLATION BOLTS

- (1) Secure the power cylinder to the crossmember.
- (2) Move the power cylinder piston rod over its full stroke to determine its neutral position.
- (3) Align tie rod ends and the installation holes at trailing arm.
- (4) When the tie rod ends and the installation holes at the trailing arm do not meet, loosen the tie rod end securing nut, then adjust the length. The dust cover fastener clip should be removed for this.
- (5) The difference between the lengths of the left and right tie rods should be less than 1 mm (.039 in.). NOTE

The threads of the tie rod ends may be used as a guide for this.



5. INSTALLATION OF POWER CYLINDER INSTALLATION NUTS

Holding the power cylinder tie rod with a wrench, install the power cylinder installation nuts.

DISASSEMBLY AND REASSEMBLY

M37KE--









Removal steps

- 1. Hose assembly
 - 2. Clamp

 - Return pipe (front right)
 Feed pipe (front right)
 - 5. Hose assembly
 - 6. Clamp and clip
- + 7. Power steering gear box and control pipe connection

- 8. Control pipe and
 - pressure tube connection
 - 9. Pressure pipe assembly
 - 10. Suction hose

11. Oil reservoir

TSB Revision

M370A--

37B-14



Control pipes Pressure tube 12A0086

SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

M370BAA

7. DISCONNECTION OF THE POWER STEERING GEAR BOX AND CONTROL PIPES

Hold the control pipe with a wrench, then disconnect the power steering gear box and control pipes.

8. DISCONNECTION OF THE CONTROL PIPES AND PRES-SURE TUBES

Hold the hose with a wrench, then disconnect the control pipe and pressure tube.

INSPECTION

M37OCAA

M37ODAA

- Check tubes and pipes for cracking, damage or corrosion.
- Check hoses for cracking, damage, leakage or fluid seepage.
- Check flare nuts for damage.



SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

8. CONNECTION OF CONTROL PIPES AND PRESSURE TUBES

Hold the hose with a wrench, then connect the control pipes and pressure tubes.

Caution

Ensure that the hose is not twisted.

7. CONNECTION OF POWER STEERING GEAR BOX AND CONTROL PIPES

Hold the control pipe with a wrench, then connect the power steering gear box and control pipe.

Caution

Ensure that the hose is not twisted.

M37QA--



NOTES

BODY

CONTENTS

CENTRAL DOOR LOCKING SYSTEM	101
DOOR ASSEMBLY	74
DOOR RUNCHANNEL	110
FENDER	61
FRONT DOOR GLASS AND REGULATOR	80
FRONT DOOR HANDLE AND LATCH	96
FRONT DOOR MOULDING AND DRIP LINE WEATHERSTRIP	112
FRONT DOOR TRIM AND WATER- PROOF FILM	76
FUEL TANK FILLER DOOR	60
HOOD	55
LOOSE PANEL	62
POWER WINDOW	86
QUARTER WINDOW GLASS	70
REAR DOOR GLASS AND REGULATOR	83
REAR DOOR HANDLE AND LATCH	99
REAR DOOR MOULDING AND DRIP LINE WEATHERSTRIP	114

REAR DOOR TRIM AND WATER- PROOF FILM	78
REAR WINDOW GLASS	72
SERVICE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURES	50
Door Fit Adjustment	51
Door Glass Adjustment	52
Hood Alignment Adjustment	50
Inside Handle Play Adjustment	52
Sunroof Fit Adjustment	53
Trunk Lid Adjustment	50
Trunk Lid Torsion Bar Adjustment	51
Water Test	52
SPECIAL TOOLS	5
SPECIFICATIONS	2
General Specifications	2
Sealants and Adhesives	4
Service Specifications	4
Torque Specifications	4
SUNROOF	116
TROUBLESHOOTING	6
TRUNK LID	57
WINDOW GLASS	63
WINDSHIELD GLASS	66

M42AA--

SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

Items	Specifications
Hood	
Туре	Rear hinged, front opening type
Front door	
Construction	Front-hinged, sash construction
Regulator system	Wire type
	Ріп-тогк туре
Rear door	
Construction	Front-hinged, sash construction
Regulator system	Wire type
Locking system	Pin-fork type
Trunk lid	
Hinge	Single-arm type (Torsion bar type)
Slass installation method	
Windshield glass	Adhesive type
Quarter window glass	Adhesive type
Rear window glass	Adhesive type
Blass thickness	
Windshield glass mm (in.)	5.3 (.21)
Rear window glass mm (in.)	3.5 (.14)
Front door glass mm (in.)	3.5 (.14)
Rear door glass mm (in.)	3.5 (.14)
Quarter window glass mm (in.)	3.5 (.14)
Roof glass lid mm (in.)	4.0 (.16)
Sunroof motor	
Туре	DC ferrite (with built-in circuit breaker)
Speed at no load rpm	180 or less
Speed at load rpm	130–150
At T NIII (.72 It.IDS.) Bound current A	35 or less
Turning direction	Both clockwise and counterclockwise
UNFOOT SWITCH	5
Raleu IDau Current A	20
	20

Items	Specifications
Power window motor	
Туре	Permanent magnet type (built-in circuit breaker
Revolutions under no load rpm	75 or more
Revolutions under load rpm	
At 1 Nm (.72 ft.lbs.)	65-95
At 2 Nm (1.45 ft.lbs.)	50-80
Bound current A	34 or less
Direction of rotation	Clockwise and counterclockwise
Power window main switch	
Туре	Automatic reset type
Rated load current A	
Lock switch	20
Power window switch	10
Power window sub switch	
Туре	Automatic reset type
Rated load current A	10
ower window relay	
Maximum contact current A	22
Rated coil current A	0.135-0.215
Voltage drop between terminals V (At 12V and the rated load current)	0.2 or less
Joor lock control unit	
Effective voltage V	10–16
Current consumption (when not in operation) mA	3 or less
loor lock power relay	
Range of voltage used V	8-16
Rated load current (at 13.5V) A	10
Rated coil current A	Max. 0.2
Voltage drop between terminals V	0.2 or less
ront door lock actuator	
Bound current (at 12V) A	2.5-4.5
Operating voltage range V	9-15
*Tripping time (at 12V) second	530
ear door lock actuator	
Bound current (at 12V) A	2.5-4.5
Operating voltage range V	9-15
*Tripping time (at 12V) second	5–30

NOTE *Tripping time is the time consumed until current reaches 0.5A after power connection.

42-3

SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS

Items	Specifications	
Standard Value Door inside handle play mm (in.)	4-10 (.1640)	
Slipping force of sunroof motor clutch N (lbs.)	35-44 (8-10)	

TORQUE SPECIFICATIONS

Items	Nm	ft.lbs.
Hood latch to body	7-11	5-8
Hood hinge to body	9-14	7–10
Hood hinge to hood	9-14	7-10
Windshield wiper arm locking nut	10–16	7-12
Front and rear doors		
Door hinge to door	17-26	12-19
Door hinge to body	35-55	25-40

SEALANTS AND ADHESIVES

Items	Specified sealant and adhesive
Fender to body panel	3M ATD Part No.8646 or equivalent
Splash shield to fender panel, front bumper and front skirt panel	3M ATD Part No.8625 or equivalent
Door inner panel waterproof film fitting portion	
Sliding roof cable guide casing, guide rail	
Windshield glass, quarter window glass, rear window glass to body	3M Super Fast Urethan Part No.8609 or equivalent

TSB Revision

M42CB--

M42CE--

M42CC--

SPECIAL TOOLS

Тооі	Number	Name	Use
	MB990900-01	Door adjusting wrench LABLE FROM O.T.C.	Adjustment of door fit
51-8	MB991244	Torsion bar remover and installer	Removal and installation of trunk lid torsion bar
- Aller	GENERAL SERVICE TOOL	Window moulding remover	Removal of the window moulding
	MB991269*1 MB991341*2	Scan tool (Multi-use tester <mut>)</mut>	Checking the power-windows system, the central door-locking system and sunroof system (ETACS input check)
		ROM Pack	Checking the power-windows system, the central door-locking system and sunroof system (ETACS input check)
	For the number, r	efer to GROUP	

NOTE *1:<1 989 models> *2:<1990, 1991, 1992, 1993 models>

42-5

TROUBLESHOOTING

HOOD, TRUNK LID, GLASS AND DOORS

Symptom		Probable cause	Remedy
Hood/ Trunk lid	Improper closure	Striker and latch not properly aligned	Adjust the alignment
	Difficult locking and un- locking	Striker and latch not properly aligned	Adjust the alignment
	Uneven body clearance	Incorrectly installed hood or trunk lid	Adjust the installation of hood or the trunk lid
	Uneven height	Incorrect hood bumper or trunk lid bumper height	Adjust the hood bumper or the trunk lid bumper height
Nindow	Water leak through wind-	Defective seal	Fill sealant
jlass	shield	Defective body flange	Correct
	Water leak through door	Incorrect window glass installation	Adjust position
	window glass	Gap at upper window glass	Adjust position
	Water leak through quar-	Defective seal	Fill sealant
	ter window	Defective body flange	Correct
	Water leak through rear	Defective seal	Fill sealant
	window	Defective body flange	Correct
·ront/	Door window malfunction	Incorrect window glass installation	Adjust position
ear loors		Damaged or faulty regulator	Correct or replace
	Water leak through door edge	Cracked or faulty weatherstrip	Replace
	Water leak from door cen- cer	Drain hole clogged	Remove foreign objects
		Inadequate waterproof film contact or damgae	Correct or replace
	Door hard to open	Incorrect latch or striker adjust- ment	Adjust
	Door does not open or close completely	Incorrect door installation	Adjust position
		Defective door check strap	Correct or replace
		Door check strap and hinge re- quired grease	Apply grease
	Uneven gap between body	Incorrect door installation	Adjust position
	Wind noise around door	Weatherstrip hot holding firmly	Adjust fit of door
		improperly installed weatherstrip or setting of weatherstrip	Repair or replace
		Improperly closed door	Adjust
		Improperly fit door	Adjust

Symptom		Probable cause	Remedy
Front/ rear	Wind noise around door	improper clearance between door glass and door weatherstrip holder	Adjust
doors		Deformed door	Repair or replace

SUNROOF

Symptom	Probable cause	Remedy
Water leaks	Dust accumulated in drainage of housing assembly	Keep off dust from inside of drain hose
	Clogged drain hose	Blow air into drain hose to remove dust
	Broken or dislocated drain hose, failed or cracked clip	Check hose installation and flange contact
	Worm roof lid weatherstrip	Replace
	Excessive roof lid-to-body clear- ance and improperly fitted weath- erstrip	Adjust
Wind noise	Loose or deformed deflector	Retighten or replace
Roof lid makes noise when moved	Foreign matter lodged in guide rail	Check drive cable and guide rails for foreign matter
	Loose guide rails and lid	Retighten
Notor runs but lid does not move or moves only halfway	Foreign matter lodged in guide rail	Check drive cable and guide rails for foreign matter
	Incorrect engagement of motor pinion with drive cable	Check for loose motor installation and damaged pinion
	Decrease in clutch slipping force of motor	Adjust or replace
	Increased lid sliding resistance or interference of lid with drive cables, weatherstrip, etc. due to maladjustment of lid	Adjust or replace
Voise in motor (Clutch slipping noise nade in motor when lid is fully opened or closed is not unusual noise.)	Incorrect engagement of motor pinion with drive cable	Check pinion installation and retighten motor
	Worn or damaged motor pinion bearing	Replace motor assembly
	Worn or deformed drive cable	Replace



HOW TO LOCATE WIND NOISES

- Attach cloth tape to every place which might conceivably be the source of wind noise, such as panel seams, projections, moulding seams, glass and body seams, etc.
 The mode are detection of the time of the tim
- (2) Then make a road test in order to determine that the places not covered by tape are not sources of wind noise.
- (3) Then remove the strips of tape one by one, making a road test after each is removed, until a wind noise source is discovered.

- (4) When such a place is found, cover it again and continue with the procedure so as to determine if there are any other noise sources.
- (5) If no others are found, the last remaining tape is the only source.

(6) Cut the remaining piece of tape into smaller pieces, attach it again as it was before, and then remove the pieces one by one in the same way so as to narrow down the source.

- (7) Check to confirm that wind noise occurs when the last remaining tape is removed, and that noise does not occur when it is re-attached.
- (8) When the source(s) of the wind noise is finally located, attach butyl tape, body sealer or similar material to obstruct this source as much as possible.

CENTRAL DOOR LOCKING SYSTEM SIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<Vehicles without ETACS-1989 models>



M42EBFG

CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<Vehicles without ETACS-1989 models> (CONTINUED)



CENTRAL DOOR LOCKING SYSTEM CIRCUIT DIAGRAM



CENTRAL DOOR LOCKING SYSTEM CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<Vehicles without ETACS-1990 models> (CONTINUED)



6

CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<Vehicles without ETACS-From 1991 models>



CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<Vehicles without ETACS-From 1991 models> (CONTINUED)



CENTRAL DOOR LOCKING SYSTEM CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<Vehicles with ETACS- 1989 models>



CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<Vehicles with ETACS-1989 models> (CONTINUED)





<Vehicles with ETACS-1990 models>



CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<Vehicles with ETACS-1990 models> (CONTINUED)


CENTRAL DOOR LOCKING SYSTEM

CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<Vehicles with ETACS (Non-Turbo)-From 1991 models>



CENTRAL DOOR LOCKING SYSTEM CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<Vehicles with ETACS (Non-Turbo)-From 1991 models> (CONTINUED)





CENTRAL DOOR LOCKING SYSTEM

CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<Vehicles with ETACS (Turbo)-From 1991 models> (CONTINUED)



Ċ

٠

.

OPERATION

<Vehicles without ETACS>

 When the inside lock knob of the front doors is set to the locked (or unlocked) position, the switch within the door lock actuator is switched OFF (or ON), and the output transistor is switched ON for 0.5 second by the timer within the door lock control unit.

As a result, there is a switch-ON at the lock (or unlock) side of the door lock relay, and the actuator for all doors is activated.

NOTE

The door lock actuator incorporates a PTC thermistor in order to prevent damage as a result of motor overheating.

If the central door locking system is used frequently, therefore, it may not operate temporarily; there is no malfunction, however, if operation returns to normal in a few minutes.

TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

1. One of the door lock actuators does not operate.

- Check the door actuator that does not operate.
- The driver's door or front seat passenger's door cannot be locked or unlocked by using the inside lock knob.
 - Check the switch within the actuator.
 - Check the door lock control unit.

Door control unit terminals' voltages (with connector connected)

Terminal No.	Signal	Condition	Terminal voltage
1	Door lock relay activation signal	Momentarily (approx. 0.5 second) when inside lock knob is pressed	0.5V
		Usual	Battery positive voltage
2	inside door lock knob signal (driver's side)	When inside lock knob is locked	ov
		When inside lock knob is unlocked	Battery positive voltage
3	Door lock relay activation signal	Momentarily (approx. 0.5 second) when inside lock knob is pulled up	0.5V
		Usual	Battery positive voltage
4	Inside door lock knob signal (front seat passenger's side)	When inside lock knob is locked	ov
		When inside lock knob is unlocked	Battery positive voltage
5	Power-supply	At all times	Battery positive voltage
6	Ground	At all times	OV

*A voltage of 0.5V is normal (due to the internal resistance of the output transistor); if the indication is OV, there is probably damage or disconnection of the harness, or a short-circuit.

<Vehicles with ETACS> OPERATION

- If, with the key left inserted in the ignition switch, the driver's door is opened and the inside lock knob for the driver's door is pressed, the operation of the ETACS unit will cause the circuit for the "unlock" side to be grounded, thus releasing the locked condition of all doors and preventing the key from being forgotten.
- Operations other than described above are the same as for models not equipped with the ETACS.

TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

- 1. The ignition key reminder system does not function.
 - For information concerning ETACS control, refer to P.42-101.

POWER WINDOW

CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<Vehicles without ETACS-1989 models>



M42EBEF

























C-40

1

2

3

 $\frac{1 \times 2}{3 \times 5}$

av -OFF

넉

REAR POWER WINDOW MOTOR (LEFT SIDE)

IGNITION SWITCH (IG1) SUB FUSIBLE SUB FUS IBLE C-38 12 ₩2 C-24 1234 2-LR 5-WR BW 123 7881011121314 2 5 2-RB Ľ, <u>-</u> 7 C-43 1234 C-36 POWER RELAY WINDOW J/B -any (17) 10 C-72X 1234 5678910 10A 610A OFF 12 34 ON C-42 7 C-39 3 2 1 щ 7 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1011 1213 1415 16 RB BW ດ່ D-40 12345 678810 70 (RB) (BW) Ц 2-1.B 123456 789101112 28 36 3 REAR FRONT C-03 (LEFT SIDE) Ţ RIGHT SIDE ₹ Ţ ETACS CONTROL UNIT E υP משחת UΡ NWOD ₩ţ Ţ Ż GND ▽ GND ▽ 123 C-04 33 30 29 34 21222324262626272 293031323334353 C-40 Ξ g മ 6 13 1ء ₽B 2-RY. -Gζ 8 2 m 9 C-18 2 Γ\$ 8 FRONT SIDE 3 à ά 5 ,10 J/B 12 345 (MX) 9 Ϋ́́Ρ 4 2-LB 2-LB 5 ш 2-RY REVERSE_SIDE R C-38 Ε 픝 à D-31 D-01 ດໍ່ d n 흑 з 2 З 2 12×3 6 12×3 Pata LINK 6 2-LB щ 2-RL 2-RY 3 Н Ч Ч ά FRONT DOOR LIGHT ά FRONT DOOR REAR POWER WINDOW SUB SWITCH (LEFT SIDE) D-29 З. LIGHT 5 2 5 З FRONT POWER WINDOW SUB SWITCH DOWN DOWN €UP **KUP** ΨY ΥW D-11 1 2 2 3 4 5 44 14 2-RB 2-RB 2-GB -GB ΥW ΥW \$ ţ t 12 5127 ດ່າ D-33 D-24 Ο o 2 D-30 D-05 Ì 1 M (M) OFF OFF

OFF

FRONT DOOR SWITCH (LEFT SIDE)

TON

OFF TON

ሱ

FRONT DOOR SWITCH (RIGHT SIDE)

TON

6

TSB Revision

REAR POWER WINDOW MOTOR (RIGHT SIDE)

白

42-33







POWER WINDOW

CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<Vehicles with ETACS (Turbo)-From 1991 models>





OPERATION

<Vehicles without ETACS>

- When, with the ignition switch at the ON position, a power-window (main or sub) switch ("UP" side or "DOWN" side) is pressed, current flows through sub-fusible link No.2 and to the power-window motor, thus causing the door window glass to close or open.
- When the "DOWN" side of the power-window main switch at the driver's side is pressed all the way, it is locked at the pressed-in position, and the power-window motor operates until the door glass is fully opened.
- When the power-window lock switch is set to the "LOCK (ON)" position, the power-window motor will not operate if any switch (main or sub) other than at the driver's side is operated.
- A circuit breaker is provided in the powerwindow motor in order to prevent damage to the motor as a result of excessive current.

For reference: circuit breaker characteristics Motor operation is restricted at high temperature [20-25°C (68-77°F)]. Current flow is cut by an initial current flow time of four to 40 seconds; reset occurs within 60 seconds if then left as is.

<Vehicles with ETACS>

• For models equipped with the ETACS, the timer function permits the power-window relay to remain ON for 30 seconds after the ignition switch is switched OFF.

If, during that period of time, the driver's door is opened, the power-window relay is switched OFF, and the power windows can no longer be operated.

• Operations other than described above are the same as for models not equipped with the ETACS.

TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

- 1. All door windows cannot be opened or closed.
 - Check sub-fusible link No.2.
 - Check the power-window relay.
 - Check the power-window main switch.
- 2. One of the door windows cannot be opened or closed.
 - (1) Neither of the power-window switches (main or sub) operates.
 - Check the power-window main switch.
 - Check the power-window motor for the power window that does not operate.
 - (2) Either the power-window main switch or sub switch does not operate.
 - Check the power-window switch for the power window that does not operate.
- 3. The one-touch switch function only does not operate.
 - Replace the power-window main switch.
- 4. The power window operation by ETACS control after the ignition switch is switched OFF does not function.
 - Refer to P.42-86.

CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<Vehicles without ETACS-Up to 1990 models>



M42EBDC

CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<Vehicles without ETACS-Up to 1990 models> (CONTINUED)





CIRCUIT DIAGRAM <Vehicles with ETACS-Up to 1990 models> (CONTINUED) SUNROOF POWER RELAY J/B Δ 1.25-LB 10 SUNROOF CONTROL ≩ RELAY RELAY DETECTING RELAY D-03 0000 12 34 5878810 OPEN/CLOBE | CIRCUIT Æ Tr 1 FOR TIMER REBET E Tr 2 1 4 í9 7 Έ 5 6 2 8 1.25-B Ŗ 25-6 25-(LB) (GB) (GY) (GO) ΜŊ Ð 3 'n 25. £ ÷ 2 7 2 8 З 5 З 6 1 2 -1 UP CLOSE OPEN DOWN OFF OFF OFF Tan SLIDE TILT $\langle 1 \rangle$ (2) (SUMMROUDF SOWTCHCH) DOME LIGHT LIMIT SWITCH SUNROOF MOTOR Ξ D-07 D-09 D-06 i 1 23 1234

















OPERATION

<Vehicles without ETACS>

Tilt operation

- When (with the sunroof fully closed and the ignition switch at the ON position) the left side of the tilt switch is pressed, the rear edge of the sunroof opens about 45 mm (1.8 in.).
- The sunroof will close when the right side of the tilt switch is pressed.

Slide operation

- When, with the ignition switch at the ON position, the right side of the slide switch is pressed, the sunroof will slide open while the switch is held.
- The sunroof will close while the left side of the slide switch is pressed.
 If the slide switch is pressed and held when the sunroof is half open or more, the sunroof closing movement will stop (as a safety precaution) at a

point before fully closed, and will not continue closing. To close it fully, release the switch once, and then press and hold it again.

<Vehicles with ETACS>

• For models equipped with the ETACS, the timer function permits the sunroof power relay to remain ON for 30 seconds after the ignition switch is switched OFF.

If, during that period of time, the driver's door is opened, the sunroof power relay is switched OFF, and the sunroof can no longer be operated.

• Operations other than described above are the same as for models not equipped with the ETACS.

TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

- 1. The sunroof does not operate at all.
 - (1) The power windows also do not operate.
 Check multi-purpose fuse No.2.
 - (2) The power windows also do operate.
 - Check multi-purpose fuse No. 13.
 - Check the sunroof power relay.
 - NOTE

For information concerning control by the sunroof power relay and control by the ETACS, refer to P.42-116.



SERVICE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURES

HOOD ALIGNMENT ADJUSTMENT

- 1. Adjust the longitudinal and lateral positions of the hood by utilizing the oblong holes in the hinge.
- 2. Turn the hood bumpers either left or right to adjust the height of the hood.
- 3. Loosen the hood latch mounting bolts.
- 4. Adjust the alignment of the hood striker and the hood latch by adjusting the horizontal and vertical position of the latch and the height of the hood.

TRUNK LID ADJUSTMENT

M42FBAC

1. Loosen the trunk lid mounting bolts, adjust the trunk lid by moving it so that the clearance is equal on all sides.

2. Turn the trunk lid bumpers either left or right to adjust the height of the trunk lid.

3. Loosen the trunk lid striker mounting bolts, and then adjust the alignment of the latch and striker by adjusting the horizontal and vertical positioning of the striker.





MB990900-01 OPTIONAL 18L0297

BL0302

TRUNK LID TORSION BAR ADJUSTMENT M42F5AA

If rising force of the trunk lid has become weak as a result of lessened torsion of the trunk lid torsion bar, change the installation hole of the torsion bar (by following the procedures described below) so as to increase the rising force.

(1) Remove the luggage compartment light switch. NOTE

The luggage compartment light switch should be removed because there is the possibility of damage to it when the other work is being done.

- (2) Remove the trunk lid torsion bar from holder.
- (3) Install the special tool as shown in the illustration, and then, while pressing the lower part, disconnect the trunk lid torsion bar from the link.

Caution

Be sure to install the special tool securely, because damage may be caused to the body or to other components, etc. if the trunk lid torsion bar separates from the special tool.

- (4) Take out the trunk lid torsion bar from the trunk lid torsion bar holes in the trunk lid hinges.
- (5) Change the installation hole and then install the trunk lid torsion bar.

DOOR FIT ADJUSTMENT

M42FEAA

1. Use the special tool to loosen the hinge mounting bolts on the body side, and then adjust the clearance around the door so that it is uniform on all sides.

Caution

Attach protection tape to the fender edges where the hinge is installed.

- 2. Loosen hinge mounting bolts on door side and adjust alignment of fender panel with front door panel.
- 3. Loosen door striker mounting screws to adjust alignment of door panel.
- 4. Increase or decrease the number of shims and move striker to adjust engagement of striker with door latch.

TSB Revision

181.0299



DOOR GLASS ADJUSTMENT

M42FFAI

- 1. Remove the door trim and waterproof film. (Refer to P.42-76, 78.)
- 2. Loosen the installation bolt of the window regulator assembly: then move the upper installation back and forth and adjust the tilted angle of the glass.
- 3. Lower the door window glass to the position of the access hole.
- 4. Loosen the door glass installation screw, and adjust the forward/backward position of the glass.

INSIDE HANDLE PLAY ADJUSTMENT M42FGAC

- 1. Remove the door trim and waterproof film. (Refer to P.42-76, 78.)
- 2. Move the door inside handle installation position back and forth to adjust so that the inside handle play allowance agrees with the standard value.

Standard value (A): 4-10 mm (.16-.40 in.)

WATER TEST

M42FPAB

- 1. Close roof lid tightly.
- 2. Hold hose upward and adjust water fountain to about 50 cm (20 in.) high.

- 3. Pour water over the roof from about 30 cm (12 in.) above roof for more than 5 minutes.
- 4. While pouring water, check for leak around roof lid.
- 5. In the event of leakage, check drain pipe, weatherstrip contact and others.

TSB Revision

18A0216

Approx. 30 cm (12 in.)

M42FTAA



SUNROOF FIT ADJUSTMENT

- 1. If the roof glass lid must be adjusted forward/backward or to right/left, do so as follows.
 - (1) Close the roof glass lid to the fully tilt closed position.
 - (2) Open the sun shade completely.
 - (3) Remove the side garnish.
 - (4) Loosen the nuts (six) and move the roof glass lid forward/backward or left/right.

(5) If a forward/backward adjustment has been made, check to be sure that the sliding roof assembly's quide and the link's reference hole are positionally aligned. NOTE

If the condition is not corrected by only an adjustment by the installation nut, there is a deviation of the fully closed position of the roof glass lid and the motor's fully closed position, so remove and check the motor.

- 2. If the roof and roof glass lid are not parallel, correct as follows.
 - (1) If the deviation is approximately 1 mm (.04 in.), make the forward/backward or left/right adjustment by the same procedure.
 - (2) If the deviation is approximately 2 mm (.08 in.), remove the motor and advance the cable (at the side where the gap is larger) one pitch.

NOTE

There will be movement of 2.5 mm (.098 in.) for one pitch of the cable.

BODY – Service Adjustment Procedures



- 3. If the height of the roof and the roof glass lid must be adjusted, .do so as follows.
 - (1) Close the roof glass lid to the fully tilt closed position.
 - (2) Open the sun shade completely.
 - (3) Remove the side garnish.
 - (4) Loosen the six nuts.
 - (5) Adjust by increasing or decreasing the number of adjustment plates.
HOOD



TSB Revision

I

42-55

SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

12. REMOVAL OF HOOD

After using rags, a rubber cushion or similar items to protect the hood's edge part by preventing it from striking the lower edge of the windshield glass, remove the hood.

Caution

If the hood's edge part strikes the lower edge of the windshield glass forcefully, there is the danger of breaking the windshield glass, so the hood must be removed carefully.

INSPECTION HOOD SWITCH

(1) Disconnect the hood switch connector.

(2) Check the continuity between the terminal.

Terminal	1	2
Hood switch unpressed	0	0
Hood switch depressed		

NOTE

O-O indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.



TRUNK LID

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION







SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

13. REMOVAL OF TRUNK LID TORSION BAR

(1) Remove the luggage compartment light switch. NOTE

The luggage compartment light switch should be removed because there is the possibility of damage to it when the other work is being done.

- (2) Remove the trunk lid torsion bar from holder.
- (3) Install the special tool as shown in the illustration, and then, while pressing the lower part, disconnect the trunk lid torsion bar from the link.

Caution

Be sure to install the special tool securely, because damage may be caused to the body or to other components, etc. if the trunk lid torsion bar separates from the special tool.

(4) Take out the trunk lid torsion bar from the trunk lid torsion bar holes in the trunk lid hinges.

INSPECTION

TRUNK LID LATCH SWITCH

- (1) Unlock the trunk lid latch.
- (2) Check the continuity between the terminals.

Terminal	1	2
Trunk lid latch locked		
Trunk lid latch unlocked	0	0

NOTE

O-O indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.

TRUNK LID LOCK CYLINDER SWITCH

- (1) Turn the key and unlock or lock the lock cylinder.
- (2) Check the continuity between the terminals.

l Terminal	1	2	3
Trunk lid lock cylinder locked		0	0
Trunk lid lock cylinder unlocked	0	L_0	

NOTE

O-O indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

20. APPLICATION OF GREASE TO TRUNK LID LOCK RE-LEASE HANDLE

Apply a coating of multipurpose grease to the trunk lid lock release handle's turning part, sliding part, and spring.



13. INSTALLATION OF TRUNK LID TORSION BAR

- (1) Apply a coating of multipurpose grease to the link and hinge's trunk lid torsion bar sliding part.
- (2) Insert the ends of the trunk lid torsion bar into the installation holes.
- (3) Install the special tool as shown in the illustration, and then, after hooking to the link by twisting the trunk lid torsion bar, hook to the holder.

Caution

Be sure to install the special tool securely, because damage may be caused to the body or to other components, etc. if the trunk lid torsion bar separates from the special tool.

10. INSTALLATION OF BUMPER

Install the bumper so that the amount of projection from the trunk lid panel is as shown in the illustration.

FUEL TANK FILLER DOOR

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



18**A02**73



Removal steps

- 1. Cylinder lock retainer
- 2. Fuel filler door lock cylinder
- 3. Fuel filler door

Fuel filler door hook removal steps

- 4. Trunk side trim (Refer to GROUP 52-Trims.)
- 5. Fuel filler door hook

Fuel filler door lock release cable removal steps

- 4. Trunk side trim (Refer to GROUP 52-Trims.)
 - 6. Front seat <driver's side> (Refer to GROUP 52~Front Seat.)

 Rear seat (Refer to GROUP 52–Rear Seat.)

(Refer to GROUP

52-Trims.)

18A0774

- 8. Front scuff plate
- <driver's side>
- 9. Rear scuff plate <driver's side>
- 10. Fuel filler door lock release cable

Fuel filler door lock release handle removal steps

- 6. Front seat <driver's side> (Refer to GROUP 52-Front Seat.)
- Front scuff plate <driver's side> (Refer to GROUP 52-Trims.)
- 11 Fuel filler door lock release handle

FENDER

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



Removal steps

- Fender garnish (Refer to GROUP 51– Garnishes.)
 Side protect moulding (Refer to GROUP 51 Mouldings.)
 Splash shield
 Front bumper (Refer to GROUP 51– Bumper.)
- Bumper.)
- 5. Front combination light 6. Front fender panel

TSB Revision

I

LOOSE PANEL

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



M42SAAI

WINDOW GLASS

M42LAABa

GENERAL

The windshield and the rear window glass are attached by an urethane-base adhesive to the window frame. This adhesive not only provides improved glass holding and sealing, but also permits use of body openings having a greater structural strength.

ADHESIVE, PRIMER AND RESERVE ITEMS

Items	Applications	Quantity
Adhesive, primer		
Adhesive		
3M Super Fast Urethane Part No.8609 or equivalent		As required
Primer		
3M Super Fast Urethane Primer Part No.8608 or equivalent		As required
Reserve items		
Dispensing nozzle		One
Wire (dia. \times length)	for cutting adhesive	Five pieces of wire 0.6 mmx 1 m (.02 in. × 3.3 ft.)
Adhesive gun	for adhesive application	One
Isopropyl alcohol	for cleaning jointing surfaces	As required
Wiping rags		As required
Isopropyl alcohol	for cleaning	As required
Glass holder		Two
Spacers (Service Part)		As required
Window moulding assembly (Service Part)		One
Tectyl 506T (Valvoline Oil Company)		As required

WINDSHIELD INSTALLATION PROCEDURE





REPLACEMENT OF MOULDINGS

M42LABBb

1. To cut the existing adhesive, make a tool such as the one shown.

2. Using the recommended tool, scoop out the old adhesive material at the clip installation.

Be careful not to damage the glass and body.

- 3. Apply the specified adhesive and install the moulding.
 - Specified adhesive: **3M** Super Fast Urethan Part **No.8609** or equivalent

M42LBAUa

WINDSHIELD GLASS

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION





SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

9. REMOVAL OF WINDSHIELD SIDE MOULDING AND CORNER JOINT ASSEMBLY

- (1) Attach protection tape to the body surface at the moulding installation area.
- (2) Using the general service tool, remove and take out the claw part of the windshield side moulding clips, and then remove the corner joint.

13. REMOVAL OF WINDSHIELD GLASS

Use piano wire to remove the windshield glass as described below.

- (1) Using a sharp-point drill, make holes at 2 places at top and bottom in the windshield glass adhesive.
- (2) Pass both ends of the piano wire from inside the vehicle through the 2 holes at top and bottom.
- (3) Wrap both ends of the piano wire around a piece of wood.
- (4) From the outside, pull the piano wire alternately along the windshield glass to cut the adhesive.

Caution

In order to protect the body from damage, apply cloth tape to all body areas around the installed glass before cutting the adhesive.

- (5) Make mating marks on the glass and body.
- (6) Take out the glass using glass holders.

INSPECTION

- Check the body flange for deformation.
- Check the window moulding clips and studs for damage. NOTE

If the T-studs are broken, use a drill to make holes in the T-studs 3 mm (.12 in.) in diameter. fill the holes with adhesive, and then use screws to mount the window moulding clips.

Caution

After installing the clip, apply antirust solvent to the screw head to protect them from rust.



SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

15. INSTALLATION OF WINDOW DAM

(1) Using isopropyl alcohol, remove grease from the glass and body surface to which the adhesive will be applied.

After removing the grease, allow the cleaned parts to dry for more than three minutes.

(2) Remove the back paper from the window dam, and attach the window dam to the glass.

Caution

Do not touch the primer coated surface.

13. INSTALLATION OF WINDSHIELD GLASS

- (1) Apply the specified primer to the entire bonding surface of the glass, both to the inside surface and the edge of the glass.
- (2) Allow to dry for five minutes.

Specified primer: **3M** Super Fast Urethane Primer Part **No.8608** or equivalent

- (3) Using a sharp knife, remove old adhesive on the body opening pinch-weld flange evenly to thickness of within 2 mm (.08 in.) all around.
- (4) Finish the flange surface so that they are smooth. **Caution**

Be careful not to remove more adhesive than necessary, and also not to damage the paint work on the body surface with the knife. If the paint work is damaged, repair the damaged area with touch-up paint or **Tectyl**.

(5) Using an adhesive gun, apply the specified adhesive to the window glass mounting surface.

Specified adhesive: **3M** Super Fast Urethane Part No. 8609 or equivalent

NOTE

Cut the nozzle tip into a \boldsymbol{V} shape to facilitate adhesive application.

- (6) Using a glass holder, place the windshield glass on the body opening.
- (7) Press the windshield glass gently so that no adhesive appears.

Caution

- 1. Do not move the windshield glass and **mould**ings after installing them to the body.
- 2. Place the windshield glass in the previously marked position.
- 3. Use care not to close the water groove (in the lower corner of the pinch weld flange) with adhesive.
- (8) After bonding the windshield glass, apply specified adhesive all around the bonded area.

Specified adhesive: **3M** Super Fast Urethane Part No. 8609 or equivalent

(9) Perform the water-test for the windshield glass. Use cold water spray, being careful not to direct a powerful stream of water on the new adhesive material. Allow water to spill over the edges of the glass. If there are leaks, apply sealant at the leak point(s).

Caution

If it is necessary to move the vehicle, move it slowly.

(10)Using a clean, lint-free cloth liberally dampened with isopropyl alcohol, wipe away dirt from the glass perimeter and the body.

INSTALLATION OF WINDSHIELD WITH NEW ADHESIVE ONLY

This method is recommended if there is considerable loss of adhesion between the old adhesive material and the body opening, or body opening requires repair. All adhesive material must be removed from the pinch-weld flanges.

- 1. Using a knife or similar tool, remove the old adhesive material from the pinch-weld flanges.
- 2. Using tape or some other suitable means, mark the bonded areas of the body and the glass at several positions.
- 3. Using a clean, lint-free cloth liberally dampened with isopropyl alcohol, prime the pinch-weld flange.
- 4. If the pinch-weld flange has been repainted, prime it with a paint finish primer.

Caution

If the pinch-weld flanges require painting, use a bake-on type paint.

5. For the rest of the service procedure, refer to Installation of WINDSHIELD on P.42-68.



42-70



QUARTER WINDOW GLASS

9. INSTALLATION OF WINDSHIELD SIDE MOULDING AND CORNER JOINT ASSEMBLY

Install the moulding before the glass's adhesive hardens. For the side moulding, install moulding clip B at the position indicated in the illustration, installing securely so that the claw of clip B catches at the lower edge of the glass.

M42LEALa



(2) While using a hair dryer or similar method to warm the adhesive part, push the quarter window glass forcefully (from the inside of the vehicle outward), and then slowly remove the quarter window glass moulding and glass assembly.

TSB Revision

18A0035



SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

3. INSTALLATION OF PROTECTOR ${f B}$

Peel off the paper of the both-side tape for protector B, and then attach protector B along the inner side of the quarter window glass moulding.

- 1. INSTALLATION OF QUARTER WINDOW GLASS MOULDING AND GLASS ASSEMBLY
 - (1) Remove any adhesive remaining on the body flange part and at the quarter window glass side, and then use isopropyl alcohol to remove any grease or oil at the body side and at the quarter window glass side.
 - (2) Apply a coating of the specified adhesive all around (at the place shown in the illustration) on the glass side, and then install to the body.

Specified adhesive: **3M** Super Fast Urethan Part No. 8609 or equivalent

- (3) Tighten the installation nut for the quarter window glass moulding and glass assembly.
- (4) Test for water leakage.
- (5) If there is leakage, fill the leaking area with window weatherstrip sealant.

REAR WINDOW GLASS

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION

M42LCAJ



TSB Revision

18L 010

Rear window lower moulding



Using the general service tool, remove the rear window side moulding, the corner joint assembly, and the rear window upper moulding.

12. REMOVAL OF REAR WINDOW GLASS

Remove in the same way as the windshield glass. Refer to P.42-66.

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

13. INSTALLATION OF WINDOW DAM

Install in the same way as the windshield glass. Refer to P.42-66.

12. INSTALLATION OF REAR WINDOW GLASS

Install in the same way as the windshield glass. Refer to P.42-66.







Identification mark

INSPECTION DOOR SWITCH

Operate the switch, and check the continuity between the terminals.

TYPE A

Switch p	Terminal	1	2	3
C	Open (ON)	0	0	0
Switch	Depressed (OFF)			

TYPE B

Switch p	Terminal	1	2
Switch	Open (ON)	0	0
Switch	Depressed (OFF)		

DOOR CHECK STRAP REPLACEMENT

- 1. Press upward and remove spring pin.
- 2. Remove door check strap bolt. Remove door check strap.

3. With the identification mark upward, install door check strap.

Applicable location		Identification mark
Front door	R.H.	KR
Front door	L.H.	KL
Poor door	R.H.	MR
Rear door	L.H.	ML

FRONT DOOR TRIM AND WATERPROOF FILM

M42MBBB





SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

5. REMOVAL OF CLIP

Remove clip using a piece of cloth as illustrated.

11. REMOVAL OF DOOR TRIM

- (1) Remove the door trim installation screw.
- (2) To unhook the hooked part of the door trim, press the trim toward the door panel and while doing so pull upward to remove.

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

11. INSTALLATION OF DOOR TRIM

- (1) While fitting the door trim upper edge (inner weatherstrip clip) to the door panel, fit the hook part of the trim into the hole in the panel, and then move it downward to install.
- (2) Install the door trim installation screw.

REAR DOOR TRIM AND WATERPROOF FILM

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

4. REMOVAL OF CLIP

Remove by following the same procedures as for the front door. (Refer to P.42-77.)



10. REMOVAL OF DOOR TRIM

- (1) Remove the door trim installation screw.
- (2) To unhook the hooked part of the door trim, press the trim toward the door panel and while doing so pull upward to remove.

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION 10. INSTALLATION OF DOOR TRIM

- (1) While fitting the door trim upper edge (inner weatherstrip clip) to the door panel, fit the hook part of the trim into the hole in the panel, and then move it downward to install.
- (2) Install the door trim installation screw.

TSB Revision

18A0044

FRONT DOOR GLASS AND REGULATOR

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION





SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

3. REMOVAL OF DOOR WINDOW GLASS

- (1) Lower the door glass to the access hole position.
- (2) Remove the glass installation screws from the front window regulator assembly.

NOTE

When removing the glass installation screws, support the glass to avoid dropping it.

(3) Remove the front door window glass by pulling it upward.

5. REMOVAL OF FRONT WINDOW REGULATOR ASSEM-BLY

Remove the regulator installation bolt, and then remove the regulator from the access hole in the door panel.

INSPECTION

POWER WINDOW MOTOR

- (1) Connect the battery directly to the motor terminals and check that the slider moves smoothly.
- (2) Also, when the polarity of the battery is changed, check that the slider moves in the opposite direction.

CIRCUIT BREAKER (INCORPORATED IN THE POWER WINDOW MOTOR)

- (1) Press the UP switch to fully close the window glass, and continue to press the switch for 10 seconds.
- (2) At the moment that the UP switch is released, press the DOWN switch. The circuit breaker can be considered good if at this time the door window glass begins to open within 60 seconds.



SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

3. INSTALLATION OF DOOR WINDOW GLASS

To install the door window glass to the front window regulator assembly, push the door window glass toward the rear of the vehicle and then tighten.

• DOOR WINDOW GLASS ADJUSTMENT

Check to be sure that the door window glass correctly contacts the door glass runchannel when the door window glass is fully raised and lowered; if a problem is found, adjust by following the procedures described below.

- (1) Loosen the installation bolt of the front window regulator assembly.
- (2) Move the upper installation part of the front window regulator assembly forward and backward to adjust the tilt angle of the glass.
- (3) Lower the door window glass to the position of the access hole.
- (4) Loosen the door glass installation screw, and adjust the forward/backward position of the glass.

REAR DOOR GLASS AND REGULATOR

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



TSB Revision

18A0006

M42MCBGa

._ ...

42-84





181.0269



3. REMOVAL OF DOOR WINDOW GLASS

- (1) Lower the door glass to the access hole position.
- (2) Remove the glass installation screws from the rear window regulator assembly.

NOTE

When removing the glass installation screws, support the glass to avoid dropping it.

(3) Remove the rear door window glass by pulling it upward.

5. REMOVAL OF REAR WINDOW REGULATOR ASSEM-BLY

Remove the regulator installation bolt, and then remove the regulator from the access hole in the door panel.

INSPECTION POWER WINDOW MOTOR

- (1) Connect the battery directly to the motor terminals and check that the slider moves smoothly.
- (2) Also, when the polarity of the batten/ is changed, check that the slider moves in the opposite direction.

CIRCUIT BREAKER (INCORPORATED IN THE POWER WINDOW MOTOR)

- (1) Press the UP switch to fully close the window glass, and continue to press the switch for 10 seconds.
- (2) At the moment that the UP switch is released, press the DOWN switch. The circuit breaker can be considered good if at this time the door window glass begins to open within 60 seconds.







SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

3. INSTALLATION OF DOOR WINDOW GLASS

To install the door window glass to the rear window regulator assembly, push the door window glass toward the front of the vehicle and then tighten.

. DOOR WINDOW GLASS ADJUSTMENT

Check to be sure that the door window glass correctly contacts the door glass runchannel when the door window glass is fully raised and lowered; if a problem is found, adjust by following the procedures described below.

- (1) Loosen the installation bolt of the rear window regulator assembly.
- (2) Move the upper installation part of the rear window regulator assembly forward and backward to adjust the tilt angle of the glass.
- (3) Lower the door window glass to the position of the access hole.
- (4) Loosen the door glass installation screw, and adjust the forward/backward position of the glass.

POWER WINDOW

M42MHAG



16A0537

POWER WINDOW TIMER TROUBLESHOOTING GUIDE

INPUT CHECK (ETACS-EQUIPPED MODELS ONLY)

Using the scan tool, check whether or not the input signals from each switch are being input to the electronic control unit.

- (1) Connect the scan tool to the data link connector (located at the right side of the junction block).
- (2) With the ignition switch at the "ACC" position, set the scan tool to the special test setting.
- (3) Check to be sure that the buzzer of the scan tool sounds one time when each switch noted below is operated. If the buzzer sounds, the input signals are being input to the electronic control unit, so that switch can be considered to be functioning normally; if the buzzer does not sound, check for a malfunction of that switch or for damaged or disconnected wiring.
 - Ignition switch
 - Front door switch

TROUBLESHOOTING QUICK-REFERENCE TABLE (ETACS-RELATED PROBLEMS ONLY)

For information concerning the locations of electrical components, refer to $P\!.42\text{-}93.$

Problem	Probable cause	Check method	Remedy
The power windows do not oper- ate when the ignition switch is at the "ON" position.	Damaged or discon- nected wiring of the ignition switch input circuit	If a malfunction is in- dicated as a result of checking the input signals, check by fol- lowing individual part and the circuit check No. 2 procedures (P.42-89).	Repair the wiring har- ness.
	Damaged or discon- nected wiring of the power-window relay activation circuit	Check by following in- dividual part and the circuit check No. 3 procedures (P.42-90).	Repair the wiring har- ness, or replace the power-window relay.
	Malfunction of the electronic control unit	-	Replace the electron- ic control unit.

Problem	Probable cause	Check method	Remedy
The power windows can be opened and closed immediately after the ignition switch is switched OFF, but the power window operation does not stop if a front door is opened within 30 seconds.	Damaged or discon- nected wiring of the front door switch in- put circuit	If a malfunction is in- dicated as a result of checking the input signals (P.42-86). check by following in- dividual part and the circuit check No. 4 procedures (P.42-92).	Repair the wiring har- ness, or replace the front door switch.
	front door switch		
	Malfunction of the electronic control unit	-	Replace the electron- ic control unit.
The opening and closing opera- tions of the power windows are possible after the timer operation time has elapsed when the igni- tion switch is set to the "OFF" position.	Short-circuit of the power-window relay activation circuit	Check by following in- dividual part and cir- cuit check No. 3 pro- cedures (P.42-92).	Repair the wiring har- ness, or replace the power-window relay.
	Malfunction of the power-window relay contacts		
	Malfunction of the electronic control unit ,	-	Replace the electron- ic control unit.

NOTE

"ECU" (electronic control unit) indicates the ETACS control unit.

TSB Revision

42-87

CHECKING INDIVIDUAL PART AND CIRCUIT

1. ETACS POWER-SUPPLY AND GROUND CIRCUITS



Description of operation

The battery supplies a stabilized 5V power supply to the electronic control unit, via the constant-voltage circuit and terminal (36) directly connected to the battery.

If there is an abnormal condition of the power-Supply circuit, other ETACS functions also will not operate.

Checking the ground circuit (Disconnect the connector and check the wiring harness side.)

ECU terminal No	Signal	Condition	Terminal voltage
36	Electronic control unit power supply	At all times	B+

B+: Battery Positive Voltage

Checking the ground circuit (Disconnect the connector and check the wiring harness side.)

Terminal No.	Connected to/measured part	Measurement	Tester connection	Check conditions	Standard
29	Electronic control unit ground	Resistance	29-ground	At all times	Continuity
30	Electronic control unit ground	Resistance	30-ground	At all times	Continuity

2. IGNITION SWITCH INPUT CIRCUIT



Description of operation

A condition for operation of this system is the sending of HIGH-level signals to the electronic control unit when the ignition switch is switched to the "ACC" position or the "ON" position.

Electronic control unit terminal voltage (Disconnect the connector of the electronic control unit and check the wiring harness side.)

ECU terminal No	o. Signal	Condition		Standard
3	Ignition switch: "ON"	Ignition switch	OFF	0V
			ON	B+

B+: Battery Positive Voltage

Checking the individual part

Ignition switch: Refer to GROUP 54-Ignition Switch.

42-90


Description of operation

When the ignition switch is switched to the "ON" position, and also for a period of 30 seconds after the ignition switch is switched to the "OFF" position, the transistor of the electronic control unit is switched ON, and battery voltage is supplied from

NOTE

The power supply to the power window relay is stopped if a front door is opened within 30 seconds after the ignition switch is switched to OFF. the battery (through sub-fusible link No. 2) to the power-window relay.

In addition, voltage is supplied (through sub-fusible link No. 2) to power-window switch and motor as a result of the switch-ON of the power-window relay.

Electronic control unit terminal voltage (Disconnect the connector of the electronic control unit and check the wiring harness side.)

ECU terminal No	 Signal	Condition	Terminal voltage
28	Power-window relay signal	At all times	B+
			B+: Battery Positive Voltage

Checking the individual part

Power window relay: Refer to P.42-95.

4. FRONT DOOR SWITCH INPUT CIRCUIT



Description of operation

When the front door is closed (the door switch is switched OFF), HIGH-level signals are sent to the electronic control unit; when the front door is opened (the door switch is switched ON), LOW-level signals are sent to the electronic control unit.

٠

Electronic control unit terminal voltage (connection status of the electronic control unit connector)

ECU terminal I	No. Signal	Condition		Terminal voltage
33	Driver door switch signal	Driver deer	Open	! o v
33	Driver door switch signal		Closed	5 V
34	Passangar door switch signal	December deer	Open	0 V
	rassenger upor switch signal	Passenger door	Closed	5 V

Checking the driver door switch circuit (Disconnect the connector of the electronic control unit and check the wiring harness side.)

ECU terminal No.	Connected to/measured part	Measurement	Tester connection	Check condition	ons	Standard
33	Driver door switch	Resistance	33-ground	Driver door	Closed	No continuity
					Open	Continuity
34	Passenger door switch	Resistance	34-ground	Passenger door	Closed	No continuity
					Open	Continuity

Checking the individual part

Door switch: Refer to P.42-75.





INSPECTION POWER WINDOW MAIN SWITCH

Check for continuity in accordance to the following connection table

,

Switch (position	Po	wer window sv (normal)	vitch	Po	wer window sv (lock)	vitch
Terminal		UP	OFF	DOWN	UP	OFF	DOWN
Front	8	9		9	9		9
(LH)	13	6	9	9	6	9	<u> </u>
	6	9		0	9	0	6
	1	6	0	6	6	6	6
Front	8	9		9	9		9
(KH)	14	6	9	γ	6	9	
	7	9	0	0		6	6
	1	0	0	0			
Rear	8	9		9	Ŷ		9
(LH)	9	6	9	9	0	9	
	2	9	9	0		0	0
	1			0			
Rear	8	9		9	9		0
(1)	11		0	0		9	
	4	9	Ť	6			0
	1		0	0			

NOTE

 \bigcirc - \bigcirc indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.



POWER WINDOW SUBSWITCH

Check for continuity in accordance to the following connection table.

	Switch position	Sub switch			
Terminal		UP	OFF	DOWN	
Sub	1	9	0	0	
switch	2	ð			
	3		9	9	
	4	9			
	5			0	

NOTE

O-O indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.



POWER WINDOW RELAY

Apply battery voltage to terminal 2, and check for continuity when terminal 4 is grounded.

Terminal Battery voltage	1	2	3	4
Continuity no voltage		0		-0
Continuity with voltage	0—		-0	

NOTE

O-O indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.

FRONT DOOR HANDLE AND LATCH

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



TSB Revision

M42MDAZa



SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

9. REMOVAL OF RETAINER

- (1) Remove the plug from the door side surface, and then remove the retainer installation bolt.
- (2) Remove the retainer.

11. REMOVAL OF DOOR OUTSIDE HANDLE

Move the door outside handle slightly toward the rear, and then remove.

14. REMOVAL OF DOOR OUTSIDE HANDLE BASE

Loosen the door outside handle base installation screw; then move it slightly toward the front, and remove.

INSPECTION FRONT DOOR LOCK ACTUATOR

- Place the rod in the LOCK position, apply the battery power to the terminal (3) and check to see that when the terminal (1) is grounded, the rod moves to the UNLOCK position.
- (2) Then place the rod in the UNLOCK position, apply the battery power to the terminal (1), and check to see that when the terminal (3) is grounded, the rod moves to the LOCK position.
- (3) Check to ensure that when the rod is placed in the UNLOCK position, there is a continuity between the terminals (2) and (4), and that when the rod is placed in the LOCK position, there is no continuity.



18A0045

INSPECTION

DOOR LATCH SWITCH < From 1990 models>

Operate the switch, and check the continuity between the terminals.

Switch	Terminal	1	2	3
Switch	Open (door open)		0	0
	Depressed (door close)	0		0

NOTE

O-O indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.

DOOR LOCK CYLNDER <Turbo>

(1) Turn the key and unlock or lock the door lock cylinder.(2) Check the continuity between the terminals.

Terminal	1	2	3
Door lock cylinder unlocked	0	0	
Door lock cylinder locked		0	0

NOTE

C-O indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

11. INSTALLATION OF DOOR OUTSIDE HANDLE

Install the door outside handle by sliding it to the door outside handle base.

NOTE

When installing the fulcrum part of the door outside handle to the pin part of the door outside handle base, the work can be made easier by lifting the lever of the base upward.

• INSIDE HANDLE PLAY ADJUSTMENT

Move the door inside handle installation position back and forth to adjust so that the inside handle play allowance agrees with the standard value.

Standard value (A): 4-10 mm (.16-.40 in.)

TSB Revision

18A0014

REAR DOOR HANDLE AND LATCH

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



NOTE <⊐: Hook positions

- P.42-83.) 4. Door window glass (Refer to P.42-84.)
- 5. Door inside handle
- 6. Front door lock actuator
- 7. Door latch assembly
- 8. Retainer

M42MDBD



SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

8. REMOVAL OF RETAINER

Remove by following the same procedures as for the front door. (Refer to P.42-97.)

10. REMOVAL OF DOOR OUTSIDE HANDLE

Remove by following the same procedures as for the front door. (Refer to P.42-97.)

13. REMOVAL OF OUTSIDE HANDLE BASE

Remove by following the same procedures as for the front door. (Refer to P.42-97.)

INSPECTION

REAR DOOR LOCK ACTUATOR

- (1) Place the rod in the LOCK position, apply the battery power to the terminal (3) and check to see that when the terminal (1) is grounded, the rod moves to the UNLOCK position.
- (2) Then place the rod in the UNLOCK position, apply the battery power to the terminal (1), and check to see that when the terminal (3) is grounded, the rod moves to the LOCK position.

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

10. INSTALLATION OF DOOR OUTSIDE HANDLE

Install by following the same procedures as for the front door. (Refer to P.42-98.)

. INSIDE HANDLE PLAY ADJUSTMENT

Check and adjust by following the same procedures as for the front door. (Refer to P.42-98.)



CENTRAL DOOR LOCKING SYSTEM

TROUBLESHOOTING OF CENTRAL DOOR LOCK-ING SYSTEM, DOOR LOCK PREVENTION WHEN KEY IS NOT REMOVED

INPUT CHECK (ETACS-EQUIPPED MODELS ONLY)

Using the scan tool, check whether or not the input signals from each switch are being input to the electronic control unit.

- (1) Connect the scan tool to the data link connector (located at the right side of the junction block).
- (2) With the ignition switch at the "ACC" position, set the scan tool to the special test setting.
- (3) Check to be sure that the buzzer of the scan tool sounds one time when each switch noted below is operated.

If the buzzer sounds, the input signals are being input to the electronic control unit, so that switch can be considered to be functioning normally; if the buzzer does not sound, check for a malfunction of that switch or for damaged or disconnected wiring.

- Door lock actuator switch (front door)
- Front door switch
- Key reminder switch (removal/insertion of ignition key)

NOTE

When checking the key reminder switch, use the included battery harness to take power directly from the battery.

TROUBLESHOOTING QUICK-REFERENCE TABLE (ETACS-RELATED PROBLEMS ONLY)

For information concerning the locations of electrical components, refer to P.42-109.

CENTRAL DOOR LOCKING SYSTEM

Problem	Probable cause	Check method	Remedy
The central door locking function does not function correctly when the front door inside lock knob is pressed. [The problem does not occur, however, when the front door switch is ON and, moreover, the key reminder switch is OFF.]	Damaged or discon- nected wiring, or a short-circuit, of the door lock actuator switch (front door) in- put circuit	If a malfunction is in- dicated as a result of in checking the input signals, check by fol- lowing individual part and the circuit check No. 2 procedures (P.42-104).	Repair the wiring har- ness, or replace the door lock actuator.
	Malfunction of the door lock actuator switch (front door)		1

Problem	Probable cause	Check method	Remedy
The central door locking function does not function correctly when the front door inside lock knob is pressed. [The problem does not occur, however, when the front door switch is ON and, moreover, the key reminder switch is OFF.]	Damaged or discon- nected wiring of the door lock relay acti- vation circuit	Check by following in- dividual part and the circuit check No. 3 procedures (P.42-106).	Repair the wiring har- ness, or replace the door lock relay.
	Malfunction of the door lock relay	-	
	Malfunction of the electronic control unit		Replace the electron- ic control unit.

DOOR LOCK PREVENTION WHEN KEY IS NOT REMOVED

Problem	Probable cause	Check method	Remedy
 The front door is not unlocked when the following conditions are satisfied and the front door lock knob is pushed. The key is inserted into the ignition switch. (Key reminder switch: OFF) A front door is open. (Front door switch: ON) [The central door locking function, however, functions normally.] 	Short-circuit of the lighting-monitor switch input circuit	If a malfunction is in- dicated as a result of checking the input signals (P.42-101), check by following in- dividual part and the circuit check No. 5 procedures (P.42-108).	Repair the wiring har- ness, or replace the key reminder switch.
	Shotcircuit of the lighting-monitor switch		
	Damaged or discon- nected wiring of the front door switch in- put circuit	If a malfunction is in- dicated as a result of checking the input signals (P.42-101), check by following in- dividual part and the circuit check No. 5 procedures (P.42-108).	Repair the wiring har- ness, or replace the front door switch.
	Damaged or discon- nected wiring of the ront door switch		
	Malfunction of the electronic control unit	-	Replace the electron- ic control unit.

NOTE

"ECU" (electronic control unit) indicates the ETACS control unit

CHECKING INDIVIDUAL PART AND CIRCUIT

1. ETACS POWER-SUPPLY AND GROUND CIRCUITS



Description of operation

The battery supplies a stabilized 5V power supply to the electronic control unit, via the constant-voltage circuit and terminal (36) directly connected to the battery.

If there is an abnormal condition of the power-supply circuit, other ETACS functions also will not operate.

Electronic control unit voltage (connection status of the electronic control unit connector)

ECU terminal N	o. Signal	Condition	Terminal voltage
36	Electronic control unit power supply	At all times	B+

B+: Battery Positive Voltage

Checking the ground circuit (Disconnect the connector and check the wiring harness side.)

Terminal No.	Connected to/measured part	Measurement	Tester connection	Check conditions	Standard
29	Electronic control unit ground	Resistance	29-ground	At all times	Continuity
30	Electronic control unit ground	Resistance	30-ground	At all times	Continuity



Description of operation

When a front door is locked by the lock knob or the key, the door lock actuator switch is switched OFF, and HIGH-level signals are sent to the electronic control unit.

These signal activate the timer circuit of the electronic control unit, thereby causing the activation circuit to function, thus activating the door lock actuator of all doors.

Electronic control unit voltage (connection status of the electronic control unit connector)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Condition		Terminal voltage
22	Door lock actuator switch	Door lock actuator switch	Lock: OFF	5 V
(driver door) signal		I	Unlock: ON	OV
21	Door lock actuator switch	Door lock actuator switch	Lock: OFF	5 V
	(passenger door) signal		Unlock: ON	OV

Checking the door lock actuator switch circuit (Disconnect the connector of the electronic control unit and check the wiring harness side.)

ECU terminal No.	Connected to/measured part	Measurement	Tester connection	Check conc	litions	Standard
22	Door lock actuator switch (driver	Resistance	22-ground	Door lock	Lock: OFF	No continuity
	door) signal			switch	Unlock, ON	Continuity
21	Door lock actuator switch	Resistance	21-ground	Door lock	Lock: OFF	No continuity
	(passenger door) signal			switch	Unlock: ON	I) Continuity

Checking the individual part

Door lock actuator switch: Refer to P.42-97, 100.



Description of operation

When a front door is locked, transistor Tr1 (lock side) of the electronic control unit is switched ON, and the door lock relay is activated, thus locking the door lock actuator.

When, with the ignition key inserted, a front door is opened and is locked, transistor Tr2 (unlock side) of the electronic control unit is switched ON, and the door lock relay is activated, thus unlocking the door lock actuator.

Electronic control unit voltage (connection status of the electronic control unit connector)

ECU terminal No	. Signal	Condition	Terminal voltage
24	Door lock relay (lock side) signal	At all times (except during the door lock activation) described above)	B+
26	Door lock relay (unlock side) signal	At all times (except during the door unlock activation described above)	B+

B+: Battery Positive Voltage

Checking the individual part

Door lock relay: Refer to P.42-109.

4. LIGHTING-MONITOR SWITCH INPUT CIRCUIT



Description of operation

The key reminder switch is switched OFF and HIGH-level signals are sent to the electronic control unit when the key is inserted into the ignition key cylinder; when the key is removed, the key reminder switch is switched ON and LOW-level signals

are sent to the electronic control unit. If there is an abnormal condition of the key reminder switch input circuit, there will also be an abnormal condition of the key reminder buzzer.

Electronic control unit voltage (connection status of the electronic control unit connector)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Condition	Terminal voltage
6	Key reminder switch signal	Key removed	0 V
		Key inserted	5 V

Checking the key reminder switch circuit (Disconnect the connector of the electronic control unit and check the wiring harness side.)

ECU terminal Connected to/measured part Measurem		Measurement	Tester connection	Check conditions	Standard		
6	Key	reminder	switch	Resistance	6-ground	Key removed	Continuity
						Key inserted	No continuity

Checking the individual part

Key reminder switch: Refer to GROUP 54-Ignition Switch.

5. FRONT DOOR SWITCH INPUT CIRCUIT



Description of operation

When the front door is closed (the door switch is switched OFF), HIGH-level signals are sent to the electronic control unit; when the front door is Opened (the door switch is switched ON), LOW-level signals are sent to the electronic control u'nit.

Electronic control unit terminal voltage (connection status of the electronic control unit connector)

ECU terminal No., Signal		Condition		Terminal voltage
			Open	0 V
3	3 3 Driver door switch signal	Driver door	Closed	5 V
34 Passenger door switch signal Passenger			Open	0 V
		Passenger door	Closed	5 V

Checking the driver door switch circuit (Disconnect the connector of the electronic control unit and check the wiring harness side.)

ECU terminal No.	Connected to/measured part	Measurement	Tester _{Check} c	onditions	Standard
33	Driver door switch	Resistance	33-ground Driver do	oor Closed	No continuity
			;	Open	Continuity
34	Passenger door switch	Resistance	34-ground Passeng	er Closed	No continuity
		'	door	Open	Continuity

Checking the individual part

Door switch: Refer to P.42-75.



DOOR RUNCHANNEL

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION

M42MEAL



TSB Revision



 \square S٦

⇐: Hook positions



SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

5. INSTALLATION OF DOOR WINDOW GLASS **RUNCHAN**-NEL

Remove the dual-surface tape from the places shown in the figure. Then attach new dual-surface tape [thickness 6 mm (.24 in.), width 10 mm (.4 in.), length 100 mm (4.0 in.)] and install the runchannel to the door.

FRONT DOOR MOULDING AND DRIP LINE WEATHERSTRIP

M42MFAG

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION





SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

3. REMOVAL OF DOOR OUTER OPENING WEATHERSTRIP

Make a tool as shown in the illustration to remove the door opening weatherstrip.

7. REMOVAL OF BELT LINE MOULDING

- (1) Close the window glass completely.
- (2) Remove the rear end clip from the door panel.
- (3) Except for the front end clip, unhook the clips from the door panel.

NOTE

Unhook while pressing the moulding's clip places from the outside by a finger, or use a flat-tip $\langle - \rangle$ screwdriver or a similar tool to pry at the places shown in the illustration.

(4) Remove the belt line moulding by sliding it toward the front of the vehicle.

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

3. INSTALLATION OF DOOR OUTER OPENING WEATHER-STRIP

The clip colour identifies the left and right weatherstrips, so be sure to use the colours so as to install correctly.

Identification colour	Applicable side
White	Left door
Brown	Right door

REAR DOOR MOULDING AND DRIP LINE WEATHERSTRIP

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



TSB Revision

M42MFAH



SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

3. REMOVAL OF DOOR OUTER OPENING WEATHERSTRIP

Make a tool as shown in the illustration to remove the door opening weatherstrip.

7. REMOVAL OF BELT LINE MOULDING

- (1) Close the window glass completely.
- (2) Remove the rear end clip from the door panel.
- (3) Except for the front end clip, unhook the clips from the door panel.

NOTE

Unhook while pressing the moulding's clip places from the outside by a finger, or use a flat-tip (-) screwdriver or a similar tool to pry at the places shown in the illustration.

(4) Remove the belt line moulding by sliding it toward the front of the vehicle.

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

3. INSTALLATION OF DOOR OUTER OPENING WEATHER-STRIP

The clip colour identifies the left and right weatherstrips, so be sure to use the colours so as to install correctly.

Identification colour	Applicable side
White	Left door
Brown	Right door



SUNROOF

M42TAAM

SUNROOF TIMER TROUBLESHOOTING GUIDE

INPUT CHECK (ETACS-EQUIPPED MODELS ONLY)

Using the scan tool, check whether or not the input signals from each switch are being input to the electronic control unit.

- (1) Connect the scan tool to the data link connector (located at the right side of the junction block).
- (2) With the ignition switch at the "ACC" position, set the scan tool to the special test setting.
- (3) Check to be sure that the buzzer of the scan tool sounds one time when each switch noted below is operated.

If the buzzer sounds, the input signals are being input to the electronic control unit, so that switch can be considered to be functioning normally; if the buzzer does not sound, check for a malfunction of that switch or for damaged or disconnected wiring.

- Ignition switch
- Front door switch

TROUBLESHOOTING QUICK-REFERENCE TABLE (ETACS-RELATED PROBLEMS ONLY)

Problem	Probable cause	Check method	Remedy	
The sunroof does not operate when the ignition switch is at the "ON" position.	Damaged or disconnect- ed wiring of the ignition switch input circuit	If a malfunction is indicated as a result of the input check, check by following individual part and the cir- cuit check No. 2 proce- dures (P.42-118).	Repair the wiring har- ness	
	Damaged or discon- nected wiring of the sunroof power relay activation circuit	Check by following indi- vidual part and the circuit check No. 3 procedures (P.42-119.)	Repair the wiring har- ness, or replace the sunroof power relay	
	Malfunction of the elec- tronic control unit	-	Replace the electron- ic control unit	
The opening and closing operations of the sunroof is possible imme- diately after the ignition switch is set to the "OFE" position but the	Damaged or disconnect- ed wiring of the front door switch input circuit	If a malfunction is indicated as a result of the input check, check by following individual part and the cir-	Repair the wiring har- ness, or replace the front door switch	
surroof does not stop when a front door is opened within 30 seconds	Malfunction of the front door switch	cuit check No.4proce- dures (P.42-122).		
to "OFF".	Malfunction of the elec- tronic control unit	-	Replace the electron- ic control unit	
The opening and closing operations of the sunroof is possible after the timer operation time has elapsed	Short-circuit of the sun- roof power relay activa- tion circuit	Check by following indi- vidual part and the circuit check No. 3 procedures	Repair the wiring har- ness, or replace the sunroof power relay	
the "OFF" position.	Malfunction of the sun- roof power relay contacts	\F.42-113.)		
	Malfunction of the elec- tronic control unit	-	Replace the electron- ic control unit	

NOTE

"ECU" (electronic control unit) indicates the ETACS control unit

CHECKING INDIVIDUAL PART AND CIRCUIT 1. ETACS POWER-SUPPLY AND GROUND CIRCUITS



Description of operation

The battery supplies a stabilized 5V power supply to the electronic control unit, via the constant-voltage circuit and terminal (36) directly connected to the battery.

If there is an abnormal condition of the powersupply circuit, other ETACS functions also will not operate.

Electronic control unit voltage (connection status of the electronic control unit connector)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Condition	Terminal voltage
36	Electronic control unit power supply	At all times	B+

B+: Battery Positive Voltage

Checking the ground circuit (Disconnect the connector and check the wiring harness side.)

Terminal No.	Connected to/measured part	Measurement	Tester connection	Check conditions	Standard
29	Electronic control unit ground	Resistance	29-ground	At all times	Continuity
30	Electronic control unit ground	Resistance	30-ground	At all times	Continuity

2. IGNITION SWITCH INPUT CIRCUIT



Description of operation

A condition for operation of this system is the sending of HIGH-level signals to the electronic

control unit when the ignition switch is switched to the "ACC" position or the "ON" position.

Electronic control unit terminal voltage (Disconnect the connector of the electronic control unit and check **the** wiring harness side.)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Condition	Terminal voltage	
3	Ignition switch: "ON"	Ignition switch	OFF	ov
			ON	B+

B+: Battery Positive Voltage

.

Checking the individual part

Ignition switch: Refer to GROUP 54-Ignition Swtich



42-120

<From 1991 models>



Description of operation

When the ianition switch is switched to the "ON" position, and also for a period of 30 seconds after the ignition switch is switched to the "OFF" position, the transistor of the electronic control unit is switched ON, and battery voltage is supplied from the battery (through sub-fusible link No. 1) to the sunroof power relay.

In addition, voltage is supplied (through sub-fusible link No. 1) to power-window switch and motor as a result of the switch-ON of the power-window relay.

NOTE

The power supply to the sunroof power relay is stopped if a front door is opened within 30 seconds after the ignition switch is switched to OFF.

Electronic control unit terminal voltage (Disconnect the connector of the electronic control unit and check the wiring harness side.)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Condition	Terminal voltage
28	Sunroof power relay signal	At all times	B+

B+: Battery Positive Voltage

Checking the individual part

Sunroof power relay: Refer to P.42-127

4. FRONT DOOR SWITCH INPUT CIRCUIT



Description of operation

When the driver door is closed (the door switch is switched OFF), HIGH-level signals are sent to the electronic control unit; when the front door is open-

ed (the door switch is switched ON), LOW-level signals are sent to the electronic control unit.

Electronic control unit terminal voltage (connection status of the electronic control unit connector)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Condition	Terminal voltage	
33	Driver door switch signal	, Driver door	Open	οv
			Closed	5V
34	Passenger door switch signal	Passenger door	Open	ov
			Closed	5V

Checking the front door switch circuit (Disconnect the connector of the electronic control unit and check the wiring harness side.)

ECU terminal No.	Connected to/measured part	Measurement	Tester connection	Check conditions		Standard
33	Driver door switch	Resistance	33-ground	Driver door	Closed	No continuity
					Open	Continuity
34	Passenger door switch	Resistance	34-ground	Passenger	Closed	No continuity
				0001	Open	Continuity

Checking the individual part

Door switch: Refer to P.42-75.





SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

1. REMOVAL OF SIDE GARNISH

- (1) Open the sunshade completely.
- (2) Completely tilt close the roof glass lid.
- (3) Remove the side garnish.

4. REMOVAL OF DEFLECTOR

(1) Operate the sunroof switch to bring the sliding roof drive cable assembly to the fully opened position.(2) Remove the deflector.

7. REMOVAL OF ROOF DRIP REAR CHANNEL

- (1) Operate the sunroof switch to bring the sliding roof drive cable assembly to the fully closed position.
- (2) Remove the roof drip rear channel.



9. REMOVAL OF HEADLINING

Refer to GROUP 52-Headlining.

NOTE

To remove the motor, sunroof power relay and sunroof control relay, remove after simply lowering the front part of the headlining.

If the housing assembly is also to be removed, remove the headlining.

10. REMOVAL OF MOTOR

Caution

If the motor is to be removed, be sure to first move the roof glass lid or the sliding roof drive cable assembly to the fully tilt closed position.

If the position of the roof glass lid and the motor's fully closed position do not correspond, the sunroof will not operate normally.



11. REMOVAL OF SLIDING ROOF ASSEMBLY

- (1) Attach protection tape around the opening of the roof panel.
- (2) Pull out, being careful not to strike the opening of the roof panel.

12. REMOVAL OF SPLASH SHIELD

If the drain hose at the front is to be disconnected, remove the splash shield to the extent that a hand can be inserted between the fender and the body.

13. REMOVAL OF DRAIN HOSE

Tie a cord at the end of the drain hose and pull out the drain hose toward the vehicle interior.

INSPECTION

- Check each gear of the motor assembly for abrasion or wear.
- Check the guide rail assembly for clogging by foreign material.
- Check the operation of the deflector.



CHECKING THE SLIDING RESISTANCE OF THE GLASS LID

Check the sliding resistance of the roof glass lid by following the procedures below.

- (1) Remove the side garnish.
- (2) Loosen the nut at the front end of the roof glass lid installation, and then tie with a cord.
- (3) Remove the motor after opening the roof glass lid.
- (4) Using a spring scale, measure the sliding resistance of the roof glass lid.

Standard value: 120 N (26 lbs.) or less

- (5) If the sliding resistance of the roof glass lid exceeds the standard value, check for the following.
 - ① Check the installation condition of the sliding roof assembly, and check for deformation or clogging by foreign material.
 - 2 Check for sticking of the drive cable.
 - 3 Check for an offset position of the roof glass lid.
- (6) When installing the motor, install after first aligning the fully tilt closed condition of the sliding roof assembly and of the motor.

(Refer to P.42-129.)



BODY - Sunroof

CHECKING THE SLIDING FORCE OF THE MOTOR'S CLUTCH

(1) Insert one end of an allen wrench (provided in the tool bag) into the motor gear hole and hook a spring scale to the other end, and measure the force when the clutch starts to slip (when the allen wrench begins to turn).

Standard value: 35-44 N(8-10 lbs.)

Caution

Pull the spring scale in a direction at right angles to the wrench. Note that if a wrench other than the one provided in the tool bag is used, the measured value may not coincide with the standard value.

- (2) If the sliding force of the motor's clutch is not within the standard value range, adjust by following one or the other of the procedures described below.
 - (1) Adjust the tightening torque of the bolt within the tightening torque range indicated in the illustration.
 - (2) Remove the bolt and reduce the number of shims.

CHECKING THE MOTOR

Check the direction of rotation of the drive gear when the battery is connected to the connector.

Terminal 1			Terminal	2	,	Drive gear rotation direction
+			-			Left
		1	+			Right

CHECKING THE LIMIT SWITCH

(1) Remove the limit switch from the motor; then operate the limit switch and check for continuity between the terminals.

Switch	Terminal	1	2	3	4
Limit quitab 4	ON	0	0		
	OFF				
Limit quitch 2	ON	0		0	
	OFF				

JOTE

O-O indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.

(2) When installing the limit switch, install so that installation positions 1 and 2 and the inner and outer sides are as indicated in the illustration.


CHECKING THE SUNROOF SWITCH

Operate the switch and check for continuity between the terminals.

Switch	Terminal	2	3	5	7	8
	Open	0—		0		
Slide switch	Closed			0	—0	
T 11. 1. 1	Up		0	—0		
Lift switch	Down			0		—0
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					



CHECKING THE SUNROOF POWER RELAY

Check for continuity between terminals under the conditions described below.

Terminal Battery voltage	1	2	3	4
Continuity no voltage		0		0
Continuity with voltage	0	.	0_	Ð

NOTE

(1) $\bigcirc-\bigcirc$ indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.

(2) \oplus \ominus indicates terminals to which battery voltage is applied.

CHECKING THE SUNROOF CONTROL RELAY

- (1) Remove the limit switch from the motor.
- (2) Connect the limit switch and the wiring harness' connector.
- (3) Switch ON the ignition switch.
- (4) Connect the tester to each terminal and to body ground (as shown in the table below), and then check the voltage and check for continuity.
- (5) When installing the limit switch, install so that installation positions 1 and 2 and the inner and outer sides are as indicated in the illustration.

42-128

BODY – Sunroof

Check	Tester		Checking	conditions		Countermeasure if deviation from
equence	e connectio terminal	Always/ Usually	Limit switch	Sunroof switch	Standard	standard
1	5	Always			Continuity	Check the harness (between the control relay and ground).
2	10	Always			Battery Positive Voltage	Check the harness (between the control relay and the battery).
3	6		No. 1 OFF		Battery Positive Voltage	Replace the control relay or the motor
			No. 1 ON		" O V	Check the harness (between the control relay and ground).
4	2		, No. 2 OFF		Battery Positive Voltage	Replace the control relay or the motor
			No.2 ON		o v	Check the harness (between the control relay and ground).
5	3	Usually,		I	Battery Positive Voltage	Replace the control relay or the motor.
		ſ		Tilt up	0 V	Check the harness (between the control relay and ground). Check the tilt switch.
6	7	Usually/			Batten/ Positive Voltage	Replace the control relay or the motor
				Tilt down	0 V	Check the harness (between the control relay and ground). Check the tilt switch.
7	9	Usually			Battery Positive Voltage	Replace the control relay or the motor
				Slide open	0 V	Check the harness (between the control relay and ground). Check the slide switch.
8	8	Usually	I		Battery Positive Voltage	Replace the control relay or the motor
			1	Slide close	0 V	Check the harness (between the control relay and ground). Check the slide switch.
9	4		No. 2 OFF	Tilt up	Battery Positive Voltage	Replace the control relay.
10	1		1 No. 2 OFF	@ Tilt down	, –	-
			3 No. 1 OFF-ON		Battery Positive Voltage →0V	Replace the control relay.
11	1		1 No. 1 ON	② Slide open	-	
			3 No. 2 ON		Battery Positive Voltage	Replace the control relay.
12	4	C	D No. 1 ON	② Slide close	- ;	-
		, C	③ No. 2) N - O F F		Battery Positive Voltage →0V	Replace the control relay.
13	4		D No. 1 OFF		-	-
		/ (2 No. 2 ON 🤇) Slide close	Battery Positive Voltage (for 0.5 sec.)	Replace the control relay.



SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

13. INSTALLATION OF DRAIN HOSE

- (1) Tie the cord (passed through at the time of removal) to the end of the drain hose.
- (2) Pull the cord and pass the drain hose through.
- (3) Install the grommet, and install so that the amount of projection of the drain hose is as shown in the figure.

11. INSTALLATION OF SLIDING ROOF ASSEMBLY

Following the sequence described below, fully tilt close the left and right.

- (1) Slide the sliding roof drive cable assembly so that the notches in the guide rail are as indicated in the illustration.
- (2) With a finger at the place indicated by (A) in the illustration, slide the link forward and align the guide and the link's reference hole.

10. INSTALLATION OF MOTOR

Following the sequence described below, set to the fully tilt closed condition.

- (1) Remove the cam plate cover.
- (2) With the hexagonal wrench (included with the vehicle) attached at the hexagonal hole of the motor drive shaft, turn the cam and align with the mating mark.

REASSEMBLY AND DISASSEMBLY



 \bullet



SERVICE POINTS OF DISASSEMBLY

3. REMOVAL OF SLIDING ROOF DRIVE CABLE ASSEM-BLY

Pull out the sliding roof drive cable assembly from the rear part of the guide rail.

If it won't slide (with the notches of the guide rail as indicated in the illustration), press the (A) part and, with a finger at the (B) part, slide toward the rear.

Caution

Be careful not to lose the sliding shoes (plastic).

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

5. APPLICATION OF ADHESIVE TO SLIDING ROOF CABLE GUIDE CASING/4. GUIDE RAIL

Apply a coating of adhesive to the seal at the coupling and to the cut part of the weatherstrip.

Specified adhesive: **3M** ATD Part **No.8625** or equivalent

Caution

If too much adhesive is applied, adhesive will adhere to the roof panel at the time of installation to body, so don't apply too much.

TSB Revision

18A0198

NOTES

EXTERIOR

CONTENTS

AERO PARTS	18
BUMPER	7
DOOR MIRROR	33
FRONT GRILLE	12
GARNISHES	13
MOULDINGS	15
REMOTE-CONTROLLED MIRROR SWITCH	34

SPECIAL TOOLS	3
SPECIFICATIONS	2
General Specifications	2
Sealant and Adhesives	3
Service Specifications	3
Torque Specifications	3
TROUBLESHOOTING	4
WINDSHIELD WIPER AND WASHER	20 ⁾

M51AA--

17

SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

M51CA--

ltems		Specifications
Wiper motor		
Туре		Ferrite magnet type
Speed control system		Third brush system
Braking system		Dynamic brake system
Rpm at load of 1 Nm (0.72 ft.lbs.)	rpm	
Low speed		48±4
High speed		68 ⁺⁹ ₋₅
Nominal torque	N m (ft.lbs.	21 (15.5)
No-load current	А	3.7 or less
Wiper blade		
Wiping angle		
Driver's side		80" ± 2"
Passenger's side		97.3°±2°
Wiper blade length	mm (in.)	
Driver's side		475 (18.7)
Passenger's side		450 (17.7)
Window washer motor and pump		
Motor type		Direct current ferrite magnet type
Pump type		Centrifugal type
Power consumption	А	3.8 or less
Time of continuous use	sec.	
With washer fluid		Max. 60
Empty operation		Max. 20
Nozzle jet pressure	kPa (psi)	120 (17.1)
Tank capacity	dm³ (qts.)	. 7 (1.8)
Niper relay (Vehicles with ETACS)		
Range of voltage used	V	9 - 1 6
Voltage drop between terminals	V	1.15 or less
Remote control mirror		
Remote control mirror motor		
Bound current	mA s	5 O O
Door mirror control switch		
Rated load	mA	50

SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS

Items	Specifications
Standard value Wiper blace stopping position mm (in.) (distance between blade tip and front deck garnish)	25-35 (1-1.4)

TORQUE SPECIFICATIONS

Items	Nm	ft.lbs.
Bumper reinforcement coupling bolt and nut	19-28	14–20
Windshield wiper linkage mounting bolt	4-6	2.9-4.3
Windshield wiper arm locking nut	1016	7.2-12

SEALANT AND ADHESIVES

Items	Specified sealant and adhesive
Side Garnish Side Protect Moulding	3M ATD Part No.6382 [width 12 mm (1/2in.)] or 3M ATD Part No.6383 [width 22 mm (7/8in.)] or equivalent

SPECIAL TOOLS

Tool	Number	Name	Use
	MB991269* ¹ MB991341* ²	Scan tool (Multi-use tester <mut>)</mut>	ETACS input check
		ROM pack	ETACS input check
\bigcirc	For the number, re 00-Precautions B	efer to GROUP	

NOTE

*1:<1 989 models> *2:<1990, 1991, 1992, 1993 models>

TSB Revision

M51C8--

M51CC--

M51DA---

M51CE--

TROUBLESHOOTING

M51KHBGa

WINDSHIELD WIPER AND WASHER <VEHICLES WITHOUT ETACS> CIRCUIT DIAGRAM



OPERATION

<Low-speed (and high-speed) wiper operation>

- When the wiper switch is placed in the LO position with the ignition switch in the ACC or ON position, wipers operate continuously at low speed.
- Placing the wiper switch in the HI position causes the wipers to operate at high speed.

<Auto wiper stop operation>

 When the wiper switch is placed in the OFF position, the cam contacts of wiper motor causes current to flow through the auto wiper stop circuit, allowing the wiper blades to cycle before they reach to the stop positions.

<Intermittent wiper operation>

- When the wiper switch is placed in the INT position with the ignition switch in ACC or ON position, the intermittent wiper relay is energized causing the intermittent wiper relay contacts to close and open repeatedly.
- When the contacts are closed, the wiper motor is energized.
- When the wiper motor is energized, the relay contacts open; however, the cam contacts keep the wiper motor energized until the wiper blades return to their stop position.

<Washer-wiper operation >

• When the washer switch is turned ON, the intermittent wiper relay contacts close causing wipers to cycle two to three times.

TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

- 1. Wipers do not operate.
 - 1) Washer is not operative, either.
 - Check multi-purpose fuse No. 7.
 - Check ground.
- 2. Low-speed (or high-speed) wiper operation only is inoperative.
 - Check wiper switch.
- 3. Wipers do not stop.
 - Check wiper motor.
 - Check intermittent wiper relay.
 - Check wiper switch.
- 4. intermittent wiper operation is inoperative.
 - Check terminal voltage of steering-column switch (with a built-in intermittent wiper relay) with the intermittent wiper relay energized.

Terminal No.	Voltage	Check
3	ov	intermittent wiper relay or wiper switch
	Battery positive voltage	Intermittent wiper relay
	0 ↔ Battery positive voltage (alternating)	- (Normal)

- 5. The length of pause for intermittent operation cannot be varied.
 - Check variable intermittent wiper control switch.
 - Check intermittent wiper relay.
- 6. Washer is inoperative.
 - 1) Wiper is operative on washer-wiper operation.
 - Check washer motor.
 - 2) Washer-wiper operation is inoperative also.Check washer switch.
- 7. Washer-wiper operation is inoperative.

• Check intermittent wiper relay.

Remarks

• On vehicles with ETACS, refer to P.51-20.

REMOTE CONTROL MIRROR CIRCUIT DIAGRAM



OPERATION

 When the remote-controlled mirror switch is operated while the ignition key is in "ACC" or "ON" position, current flows through fuse No. remote-controlled mirror switch, remote-control mirror, remote-controlled mirror switch, and ground, causing the mirror to move.

TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

Neither right nor left mirror operates

- Also cigarette lighter does not operate
 Check fuse.
- 2) Cigarette lighter operates
 - Check remote-controlled mirror switch.

BUMPER

M51ZAANa



TSB Revision

<u>51-7</u>



Pre-removal and Post-installation Rear Operation *Removal and Installation of Trunk Rear Trim and Trunk Side Trim (Refer to GROUP 52–Trims.) 19-28 Nm 14-20 ft.lbs. 19-28 Nm 14-20 ft.ibs. 13 14 6 16 ê 15 ,)) 🗬 12 10 œ 17 -11 18A0772 Rear bumper removal steps 10. Rear side markers 11. Rear bumper face coupling bolt(s) 12. Rear bumper face coupling bolt(s)

- Rear bumper reinforcement coupling bolt
 Rear bumper reinforcement coupling nut <FWD>
- 15. Rear bumper stay plates <FWD>16. Rear bumper stay reinforcement <AWD>
- 17. Rear bumper assembly







SERVICE POINTS OF DISASSEMBLY

4. REMOVAL OF CLIP

Using a scraper or similar tool, slightly lift up the clip and then remove the screw to the top.

SERVICE POINTS OF REASSEMBLY

15. ADHESION OF FRONT BUMPER **MOULDING/21**. REAR BUMPER **MOULDING**

- (1) Use isopropyl alcohol to clean away any oil or grease from the bumper moulding installation surface of the bumper.
- (2) Peel away the paper from the bumper moulding, and then install the bumper moulding so that it is aligned with the groove for bumper moulding installation.



FRONT GRILLE

M51RCACa



GARNISHES

51-13



18A0193

18A0246

SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

5. REMOVAL OF SIDE GARNISH

(1) Using a plastic trim tool, pry the side garnish to remove it.

(2) Apply isopropyl alcohol to the adhesive adhering at the body side, and then remove the adhesive by using a plastic trim tool.

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

5. INSTALLATION OF SIDE GARNISH

- (1) Clean away oil and grease from the body side installation surfaces by using isopropyl alcohol.
- (2) If the side garnish is to be reused, install by following the steps below.
 - ① Remove the both-side tape remaining on the side garnish.
 - ② Heat the adhesive surface of the both-side tape on the side garnish to about 40-80°C (104-176°F).
 - ③ Attach the specified both-side tape to the side garnish where shown in the figure.
 - Specified both-side tape: 3M ATD Part No. 6382 or 3M ATD Part No. 6383 or equivalent
 - ④ Apply a coating of dry adhesive to the adhesivecoated part where shown in the figure.

NOTE

Scrape off the old adhesive slightly and apply a coating of new adhesive on the remaining old adhesive.

(5) Heat the side garnish and the surface of the body where it will be installed to about 40-80°C (104–176°F).

6 Install the side garnish to the body.

- (3) If a new side garnish is to be used, install by following the steps below.
 - ① Peel off the paper from the both-side tape of the side garnish, and apply a coating of dry adhesive where shown in the figure.
 - 2 Heat the side garnish and the surface of the body where it will be installed to about 40-80°C (104–176°F).
 - ③ Install the side garnish to the body.

TSB Revision

18A047









MOULDINGS

1.

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



Pre-removal and Post-installation Operation *Removal and Installation of Rear Panel Garnish (Refer to P.51-13.)



M51REAGa



SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL 8. REMOVAL OF SIDE PROTECT MOULDING

(1) Using a plastic trim tool, remove the side protect moulding.

(2) Apply isopropyl alcohol to the adhesive adhering at the body side, and then remove the adhesive by using a





SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

plastic trim tool.

8. INSTALLATION OF SIDE PROTECT MOULDING

- (1) Clean away oil and grease from the body side and protect moulding installation surfaces by using iso-propyl alcohol.
- (2) If the side protect moulding is to be reused, install by following the steps below.
 - ① Remove the both-side tape remaining on the side protect moulding.
 - ② Heat the adhesive surface of the both-side tape on the side protect moulding to about 40-80°C (104-176°F).
 - ③ Attach the specified both-side tape (of the size shown in the figure) to the side protect moulding where shown in the figure.

Specified both-side tape: **3M** ATD Part No.6382 or **3M** ATD Part No. 6383 or equivalent

④ Apply a coating of dry adhesive to the adhesivecoated part where shown in the figure. NOTE

Scrape off the old adhesive slightly and apply a coating of new adhesive on the remaining old adhesive.

- S Heat the side protect moulding and the surface of the body where it will be installed to about 40–80°C (104–176°F).
- 6 Install the side protect moulding to the body.





- ① Peel off the paper from the both-side tape of the side protect moulding, and apply a coating of dry adhesive where shown in the figure.
- ② Heat the side protect moulding and the surface of the body where it will be installed to about 40–80°C (104–176°F).
- ③ Install the side protect moulding to the body.

2. INSTALLATION OF FRONT WINDSHIELD MOULDING

Prepare a tool such as that shown in the figure and use it to scrape away the old adhesive from the clip installation locations and the corner joint parts; then apply a coating of new adhesive, and install the moulding.

NOTE

- (1) At the clip A location, fit together the moulding and the tab of clip A; at the clip B location, pressing the clip B firmly so that the tab is securely attached at the lower edge of the glass, as shown in the figure.
- (2) If the moulding clip stud is damaged, refer to GROUP 42-Windshield.

Caution

- 1. lake care not to damage the glass or the body.
- 2. For information concerning the adhesive, refer to GROUP 42-Windshield.

1. INSTALLATION OF ROOF DRIP MOULDING

Peel off the paper from the both-side tape, and install the roof drip moulding.

NOTE

The ends of the roof drip moulding tend to loosed easily, so apply manual pressure.



AERO PARTS





SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

- 1. REMOVAL OF SIDE AIR DAM
 - (1) Using a plastic trim tool, remove the side air dam.

(2) Apply isopropyl alcohol to the adhesive adhering at the body side, and then remove the adhesive by using a plastic trim tool.

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

1. INSTALLATION OF SIDE AIR DAM

- (1) Clean away oil and grease from the body side installation surfaces by using isopropyl alcohol.
- (2) If the side air dam is to be reused, install by following the steps below.
 - (1) Remove the both-side tape remaining on the side air dam.
 - (2) Heat the adhesive surface of the both-side tape on the side air dam to about 40-80°C(104-176°F).
 - ③ Attach the specified both-side tape to the side air dam where shown in the figure.

Specified both-side tape: **3M** ATD Part No.6382 or **3M** ATD Part No. 6383 or equivalent

④ Apply a coating of dry adhesive to the adhesivecoated part where shown in the figure. NOTE

Scrape off the old adhesive slightly and apply a coating of new adhesive on he remaining old adhesive.

- (5) Heat the side air dam and the surface of the body where it will be installed to about 40-80°C (104-176°F).
- 6 Install the side air dam to the body.
- (3) If a new side spoiler is to be used, install by following the steps below.
 - Peel off the paper from the both-side tape of the side air dam, and apply a coating of dry adhesive where shown in the figure.
 - ② Heat the side air dam and the surface of the body where it will be installed to about 40-80°C (104-176°F).
 - ③ Install the side air dam to the body.

WINDSHIELD WIPER AND WASHER < MODELS EQUIPPED WITH ETACS>

COMPONENTS LOCATION

Name	Symbol
ETACS control unit	А







TROUBLESHOOTING GUIDE (VEHICLE-SPEED-RESPONSE TYPE INTERMITTENT WIPERS, MIST WIPERS, AND WASHER-INTERLOCKED WIPERS) INPUT CHECK (ETACS-EQUIPPED MODELS ONLY)

Using the scan tool, check whether or not the input signals from each switch are input to the electronic control unit.

- (1) Connect the scan tool to the data link connector located at the right side of the junction block.
- (2) With the ignition switch at the "ACC" position, select the special test of the tester.
- (3) Check to be sure that the buzzer of the scan tool sounds one time when each of the switches or sensor listed below is activated.

If the buzzer sounds, the input signal is being input to the electronic control unit, so that switch or sensor can be considered to be functioning normally; if, however, the buzzer does not sound, there is an abnormal condition of that switch or sensor, or of the wiring, so a check should be made.

- Ignition switch
- Wiper switch (AUTO)
- Intermittent variable-volume switch
- Washer switch
- Vehicle-speed sensor

NOTE

When checking the vehicle-speed sensor, follow the sequence described below.

- (1) Jack up the front end.
- (2) Rotate the tyres in the forward direction.

TROUBLESHOOTING QUICK-REFERENCE TABLE (PROBLEMS RELATED TO THE ETACS ONLY)

VEHICLE-SPEED-RESPONSE TYPE INTERMITTENT WIPERS

Problem	Probable cause (s)	Checking procedure	Remedy
The wipers don't operate when the wiper switch is set to the "AUTO" position. (The wipers do operate, however, when the wiper switch is set to the "1" (low speed) position.)	Damage or disconnec- tion of the wiring of the , wiper switch (AUTO) in- put circuit. Damage or disconnec- tion of the wiring of the wiper switch ("AUTO").	If a malfunction is disco- vered as a result of the checking of the input (P.51-20), conduct check No.3 (P.51-25) of the individual part and circuit	Repair the wiring har- ness, or replace the Co umn switch.
	, Damage or disconnec- tion of the wiring of the ignition switch input cir- cuit.	If a malfunction is disco- vered as a result of the checking of the input (P.51-20), conduct check No. 2 (P.51-24) of the individual part and circuit	Repair the wiring har- ness.
	I Damage or disconnec- tion of the wiring of the wiper relay activation cir- , cuit.	Conduct check No. 6 (P.51-28) of the indi- vidual part and circuit.	Repair the wiring har- ness, or replace the wir er relay.
	Malfunction of the wiper relay.		
	Malfunction of the elec- tronic control unit.		Replace the electronic control unit.
The wipers don't stop when the viper switch is switched OFF. This problem occurs at the low	Short-circuit in the wiper switch ("AUTO") input circuit.	If a malfunction is disco- vered as a result of the checking of the input	Repair the wiring har- ness, or replace the col- umn switch.
NOTE f the wipers continue operating	Short-circuit in the wiper switch ("AUTO").	No.3(P.51-25) of the vidual part and circuit.	
without stopping) at the "2" posi- ion (high speed) of the wiper witch, there is a short-circuit in he circuit at the wiper motor high-	Short-circuit in the wiper relay activation circuit.	Conduct check No. 6 (P.51-28) of the indi- vidual part and circuit.	Repair the wiring har- ness.
peed side.	Malfunction of the elec-		Replace the electronic control unit.
Vhen the wiper switch is set to he "AUTO" position, the wipers perate continuously at low speed,	Short-circuit in the wiper ^I I switch ("AUTO") input circuit.	f a malfunction is disco- vered as a result of the checking of the input	Repair the wiring har- ness, or replace the col- umn switch.
The wipers stop, however, when ne wiper switch is set to "OFF".)	Short-circuit in the wiper switch ("AUTO").	No.3 (P.51-25) of the individual part and circuit./	
	Malfunction of the elec-		Replace the electronic control unit.

Problem	Probable cause (s)	Checking procedure	Remedy	
The intermittent time does not change when the intermittent vari- able volume switch setting is changed. (The vehicle speed is a constant speed.)	Damage or disconnec- tion of the wiring of the intermittent variable volume switch input cir- cuit.	If a malfunction is discovered as a result of the checking of the input (P.51-20), conduct check No. 4 (P.51-26) of the individual part and circuit	Repair the wiring har- ness, or replace the col- umn switch.	
speeu.)	Damage or disconnec- tion of the wiring of the intermittent variable volume switch.			
	Malfunction of the elec- tronic control unit.		Replace the electronic control unit.	
The wipers' intermittent time does not change according to changes in the vehicle speed. (The intermittent variable volume switch setting is fixed.)	Damage or disconnec- tion of the wiring of the vehicle-speed sensor in- put circuit, or a short- circuit.	If a malfunction is disco- vered as a result of the checking of the input (P.51-20), conduct check No. 5 (P.51-27) of the in- clividual part and circuit	Repair the wiring har- ness, or replace the vehicle-speed sensor	
	Malfunction of the vehicle-speed sensor.			
	Malfunction of the elec- tronic control unit.		Replace the electronic control unit.	

MIST WIPERS/WASHER-INTERLOCKED WIPERS

Problem	Probable cause (s)	Checking procedure	Remedy
The wipers do not function when the washer switch is switched ON for 0.6 second or longer. (With the wiper switch at the	Damage or disconnec- tion of the wiring of the washer switch input cir- cuit.	If a malfunction is discovered as a result of the checking of the input $(P.51-20)$, conduct check	Repair the wiring har- ness, or replace the washer switch.
"AUTO" position, nowever, inter- mittent operation of the wipers is normal, and the washer function is normal.)	Damage or disconnec- tion of the wiring of the washer switch.	individual part and circuit.	
	Malfunction of the elec- tronic control unit.	_	Replace the electronic control unit.
The wipers do not function when the washer switch is switched ON for less than 0.6 second. (The wipers and washer do func- tion, however, when the washer switch is switched ON for 0.6 second or longer.)	Malfunction of the elec- tronic control unit.		Replace the electronic control unit.

ş

NOTE

The "ECU" (electronic control unit) indicates the ETACS control unit.

CHECKING THE INDIVIDUAL PART AND CIRCUIT



Operation Description

The battery supplies a stabilized 5V power supply to the electronic control unit, via the constant-voltage circuit and terminal (36) (which is directly connected to the battery).

Electronic Control Unit Terminal Voltage (Connection Status of Electronic Control Unit Connector)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Status	Terminal voltage
36	Electronic control unit power supply	At all times	Battery posi- tive voltage

Checking the Ground Circuit (Disconnect the Connector and Check at the Wiring Harness Side)

ESU Terminal No.	Connected to/measured M	asuremment Tester d Check coadition	r	d
29	ECU ground	Resistance , 29-ground , At all times	ļ	Continuity
30	ECU ground	Resistance 30-ground At all times	į	Continuity

_TSB_Revision

2. IGNITION SWITCH INPUT CIRCUIT



Operation Description

As the condition for operation of the system, HIGH-level signals are sent to the electronic controlunit when the ignition switch is set to the "ACC" or "ON" position.

Electronic Control Unit Terminal Voltage (Disconnect the ECU Connector and Check at the Wiring Harness Side.)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Status		Standard
7 Ignition switch (ACC)			OFF	0V
	Ignition switch	ACC	Battery posi- tive voltage	

Checking Individual Part

Ignition switch: Refer to GROUP 54-Ignition switch.

. WIPER SWITCH "AUTO" INPUT CIRCUIT Vehicle-speed-response operation circuit 5V ETACS control unit (ECU) ٨٨/ 10 ٩ BΥ 17 OFF Wiper switch AUTO 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 B 1011121314151617181920 13 10<u>2-8</u>-16A0327

Operation Description

When the wiper switch is set to the "AUTO" position, LOW-level signals are input to the electronic control unit; the vehicle-speed-response operation circuit is then activated, and the wipers operate at the intermittent time interval according to the setting of the intermittent variable volume switch and the speed of the vehicle.

Electronic Control Unit Terminal Voltage (Connection Status of Electronic Control Unit Connector)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Status	Terminal voltage
10 Wiper switch "AUTO" signal		Wiper switch "OFF"	5V
	Wiper switch "AUTO"	0 V	

Checking the Wiper Switch ("AUTO" Position) Circuit (Disconnect the ECU Connector and Check at the Wiring Harness Side.)

ECU terminal No.	Connected to/measured component	Measurement	Tester connection	Check condition	Standard
10 Wiper swite	Winer owitch "AUTO"	AUTO" Resistance	1 O-ground	Wiper switch "OFF"	No continuity
	wiper switch AUTO			Wiper switch "AUTO"	Continuity

Checking Individual Part

Wiper switch: Refer to GROUP 54--Column Switch.

4. INTERMITTENT VARIABLE VOLUME SWITCH INPUT CIRCUIT



Electronic Control Unit and Check at the Wiring Harness Side.)

ECU terminal No.	Connected to/measure component	d Measurement Tester connection	Check condition	Standard
1	Intermittent variable volume switch	Resistance I-ground	"FAST" → "SLOW" (Should change in accord- ance with changes of the intermittent variable volume.)	$0 \rightarrow 1 k\Omega$

Checking Individual Part

Intermittent variable volume switch: Refer to GROUP 54-Column Switch.

5. VEHICLE-SPEED SENSOR INPUT CIRCUIT





Operation Description

The vehicle-speed sensor is the reed-switch type of sensor; it outputs four pulse signals for each rotation of the transmission's output gear (speedometer cable) and inputs those pulses to the vehicle-speed detection circuit of the electronic control unit.

Electronic Control Unit Terminal Voltage (Connection Status of Electronic Control Unit Connector)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Status	Terminal voltage
		When ON	0∀
4	Vehicle-speed sensor signal	Vehicle-speed sensor When OFF	8V

Checking the Vehicle-speed Sensor Circuit (Disconnect the Connector of the Electronic Control Unit and Check at the Wiring Harness Side.)

ECU Connected to/measured terminal No. component ,	Measurement Tester connection	[!] Check condition	Standard
4 Vehicle-speed sensor	Resistance 4-ground	, (1) Jack up the front end. (2) Rotate the tyres in the forward direction.	Repeats "Continuity ↑↓ No continuity"

Checking Individual Part

Vehicle-speed sensor: Refer to GROUP 54--Meters and Gauges.

EXTERIOR – Windshield Wiper and Washer



Operation Description

With the wiper switch at the "AUTO" position, switch ON the transistor (by the intermittent activation signal from the electronic control unit) in order to activate the wiper relay.

Electronic Control Unit Terminal Voltage (Connection Status of Electronic Control Unit Connector)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Status		Terminal voltage
		Wiper switch	Ignition switch "OFF"	0V
27	vviper relay signal	"OFF"	Ignition switch "ACC"	Battery posi- tive voltage

Checking Individual Part

Wiper relay: Refer to P.51-32.

7. WASHER SWITCH INPUT CIRCUIT



Operation Description

While the washer switch is ON, HIGH-level signals are sent to the washer switch ON-time detection circuit simultaneous with the activation of the washer motor, thus causing the transistor to be switched ON and the wipers to be activated for a certain fixed time.'

Electronic Control Unit Terminal Voltage (Connection Status of Electronic Control Unit Connector)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Status		Terminal voltage
35	Washer switch signal	Ignition switch "ACC"	Washer switch "OFF"	0V
			Washer switch "ON"	Battery posi- tive voltage

Checking Individual Part

Washer switch: Refer to GROUP 54--Column Switch.






SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

7. REMOVAL OF WIPER MOTOR

Loosen the wiper motor assembly mounting bolts, and then remove the wiper motor assembly.

Disconnect the linkage and the motor assembly, and then remove the linkage.

Caution

Because the installation angle of the crank arm and the motor has been set, do not remove them unless it is necessary to do so. If they must be removed, remove them only after marking their mounting positions.



INSPECTION WIPER MOTOR

Check the wiper motor after first disconnecting the wiring harness connector, and with the wiper motor remaining installed to the body.

Operation of Wiper Motor at LOW speed

Connect a battery to the wiper motor as shown in the illustration and inspect motor operation at LOW speed.

Operation of Wiper Motor at HIGH speed

Connect a battery to the wiper motor as shown in the illustration and inspect motor operation at HIGH speed.

Operation of Wiper Motor at STOP Position

- (1) Run the wiper motor at LOW speed, disconnect the battery, and stop the motor.
- (2) Reconnect the battery as shown in the illustration, and confirm that after the motor starts turning at LOW speed, it stops at the automatic stop position.



WIPER AND WASHER SWITCH

Remove the instrument under cover and column cover.
 Disconnect the column switch connector and check the continuity between the terminals for each switch



NOTE

- (1) O indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.
 (2) The *¹ symbol indicates models equipped with the intermittent wipers.
- (3) The *² symbol indicates models equipped with the ETACS.



WIPER RELAY (models equipped with ETACS)

- (1) Remove the wiper relay from the cowl top.
- (2) Check for continuity between the terminals when battery voltage is applied between terminals (2) and (5).



 $(1) \bigcirc \bigcirc$ indicates that there is continuity between the terminals. $(2) \oplus \dotsb \bigcirc$ indicates terminals to which battery voltage is applied.

DOOR MIRROR REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION





INSPECTION REMOTE-CONTROLLED MIRROR ASSEMBLY

1. Check to be sure that the mirror moves as described in the table when each terminal is connected to the battery.

Connection	Battery		Terminal		
Direction	(+)	(—)	1	2	3
UP	<u> </u>	0			0
DOWN	0	0	0		-0
RIGHT	0	0		0	0
LEFT	0	0		0	0

NOTE

G-O indicates that each terminal is connected to the battery.



REMOTE-CONTROLLED MIRROR SWITCH

INSPECTION **REMOTE-CONTROLLED MIRROR SWITCH**

Operate switches and check for continuity between terminals.

Terminal		Left side			Right side					
Direction	2	3	4	5	6	1	3	4	5	7
UP		0 -	0-	-0	ю	0	ю	0	-0	
DOWN		0-		-0	_	0 —	0 -		-0	
LEFT	0 —	0 -	_	-0			0		0	_
RIGHT	0-	-0		-0			0 -		-0	-0

NOTE

G-O indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.

52-1

M52AA--

INTERIOR

CONTENTS

FLOOR CONSOLE	29
FRONT SEAT	35
HEADLINING	31
INSTRUMENT PANEL	22
REAR SEAT	37

SEAT BELT	39
SPECIFICATIONS	2
Torque Specifications	2
TRIMS	33
TROUBLESHOOTING	3

SPECIFICATIONS

TORQUE SPECIFICATIONS

M52CC--

Items	Nm	ft.lbs.
Tilt bracket installation bolts	8-12	6-9
Front seat belt sash guide attaching bolt	35-55	25-40
Rear seat belt anchor plate attaching bolt	35-55	25-40
Front seat mounting bolts (rear)	35-55	25-40
Front seat mounting nuts (front)	24-36	17-26
Rear seatback attaching bolts (side)	4 - 6	3 - 4
Rear seatback attaching bolt (center)	17-26	12-19
Front seat belt retractor bracket and anchor bracket attaching bolt	35-55	25-40
Front seat inner belt attaching bolt (buckle side)	35-55	25-40
Automatic seat belt <from 1990="" models=""></from>		
Guide rail mounting bolt (A), (B)	8-10	6 - 7
Guide rail mounting bolt (C)	35-55	25-40
Guide rail mounting bolt (D)	16-23	12-16
Outer casing mounting bolt	8–10	6 - 7
Motor mounting bolt	8-10	6 - 7
Retractor (for lap belt) mounting bolt	35-55	25-40
Guide ring mounting bolt	16-23	12-16
Buckle mounting bolt (8×20 mm bolt)	16-23	12-16
Buckle mounting bolt (7/16 in. $ imes$ 25 mm bolt)	35-55	25-40
Control unit mounting bolt	4 - 6	3 - 4
Bracket mounting bolt (front)	16-23	12-16
Bracket mounting bolt (side)	35-55	25-40
Rear seat center belt mounting bolt	35-55	25-40
Rear seat belt sash guide attaching bolt	35-55	25-40

TROUBLESHOOTING



OPERATION

Key-reminder warning

- Battery voltage is always supplied, through sub fusible link No. 1, to the key-reminder switch.
- When the driver's seat door is opened while the ignition key is still in the key cylinder, the door switch is switched ON, electricity flows to sub fusible link No. 1, the key-reminder switch, the buzzer, the door switch, and ground, and the buzzer sounds.

Seat belt warning

- Battery voltage is applied, through fuse No. 9, to the seat belt timer when the ignition key is at the "ON" position.
- Electricity flows to sub fusible link No. 1, the key-reminder switch, the seat belt warning light, the seat belt timer, and ground, and the seat belt warning light illuminates for approx. 6 seconds.
- If the driver does not buckle the seat belt, the seat belt switch is switched ON, electricity flows to sub fusible link No. 1, the key-reminder switch, the buzzer, the seat belt switch, the seat belt warning timer, and ground, and the buzzer sounds for approx. 6 seconds.
- When the driver buckles the seat belt, the seat belt switch is switched OFF and the buzzer stops.

TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

Key-reminder warning

The key-reminder warning doesn't sound.

- (1) The seat belt warning function is OK.Check the door switch.
- (2) The seat belt warning also doesn't function.Check the buzzer.

Seat belt warning

- 1. The seat belt warning doesn't function.
 - (1) The seat belt warning light illuminates.Check the seat belt switch.
 - (2) The seat belt warning light also does not function (but the key-reminder warning functions normally).
 - Check the seat belt timer.
 - (3) The seat belt warning light also does not function (and the key-reminder warning also does not function).
 - Check the key-reminder switch.
- 2. The buzzer doesn't stop even though the driver's seat belt has been buckled.
 - Check the seat belt switch.
- 3. The seat belt warning light doesn't illuminate (but the buzzer sounds).
 - Check the light bulb.



AUTOMATIC SEAT BELT

CIRCUIT DIAGRAM (CONTINUED)





AUTOMATIC SEAT BELT



INTERIOR - Troubleshooting

Trouble symptom	Cause	Check method	Remedy		
Driver's and/or front passenger's	Fuse blown or disconnected	Check fuse ①	Replace or reconnect the fuse		
function	Open harness wire or disconnected connector	Check using check charts I	No. 1, 3 and 5		
	Defective switch	Check using check chart N	o. 5		
	Defective motor	Check using check chart N	0. 3		
	Defective relay	Check using check chart N	0. 3		
	Defective control unit		Replace the control unit		
	Defective driving device	-	Replace the driving device assembly		
Narning light does not	Fuse blown or disconnected	Check fuse 🕦	Replace or reconnect the fuse		
lash	Open harness wire or disconnected connector	Check using check charts N	No. 1, 2, 4 and 5		
	Defective switch	Check using check charts N	lo. 2, 4 and 5		
	Warning light bulb blown or in poor contact	Check using check chart No	0. 2		
	Defective control unit	_	Replace the control unit		
Buzzer does not ound	Fuse blown or disconnected	Check fuse ①	Replace or reconnect the fuse		
	Defective buzzer	Refer to inspection section (P.52-45).	Replace the buzzer		
	Open harness wire or disconnected connector	Check using check chart No. 2			
	Defective control unit		Replace the control unit		
he slide anchor oes not move from re "fasten" range nto "release"	Defective driving device, or problem in electrical circuit	Try to move the slide anchor in both directions by hand	If the slide anchor does not move: Replace the driving device assembly		
release" range into 'felease" range			If the slide anchor moves: Check using check charts No. 1, 2, 3 and 5		
lide anchor moves 20 slowly	Foreign matter in guide rail	-	Clean or replace the driving device assembly		
lide anchor stops alfway	Defective retractor (remains in locked state)	Check retractor operation when both pulling out and retracting belt	Replace the retractor (for shoulder belt)		
	Defective driving device or problem in electrical circuit	Try to move the slide anchor in both directions by hand	If the slide anchor does not move: Replace the driving device assembly		
			If the slide anchor moves: Check using check charts No. 1, 3 and 5		

TSB Revision

<u>52-9</u>

CHECKING CIRCUIT

Index of Check Chart

Chart No.	Circuit name	Page No.
1	Control unit power supply and ground circuit	52-10
2	Warning light, key reminder switch, buzzer circuit	52-11
3	Release switch (driver's side), buckle switch, outer switch circuit	52-14
4	Door latch switch, fasten switch, release switch (passenger's side) circuit	52-16
5	Motor power supply and drive circuit	52-19

1. Control Unit Power Supply and Ground Circuit

<From 1991 models>

ł

•

-

,

.



.....





INTERIOR – Troubleshooting

	Check method		Jud	gement					
Step	Operation	Check object	Normal	Malfunction	Cause	Remedy			
Warni	Warning light								
1	Unplug the warning light connector Ignition switch: ON	Terminal voltage of warning light harness side connector (10–Ground)	Battery positive voltage	0 V	Open harness wire or disconnected connector between junction block and combination meter	Repair the harness or plug in the connector correctly			
2	Connect the warning light connector. Unplug the connector from the control unit	Terminal voltage of control unit harness side connector (IO-Ground)	Battery positive voltage	0 V	Open harness wire or disconnected connector between combination meter and control unit	Repair the harness or plug in the connector correctly			
	Ignition switch: ON				Warning light bulb blown or in poor contact	Replace or correctly install the warning light			
Cey re	minder switch								
1	Disconnect the key reminder switch connector.	Terminal voltage of key reminder switch harness side connector (1 -Ground, 3Ground)	Battery positive voltage	0 V	Open harness wire or disconnected connector between junction block and key reminder switch	Repair the harness or plug in the connector correctly			
2	2 Plug the key reminder switch connector. Unplug the connector from the control unit.	Plug the key reminder switch connector. Unplug the connector from the control unit. Terminal voltage of control unit harness side connector (13–Ground, 12–Ground)	13–Ground: Battery positive voltage	o v	Open harness wire or disconnected connector between key reminder switch and control unit	Repair the harness or plug in the connector correctly			
	from the ignition switch.	m the ignition itch.		A voltage same as or lower than battery positive voltage	Defective key reminder switch	Check the key reminder switch. (Refer to GROUP 54–Ignition Switch.)			
3	Insert the key.	Terminal voltage of control unit harness side connector	13–Ground: ov	A voltage same as or lower than battery positive voltage	Defective key reminder switch	Check the key reminder switch. (Refer to GROUP 54–Ignition Switch.)			
	(13 12-	(13—Ground, 12—Ground)	12–Ground: Battery positive voltage	o v	Open harness wire or disconnected connector between key reminder switch and control unit	Repair the harness or plug in the connector correctly			
uzzer	uzzer								
1	Unplug the buzzer connector.	Terminal voltage of harness side connector (1-Ground)	Battery positive voltage	0 V	Open harness wire or disconnected connector between junction block and buzzer	Repair the harness or plug in the connector correctly			
2	Plug in the buzzer connector. Unplug the connector from the control unit	Terminal voltage of control unit harness side connector (20-Ground)	Battery positive voltage	0 V	Open harness wire or disconnected connector between buzzer and control unit	Repair the harness or plug in the connector correctly			

TSB Revision

52-13

3. Release Switch (driver's side), Buckle Switch, Outer Switch Circuit



Char	Check method		Judgement		Causa	Pomodu	
Step	Operation	Check of	oject	Normal	Malfunction	Cause	Remedy
Releas	e switch (driver's side	:)					
1	Unplug the "release" switch connector.	e Terminal-to-ground 0 Ω switch continuity of "release" switch harness side connector		ω Ω	Open harness wire or disconnected connector between "release" switch and ground	Repair the harness or plug in the connector correctly	
		(1-Ground)				Improper ground connection	Correctly connect to ground
2	Plug in the "release" switch connector.		round	0 $Ω$ when slide anchor is not in the "release" (switch ΩN) range	Remains O Ω or $\infty \Omega$	Defective "release" switch	Replace the driving device assembly. (Refer to P.52-42.)
	connector from the control unit. Move the slide anchor	plug the harness side nnector from the ntrol unit. Move slide anchor		$\infty \Omega$ when slide anchor is in the "release" (switch OFF) range.		Open harness wire or disconnected connector between control unit and "release" switch	Repair the harness or plug in the connector correctly.
			TSB	Revision			

INTERIOR - Troubleshooting

Char	Check	method	Judą	gement					
Step	Operation	Check object	Normal	Malfunction	Cause	Remedy			
Buckle	Buckle switch								
1	Unplug the connector from the buckle switch.	Terminal-to-ground continuity of buckle switch barness side	0 Ω	∞ Ω	Open harness wire between buckle switch and ground	Repair the harness			
		connector (2–Ground)			Improper ground connection	Correctly connect to ground			
2	Plug in the buckle switch connector. Unplug the connector from the	Terminal-to-ground continuity of control unit harness side connector	Ο Ω	∞Ω	Open harness wire between control unit and buckle switch	Repair the harness			
	Leave the lap belt unfastened (buckle switch ON).	(2-Ground)			Defective buckle switch	Replace the buckle. (Refer to P.52-42.)			
)uter :	switch								
1	Unplug the connector from the outer switch	Terminal-to-ground continuity of outer switch harness side, connector	0 Ω	Ω∞	Open harness wire between outer switch and ground	Repair the harness			
	side connector L.H. (2–Ground) R.H. (4–Ground)			Improper ground connection	Correctly connect to ground				
2	Pull out and retract the shoulder belt	Terminal-to-ground continuity of outer switch side connector L.H. (1–2) R.L. (3–4)	$\infty \Omega$ from the belt's fully retracted position until belt is pulled out approx. midway (outer switch OFF) 0 Ω from the approx. midway pulled out position until belt is pulled out fully (outer switch ON)	Resistance remains 0Ω or $\infty \Omega$ or changes from 0Ω to $\infty \Omega$ or from $\infty \Omega$ to 0Ω at points other than the approx. midway pulled out position	Defective outer switch	Replace the retractor (for shoulder belt) (Refer to P.52-43.)			
3	Attach the shoulder belt to the slide anchor outer switch ON). Plug in the connector to the outer switch. Jnplug the connector from the control unit.	Terminal-to-ground continuity of control unit harness side connector L.H. (3–Ground) R.H. (14–Ground)	Ο Ω	∞Ω	Open harness wire between control unit and outer switch	Repair the harness			

52-15



(1) Driver's side

Cton	Check	Check method Judgement		ement	0	_
Step	Operation	Check object	Normal	Malfunction	Cause	Remedy
1	Unplug the door latch switch connector. Open and close the door	Continuity of door latch switch (2-3, 1–3)	Between terminals 2 and 3 0 Ω when door is open $\infty \Omega$ when door is closed Between terminals 1 and 3 $\infty \Omega$ when door is open 0 Ω when door is closed	Remains 0Ω or ∞Ω	Door latch switch damaged	Replace the door latch switch (Refer to P.52-42.)
2	-	Terminal-to-ground continuity of door latch switch harness side connector (3–Ground)	Ο Ω	Ω ∞	Open harness wire or disconnected connector between door latch switch and ground	Repair the harness or plug in the connector correctly
		(0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0			Improper ground connection	Correctly connect to ground
3	Connect the door latch switch connector. Unplug the connector from the control unit. Open and close the door.	Terminal-to-ground continuity of control unit harness side conrector (6–G.cund)	0 Ω when door is open $\infty \Omega$ when door is closed	Remains ΟΩor∞Ω	Open harness wire or disconnected connector between control unit and door latch switch	Replace the harness or plug in the connector correctly.
4	Unplug the "fasten" switch connector. Open and close the door.	Terminal-to-ground continuity of the "fasten" switch harness side connector (6–Ground)	$\infty \Omega$ when door is open 0 Ω when door is closed	Remains ΟΩor∞Ω	Open harness wire or disconnected connector between "fasten" switch and door latch switch	Repair the harness or plug in the connector correctly
5	Plug in the "fasten" switch connector. Close the door.	Terminal-to-ground continuity of control unit harness side connector (4–Ground)	$\infty \Omega$ when slide anchor is in the "fasten" range ("fasten" switch OFF) 0 Ω when slide anchor is not in the "fasten" range ("fasten" switch ON)	Remains 0Ωor∞Ω	Defective "fasten" switch	Replace the driving device assembly

52-17

(2) Passenger's side

0	Check	method	Judę	Judgement		Demody
Step	Operation	Check object	Normal	Malfunction	Cause	Remedy
1	Unplug the door latch switch connector. Open and close the door	Continuity of door latch switch (2-3, 1-3)	Between terminals 2 and 3 $\Omega \Omega$ when door is open $\infty \Omega$ when door is closed Between terminals 1 and 3 $\infty \Omega$ when door is open 0Ω when door is closed	Remains ΟΩor∞Ω	Door latch switch damaged	Replace the door latch switch (Refer to P.52-42.)
2	_	Terminal-to-ground continuity of the door latch switch harness side connector (3–Ground)	Ο Ω	∞ Ω	Open harness wire or disconnected connector between door latch switch and ground Improper ground connection	Repair the harness or plug in the connector correctly Correctly connect to ground
3	Connect the door latch switch connector. Unplug the connector from the "release" switch. Open and close the door.	Terminal-to-ground continuity of the "release" switch harness side connector (1 -Ground)	0 Ω when door is open $\infty \Omega$ when door is closed	Remains ΟΩor∞Ω	Open harness wire or disconnected connector between "release" switch and door latch switch	Repair the harness or plug in the connector correctly
4	Connect the "release" switch connector. Unplug the connector from the control unit. Open and close the door.	Terminal-to-ground continuity of control unit harness side connector (16–Ground)	0 Ω when door is open and slide anchor is not in the "release" range ("release" switch ON) $\infty \Omega$ when door is closed and slide anchor in the "release" range (''release'' switch OFF)	Remains OΩor∞Ω	Defective "release" switch Open harness wire or disconnected connector between control unit and "release" switch	Replace the driving device assembly. (Refer to P.52-42.) Repair the harness or plug in the connector correctly
5	Unplug the "fasten" switch connector. Open and close the door.	Terminal-to-ground continuity of the "fasten" switch harness side connector (6–Ground)	$\infty \Omega$ when door is open 0 Ω when door is closed	Remains OΩor∞Ω	Open harness wire or disconnected connector between "fasten" switch and door latch switch	Repair the harness or plug in the connector correctly.
6	Connect the "fasten" switch connector. Open and close the l door.	Terminal-to-ground continuity of control unit harness side connector 15–Ground)	0 Ω when door is closed and slide anchor is not in the "fasten" range ("fasten" switch ON) $\infty \Omega$ when door is closed and slide anchor is in the "fasten" range ("fasten" switch DFF)	Remains OΩor∞Ω	Defective "fasten" switch Open harness wire or disconnected connector between of control unit and 'fasten" switch	Replace the driving device assembly (Refer to P.52-42.) Repair the harness or plug in the connector correctly.



control unit

relay

Defective motor

Replace the driving

device assembly.

(Refer to P.52-42.)

TSB Revision

L.H.

R.H.

(8-Ground,

9-Ground)

(18-Ground,

19–Ground)

control unit.

AUTOMATIC SEAT BELT COMPONENTS LOCATION



Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
Automatic seat belt control unit	C Fa	isten switch	А
Automatic seat belt motor	I E	Key reminder switch	I I
Automatic seat belt motor relay	D	Outer switch	F
Buckle switch	G	Seat belt warning light	J
Buzzer	К	Release switch	н
Door latch switch	В	-	-



-

Ą

3





INSTRUMENT PANEL

For installation of the instrument panel, the bolts and screws described below are used. They are indicated by symbols in the illustration.

Symbol	Part name and shape	Size mm (in.)	Symbol	Part name and shape	Size mm (in.)
A	Tapping screw	D=5 (.20) L=16 (.63)		Tapping screw (Black)	D=5 (.20) L=20 (.79)
			Н		
·	18U0418			1800415	
В	Washer assembled screw	D=5 (.20) L=16 (.63)		Washer assembled	D=6 (.24) L=16 (.63)
	() 19W654			1800420	
	Tapping screw	D=5 (.20) L=25 (.98)		Washer assembled bolt (Black)	D=6 (.24) L=20 (.79)
С	() 19к653		J		
D	Tapping screw	D=5 (.20) L=20 (.79)		Washer assembled	D=8 (.31) L=20 (79)
			К		(,, c)
	1800418			U 18U0420	
E	bolt	D=8 (.31) L=25 (.98)		Tapping screw	D=5 (.20) L=12 (.47)
	1840 4 20		L	() 1111111 19K653	
F	Tapping screw	D=5 (.20) L=16 (.63)		Tapping screw (Black)	D=5 (.20)
		()	м		
	Tapping screw	D=5 (.20)		Tapping screw	D=4 (16)
G	(Black)	L=25 (.98)		(Black)	L=12(.47)
	19K652		N	1800415	

D=Thread diameter L=Effective thread length

M52UAAS

1

ţ

Symbol	Part name and shape	Size mm (in.)	Symbol	Part name and shape	Size mm (in.)
	Washer assembled bolt	D=5 (.20) L=16 (.63)		Tapping screw	D=5 (.20) L=12 (.47)
0			R		
Ρ	Washer assembled	D=5 (.20)		Machine screw	D=4 (.16)
	screw	L=12 (.47)	S	(Black)	L=10 (.39)
				1910128	
Q	Washer assembled screw (Black)	D=5 (.20) L=16 (.63)		Washer assembled screw	D=5 (.20) L=20 (.79)
			Т	18U0419	

D=Thread diameter

L=Effective thread length



TRIM CLIP REMOVAL/INSTALLATION PROCE-

The type of clip shown in the illustration, which is used for the installation of instrument panel, should be removed and installed by the following procedures described below.

- (1) Use a cross-tip (+) screwdriver to push inward the pin (at the centre of the trim clip) to a depth of about 2 mm (.08 in.).
- (2) Pull the trim clip outward to remove it.

Do not push the pin inward more than necessary because it may damage the grommet, or the pin may fall in, if pushed too far.

INSTALLATION

- (1) With the pin pulled out, insert the trim clip into the hole in the trim.
- (2) Push the pin inward until the pin's head is flush with the grommet.
- (3) Check whether the trim is secure.

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION





- 11. Ashtray 12. Knob
- 13. Heater control panel
- 14. Trip counter reset knob
- 15. Meter bezel
- 16. Combination meter
- 17. Speedometer cable adapter
 - 18. Combination meter wiring harness
 - connector connections
 - 19. Speaker garnishes
 - 20. Clock
 - 21. Heater control assembly installation screws
 - 22. Instrument panel mounting bolts

- 23. Coupling of the instrument panel wiring harness and the body wiring harness, and of the instrument panel wiring harness
- and the junction block 24. Coupling of the MFI control relay and the control wiring harness 25. Instrument panel assembly



SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

- 3. REMOVAL OF INSTRUMENT UNDER COVER ASSEMBLY $<\!$ 1989 models>
 - (1) Open the parcel box and apply force (by hand) at the inner side to remove the stopper; then tilt the parcel box forward.
 - (2) Remove the instrument under cover attaching screws, and remove the instrument under cover.

16. REMOVAL OF COMBINATION METER

- (1) Remove the installation screws, and then remove the combination meter by turning the upper part of the combination meter toward you.
- (2) For models with the automatic position indicator, remove the combination meter after first removing the harness connector.

17. REMOVAL OF SPEEDOMETER CABLE ADAPTER

- (1) Disconnect the speedometer cable at the transaxle endof the cable.
- (2) Pull the speedometer cable slightly toward the vehicle interior, release the lock by turning the adapter to the left or right, and then remove the adapter.

18. DISCONNECTION OF COMBINATION METER WIRING HARNESS CONNECTORS

Insert a flat-tip (-) screwdriver and open the tab of the connector, and then remove the harness connectors.







FLOOR CONSOLE

M52UBAR

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



DISASSEMBLY AND REASSEMBLY



HEADLINING

M52UDBB

52-31



INTERIOR – Headlining



ł

SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

8. REMOVAL OF ROOF RAIL TRIMS

Manually press downward at the clip positions, and then remove the roof rail trims.

11. REMOVAL OF FRONT HEADLINING TRIM / 12. REAR HEADLINING TRIM

Manually turn lip part at the clip positions in the direction shown in the illustration, remove the front or rear headlining trim.

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION 8. INSTALLATION OF ROOF RAIL TRIMS

Install the clips to body and then install the roof rail trim.


TRI M5

M52UCBI





.

FRONT SEAT

52-35

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION Pre-removal and Post-installation Operation <Type 1>35–55 Nm 25–40 ft.lbs. From 1990 models> Removal and Installation of Belt 7 Holder •Removal and Installation of Guide Ring (Refer to P.52-42.) 鶗 P 3 6 3 6 1 3 籔 Δ 4 35-55 Nm 25-40 ft.lbs. 24–36 Nm 17-26 ft.lbs. 19A0249 24---36 Nm 17-26 ft.lbs. 5 35-55 Nm 25–40 ft.lbs. <Type 2> 7 f 6 1 3 3 2 35-55 Nm 25-40 ft.lbs. 24–36 Nm 17-26 ft.lbs. **Removal steps** 24-36 Nm 17-26 ft.lbs. 5 1. Seat anchor covers Seat under tray Seat mounting bolts (rear) Seat mounting nuts (front) Connection for seat belt switch wiring 19A0217 а harness 6. Front seat assembly 7. Headrestraints



SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

4. INSTALLATION OF SEAT MOUNTING NUT (FRONT) / 3. SEAT MOUNTING BOLT (REAR)

After checking that the seat adjuster is locked at both sides, provisionally tighten (in the A,B,C and D sequence) the seat installation nuts and the seat installation bolts; then fully tighten at the specified torque.

1. INSTALLATION OF SEAT ANCHOR COVERS

- (1) Securely install the front side seat anchor forward tab to the front seat forward installation bracket.
- (2) Turn the seat anchor cover in the direction indicated by the arrow, and install the tab at the side part to the hole in the bracket side part.
- (3) Securely install the rear side seat anchor cover (outer side) rearward tab to the front seat rearward installation bracket (outer side).
- (4) Turn the seat anchor cover in the direction indicated by the arrow and insert the side tabs into the holes in the front seat rearward installation bracket side part.

(5) Insert the rear side seat anchor cover (inner side) from the rear to the front seat rearward installation bracket, and then attach each tab of the seat anchor cover to the bracket.

TSB Revision

REAR SEAT

M52UFAKa

5

3



- 5. Rear seatback tray

TSB Revision

52-37



SEAT BELT

M52UGBG





INTERIOR - Seat Belt

TIMER OPERATION CHECK

- (1) Connect the battery and the test bulb to the timer, as shown in the illustration.
- (2) Make sure that when terminal 2 is connected to the positive (+) terminal of the battery, test bulbs 1 and 2 are lighted for approx. 6 seconds.
- (3) Make sure that even when terminal 3 is disconnect while test bulbs 1 and 2 are lighted in (2) above, test bulb 1 remains lighted.

BUZZER

(1) Remove the buzzer from the instrument panel

(2) Remove the buzzer and check if it sounds when a battery voltage is applied across the buzzer terminals.

SEAT BELT SWITCH

- (1) Disconnect the seat belt switch connector.
- (2) Check the continuity between the terminals.

Terminal	1	2
Buckle unlock	0	0
Buckle lock		
NOTE \bigcirc indicates that there is continuity be	tween the t	erminals



SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

12. INSTALLATION OF INNER SEAT BELT

- (1) When installing the buckle side seat belt to the front seat, securely fit the projection of the stopper into the square hole of the seat adjuster.
- (2) For the driver's seat inner belt, secure the seat belt switch harness to the seat as follows.
 - (1) Pass the seat belt switch harness between the seat rail and seat pan.

② Secure the seat belt switch harness to the seat by using the band.

Caution

The marked part of the seat belt switch harness should be connected by the band.

- 8. INSTALLATION OF RETRACTOR BRACKET AND ANCHOR BRACKET ATTACHING BOLT / 7. RETRACTOR BRACKET ATTACHING SCREW
 - (1) Pass the anchor plate through the hole of the center pillar lower trim.
 - (2) Securely fit the projection of the retractor's stopper into the hole at the body side.
 - (3) Securely fit the notched part of the anchor plate to the projection of the retractor.

6. INSTALLATION OF BELT GUIDE

Securely fit the projection of the belt guide's stopper into the hole at the body side.







- 12. Guide ring
- 19. Console box assembly (Refer to P.52-29.)
- 20. Retractor bracket
- 21. Retractor assembly (for shoulder belt)
- 22. Automatic seat belt control unit
- 23. Retractor mounting bracket

- 12. Guide ring
- 19. Console box assembly (Refer to P.52-29.)
- 22. Automatic seat belt control unit

Buzzer removal steps

- Heater control panel (Refer to P.52-25.)
- 24. Buzzer



INSPECTION AUTOMATIC SEAT BELT MOTOR RELAY

- (1) Remove the automatic seat belt motor relay.
- (2) Check for continuity between terminals under the conditions described below.

Terminal Battery voltage	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Continuity no voltage	0-		-0-	0-	-0	-0-	00
Continuity with voltage	0-	-0		Θ		-⊕	
		0-	-0			⊕	-0

(1) O-O indicates that there is continuity between the terminals. $(2)\oplus -- \oplus$ indicates terminals to which battery voltage is applied.





2

ነ ነ

⇒: Terminal to check

outer switch (L.H.) Terminal to check outer switch (R.H.)

MOTOR, RELEASE SWITCH AND FASTEN SWITCH

- (1) Disconnect the automatic seat belt motor relay connector.
- (2) Connect the battery to the connector (shown in the figure) at the automatic seat belt motor relay harness side, and, as shown in the table below, check to be sure that the slide anchor functions normally, and also check for continuity of each switch.

Terminal Slide	Motor (Conn automa belt m relay	ector at atic seat otor harness)	Releas switch (Auton seat b conneo	e natic elt ctor)	Fasten (Autom seat b connec	switch natic elt ctor)
operation	1	3	1	2	4	6
Release position ∳ Fasten position	⊖	···· ⊕	0—	-0		
Fasten position Release position	 .	⊖			0—	_0

Caution

The slide anchor must be activated all the way to the fasten position or the release position, without stopping part way on the guide rail.

NOTE

- (1) \oplus ---- \ominus indicates terminals to which battery voltage is applied.
- (2) O-O indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.

OUTER SWITCH

- 1) Disconnect the outer switch connector.
- 2) Check for continuity between terminals when the shoulder belt is pulled out approximately 700 mm (28 in.) or more.

	Gradua	al pull-out of s	shoulder belt		
Condition					
Outer switch continuity	No	Yes			
 Point at which the shoulder belt is fully taken in. B: Point at which the outer switch is switched from OFF to ON. C: Point at which the shoulder belt is fully pulled out. 					

TSB Revision

19A0448

19P0361



DOOR LATCH SWITCH

Refer to GROUP 42-Front Door Handle and Latch.

BUCKLE SWITCH

- (1) Disconnect the buckle switch connector (L.H. only).
- (2) Check the continuity between the terminals.

Terminal	1	2
Buckle unlock	0	0
Buckle lock		

NOTE

O-O indicates that there is continuity between the terminal.

BUZZER

Check that buzzer sounds when battery voltage is applied to the buzzer terminal.



TSB Revision



SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

11. INSTALLATION OF SEAT BELT (TONGUE SIDE)

Securely fit the projection of the retractor into the body hole, and install the retractor to the body.

5. INSTALLATION OF SEAT BELT ANCHOR PLATE ATTACHING BOLTS

Install so that the anchor plate is within the range of the angle indicated in the illustration.

CHILD RESTRAINT FITTING

Install the anchorage for the child restraint system by removing the plug from the rear shelf trim and installing the child restraint fitting to the rear deck as shown in the illustration.

HEATER, AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION

CONTENTS

AIR CONDITIONING SWITCH	29
BLOWER ASSEMBLY	32
COMPRESSOR	38
CONDENSER AND CONDENSER FAN MOTOR	48
ENGINE COOLANT TEMPERATURE SWITCH	57
EVAPORATOR	34
HEATER CONTROL ASSEMBLY	25
HEATER UNIT	30
REFRIGERANT LINE	54
RESISTOR	28
SAFETY PRECAUTIONS	12
SERVICE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURES	13 17
Compressor Drive Belt Adjustment	17
Compressor Noise	23

Discharging the System	20
Handling Tubing and Fittings	22
Idle-up Operation Check	24
Performance Test	21
Power Relay Check	24
Refrigerant Leak Repair Procedure	21
Test Procedures	13
SPECIAL TOOL	3
SPECIFICATIONS	2
General Specifications	2
Lubricants	3
Sealant and adhesives	3
Service Specifications	2
Torque Specifications	3
TROUBLESHOOTING	4
VENTILATORS (AIR INLET AND AIR OUTLET)	56
VENTILATORS (INSTRUMENT PANEL AND FLOOR)	55

M55AA-

SPECIFICATIONS GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

M55CA-

M55CB--

Items		Specifications
Heater unit		
Туре		Three-way-flow full-air-mix system
Heater control assembly		Dial type
Compressor		
Model		Scroll type (FX105V)
Refrigerant unit lubricant	cm ³ (cu.in.) I	REOL S-83 or SUNISO 5GS 150–170 (9.1–10.3)
V-ribbed belt size	mm (in.)	<a-type>: 920 (36.2). <b-type>: 910 (35.8)</b-type></a-type>
Dual pressure switch		
High pressure switch	kPa (psi)	OFF: 2,700 (384) ON: 2,100 (299)
Low pressure switch	kPa (psi)	OFF: 210 (30) ON: 235 (33)
⁻ reezer prevention	°C (°F) A	ir temperature thermostat OFF: 3.2 (37.8) ON: 4.2 (39.6)
⁻ usible plug	°C (°F) E	urn out temperature 105 (221)
Refrigerant and quantrty	g (oz)	R-12 Approx. 936 (33.0)

SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS

Specifications Items Standard value Air thermo sensor and air inlet sensor standard kΩ resistance value Air thermo sensor 0°C (32°F) 11.4 10°C (50°F) 7.32 20°C (68°F) 4.86 2.32 30°C (86°F) 0.53 40°C (104°F) Air inlet sensor 0°C (32°F) 3.31 10°C (50°F) 2.00 20°C (68°F) 1.25 30°C (86°F) 0.81 40°C (104°F) 0.53 Air conditioning engine coolant temperature switch (for compressor magnetic clutch) °C (°F) 112-118 (233-244) OFF temperature Engine coolant temperature switch (for °C (°F) 100-104 (212-219) condenser fan motor) ON temperature mm (in.) Amount of V-ribbed belt deflection 5-5.5 (.20-.21) When new belt installed 6-7 (.23-.28) When used belt installed 0.4-0.6 (.015-.023) mm (in.) Clutch clearance

TORQUE SPECIFICATIONS

Items	Nm	ft.lbs.
Shaft nut (compressor)	15-17	11-12
Front housing installation bolt	11–13	8-9.4
Compressor bracket tightening bolt	45-55	33-39
Compressor tightening bolt (MI 0)	23-27	17-19
Tension pulley holding nut	24-28	18–20
Tension pulley assembly installation bolt	23-27	17-19
Air conditioning engine coolant temperature switch (for compressor		
magnetic clutch)	30-40	22-28
Engine coolant temperature switch (for condenser fan motor)	10-14	8-10

LUBRICANTS

Items	Specified lubricants	Quantity
Each connection of refrigerant line Shaft seal of the compressor	FREOL S-83 or SUNISO5GS	As required
Shaft seal plate of the compressor		

SEALANT AND ADHESIVES

Items	Specified sealant and adhesive
Engine coolant temperature switch threaded part	3M Nut Locking Part No.4171 or equivalent

SPECIAL TOOL

Tool	Number	Name	Use
	MB991 301	Felt installer	Installation of felt installation of bearing

TSB Revision

M55CD---

M55DA--

M55CE--

TROUBLESHOOTING

Symptom	Probable cause	Remedy	
Heater insufficient heat	Obstructed heater outlets	Correct	
	Blend air dampers improperly adjusted or binding		
	Thermostat malfunction	Replace	
	Obstructed heater hoses		
	Improperly adjusted control cables	Adjust	
	Plugged or partially plugged heater core	Clean or replace	
No ventilation even when	Incorrect adjustment of mode selection dampers	Adjust	
operated	Incorrect installation of mode selection control wire		
	Ducts are incorrectly/incompletely connected, crushed, bent or clogged.	Repair or replace	
Blower motor inoperative	Poor grounding	Correct	
	Burnt-out fuse	Replace	
	Malfunction blower switch	-	
	Malfunction resister		
	Malfunction blower motor		
	Malfunction heater relay		

TROUBLESHOOTING QUICK-REFERENCE TABLE



55-6 HEATER, AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION - Troubleshooting





Description of operation

(1) A negative-characteristic thermistor is employed for the refrigerant-temperature sensor, the airthermo sensor and the air-inlet sensor in order to convert the ambient temperature at the sensor part to resistance.

The sensor power-supply voltage (5V) of the auto compressor control unit is applied to each sensor.

The terminal voltages (of terminal (5), (23) and (26) of the auto compressor control unit) become voltage-divided values by the resistance value of each sensor and by the resistance within the auto compressor control unit. (2) The compressor operation mode changes (from OFF to ECONO to A/C...) each time the air conditioning switch is pressed.

When the air conditioning switch is pressed in to the first step, the mode is changed to the ECONO mode (the indicator illuminates in green), and the voltage at terminal (4) of the air conditioning switch becomes battery positive voltage.

When pressed in to the second step, the mode is changed to the air conditioning mode (the indicator illuminates in orange), and the voltage at terminal (2) of the air conditioning switch becomes battery positive voltage.

55-8 HEATER, AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION - Troubleshooting

- (3) The output (terminal ⁽⁶⁾) of the auto COMPRESsor control unit is output when all of the following conditions are satisfied.
 - (1) The air conditioning switch is ON (ECONO or A/C mode).
 - ② The air-thermo sensor ambient temperature (evaporator outlet air temperature) is

TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS Auto Compressor Control Unit Terminal Voltage

4°C(39°F) or higher.

- (3) The air-inlet sensor ambient temperature (evaporator intake air temperature) is 4°C (39°F) or higher.
- (4) The compressor discharge side refrigerant temperature is 175°C(347°F) or lower.

Terminal No.	Signal	Conditions	Terminal voltage
8/9	Auto compressor control unit ground	At all times	٥v
1	Auto compressor control unit power supply	When ignition switch is ON	Battery positive voltage
5	Refrigerant-temperature sensor ⊝	When air conditioning switch is OFF [Sensor temperature 25°C(58°F)]	Approx. 0.15V
6	Air conditioning compressor clutch relay	When all conditions for switch-ON of the compressor are satisfied	Battery positive voltage
12	Refrigerant-temperature sensor 🕀	At all times	5V

Air Conditioning Switch Terminal Voltage

Terminal No.	Signal	Conditions	Terminal voltage
1	Air conditioning switch power supply	Ignition switch: ON; blower switch: ON	Battery positive voltage
2	Air conditioning switch: A/C	When air conditioning switch pressed in to second step	Battery positive voltage
4	Air conditioning switch: ECONO	When air conditioning switch pressed in to first step	Battery positive voltage
5	Air conditioning switch ground	At all times	o v

Air-thermo Sensor Terminal Voltage

Term	ninal No.	Signal	Conditions	Tern	ninal voltage
	2	Air-thermo sensor 🕀	Ignition switch, blower switch and air conditioning switch: ON		5V

Air-Inlet Sensor Terminal Voltage

Terminal No.	Signal	Conditions	Terminal voltage
2	Air-inlet sensor 🕀	Ignition switch, blower switch and air conditioning switch: ON	5V

<Engine>



55-10 HEATER, AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION - Troubleshooting

Name	Symbol	Name	Symbol
Air conditioning compressor clutch relay	А	Air conditioning engine coolant temperature switch (for compressor magnetic clutch)	D
Air conditioning switch	н	Engine coolant temperature switch (for condenser fan motor)	D
Air-inlet sensor	E	Radiator fan motor relay (LO, HI)	А
Air-thermo sensor	G	Refrigerant-temperature sensor	В
Auto compressor control unit	F	Heater relay	I
Condenser fan motor relay (LO, HI)	С		

NOTE

The "Name" column is arranged in alphabetical order.



















SAFETY PRECAUTIONS

Μ55ΡΔΔΕ

R-12 refrigerant is a chloro-floro-carbon (CFC) that can contribute to the depletion of the ozone layer in the upper atmosphere.

Ozone filters out harmful radiation from the sun. To assist in protecting the ozone layer, Mitsubishi Motor Sales of America, Inc. recommends that an R-12 refrigerant recycling device that meets SAE standard J1991 be used.

Contact an automotive service equipment supplier for refrigerant recycling equipment that is available in your area.

The refrigerant used in all air conditioning is R-I 2.

It is transparent and colorless in both the liquid and vapor state. Since it has a boiling point of -29.8°C (-21.7°F), at atmospheric pressure, it will be a vapor at all normal temperatures and pressures. The vapor is heavier than air, non-flammable, and nonexplosive. It is nonpoisonous except when it is in direct contact with open flame. It is noncorrosive except when combined with water. The following precautions must be observed when handling R-12.

Caution

Wear safety goggles when servicing the refrigeration system.

R-12 evaporates so rapidly at normal atmospheric pressures and temperatures that it tends to freeze anything it contacts. For this reason, extreme care must be taken to prevent any liquid refrigerant from contacting the skin and especially the eyes. Always wear safety goggles when servicing the refrigeration part of the air conditioning system. Keep a bottle of sterile mineral oil handy when working on the refrigeration system. Should any liquid refrigerant get into the eyes, use a few drops of mineral oil to wash them out. R-12 is rapidly absorbed by the oil. Next, splash the eyes with plenty of cold water. Call your doctor immediately even though irritation has ceased after treatment.

Caution

Do not heat R-12 above 40°C (104°F).

In most instances, moderate heat is required to bring the pressure of the refrigerant in its container above the pressure of the system when charging or adding refrigerant. A bucket or large pan of hot water not over 40°C(104°F) is all the heat required for this purpose. Do not heat the refrigerant container with a blow torch or any other means that would raise temperature and pressure above this temperature. Do not weld or steam clean on or near the system components or refrigerant lines.

Caution

Keep R-12 containers upright when charging the system.

When metering R-12 into the refrigeration system, keep the supply tank or cans in an upright position. If the refrigerant container is on its side or upside down, liquid refrigerant will enter the system and damage the compressor.

Caution

Always work in a well-ventilated room.

Good ventilation is vital in the working area.

Although R-12 vapor is normally nonpoisonous, contact with an open flame can cause the vapor to become very poisonous. A poisonous gas is produced when using the flame-type leak detector. Avoid inhaling the fumes from the leak detector.

Caution

Do not allow liquid refrigerant to touch bright metal.

Refrigerant will tarnish bright metal and chrome surfaces, and in combination with moisture can severely corrode all metal surfaces.



SERVICE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURES

TEST PROCEDURES

SYSTEM TEST

- (1) Turn back the adaptor valve handle all the way and install each adaptor valve to the high and low pressure service valves.
- (2) With the gauge manifold high and low pressure valves closed, connect the gauge manifold to the high and low pressure adaptor valves.
- (3) Tighten the adaptor valve handle to open the service valves for checking the pressure.
- (4) If a pressure of 294 to 392 kPa (43 to 59 psi) is indicated on the suction gauge side and a pressure of approx. 1,961 kPa (284 psi) is indicated on the discharge gauge side, it is suspected that air is present in the air conditioning system. Discharge the system, evacuate and recharge with specified amount of refrigerant.
- (5) During operation of the air conditioning cold air may stop flowing after the elapse of time and this state is maintained before cold air flows out again. If cold air stops flowing out with negative pressure indicated on the suction gauge side and a pressure of 588 to 980 kPa (85 to 142 psi) indicated on the discharge gauge side, it is suspected that water is present in the air conditioning system.

Discharge the system. Replace receiver drier. Evacuate and check for leaks, and recharge with specified amount of refrigerant.

COMPRESSOR

- (1) Turn back the adaptor valve handle all the way and install each adaptor valve to the high and low pressure service valves.
- (2) With the gauge manifold high and low pressure valves closed, connect the gauge manifold to the high and low pressure adaptor valves.
- (3) Tighten the adaptor valve handle to open the service valves for checking the pressure.
- (4) If a pressure of approx. 490 kPa (71 psi) is indicated on the suction gauge side and a pressure of approx. 883 kPa (128 psi) is indicated on the discharge gauge side, the compressor has abnormal compression. Replace the compressor.

SIGHT GLASS REFRIGERANT LEVEL TEST

The sight glass is a refrigerant level indicator. To check the refrigerant level, clean the sight glass and start the vehicle engine. Push the air conditioning button to operate the compressor, place the blower switch to high and move the temperature control lever to extreme left. After operating for a few minutes in this manner, check the sight glass.

(1) If the sight glass is clear, the magnetic clutch is engaged, the compressor discharge line is warm and the compressor inlet line is cool; the system has a full charge.



- (2) If the sight glass is clear, the magnetic clutch is engaged and there is no significant temperature difference between compressor inlet and discharge lines; the system has lost some refrigerant.
- (3) If the sight glass is clear and the magnetic clutch is disengaged; the clutch is faulty or, the system is out of refrigerant. Perform low pressure switch test to determine condition. Check low pressure switch, and clutch coil for electrical continuity.
- (4) If the sight glass shows foam or bubbles, the system could be low on charge. Occasional foam or bubbles are normal when the ambient temperature is above 43°C (110°F) or below 21°C(70°F).

Adjust the engine speed to 1,500 rpm. Block the air-flow thru the condenser to increase the compressor discharge pressure to 1,422 to 1,520 kPa (206 to 220 psi). If sight glass still shows bubbles or foam, system charge level is low.

The refrigerant system will not be low on charge unless there is a leak. Find and repair the leak. If the leak can be repaired without discharging the system an oil level check is not necessary. Use the procedure for correcting low refrigerant level found in the Refrigerant System Service Procedure Section.

MAGNETIC CLUTCH

- (1) Disconnect the wiring to the magnetic clutch.
- (2) Connect battery (+) voltage directly to the wiring for the magnetic clutch.
- (3) If the magnetic clutch is normal, there will be a "click". If the pulley and armature do not make contact ("click"), there is a malfunction.

RECEIVER DRIER

- (1) Operate the unit and check the piping temperature by touching the receiver drier outlet and inlet.
- (2) If there is a difference in the temperatures, the receiver drier is restricted.

Replace the receiver drier.

h Magnetic clutch wiring 2040054 Inlet Ξ Outlet Receiver





DUAL PRESSURE SWITCH

The dual-pressure switch is a combination of the low-pressure switch (for checking the quantity of refrigerant) and the high-pressure switch (for prevention of overheating); it is installed in the receiver, and, when the pressure becomes approximately 210 kPa (30 psi) or lower, the compressor stops, thus preventing the compressor from being damaged by heat. When the pressure reaches 2,700 kPa (384 psi) or higher, the compressor stops, thus preventing overheating. There is generally no necessity for inspection; if, however, an unusual condition, such as non-operation of the compressor is encountered, check by following the procedures below.

- (1) Turn back the adaptor valve handle all the way and install it to the high pressure side service valve.
- (2) With the gauge manifold low pressure service valve closed, connect the gauge manifold low pressure side charging hose to the adaptor valve.
- (3) Tighten the adaptor valve handle and open the service valve.
- (4) If there is continuity between the dual pressure switch terminals when the high pressure side pressure is at level of dual pressure switch ON condition shown to the left, the switch is functioning normally. If not, replace the switch.

PRESSURE SWITCH

The pressure switch (installed above the high-pressure pipe) is for control of the condenser and the radiator fan; it regulates the fan in two steps (LO and HI).

If there is a problem such as non-operation of the condenser fan, check by following the procedures described below.

- (1) Install the gauge manifold, and then switch the air conditioning to the operation mode.
- (2) Check for continuity of the pressure switch.

Less than 1,500 kPa (213 psi)	No continuity
1,800 kPa (256 psi) or higher	Continuity

NOTE

If the pressure will not decrease to less than the standard value, cool by employing an electric fan; if the pressure will not increase to the standard value or higher, place a cover on the condenser so as to adjust the pressure by regulating the air ventilation.

AIR-THERMO SENSOR AND AIR-INLET SENSOR

If frost forms on the surfaces of the evaporator fins, the cause might be a malfunction of air thermo sensor.

The temperature of the air-flowing from the evaporator's outlet is sensed by the thermistor, and the signals conveying this data are input to the auto compressor control unit, thus switching the compressor's clutch ON or OFF.

This functions when the evaporator's air-flow is low, or the evaporator's fins are clogged by dust, etc., or when the amount of refrigerant is insufficient.

These sensors detect the temperature within the passenger

compartment and the temperature at the cooling unit inlet, thus causing changes of the resistance value, and this data is provided to the auto compressor control unit as input.



How to Test the Air Thermo Sensor and Air Inlet Sensor

- (1) Disconnect the sensor's connector at the evaporator case, and by using an ohmmeter, measure the resistance. If the resistance is within $\pm 10\%$ of valve of the characteristic curve, the sensor is functioning normally.
- (2) If the sensor is normal, there is a malfunction of the auto compressor control unit, and it should be replaced.

AIR CONDITIONING ENGINE COOLANT TEMPERATURE SWITCH (for compressor magnetic clutch) <DOHC>

The air conditioning engine coolant temperature switch is connected in series with the compressor magnetic clutch power relay.

It disengages the compressor when the temperature of radiator coolant rises above 115°C (239°F).

This is designed to prevent engine overheating when cooling air is not sufficient for the condenser and radiator. If the air conditioning engine coolant temperature switch operates to disengage the compressor, check for the condenser and radiator surface conditions, belt tension and radiator coolant level and correct, if necessary.



COMPRESSOR DRIVE BELT ADJUSTMENT M55FJAE

Satisfactory performance of the air-conditioning system is dependent upon drive belt condition and tension. If the proper tensions are not maintained, belt slippage will greatly reduce air-conditioning performance and drive belt life. To avoid such adverse effects, the following service procedure should be followed:

- (1) Any belt that has operated for a minimum of one half-hour is considered to be a "used" belt. Adjust air-conditioning drive belt at the time of new-car preparation.
- (2) Check drive belt tension at regular service intervals and adjust as needed.

Standard value:

When	new	belt	installed	5-5.5	mm	(.2022	in.)
When	used	belt	installed	6-7	mm	(.23–.27	in.)



CHARGING

CHARGING THE SYSTEM

Keeping the handle completely returned to the original position (The valve is closed.), mount adapter valves ① and ② on the service valves of the high and low pressures.
 NOTE

Install the high pressure service valve to the discharge port of discharge hose, and the low pressure service valve to the suction port of compressor.

- (2) Screw in the handles of the adapter valves ① and ② . (The valve is opened.)
- (3) Connect the charging hoses to the adapter values ① and②
- (4) When the handle is screwed in (The valve is opened), mount the adapter valve (3) on the charge hose on the low pressure side.
- (5) Mount the vacuum gauge on the adapter valve 3.
- (6) Mount the vacuum gauge on the charging hose of the high pressure side.

55-18 HEATER, AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION - Procedures

Service Adjustment



- (7) Start up the vacuum pump.
- (8) Evacuate to a vacuum reading of 750 mmHg (29.5 in Hg) or higher (approx. 10 minutes).

Caution

Since the indication goes wrong, read the scale with the vacuum gauge placed vertically.

- (9) Completely return the handle of the high-pressure side adapter valve (2) to the original position. (The valve is closed.)
- (10) Stop the vacuum pump and allow to stand for 5 minutes.

ţ

- (11) Check for leaks. (Good if the vacuum is held.)
- (12) Keeping the handle completely returned to the original position (The valve is opened.), mount the charge valve on the service can.
- (13) Keeping the handle of the adapter valve @completely returned to the original position (The valve is closed.). remove the vacuum gauge and mount the service can.
- (14) Screw in the handle of the charge valve (The valve is closed.) to make a hole in the service can.
- (15) Return the handle of the charge valve (The valve is opened.), screw in the handle of the adapter valve (3) (The valve is opened.) and charge the refrigerant.
- (16) If refrigerant is no longer sucked, completely return the handle of the adapter valve (1) to the original position. (The valve is closed.)
- (17) Check for gas leaks using a leak detector.
- (18) Start the engine.
- (19) Operate the air conditioning and set at the lowest temperature (MAX. COOL).
- (20) Fix the engine speed at 1,500 rpm.
- (21) Screw in the handle of the adapter valve @(The valve is opened.). and charge the refrigerant to the specified amount.







Caution

If the service can is inverted, liquid refrigerant may be drawn into the compressor damaging it by liquid compression. Keep the service can upright to ensure that refrigerant is charged in gas state.

- (22) After charging the refrigerant, completely return the handle of the adapter valve (1) to the original position. (The valve is closed .)
- (23) Screw in the handle of the charge valve. (The valve is closed.)
- (24) Remove the adapter valves (1) and @from the high and low pressure service valves.
- (25) Remove the service can.

NOTE

If any refrigerant remains, close the charge value and adapter values (1) and (3), and store them as they are till the next work.

CORRECTING LOW REFRIGERANT LEVEL

Method by using the service can

- (1) Keeping the handle completely returned to the original position (The valve is closed.), install the service can.
- (2) Keeping the handle screwed in (The valve is opened.), install the adapter valve ① to the charge valve.
- (3) Connect the charging hose to the adapter valve ①.
- (4) Keeping the handle completely returned to the original position (The valve is closed.), connect the adapter valve (2) to the charging hose.
- (5) Screw in the handle of the charge valve (The valve is closed.) to make a hole in the service can.
- (6) Completely return the handle of the charging valve to the original position (The valve is opened.).
 - Operate the handle of the adapter valve 2 to release air.
- (7) Attach the adapter valve (2) to the service valve on the low pressure side.

Caution

If the high pressure side is used, refrigerant will **counter**flow and sometimes break the **service** can or charging hose. Never attempt to use the high pressure side.

- (8) Start the engine.
- (9) Operate the air (conditioning and set at the lowest temperature (MAX. COOL).
- (10) Fix the engine speed at 1,500 rpm.
- (11) Screw in the handle of the adapter valve (2) (The valve is opened.), and observing the amount through the sight glass, refill refrigerant.
- (12) After refilling, completely return the handle of the adapter valve ② to the original position (The valve is closed.), and remove the adapter valve ③.

NOTE

If any refrigerant remains, close the charge valve and adapter valves ① and ②, and store them as they are till the next work.

Method by using refrigerant recovery and recycling unit

Using the refrigerant recovery and recycling unit, refill the refrigerant.

NOTE

Refer to that Refrigerant Recovery and Recycling Unit Instruction Manual for operation of the unit.

DISCHARGING SYSTEM

Use the refrigerant recovery unit to discharge refrigerant gas from the system.

NOTE

Refer to that Refrigerant Recovery and Recycling Unit Instruction Manual for operation of the unit.

REFILLING OF OIL IN THE AIR CONDITIONING SYSTEM

Too little oil will provide inadequate compressor lubrication and cause a compressor failure. Too much oil will increase discharge air temperature.

When a FX105V compressor is installed at the factory, it contains 150 cm³ (9.2 cu.in.) of refrigerant oil. While the air conditioning system is in operation, the oil is carried through the entire system by the refrigerant.

Some of this oil will be trapped and retained in various parts of the system.

When the following system components are charged, it is necessary to add oil to the system to replace the oil being removed with the component.

Condenser: 15 cm³ (.9 cu.in.) Evaporator: 50 cm³ (3.1 cu.in.) Piping: 10 cm³ (.6 cu.in.) Receiver drier: 5 cm³ (.3 cu.in.)



PERFORMANCE TEST

- (1) Park the tested vehicle at the area which is not exposed to the direct sunlight.
- (2) Connect a tachometer.
- (3) Turn back the adaptor valve handle all the way and install the adaptor valves to the high pressure and low pressure service valves.
- (4) Connect the gauge manifold to the adaptor valves.
- (5) Tighten the adaptor valve handle and open the service valves.
- (6) Start the engine.
- (7) Set the controls to the air conditioning as follows:

Air conditioning switch: A/C-ON position Mode selection lever: Face position Temperature control lever: Max. cooling position Air selection lever: Recirculation position Blower switch: HI (Fast) position

- (8) Adjust engine rpm to 1,000 with air conditioning clutch engaged.
- (9) Engine should be warmed up with doors, windows close and hood open.
- (10) Insert a thermometer in the left center air conditioning **Out**let and operate the engine for 20 minutes.
- (11) Note the discharge air temperature.

NOTE

If the clutch cycles, take the reading before the clutch disengages.

PERFORMANCE TEMPERATURE CHART

Garage ambient tem- perature °C (°F)	21 (70)	26.7 (80)	32.2 (90)	37.8 (100)	43.3 (110)
Discharge air tern-	2.8-4.4	3.3–5.0	3.9-5.6	4.4-7.2	4.4-7.8
perature °C (°F)	(37–40)	(38–41)	(39–42)	(40-45)	(40-46)
Compressor discharge	758–1,310	896–1,517	1,103–1,793	1,310–1,999	1,517–2,206
pressure kPa (psi)	(110–190)	(130–220)	(160–260)	(190–290)	(220–320)
Evaporator suction	131-165	138-179	145-186	152-193	159–200
pressure kPa (psi)	(19–24)	(20–26)	(21–27)	(22–28)	(23-29)

REFRIGERANT LEAK REPAIR PROCEDURE M55FHAJ

LOST CHARGE

If the system has lost all charge due to a leak:

- (1) Evacuate the system. (See procedure.)
- (2) Charge the system with approximately one pound of refrigerant.
- (3) Check for leaks.
- (4) Discharge the system.
- (5) Repair leaks.
- (6) Replace receiver drier.

Caution Replacement filter-drier units must be sealed while in storage. The drier used in these units will saturate water quickly upon exposure to the atmosphere. When installing a drier, have all tools and supplies ready for quick reassembly to avoid keeping the system open any longer than necessary.

(7) Evacuate and charge the system.

LOW CHARGE

If the system has not lost all of its refrigerant eharge; locate and repair all leaks. if it is necessary to increase the system pressure to find the leak (because of an especially low charge) add of refrigerant. If it is possible to repair the leak without discharging the refrigerant system, use the procedure for correcting low refrigerant level.

HANDLING TUBING AND FITTINGS

Low pressure hose Liquid line High pressure hose Liquid line 20A0268

Kinks in the refrigerant tubing or sharp bends in the refrigerant hose lines will greatly reduce the capacity of the entire system. High pressures are produced in the system when it is operating. Extreme care must be exercised to make sure that all connections are pressure tight. Dirt and moisture can enter the system when it is opened for repair or replacement of lines or components. The following precautions must be observed.

The system must be completely discharged before opening any fitting of connection in the refrigeration system. Open fittings with caution even after the system has been discharged. If any pressure is noticed as a fitting is loosened, allow trapped pressure to bleed off very slowly.

Never attempt to rebend formed lines to fit. Use the correct line for the installation you are servicing. A good rule for the flexible hose lines is to keep the radius of all bends at least 10 times the diameter of the hose.

Sharper bends will reduce the flow of refrigerant. The flexible hose lines should be routed so that they are at least 80 mm (3 in.) from the exhaust manifold. It is good practice to inspect all flexible hose lines at least once a year to make sure they are in good condition and properly routed.

Unified plumbing connections with O-rings. These O-rings are not reusable.

TSB Revision

M55FIAE


O-RING INSTALLATION <Up to 1990 models>

- (1) Clean sealing surface.
- (2) Make sure O-ring does not have any scratches.
- (3) Connect fitting, install fastener, and torque to amount shown in the illustration.

The internal parts of the refrigeration system will remain in a state of chemical stability as long as pure-moisture-free R-12 and refrigerant oil is used. Abnormal amounts of dirt, moisture or air can upset the chemical stability and cause operational troubles or even serious damage if present in more than minute quantities.

When it is necessary to open the refrigeration system, have everything you will need to service the system ready so the system will not be left open any longer than necessary. Cap or plug all lines and fittings as soon as they are opened to prevent the entrance of dirt and moisture. All lines and components in parts stock should be capped or sealed until they are ready to be used.

All tools, including the refrigerant dispensing manifold, the gage set manifold and test hoses should be kept clean and dry.

COMPRESSOR NOISE

M55FLAC

When investigating an air conditioning related noise, you must first know the conditions when the noise occurs. These conditions are: weather, vehicle speed, in gear or neutral, engine temperature or any other special conditions.

Noises that develop during air-conditioning operation can often be misleading. For example: what sounds like a failed front bearing or connecting rod, may be caused by loose bolts, nuts, mounting brackets, or a loose clutch assembly. Verify accessory drive belt tension (power steering, or generator).

Improper accessory drive belt tension can cause a misleading noise when the compressor is engaged and little or no noise when the compressor is disengaged.

Drive belts are speed sensitive. That is, at different engine speeds, and depending upon belt tension, belts can develop unusual noises that are often mistaken for mechanical problems within the compressor.

Adjustment Procedures

- Select a quiet area for testing. Duplicate conditions as much as possible. Switch compressor on and off several times to clearly identify compressor noise. To duplicate high ambient conditions (high head pressure), restrict air flow through condenser. Install manifold gauge set to make sure discharge pressure doesn't exceed 2,070kPa (300 psi).
- (2) Tighten all compressor mounting bolts, clutch mounting bolt, and compressor drive belt. Check to assure clutch coil is tight (no rotation or wobble).
- (3) Check refrigerant hoses for rubbing or interference that can cause unusual noises.
- (4) Check refrigerant charge (See "Charging the System").
- (5) Recheck compressor noise as in Step 1.
- (6) If noise still exists, loosen compressor mounting bolts and retorque. Repeat Step 1.
- (7) If noise continues, replace compressor and repeat Step 1.

55-24 HEATER. AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION - Service Adjustment Procedures



POWER RELAY CHECK

M55FNAJ

NOTE For information concerning the installation of each relay, refer to P.55-10.

Check for continuity between the terminals when the battery power-supply is applied to terminal (2), and terminal (4) is grounded.

When current flows	Between terminals 1-3	Continuity
When no current flows	Between terminals 1–3	No continuity
	rent flows terminals 2-4	

IDLE-UP OPERATION CHECK

M55FOAA

- (1) Before inspection and adjustment set vehicle in the following condition:
- Engine coolant temperature: 80-90°C (176-194°F)
- · Lights, electric cooling fan and accessories: Set to OFF
- Transaxle: Neutral (N or P for vehicles with A/T)
- Steering wheel: Straightforward
- (2) Check whether or not the idling speed is the standard value.

Standard value: 750 rpm

NOTE

There is no necessity to make an adjustment, because the idling speed is automatically adjusted by the $|\mathsf{AC}|$ system.

If, however, there occurs a deviation from the standard value for some reason, check the IAC system.

(3) Check to be sure that the idling speed becomes the standard value when the air conditioning switch is switched ON and the air conditioning is activated.

Standard value: 850 rpm

NOTE

There is no necessary to make an adjustment, because the idling speed is automatically adjusted by the IAC system. If, however, there occurs a deviation from the standard value for some reason, check the IAC system.

HEATER CONTROL ASSEMBLY

5

M55GA--



55-25

20A0313

SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

M55GBAH

6. REMOVAL OF HEATER CONTROL PANEL

Remove the installation screws and pull the heater control panel toward you; then disconnect the connection of each connector and light.



12. DISCONNECTION OF LEFT/RIGHT AIR-VOLUME CON-TROL WIRE

Disconnect the wire connected at the left side of the lever of the foot distribution duct.

INSPECTION **BLOWER SWITCH**

M55GCAG

Operate the switch, and check the continuity between the terminals

5	3	6	2	7	1	8	4
0-	-0				0-	-0	
0-		-0			0-	-0	
0-			9		9	-0 ⁻	0
0-				-0	0-	-0-	-0
	5	5 3 0 0 0 0	5 3 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	5 3 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	5 3 6 2 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	5 3 6 2 7 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	5 3 6 2 7 1 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

, indicates that there is continuity between the terminals

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

M55GDAM

- 12. CONNECTION OF LEFT/RIGHT AIR-VOLUME CON-TROL WIRE
 - (1) Move the left/right air-volume control lever (in the heater control assembly) to the "L" position.
 - (2) Move the foot distribution duct's lever to the position indicated in the illustration, and then connect the left/right air-volume control wire.



9. INSTALLATION OF MODE SELECTION CONTROL WIRE

Connect the mode selection control wire to the mode selection damper lever by following the steps below.

- (1) Move the mode selection lever to the position.
 (2) With the mode selection damper lever pressed inward in the direction indicated by the arrow, connect
 - the inner cable of the mode selection control wire to the end of the mode selection lever, and then secure the outer cable by using a clip.

3. INSTALLATION OF TEMPERATURE CONTROL WIRE

Connect the temperature control wire to the blend air damper lever by following the steps below.

- (1) Move the temperature control lever to the leftmost position. ("COOL" position)
- (2) With the blend air damper lever pressed completely downward in the direction indicated by the arrow. connect the inner cable of the temperature control wire to the end of the blend air damper lever, and then secure the outer cable by using a clip.

2. INSTALLATION OF AIR SELECTION CONTROL WIRE

Connect the air selection control wire to the air selection damper lever by following the steps below.

- (1) Set the inner/outer air changeover knob or lever to the inner air circulation position.
- (2) Turn the inner/outer air changeover damper lever in the direction of the arrow, and contact it with the stopper.
- (3) Connect the inner wires for the inner/outer air changeover cable to the damper lever.
- (4) Lightly pull the outer cable for the inner/outer air changeover cable to the heater control assembly side, push into the outer cable clamp and fix.
- (5) Operate the inner/outer air changeover knob or lever two to three times and set it at the inner air circulation position.

At this time, confirm that the damper lever is in contact with the stopper.

When the damper lever is not in contact with the stopper, readjust the cable.

(6) Confirm that the damper lever pin is within the shown B range when the inner/outer air changeover lever is set to the inner air circulation position, When it is not with shown B range, readjust the cable.

RESISTOR

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



AIR CONDITIONING SWITCH

M55QA--

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION





INSPECTION

AIR CONDITIONING SWITCH CHECK

- (1) Remove the heater control panel.
- (2) Remove the connector for the air conditioning switch, and then check for continuity as described below.

Terminal Switch position		,		2 4	153	36
OFF						
If pressed 1 step (ECONOMY)	0-		_			<u>ا</u> لـ
If pressed 2 steps (A/C)	0	-0-	-0-	Ő.	Illumi light	nation

NOTE

(1) The O-O symbol indicates continuity.

(2)*: <Indication light>

TSB Revision

M55QCAB

55-30 HEATER, AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION - Heater Unit

HEATER UNIT

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION

Pre-removal and Post-installation Operation • Draining and Refilling of the Engine Coolant (Refer to GROUP 00-Maintenance Service.) @ Removal and Installation of the Front Seats, Floor Console and Instrument Panel (Refer to GROUP 52-Front Seat. Floor Console and Instrument Panel.)



TSB Revision

M551A--

SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

12. REMOVAL OF HEATER UNIT <Vehicles with air conditioning>

- (1) Remove the evaporator installation bolts and nuts, and the heater unit installation bolts and nuts.
 - NOTE

In order to prevent bolts from falling into the blower assembly, set the inside/outside air-selection damper to the position that permits outside air introduction.

(2) With the evaporator pulled outward (to the cabin side), remove the heater unit.

INSPECTION

M55ICAG

M55IBAK

- Check the operation of dampers and link mechanism.
- •



M55IDAH

(2) Remove the plate.

- (3) Pull out the heater core from the heater unit.
- (4) Insert the heater core into the heater unit. NOTE

the fin part or the pad part.

- (5) Install the plate.
- (6) Install the heater unit.





BLOWER ASSEMBLY

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



INSPECTION

M55KCAM

- Check for bending or abnormal deflection of the rotating shaft of the blower motor assembly.
- Check for cracking or deterioration of the packing. Check for damage to the fan.
- -
- Check the operation of the inside/outside air-selection



BLOWER MOTOR ASSEMBLY <Up to 1990 models> BLOWER MOTOR AND FAN ASSEMBLY <From 1991 models>

- (1) Remove the under cover.
- (2) Connect the blower motor terminals directly to the battery and check that the blower motor operates smoothly.
- (3) Next, reverse the polarity and check that the blower motor operates smoothly in the reverse direction.

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

13. INSTALLATION OF PACKING

M55KDAH

If the packing is cracked, replace with a new one.

12. INSTALLATION OF BLOWER MOTOR ASSEMBLY

Before installing the blower motor assembly, carefully clean away any dust, dirt, etc. adhering to the inner surface of the blower case.

16. INSTALLATION OF BLOWER MOTOR AND FAN ASSEMBLY

Before installing the blower motor and fan assembly, carefully clean away any dust, dirt, etc. adhering to the inner surface of the blower case.

EVAPORATOR

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



Removal steps

- 1. Liquid pipe and suction hose connection • =
 - 2. O-rings
 - 3. Instrument panel side cover

 - Under cover
 Foot shower duct
 Stopper

 - 7. Glove box
 - 8. Glove box frame
 - 9. Connector for MFI control relay and connector for glove box switch 10. Ashtray and knobs

 - Heater control panel
 Air conditioning switch connector
 Body wiring harness and air conditioning wiring harness connection
- 14. Evaporator
 - 15. Air conditioning wiring harness
 - 16. Drain hose

Pre-removal Operation ●Discharge of Refrigerant (Refer to P.55-20.)

*Charging of Refrigerant (Refer to P.55-17.) • Checking for Refrigerant Gas Leakage @Performance Test (Refer to P.55-21.)

M5584-

HEATER, AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION - Evaporator 55-35

SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

M55RBAF

1. DISCONNECTION OF LIQUID PIPE AND SUCTION HOSE







7. REMOVAL OF GLOVE BOX

(1) After removing the stopper, remove the glove box installation screws.

(2) Pull (1) the glove box right side toward you, and then remove (2) the glove box from the instrument panel.

14. REMOVAL OF EVAPORATOR

- (1) Remove the evaporator's plate.
- (2) Clear the instrument panel at the notched part of the evaporator (after the plate has been removed), and then remove the evaporator.

Caution

Do this work carefully so as not to damage the insulator.

INSPECTION

M55RCAA

- Check for damage of the evaporator fin part.
- Check for damage or collapse of the drain hose.
- Check for peeling or cracking of the insulator.

AIR-THERMOSTAT SENSOR AND AIR-INLET SENSOR CHECK

For information concerning the checking procedures, refer to $\mathsf{P.55-16}.$

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION M55RDAK

1. INSTALLATION OF LIQUID PIPE AND SUCTION HOSE

For information concerning the installation procedures, refer to P.55-22.

DISASSEMBLY AND REASSEMBLY

M55RE--

15 20R0736

- 15

14





SERVICE POINTS OF DISASSEMBLY

3. REMOVAL OF CLIPS

Remove the clips with a flat-blade screwdriver covered with a shop towel to prevent damage to case surfaces.

M55RFAE

14. REMOVAL OF EXPANSION VALVE

Loosen the flare nut by using two wrenches. (for both the inlet and outlet.)

COMPRESSOR

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



TSB Revision

M55SA--

HEATER, AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION - Compressor 55-39



SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

M55SBAA

- 2. REMOVAL OF TENSION PULLEY ASSEMBLY IN-STALLATION BOLTS
 - (1) After loosening nut A (for holding the tension pulley), loosen bolt B (for adjustment) and reduce the tension of the compressor drive belt to zero.
 - (2) Remove the tension pulley assembly installation bolts, and then remove the tension pulley assembly together with the compressor drive belt.

11. REMOVAL OF SUCTION HOSE CONNECTION

Plug the disconnected hose and the compressor opening to prevent dust, dirt and other foreign material from entering.



14. REMOVAL OF COMPRESSOR

This work must be done carefully so as not to spill the compressor oil.

•

INSPECTION

M55SCAA

- Checking for heat damage of the tension pulley.
- Check for excessive play or deflection of the tension pulley.
- Check for unusual wear of the tension pulley.
- Check for hardening of the air conditioning belt.
- Check for unusual wear or abrasion of the air conditioning belt.
- . CONTINUITY CHECK OF THE COMPRESSOR'S MAG-NETIC CLUTCH
 - (1) Disconnect the compressor's connector.

(2) Check to be sure that there is continuity between body ground and terminal ① at the compressor side.

- . OPERATION CHECK OF THE COMPRESSOR'S MAGNETIC CLUTCH
 - (1) Disconnect the compressor's connector

- (2) Connect terminal ① at the compressor side to the positive (+) terminal of the battery, and ground the negative (-) terminal of the battery to the compressor.
- (3) The condition of the compressor's magnetic clutch can be considered satisfactory if the operation sound (a "click" sound) of the magnetic clutch can be heard when this check is made.



SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION M55SDAA

14. INSTALLATION OF COMPRESSOR

- If a new compressor is installed, first adjust the amount of oil according to the procedures described below, and then install the compressor.
- (1) Measure the amount (X cm³) of oil within the removed compressor.
- (2) Wipe away (from the new compressor) the amount of oil calculated according to the following formula, and then install the new compressor.

New compressor oil amount 150 cm³ (9.1 cu.in.)-X cm³ = Y cm³

NOTE

Y cm³ indicates the amount of oil in the refrigerant line, the condenser, the cooling unit, etc.

- 4. INSTALLATION OF COMPRESSOR DRIVE BELT/S. TENSION PULLEY ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION BOLT
 - (1) Attach the compressor drive belt to the tension pulley assembly as shown in the figure.

- (2) Attach the compressor drive belt to the crankshaft pulley and the compressor's pulley, and then install the tension pulley assembly. NOTE
 - Hold the tension pulley assembly so that the compressor drive belt does not slip out of place; and while doing so install the tension pulley assembly.
 - (2) Install the tension pulley assembly installation bolts in the $(1 \rightarrow 2)$ sequence.



DISASSEMBLY AND REASSEMBLY

M55\$E--





SERVICE POINTS OF DISASSEMBLY

3. REMOVAL OF NUT

(1) Provisionally install two M6 bolts [length 25 mm (.98 in.) or longer] in the bolt holes of the armature plate. NOTE

Provisionally install the M6 bolts in the armature plate so that the ends of the M6 bolts do not contact the front housing.

- (2) Use box-end wrenches to hold the provisionally installed bolts (so as to prevent the armature plate from turning), and then remove the nut.
- (3) Remove the armature plate from the crankshaft.

14. REMOVAL OF SEAL PLATE

Use a flat-tip - screwdriver or snap-ring pliers to remove the seal plate from the front housing.

15. REMOVAL OF BEARING

Use a brass bar to remove the bearing from the front housing.

JSB Revision

M55SFAB

INSPECTION

M55TGAF

- Check the surface of the armature for scoring or bluing.
 - Check the surface of the rotor for scoring or bluing.
- Check the sealing surfaces for cracks, scratches and deformation.
- Check the front housing for cracks or scoring on the sealing surfaces.
- Check the compressor shaft for scoring.

HIGH PRESSURE RELIEF VALVE CHECK

The high pressure relief valve is a safety feature which releases part of the refrigerant inside the system into the atmosphere when the high pressure level exceeds 3,550 kPa (505 psi) during air conditioning operation.

Once the pressure inside the system has been reduced to 2,400 kPa (341 psi) or lower, the high pressure relief valve closes, thus allowing continued operation.

- (1) If a leak is detected at section A, replace the high pressure relief valve. The valve can be used unless there is a leak from that section.
- (2) If a leak is detected at section B, retighten the valve. If the leak still persists after retightening the valve, replace the packing.



REFRIGERANT TEMPERATURE SENSOR CHECK

The refrigerant temperature sensor detects the temperature of the refrigerant delivered from the compressor during the operation of the air conditioning, and deenergizes the magnetic clutch to stop the compressor when the temperature exceeds $175^{\circ}C(347^{\circ}F)$, due to a problem in the system.

(1) Measure the resistance between terminals ① and ② of the connector.

Normal resistance: 80.47 kΩ when ambient temperature is 25°C (77°F)

If the measurement deviates greatly from the above resistance, replace the refrigerant temperature sensor assembly.





Notched parts of the

Notched parts of the crankshaft

The projection side of the centre ring Sealing surfaces

shaft seal

CONTROL VALVE CHECK

The control valve detects a low pressure level during the operation of the air conditioning and adjusts the amount of refrigerant to be bypassed.

- (1) Operate the air conditioning under a high temperature load condition (when vehicle interior temperature is high).
- (2) Connect a low pressure gauge to the air compressor.
- (3) Operate the air conditioning with the engine running at idle.
- (4) Gradually increase the engine speed while observing the low pressure gauge.

If the valve is normal, the low pressure drops slowly as the engine speed increases until a pressure of 180 kPa (25 psi) is reached, at which point the pressure temporarily ceases to drop. Then, the pressure again starts dropping as the engine speed further increases.

If the valve is abnormal, the low prssure drops in direct proportion to the increase in engine speed without a temporary leveling off at the 180 kPa (25 psi) pressure level.

If the low pressure drops like this, replace the control valve.

SERVICE POINTS OF REASSEMBLY

M55SHAB

13. INSTALLATION OF SHAFT SEAL

Caution

Do not touch the sealing surfaces of shaft seal carbon ring and shaft seal plate.

(1) Lubricate the shaft seal with specified compressor oil.

Specified compressor oil:

FREOL S-83 or SUNISO 5GS

(2) Align the notched parts of the shaft seal with the notched parts of the crankshaft, and then install the shaft seal onto the crankshaft, positioning at the base of the crankshaft.

14. INSTALLATION OF SEAL PLATE

Caution

Do not touch the sealing surfaces of shaft seal carbon ring and shaft seal plate.

(1) Lubricate the seal plate with specified compressor oil.

Specified compressor oil: FREOL S-83 or SUNISO 5GS

(2) Install the shaft seal plate to the front housing so that the surface (the projection side of the centre ring) of the shaft seal plate is at the shaft seal side.

TSB Revision

20A0318

2040317

55-46 HEATER, AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION – Compressor



16. INSTALLATION OF FELT

Using the special tool, insert the felt into the front housing. NOTE

Install the felt with its metal section facing as shown.

15. INSTALLATION OF BEARING

Using the special tool and a press, force the bearing into the front housing.

Caution

- (1) Avoid applying force suddenly to the compressor body.
- (2) Set up the compressor in the press so that no force is applied to the sensor or valves.

8. INSTALLATION OF CLUTCH COIL

(1) Align the pin of the clutch coil with the pin hole in the front housing, and then fit it into the hole.

(2) Install the snap ring so that the tapered surface is at the outer side.

6. INSTALLATION OF ROTOR

install the snap ring so that the tapered surface is at the outer side.



4. INSTALLATION OF ARMATURE PLATE

Align the mating mark of the crankshaft spline and the mating mark of the armature plate, and then fit them together

3. INSTALLATION OF NUT

 Provisionally install two M6 bolts [length 25 mm (.98 in or longer] in the bolt holes of the armature plate. NOTE

Provisionally install the M6 bolts in the armature plate so that the ends of the M6 bolts do not contact the front housing.

- (2) Use box-end wrenches to hold the provisionally installed bolts (so as to prevent the armature plate from turning), and then tighten the nut.
- (3) Check whether or not the air gap of the clutch is within the standard value.

Standard value: 0.4-0.6 mm (.015-.023 in.) NOTE

If there is a deviation of the air gap from the standard value, make the necessary adjustment by adjusting the number of shims.

CONDENSER AND CONDENSER FAN MOTOR REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION

M55TA--



SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

M55TBAC

6. REMOVAL OF LIQUID PIPE AND LIQUID HOSE CON-NECTION

Plug the disconnected hose and pipes and the openings of the condenser in order to prevent dust, dirt and other foreign materials from entering.

11. REMOVAL OF CONDENSER

Move the radiator toward the engine, and then remove the condenser upward.

INSPECTION

M55TCAG

- Check the condenser fin for crushing or other damage.
- Check the condenser's high-pressure hose and pipe installation parts for damage or deformation.
- Check the condenser fan shroud for damage.



. CONDENSER FAN MOTOR CHECK

(1) Disconnect the connection of the connector for the condenser fan motor.

(2) Check to be sure that the condenser fan motor operates when battery voltage is applied to terminal② and terminal ④ is grounded.



55-50 HEATER, AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION - Condenser and Condenser Fan Motor



. RESISTOR CHECK

(1) Disconnect the connection of the connector for the resistor, and then measure the resistance between terminals.

(2) The condition can be considered satisfactory if the measured resistance is within the range noted below.

Standard value: 0.6 $\Omega \pm 10\%$

HEATER, AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION - Condenser Fan Motor 55-51



TSB Revision

M55TA--a

55-52 HEATER, AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION - Condenser and Condenser Fan Motor



18. Shroud

SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

M55TBAC

5. REMOVAL OF LIQUID PIPE AND LIQUID HOSE CON-NECTION

Plug the disconnected hose and pipes and the openings of the condenser in order to prevent dust, dirt and other foreign materials from entering.



10. REMOVAL OF CONDENSER

Move the radiator toward the engine, and then remove the condenser upward.

INSPECTION

•

M55TCAG

- Check the condenser fin for crushing or other damage.
 - Check the condenser's high-pressure hose and pipe installation parts for damage or deformation.
- Check the condenser fan shroud for damage.



. CONDENSER FAN MOTOR CHECK

(1) Disconnect the connection of the connector for the condenser fan motor.

(2) Check to be sure that the condenser fan motor operates when battery voltage is applied to terminal(2) and terminal (4) is grounded.

. RESISTOR CHECK

- (1) Disconnect the connection of the connector for the resistor, and then measure the resistance between terminals.
- 2040348



(2) The condition can be considered satisfactory if the measured resistance is within the range noted below. Standard value: $0.6\Omega \pm 10\%$

55-54 HEATER, AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION - Refrigerant Line

REFRIGERANT LINE



INSPECTION

•

M55UCAB

M55UA-

CHECKING DUAL SWITCH AND THE PRESSURE SWITCH

For information concerning the checking procedures of the dual switch and the pressure switch, refer to Service Adjustment Procedures on P.55-15.



SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION 18. INSTALLATION OF RECEIVER

M55UDAB

Install the receiver to the receiver bracket so that the direction is indicated in the illustration.



M55YA--

VENTILATORS (INSTRUMENT PANEL AND FLOOR)

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION





SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

15. REMOVAL OF DEFROSTER GARNISHES

Using the trim stick, remove the defroster garnishes from the instrument panel.

VENTILATORS (AIR INLET AND AIR OUTLET) **REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION**

M55YD--

M55YBAB



ENGINE COOLANT TEMPERATURE SWITCH

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



INSPECTION

M55XCAC

M55XA--

- . AIR CONDITIONING ENGINE COOLANT **TEMPERATURE SWITCH** (for compressor magnetic clutch)
 - (1) Remove the air conditioning engine coolant temperature switch from the water outlet fitting.
 - (2) Immerse the air conditioning engine coolant temperature switch in oil and heat by a gas stove or similar method so as to increase the oil temperature.
 - (3) Check to be sure that the air conditioning engine coolant temperature switch is switched OFF when the oil temperature reaches the standard value.

Standard value: 112-118°C (233-244°F)

Caution

Use engine oil for this test; stir it well while heating, and do not heat more than necessary.





- ENGINE COOLANT TEMPERATURE SWITCH (for condenser fan motor)
 - (1) Remove the engine coolant temperature switch from the water outlet fitting.
 - (2) Immerse the engine coolant temperature switch in oil and heat by a gas stove or similar method so as to increase the oil temperature.
 - (3) Check to be sure that the engine coolant temperature switch is switched ON when the oil temperature reaches the standard value.

Standard value: 100-104°C (212-219°F)

Caution

Use engine oil for this test; stir it well while heating, and do not heat more than necessary.
ENGINE ELECTRICAL

CONTENTS

CHARGING SYSTEM	2
GENERATOR	9
SERVICE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURES Charging System Inspection	5 5
SPECIFICATIONS General Specifications Service Specifications	2 2 2
TROUBLESHOOTING	3
IGNITION SYSTEM	32 55
IGNITION SYSTEM	43
SERVICE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURES Camshaft Position Sensor Inspection Refer to GROUP (ON-VEHICLE INSPECTI OF MFI COMPONENT	39 13 ON TS)
Crankshaft Position Sensor Inspection Refer to GROUP (ON-VEHICLE INSPECTI OF MFI COMPONEN	13 ON TS)

High Tension Cable Spark Test <sohc-8 valve=""></sohc-8>	. 42
Ignition Timing Adjustment for DOHC Engine	40
Ignition Timing Adjustment for SOHC Engine	. 39
Spark Plug Cable Test	. 42
Spark Plug Test	42
SPECIFICATIONS*	31
General Specifications	31
Service Specifications	32
TROUBLESHOOTING	33
STARTING SYSTEM	14
SPECIFICATIONS	14
General Specifications	14
Service Specifications	16
STARTER MOTOR	19
TROUBLESHOOTING	17

M16AA--

CHARGING SYSTEM

SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS GENERATOR

M16EB--

Items	SOHC
Type Identification No.	Battery voltage sensing A3T03393
Part No.	MD136839
Rated output V / A	12/75
Voltage regulator	Electronic built-in type

Items	DOHC-A/T	DOHC-FWD, M/T	DOHC-AWD, M/T
Type	Battery voltage sensing	Battery voltage sensing	Battery voltage sensing
Identification No.	A3T45694	A3T03392	A3T03393
Part No.	MD149750	MD133171	MD136839
Rated output V / A	12/90	12/75	12/75
Voltage regulator	Electronic built-in type	Electronic built-in type	Electronic built-in type

SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS

Specifications Items Generator Standard value Regulated voltage Ambient temp. at voltage regulator V -20°C (-4°F) 14.2-15.4 13.9-14.9 20°C (68°F) 60°C (140°F) 13.4-14.6 13.1-14.5 80°C (176°F) 23 (.906) Slip ring O.D. mm (in.) Approx. 3-5 Rotor coil resistance Ω Limit Min. 52.5 Output current A 22.4 (.882) Slip ring O.D. mm (in.)

TSB Revision

M16EC--

TROUBLESHOOTING

M16EHAWb

CHARGING CIRCUIT CIRCUIT DIAGRAM



OPERATION

When engine is stopped

When the ignition switch is switched to the "ON" position, electricity flows from the "L" terminal of the generator to the field coil, and at the same time the charging warning light illuminates.

When engine is being started/has started

When the engine is started, charging voltage is applied to the "L" terminal of the generator, with the result that the charging warning light is extinguished. In addition, because battery voltage is applied to the "S" terminal of the generator, this battery voltage is monitored at the IC voltage regulator, thus switching ON and OFF the current to the field coil and thereby controlling the amount of generation by the generator.

Power is supplied to each load from the "B" terminal of the generator.

NOTE

The generator relay functions as a back-up for the flow of electricity to the field coil if there is a disconnection or damaged wiring of the charging warning light.

TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

- 1. Charging indicator light does not go on when the ignition switch is turned to "ON", before the engine starts.
 - Check the bulb
- 2. Charging indicator light fails to go off once the engine starts.
 - Check the IC voltage regulator (located within the generator).
- 3. Discharged or overcharged battery.
 - Check the IC voltage regulator (located within the generator).
- The charging warning light illuminates dimly. 4
 - Check the diode (within the combination) meter) for a short-circuit.

CHARGING CIRCUIT CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

< From 1991 models>



COMPONENT LOCATION

Name	Symbol
Generator relay	А





16-5

SERVICE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURES

CHARGING SYSTEM INSPECTION MIGEIAWA VOLTAGE DROP TEST OF GENERATOR OUTPUT WIRE

This test judges whether or not the wiring (including the fusible link) between the generator B terminal and the battery (+) terminal is sound by the voltage drop method.

Preparation

- (1) Turn the ignition switch to "OFF".
- (2) Disconnect the battery ground cable.
- (3) Disconnect the generator output lead from the generator "B" terminal.
- (4) Connect a DC ammeter (0 to 100A) in series to the "B" terminal and the disconnected output lead. Connect the (+) lead of the ammeter to the "B" terminal and the (-) lead to the disconnected output wire.

NOTE

Use of a clamp type ammeter that can measure current without disconnecting the harness is preferred. The reason is that when checking a vehicle that has a low output current due to poor connection of the generator "B" terminal, such poor connection is corrected as the "B" terminal is loosened and a test ammeter is connected in its place and as a result, causes for the trouble may not be determined.

- (5) Connect a digital voltmeter between the generator "B" terminal and battery (+) terminal. Connect the (+) lead wire of the voltmeter to the "B" terminal and the (-) lead wire to the battery (+) terminal.
- (6) Connect the battery ground cable.
- (7) Leave the hood open.



Test

- (1) Start the engine.
- (2) Turn on or off the headlights and small lights and adjust the engine speed so that the ammeter reads 20A and read off the voltmeter indication under this condition.

Result

(1) It is okay if the voltmeter indicates the standard value.

Standard value: 0.2 V max.

(2) If the voltmeter indicates a value that is larger than the standard value, poor wiring is suspected, in which case check the wiring from the generator "B" terminal to fusible link to battery (+) terminal. Check for loose connection, color change due to overheated harness, etc. and correct them before testing again.

- (3) Upon completion of the test, set the engine speed at idle.
 - Turn off the lights and turn off the ignition switch.
- (4) Disconnect the battery ground cable.
- (5) Disconnect the ammeter and voltmeter that have been connected for the test purpose.
- (6) Connect the generator output wire to the generator "B" terminal.
- (7) Connect the battery ground cable.

16-6 CHARGING SYSTEM – Service Adjustment Procedures

OUTPUT CURRENT TEST

This test judges whether or not the generator gives an output current that is equivalent to the nominal output.

Preparation

- (1) Prior to the test, check the following items and correct as necessary.
 - (a) Check the battery installed in the vehicle to ensure that it is in sound state*. The battery checking method is described in "BAT-TERY ".

NOTE

*The battery that is used to test the output current should be one that has been rather discharged. With a fully charged battery, the test may not be conducted correctly due to an insufficient load.

(b) Check tension of the generator drive belt. The belt tension check method is described in "GROUP 11 -Service Adjustment Procedures".

- (2) Turn off the ignition switch.
- (3) Disconnect the battery ground cable.
- (4) Disconnect the generator output wire from the generator "B" terminal.
- (5) Connect a DC ammeter (0 to 100A) in series between the "B" terminal and the disconnected output wire. Connect the (+) lead of the ammeter to the ''B'' terminal and connect the (-) lead wire to the disconnected output wire. NOTE

Tighten each connection by bolt and nut securely as a heavy current will flow. Do not relay on clips.

- (6) Connect a voltmeter (0 to 20V) between the "B" terminal and ground. Connect the (+) lead wire to the generator "B" terminal and (-) lead wire to a sound ground.
- (7) Set the engine tachometer and connect the battery ground cable.
- (8) Leave the engine hood open.



Test

(1) Check to see that the voltmeter reads the same value as the battery voltage.

If the voltmeter reads OV, an open circuit in the wire between the generator "B" terminal and battery (-) terminal, a blown fusible link or poor grounding is suspected.

- (2) Turn on the headlight switch and start the engine.
- (3) Set the headlight at high beam and the heater blower switch at HIGH, quickly increase the engine speed to 2,500 rpm and read the maximum output current value indicated by the ammeter.

NOTE

After the engine start up, the charging current quickly drops, therefore, above operation must be done quickly to read maximum current value correctly.

Result

(1) The ammeter reading must be higher than the limit value. If it is lower but the generator output wire is normal, remove the generator from the vehicle and check it.

Limit value: 52.5A min.

Caution

- (a) The nominal output current value is shown on the nameplate affixed to the generator body.
- (b) The output current value changes with the electrical load and the temperature of the generator itself.

Therefore, the nominal output current may not be obtained if the vehicle electrical load at the time of test is small. In such a case, keep the headlights on to cause discharge of the battery or use lights of another vehicle as a load to increase the electrical load. The nominal output current may not be obtained if the temperature of the generator itself or ambient temperature is too high. In such a case, reduce the temperature before testing again.

- (2) Upon completion of the output current test, lower the engine speed to the idle speed and turn off the ignition switch.
- (3) Disconnect the battery ground cable.
- (4) Remove the test ammeter and voltmeter and the engine tachometer.
- (5) Connect the alternator output wire to the generator "B" terminal.
- (6) Connect the battery ground cable.

REGULATED VOLTAGE TEST

The purpose of this test is to check that the electronic voltage regulator controls the voltage correctly.

Preparation

- (1) Prior to the test, check the following items and correct if necessary.
 - (a) Check the battery installed on the vehicle to see that it is fully charged. For battery checking method, see "BATTERY".
 - (b) Check the generator drive belt tension. For belt tension check, see "GROUP 11 -Service Adjustment Procedures".

- (2) Turn the ignition switch to "OFF".
- (3) Disconnect the battery ground cable.
- (4) Connect a digital voltmeter between the "S" terminal of the generator and ground. Connect the (+) lead of the voltmeter to the "S" terminal of the generator, inserting from the wire side of the 2-way connector and connect the (-) lead to sound ground or battery (-) terminal.



6EL252

- (5) Disconnect the generator output wire from the generator "B" terminal.
- (6) Connect a DC ammeter (0 to 100A) in series between the "B" terminal and the disconnected output wire. Connect the (+) lead of the ammeter to the "B" terminal and connect the (-) lead wire to the disconnected output wire.
- (7) Set the engine tachometer and connect the battery ground cable.

Test

(1) Turn on the ignition switch and check that the voltmeter indicates the following value.

Voltage: Battery voitage

- If it reads OV, there is an open circuit in the wire between the generator "S" terminal and the battery (+) or the fusible link is blown.
- (2) Start the engine. Keep all lights and accessories Off.
- (3) Run the engine at a speed of about 2,500 rpm and read the voltmeter when the generator output current drops to 1 OA or less.

Result

(1) If the voltmeter reading agrees with the value listed in the regulating voltage table below, the voltage regulator is functioning correctly. If the reading is other than the standard value, the voltage regulator or the generator is faulty.

Voltage regulator ambient temperature °C (°F)	Regulating voltage V
-20 (-4)	14.2-15.4
20 (68)	13.9-14.9
60 (140)	13.4-14.6
80 (176)	13.1-14.5

(2) Upon completion of the test, set the engine speed at idle and turn off the ignition switch.

(3) Disconnect the battery ground cable.

(4) Remove the test voltmeter and ammeter and the engine tachometer.

(5) Connect the generator output wire to the generator "B" terminal.

(6) Connect the battery ground cable.

GENERATOR

M16EJAUa

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



DISASSEMBLY AND REASSEMBLY











1. REMOVAL OF GENERATOR PULLEY

- (1) Clamp the rotor in a vise with soft jaws.
- (2) After removing the nut, remove the pulley and front bracket from the rotor.

7. REMOVAL OF STATOR

- (1) When removing stator, unsolder three stator leads soldered to maindiodes on rectifier.
- (2) When removing rectifier from brush holder, unsolder two soldered points to rectifier.

Caution

- (1) When soldering or unsoldering, use care to make sure that heat of soldering iron is not transmitted to diodes for a long period. Finish soldering or unsoldering in as short a time as possible.
- (2) Use *care* that no undue force is exerted to leads of diodes.

INSPECTION

ROTOR

6EL0094

(1) Check rotor coil for continuity. Check to ensure that there is continuity between slip rings.

If resistance is extremely small, it means that there is a short. If there is no continuity or if there is short circuit, replace rotor assembly.

Resistance value: Approx. $3-5\Omega$

(2) Check rotor coil for grounding. Check to ensure that there is no continuity between slip ring and core. If there is continuity, replace rotor assembly.

STATOR

 Make continuity test on stator coil. Check to ensure that there is continuity between coil leads. If there is no continuity, replace stator assembly.

CHARGING SYSTEM - Generator



(2) Check coil for grounding. Check to ensure that there is no continuity between coil and core. If there is continuity, replace stator assembly.

RECTIFIERS

(1) Positive Rectifier Test

Check for continuity between positive rectifier and stator coil lead connection terminal with a circuit tester. If there is continuity in both directions, diode is shorted. Replace rectifier assembly.

(2) Negative Rectifier Test

Check for continuity between negative rectifier and stator coil lead connection terminal. If there is continuity in both direction, diode is shorted, and rectifier assembly must be replaced.

(3) Diode Trio Test

Check three diodes for continuity by connecting an ammeter to both ends of each diode. If there is no continuity in both directions, diode is faulty and heatsink assembly must be replaced.

BRUSH REPLACEMENT

(1) Replace brush by the following procedures if it has been worn to limit line.



(2) Unsolder pigtail and remove old brush and spring.

(3) Install brush spring and new brush in brush holder. (4) Insert the brush to where there is a space 2 to 3 mm (.079 to 118 in.) between the limit line and the end of the brush

(5) Solder pigtail to brush holder as shown in the illustration.

SERVICE POINTS OF REASSEMBLY 2. INSTALLATION OF ROTOR ASSEMBLY

Before rotor is attached to rear bracket, insert wire through small hole made in rear bracket to lift brush. After rotor has been installed, remove the wire.

STARTING SYSTEM

SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

STARTER MOTOR

Up to 1990 models

M16FB--

Items	SOHC-M/T	SOHC-A/T, DOHC
Туре	Direct drrve	Reduction drive (with planetary gear)
Identification No.	M3T41081	M 1 T7048 1
Part No.	MD100431	MD099667
Rated output kW/V	¢.9∕1 2	1.2/12
No. of pinion teeth	8	8

1991 models SOHC

Items	M/T	A/T
Type Identification No. Part No Rated output kW/V	Direct drive M3T41083 MD1 62837 0.9/12	Reduction drive (with planetary gear) M1T73381*1/M1T73383*2 MD162840*1/MD172861*2 1.2/12
No of pinion teeth	8	8

DOHC

Items	M/T	A/T
Type	Reduction drive (with planetary gear)	Reduction drive (with planetary gear)
Identification No.	M3T70481*1/M1T70483*2	M1T73381*1/M1T73383*2
Part No.	MD162839*1/MD172860*2	MD162840*1/MD172861*2
Rated output kW/V	1.2/12	1.2/12
No of pinion teeth	8	8

NOTE

I: Vehicles built up to Dec. 1990
 Vehicles built from Jan. 1991

1992 models SOHC

Items	M/T	A/T
Type	Reduction drive (with planetary gear)	Reduction drive (with planetary gear)
Identification No.	M3T41083	M1T73383
Part No.	MD1 62837	MD172861
Rated output kW/V	1.2/12	1.2/12
No. of pinion teeth	8	8

DOHC

Items	M/T	A/T
Type	Reduction drive (with planetary gear)	Reduction drive (with planetary gear)
Identification No.	M1T70483	M1T73383
Part No.	MD1 72860	MD172861
Rated output kW/V1	.2/ 1 2	1.2/12
No. of pinion teeth	8	8

1993 models SOHC

Items	MIT	A/T
Type	Reduction drive (with planetary gear)	Reduction drive (with planetary gear)
Identification No.	M1T70483	M 1 T73383
Part No.	MD172860	MD1 72861
Rated output kW/V	I.2/1 2	1.2/12
No. of pinion teeth	8	8

DOHC

Items	M/T
Туре	Reduction drive (with planetary gear)
Identification No.	M1 T70483
Part No.	MD172860
Rated output kW/V	1.2/1 2
No. of pinion teeth	8

SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS

M16FC--

Items	Specifications
Standard value	
Starter motor	
Direct drive type	
Free running characteristics	
Terminal voltage V	11.5
Current A	60 or less
Speed rpm	6,600 or more
Pinion gap mm (in.)	0.5-2.0 (.020079)
Commutator runout mm (in.)	0.05 (.002)
Commutator diameter mm (in.)	32 (1.26)
Undercut depth mm (in.)	0.5 (.020)
Reduction drive type	
Free running characteristics	
Terminal voltage V	11
Current A	90 or less
Speed rpm	3,000 or more
Pinion gap mm (in.)	0.5-2.0 (.020079)
Commutator runout mm (in.)	0.05 (.002)
Commutator diameter mm (in.)	29.4 (1.1 58)
Undercut depth mm (in.)	0.5 (.020)
_imit	
Direct drive type	
Commutator runout mm (in.)	0.1 (.004)
Commutator diameter mm (in.)	31 (1.22)
Reduction drive type	
Commutator runout mm (in.)	0.1 (.004)
Commutator diameter mm (in.)	28.4 (1 .118)

TROUBLESHOOTING

OUTING

STARTING CIRCUIT

CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

Vehicles without theft-alarm system



OPERATION

• For models equipped with the M/T, the clutch pedal position switch contact is switched OFF when the clutch pedal is depressed; when the ignition switch is then switched to the "ST" position, electricity flows to the starter relay and the starter motor, the contact (magnetic switch) of the starter is switched ON and the starter motor is activated.

NOTE

If the ignition switch is switched to the "ST" position without the clutch pedal being de-

pressed, electricity flows to the starter relay (coil), the clutch pedal position switch (contacts) and to ground, with the result that the contacts of the starter relay are switched OFF, and, because the power to the starter motor is thereby interrupted, the starter motor is not activated.

• For models equipped with the A/T, when the ignition switch is switched to the "ST" position while the selector lever is at the "P" or "N" position, the contact (magnetic switch) of the starter is switched ON and the starter motor is activated.

Vehicles with theft-alarm system



TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

- 1. The starter motor does not operate at all.
 - Check the starter (coil).
 - Check for poor contact at the battery terminals.
- 2. The starter motor doesn't stop.
 - Check the starter (magnetic switch).

NOTE

For information concerning the starter relay and theft-alarm starter relay, refer to P.16-21, 22 and for the theft-alarm system, refer to P.54-165.

STARTER MOTOR

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



M16FJAW



(5) If pinion gap is out of specification, adjust by adding or removing gaskets between magnetic switch and front bracket.

PULL-IN TEST OF MAGNETIC SWITCH

- (1) Disconnect field coil wire from M-terminal of magnetic switch.
- (2) Connect a 12V battery between S-terminal and M-terminal. Caution

This test must be performed quickly (in less than 10 seconds) to prevent coil from burning.

(3) If pinion moves out, then pull-in coil is good. If it doesn't, replace magnetic switch.

HOLD-IN TEST OF MAGNETIC SWITCH

- (1) Disconnect field coil wire from M-terminal of magnetic switch.
- (2) Connect a 12V battery between S-terminal and body. **Caution**

This test must be performed quickly (in less than 10 seconds) to prevent coil from burning.

(3) If pinion remains out, everything is in order. If pinion moves in, hold-in circuit is open. Replace magnetic switch.

FREE RUNNING TEST

- Place starter motor in a vise equipped with soft jaws and connect a fully-charged 12-volt battery to starter motor as follows:
- (2) Connect a test ammeter (100-ampere scale) and carbon pile rheostat in series with battery positive post and starter motor terminal.
- (3) Connect a voltmeter (15-volt scale) across starter motor.
- (4) Rotate carbon pile to full-resistance position.
- (5) Connect battery cable from batten/ negative post to starter motor body.
- (6) Adjust the rheostat until the battery voltage shown by the voltmeter is 11.5V (for the direct-drive type) or 11V (for the reduction-drive type).
- (7) Confirm that the maximum amperage is within the specifications and that the starter motor turns smoothly and freely.

Current: Max. 60 Amps (Direct drive type) Max. 90 Amps (Reduction drive type)



RETURN TEST OF MAGNETIC SWITCH

- (1) Disconnect field coil wire from M-terminal of magnetic switch.
- (2) Connect a 12V

Caution

This test must be performed quickly (in less than 10 seconds) to prevent coil from burning.

(3) Pull pinion out and release. If pinion quickly returns to its original position, everything is in order. If it doesn't, replace magnetic switch.

STARTER RELAY

- (1) Remove the starter relay from the underside of the relay box.
- (2) Connect battery to terminal 2 and check continuity between terminals with terminal 4 grounded.

Power is supplied	1–3 terminals	No continuity
Power is not	1-3 terminals	Continuity
supplied	2-4 terminals	Continuity

16-22

STARTING SYSTEM - Starter Motor



THEFT-ALARM STARTER RELAY

- (1) Remove the theft-alarm starter relay from the indoor relay box.
- (2) Connect battery to terminal 2 and check continuity between terminals with terminal 4 grounded.

Power is supplied	1-3 terminals	Continuity
Devuer is not evention	1-3 terminals	No continuity
Power is not supplied	2-4 terminals	Continuity

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION 2. INSTALLATION OF STARTER MOTOR

Clean both surfaces of starter motor flange and rear plate.

STARTER MOTOR (DIRECT DRIVE TYPE)

DISASSEMBLY AND REASSEMBLY



16-24



SERVICE POINTS OF DISASSEMBLY 2. REMOVAL OF MAGNETIC SWITCH

Disconnect field coil wire from "M" terminal of magnetic switch.

9. REMOVAL OF BRUSH HOLDER ASSEMBLY

Slide the two brushes from brush holder by prying retaining springs back.

14. REMOVAL OF SNAP RING/ 15. STOP RING

(1) Press stop ring off snap ring with a suitable socket.

(2) Remove snap ring with snap ring pliers and then remove stop ring and overrunning clutch.

CLEANING STARTER MOTOR PARTS

- 1. Do not immerse parts in cleaning solvent. Immersing the yoke and field coil assembly and/or armature will damage insulation. Wipe these parts with a cloth only.
- 2. Do not immerse drive unit in cleaning solvent. Overrunning clutch is pre-lubricated at the factory and solvent will wash lubrication from clutch.
- 3. The drive unit may be cleaned with a brush moistened with cleaning solvent and wiped dry with a cloth.



16-26



BRUSH HOLDER

Check the continuity between brush holder plate and brush holder.

If there is no continuity, the brush holder is in order.

OVERRUNNING CLUTCH

- 1. While holding clutch housing, rotate the pinion. Drive pinion should rotate smoothly in one direction, but should not rotate in opposite direction. If clutch does not function properly, replace overrunning clutch assembly.
- 2. Inspect pinion for wear or burrs. If pinion is worn or burred, replace overrunning clutch assembly. If pinion is damaged, also inspect ring gear for wear or burrs.

FRONT AND REAR BRACKET BUSHING

Inspect bushing for wear or burrs. If bushing is worn or burred, replace front bracket assembly or rear bracket assembly.



BRUSHES AND SPRINGS-REPLACEMENT

- 1. Brushes that are worn beyond wear limit line, or are oil-soaked, should be replaced.
- 2. When replacing field coil brushed, crush worn brush with pliers, taking care not to damage pigtail.
- 3. Sand pigtail end with sandpaper to ensure good soldering.
- Insert pigtail into hole provided in new brush and solder it. Make sure that pigtail and excess solder do not come out onto brush surface.
- 5. When replacing ground brush, slide the brush from brush holder by prying retaining spring back.



TESTING ARMATURE TESTING ARMATURE FOR SHORT-CIRCUIT

- 1. Place armature in a growler.
- 2. Hold a thin steel blade parallel and just above while rotating armature slowly in growler. A shorted armature will cause blade to vibrate and be attracted to the core. Replace shot-ted armature.

TESTING ARMATURE COIL FOR GROUNDING

Check the insulation between each commutator segment and armature coil core.

If there is no continuity, the insulation is in order.

INSPECTION OF ARMATURE COIL CONTINUITY

Check the continuity between segments. If there is continuity, the coil is in order.



SERVICE POINTS OF REASSEMBLY 15. INSTALLATION OF STOP RING/14. SNAP RING

Using a suitable pulling tool, pull overrunning clutch stop ring over snap ring.



SERVICE POINTS OF DISASSEMBLY

9. REMOVAL OF ARMATURE/ 11. BALL

Caution

When removing the armature, take care not to lose the ball (which is used as a bearing) in the armature end.



17. REMOVAL OF SNAP RING/18. STOP RING

(1) Press the stop ring, by using an appropriate socket wrench, to the snap ring side.

(2) After removing the snap ring (by using snap-ring pliers), remove the stop ring and the overrunning clutch.

CLEANING STARTER MOTOR PARTS

- 1. Do not immerse parts in cleaning solvent. Immersing the yoke and field coil assembly and/or armature will damage insulation. Wipe these parts with a cloth only.
- 2. Do not immerse drive unit in cleaning solvent. Overrunning clutch is pm-lubricated at the factory and solvent will wash lubrication from clutch.
- 3. The drive unit may be cleaned with a brush moistened with cleaning solvent and wiped dry with a cloth.



INSPECTION

CHECKING THE COMMUTATOR

(1) Place the armature on a pair of V-blocks, and check the deflection by using a dial gauge.

Standard value: 0.05 mm (.0020 in.) Limit: 0.1 mm (.0040 in.)

(2) Check the outer diameter of the commutator Standard value: 29.4 mm (1.158 in.) Limit: 28.4 mm (1.118 in.) 16-30



(3) Check the depth of the undercut between segments. Standard value: 0.5 mm (.020 in.)

BRUSH HOLDER

Check for continuity between the brush holder plate and the brush holder.

The normal condition is non-continuity.

OVERRUNNING CLUTCH

- 1. While holding clutch housing, rotate the pinion. Drive pinion should rotate smoothly in one direction, but should not rotate in opposite direction. If clutch does not function properly, replace overrunning clutch assembly.
- 2. Inspect pinion for wear or burrs. If pinion is worn or burred, replace overrunning clutch assembly. If pinion is damaged, also inspect ring gear for wear or burrs.

FRONT AND REAR BRACKET BUSHING

Inspect bushing for wear or burrs. If bushing is worn or burred, replace front bracket assembly or rear bracket assembly.



REPLACEMENT OF BRUSHES AND SPRINGS

- 1. Brushes that are worn beyond wear limit line, or oil-soaked, should be replaced.
- 2. When replacing field coil brushes, crush worn brush with pliers, taking care not to damage pigtail.



1EL012



6EL0099

TSB Revision

3. Sand pigtail end with sandpaper to ensure good soldering.

16-31

- 4. Insert pigtail into hole provided in new brush and solder it. Make sure that pigtail and excess solder do no come out onto brush surface.
- 5. When replacing ground brush, slide the brush from brush holder by prying retaining spring back.

TESTING ARMATURE TESTING ARMATURE FOR SHORT-CIRCUIT

- 1. Place armature in a growler.
- 2. Hold a thin steel blade parallel and just above while rotating armature slowly in growler. A shorted armature will cause blade to vibrate and be attracted to the core. Replace shorted armature.

TESTING ARMATURE FOR GROUNDING

Check the insulation between the armature coil cores and the commutator segments. They are normal if there is no continuity.

CHECKING FOR ARMATURE COIL WIRING DAMAGE/ DISCONNECTION

Check for continuity between segments. The condition is normal if there is continuity.

SERVICE POINTS OF REASSEMBLY 18. INSTALLATION OF STOP **RING/17**. SNAP RING

Using a suitable pulling tool, pull overrunning clutch stop ring over snap ring.

IGNITION SYSTEM

SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS DISTRIBUTOR

M16GB--

ltems	SOHC 16 VALVE	SOHC 8 VALVE
Туре	With a built-in crankshaft position sensor and ignition coil	Contact pointless type
Identification No.	T6T58271	T3T64174/T2T53372*
Part No.	MD188610	MD125516/MD156722*
Advance mechanism	Controlled by engine control module	Controlled by engine control module
Firing order	1-3-4-2	1-3-4-2

*: <From 1991 models>

CRANKSHAFT POSITION SENSOR

Items	ООНС
Type	Contact pointless type
Identification No.	T1T49071/T1T49571*
Part No.	MD121786/MD148855*
Advance mechanism	Controlled by engine control module
Firing order	1-3-4-2

*: <From 1991 models>

IGNITION COIL

Items	SOHC 8 VALVE	DOHC
Type Identification No. Part No.	Mold single-coil F-088 MD104696	Mold dual-coil F-089 MD126461/MD149766* ¹ MD158956* ²

*1:<1 990 models>

*2: <From 1991 models>

IGNITION POWER TRANSISTOR

Items	SOHC 8 VALVE	DOHC
Identification No.	J121	J122/J722T*
Part No.	MD104697	MD127742/MD149768*

*: <From 1990 models>

SPARK PLUG

Manufacturer	SOHC 16 VALVE	SOHC 8 VALVE, DOHC-Non turbo	DOHC-Turbo
NGK	BKR5E-11	BPR6ES-11	BPR6ES
NIPPON DENSO	K16PR-U11	W20EPR-11	W20EPR
CHAMPION	RC12YC4	RN9YC4	RN9YC

SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS

ltems	Specifications
Standard value	
Basic ignition timing at curb idle speed	$5^{\circ}BTDC \pm 2^{\circ}$
Actual ignition timing at curb idle speed	
<sohc></sohc>	10°BTDC
<dohc></dohc>	8°BTDC Non-turbo
	12°BTDC Turbo
Ignition coil	
Primary coil resistance at 20°C(68°F) Ω	
<sohc></sohc>	0.72–0.88
<dohc></dohc>	0.77-0.95
Secondary coil resistance at 20°C(68°F) k $oldsymbol{\Omega}$	
<sohc></sohc>	10.89–13.31
<dohc></dohc>	10.3–13.9
Spark plug gap mm (in.)	1.0–1.1 (.39–.43)

TROUBLESHOOTING COMPONENT LOCATION

N a m e	Symbol
MFI control unit	A





M16GC--

M16GHANb





TSB Revision














(Insert at the side opposite the lock tab.) lock tab side.) 01L0246

(Insert at the





SERVICE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURES **IGNITION TIMING ADJUSTMENT FOR SOHC** ENGINE M16GILla

- 1. The vehicle should be prepared as follows before the inspection and adjustment.
 - Engine coolant temperature: 85-95°C (185-205°F)
- Lights, electric cooling fan and accessories: OFF
- Steering wheel: neutral position
- Transaxle: neutral (N of P for A/T)
- 2. Insert the paper clip from wire side of the connector and connect a tachometer to the paper clip.
- Or connect the scan tool to the data link connector.
- 3. Connect a timing light.

Caution

- 1. The connector contact should not be separated.
- 2. The paper clip should be inserted along the terminal surface.
- 3. The paper clip should be inserted at the correct side. If it is inserted incorrectly, the paper clip may become caught and cannot be removed.

For male pin: Insert to the lock tab side. For female pin: Insert to the side opposite the lock tab side.

- 4. Start and run the engine at curb idle speed.
- 5. Check curb idle speed.

Curb idle speed: 750 \pm 100 rpm (8 VALVE) 700 ± 100 rpm (16 VALVE)

- 6. Turn the ignition switch OFF.
- 7. With the engine stopped, connect a jumper wire clips to the terminal for ignition-timing adjustment and ground it. NOTE

Grounding the terminal for ignition timing adjustment will cause the ignition timing to enter the basic state.

16-40

IGNITION SYSTEM – Service Adjustment Procedures











- 8. Start and run the engine at curb idle speed.
 - 9. Check basic ignition timing and adjust if necessary.
 - Basic ignition timing: $5^{\circ}BTDC \pm 2^{\circ}$

- 10. If not within the standard value range, loosen the distributor mounting nut and adjust by turning the distributor. Turning it clockwise retards the timing and turning it counterclockwise advances it.
- 11. After adjustment make sure that the distributor is secure. Be sure to tighten the fastening nut properly.
- 12. Stop the engine.
- 13. Disconnect the lead wire connected at step 7.
- 14. Start and run the engine at curb idle speed.
- 15. Check to be sure that the idling ignition timing is the correct timing.

Actual ignition timing: 10°BTDC

NOTE

- 1. Ignition timing may vary slightly but this is not a problem.
- 2. There may be more spark advance at high altitudes, but this is not a problem.

IGNITION TIMING ADJUSTMENT FOR DOHC ENGINE M16GIIIa

- 1. The vehicle should be prepared as follows before the inspection and adjustment.
- Engine coolant temperature: 85–95°C (185–205°F)
- · Lights, electric cooling fan and accessories: OFF
- Steering wheel: neutral position
- Transaxle: neutral
- Insert the paper clip from wire side of the connector and connect a tachometer to the paper clip. NOTE
 - 1. Don't use the scan tool.
 - 2. If the scan tool is left attached to the data link connector, ignition timing will become normal ignition timing. It will not enter the basic ignition timing.
- 3. Connect a timing light.



Caution

- 1. The connector **contact** should not be separated.
- 2. The paper clip should be inserted along the terminal surface.
- 3. The paper clip should be inserted at the correct side. If it is inserted incorrectly, the paper clip may become caught and cannot be removed.

For male pin: **Insert** to the lock tab side. For female pin: Insert to the side opposite the lock **tab** side.

- 4. Start and run the engine at curb idle speed.
- 5. Check curb idle speed.

Curb idle speed: 750 \pm 100 rpm

NOTE

<From 1990 models>

For rpm, one-half of the actual engine rpm is indicated, so the actual engine rpm in two times the indicated value shown by the tachometer.

- 6. Turn the ignition switch OFF.
- With the engine stopped, connect a jumper wire clips to the terminal for ignition-timing adjustment and ground it. NOTE

Grounding the terminal for ignition timing adjustment will cause the ignition timing to enter the basic state.

- 8. Start and run the engine at curb idle speed.
- Check basic ignition timing and adjust if necessary.
 Basic ignition timing: 5°BTDC ± 2"

- 10. If not within the standard value range, loosen the crankshaft position sensor mounting nut and adjust by turning the crankshaft position sensor. Turning it clockwise advances the timing and turning it counterclockwise retards it.
- 11. After adjustment make sure that the distributor is secure. Be sure to tighten the fastening nut properly.
- 12. Stop the engine.
- 13. Disconnect the lead wire connected at step 7.

TSB Revision

<u>6ELÕO34</u>

6EL0033



ារារ

- 14. Start and run the engine at curb idle speed.
- 15. Check to be sure that the idling ignition timing is the correct timing.

Actual ignition timing: 8°BTDC Non-turbo 12°BTDC Turbo

NOTE

- 1. Ignition timing may vary slightly but this is not a problem.
- 2. There may be more spark advance at high altitudes, but this is not a problem.

SPARK PLUG CABLE TEST

M16GIGJa

(1) Disconnect, one at a time, each of the spark plug cables while the engine is idling to check whether the engine's running performance changes or not.

Caution

10

Wear rubber gloves while doing so.

(2) If the engine performance does not change, check the resistance of the spark plug cable, and check the spark plug itself.

SPARK PLUG TEST

- (1) Remove the spark plug and connect to the spark plug cable.
- (2) Ground the spark plug outer electrode (body), and crank the engine.
 Check to be sure that there is an electrical discharge
 - Check to be sure that there is an electrical discharge between the electrodes at this time.



HIGH TENSION CABLE SPARK TEST $<\!\!\!\text{SOHC-8}$ VALVE>

- (1) Disconnect the high-tension cable from the distributor cap.
- (2) Hold the high tension cable about 6-8 mm (.24-.31 in.) away from engine proper (grounding portion such as cylinder block) and crank engine to verify that sparks are produced.

TSB Revision

 $\diamond \phi$

IGNITION SYSTEM

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION <SOHC-8 VALVE>



TSB Revision

M16GJAPa

16-44



SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

1. REMOVAL OF SPARK PLUG CABLE/3. HIGH TENSION CABLE

When disconnecting cable, hold cap.

INSPECTION SPARK PLUG

- (1) Check the following items to see that electrodes are not burnt, and insulators are not broken, and how porcelain insulator is burnt.
 - Broken insulators
 - Wearing electrodes
 - Deposited carbon For cleaning, use a plug cleaner or wire brush. Clean porcelain insulator above shell as well.
 - Damaged or broken gasket.
 - Burnt condition of porcelain insulator at spark gap. Dark deposit of carbon indicates too rich a fuel mixture or extremely low air intake. Also, misfiring due to excessive spark gap is suspected. White burn indicates too lean a fuel mixture or excessively advanced ignition timing. Also insufficient plug tightening is suspected.
- (2) Clean with a plug cleaner. Use an air gun to remove dust deposited on plug threads.
- (3) Check plug gap using a plug gap gauge and adjust if it is not as specified.

Standard value: 1.0-1.1 mm (.039-.043 in.)

SPARK PLUG CABLE

- (1) Check cap and coating for cracks.
- (2) Measure resistance.

Unit: kΩ

High tonsion cable	Spark plug cable					
High tension cable	No. 1	No. 2	No. 3	No. 4		
Approx. 2.7	10.1	11.8	11.8	14.2		







IGNITION COIL

(1) Measurement of the primary coil resistance Measure the resistance of the positive (+) terminal and negative (-) terminal of the ignition coil.

Standard value: $0.72 - 0.88 \Omega$

(2) Measurement of the secondary coil resistance Measure the resistance of the positive (+) terminal and the high-voltage terminal.

Standard value: 10.89 – 13.31 k Ω

IGNITION POWER TRANSISTOR

NOTE

An analog-type circuit tester should be used.

(1) Connect the negative (-) terminal of the 1.5V power supply to terminal 2 of the ignition power transistor; then check whether there is continuity between terminal 3 and terminal ② when terminal ① and the positive (+) terminal are connected and disconnected.

NOTE

Connect the negative (-) probe of the circuit tester to terminal (3).

Terminal (1) and (+) terminal	Terminal ③ and terminal ②
Connected	Continuity
Unconnected	No continuity

(2) Replace the ignition power transistor if there is a malfunction.



SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

- 4. INSTALLATION OF DISTRIBUTOR
 - (1) Turn the crankshaft so that the No. 1 cylinder is at top dead center.
 - (2) Align the distributor housing and gear mating marks.

(3) Install the distributor to the engine while aligning the fine cut (groove or projection) of the distributor's installation flange with the center of the distributor installation stud.

1. INSTALLATION OF SPARK PLUG CABLE

Improper arrangement of spark plug cables will induce voltage between the cables, causing miss firing and developing a surge at acceleration in high-speed operation. Therefore, be careful to arrange the spark plug cables properly by the following procedure.

- 1. Install the spark plug cable clamps as shown in the illustration.
- 2. The numerals on the support and clamp indicate the spark plug cable No.
- 3. Pay attention to the following items when the spark plug cables are installed.
 - (1) Install the cables securely to avoid possible contact with metal parts.
 - (2) Install the cables neatly, ensuring they are not too tight, loose, twisted or kinked.



IGNITION SYSTEM

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION <SOHC-16 valve>



INSPECTION

SPARK PLUG

Refer to P.16-45 for inspection procedures.

SPARK PLUG CABLE

- (1) Check cap and coating for cracks.
- (2) Measure resistance.

Unit: $k\Omega$

Spark plug cable)		
No.1	No.2	No.3	No.4
12.6	11.7	9.4	8.5



IGNITION SYSTEM - Ignition System

IGNITION COIL

 Measurement of the primary coil resistance Measure the resistance of the positive terminal ⁽¹⁾ and negative terminal ⁽²⁾ of the ignition coil.

Standard value: 0.9–1.2 Ω

(2) Measurement of the secondary coil resistance Measure the resistance of the positive terminal ① and the high-voltage terminal.

Standard value: 20–29 k Ω

IGNITION POWER TRANSISTOR

NOTE

An analog-type circuit tester should be used.

(1) Connect the negative (-) terminal of the 1.5V power supply to terminal (5) of the ignition power transistor; then check whether there is continuity between terminal (5) and terminal (12) when terminal (6) and the positive (+) terminal are connected and disconnected.

NOTE

Connect the negative (-) probe of the circuit tester to terminal \mathfrak{D} .

Terminal (5) and terminal (1) inal	
Continuity	
No continuity	

(2) Replace the ignition power transistor if there is a malfunction.

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION 3. INSTALLATION OF DISTRIBUTOR

- (1) Turn the crankshaft so that the No. 1 cylinder is at top dead center.
- (2) Align the distributor housing and gear mating marks.

(3) Install the distributor to the engine while aligning the slot or groove of the distributor's installation flange with the distributor installation stud.



1. INSTALLATION OF SPARK PLUG CABLE

Improper arrangement of spark plug cables will induce voltage between the cables, causing miss firing and developing a surge at acceleration in high-speed operation. Therefore, be careful to arrange the spark plug cables properly by the following procedure.

- 1. Install the spark plug cable clams as shown in the illustration.
- 2. The numerals on the support and clamp indicate the spark plug cable No.
- 3. Pay attention to the following items when the spark plug cables are installed.
 - (1) Install the cables securely to avoid possible contact with metal parts.
 - (2) Install the cables neatly, ensuring they are not too tight, loose, twisted or kinked.







SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

2. REMOVAL OF SPARK PLUG CABLE

When disconnecting cable, hold cap.

INSPECTION SPARK PLUG Refer to P.16-44 for inspection procedures.

SPARK PLUG CABLE

- (1) Check cap and coating for cracks.
- (2) Measure resistance.

Unit: kΩ

Spark plug cable			
No . 1	No. 2	No. 3	No. 4
5.8	8.4	10.6	9.7



IGNITION COIL

1989 models

- (1) Measurement of the primary coil resistance.
- (2) Measure the resistance between connector terminals 4 and 2 (the coils at the No. 1 and No. 4 cylinder sides) of the ignition coil, and between terminals 4 and 1 (the coils at the No. 2 and No. 3 cylinder sides).

Standard value: $0.77 - 0.95 \Omega$

From 1990 models

- (1) Measurement of the primary coil resistance.
- (2) Measure the resistance between connector terminals 3 and 2 (the coils at the No. 1 and No. 4 cylinder sides) of the ignition coil, and between terminals 3 and 1 (the coils at the No. 2 and No. 3 cylinder sides).

Standard value: $0.77 - 0.95 \Omega$

IGNITION SYSTEM - Ignition System



- (3) Measurement of secondary coil resistance.
- (4) Measure the resistance between the high-voltage terminals for the No. 1 and No. 4 cylinders, and between the high-voltage terminals for the No. 2 and No. 3 cylinders.

Standard value: 10.3–13.9 k Ω

Caution

Be sure, when measuring the resistance of the secondary coil, to disconnect the connector of the ignition coil.

IGNITION POWER TRANSISTOR

1989 models

NOTE

An analog-type circuit tester should be used

No. I-No. 4 coil side

 Connect the negative (-) terminal of the 1.5V power supply to terminal ③ of the ignition power transistor; then check whether there is continuity between terminal ① and terminal ③ when terminal ② and the positive (+) terminal are connected and disconnected.

NOTE

Connect the negative (-) probe of the circuit tester to terminal (f).

Terminal 2 and (+) terminal	Terminal ① and terminal ③		
Connected	Continuity		
Unconnected	No continuity		



No. 2-No. 4 coil side

 Connect the negative (-) terminal of the 1.5V power supply to terminal ③ of the ignition power transistor; then check whether there is continuity between terminal ⑥ and terminal ③ when terminal ⑤ and the positive (+) terminal are connected and disconnected.

NOTE

Connect the negative (-) probe of the circuit tester to terminal 6.

Terminal (5) and (+) terminal	Terminal (6) and terminal (3)		
Connected	Continuity		
Unconnected	No continuity		

If the problem is still evident after checking as described above, replace the ignition power transistor.



From 1990 models

NOTE

An analog-type circuit tester should be used.

No. 1-No. 4 coil side

(1) Connect the negative (-) terminal of the 1.5V power supply to terminal ③ of the ignition power transistor; then check whether there is continuity between terminal ③ and terminal ⑧ when terminal ⑦ and the positive (+) terminal are connected and disconnected.

NOTE

Connect the negative (-) probe of the circuit tester to terminal (8).

Terminal ⑦ and (+) terminal	Terminal ③ and terminal ⑧
Connected	Continuity
Unconnected	No continuity



No. 2-No. 4 coil side

 Connect the negative (-) terminal of the 1.5V power supply to terminal ③ of the ignition power transistor; then check whether there is continuity between terminal ① and terminal ③ when terminal ② and the positive (+) terminal are connected and disconnected.

NOTE

Connect the negative (-) probe of the circuit tester to terminal (1).

Terminal (2) and (+) terminal	Terminal ① and terminal ③
Connected	Continuity
Unconnected	No continuity

If the problem is still evident after checking as described above, replace the ignition power transistor.



2. INSTALLATION OF SPARK PLUG CABLE Improper arrangement of spark plug cables will induce voltage between the cables, causing miss firing and developing a surge at acceleration in high-speed operation. Therefore, be careful to arrange the spark plug cables properly by the following procedure. 1. Install the spark plug cable clamps as shown in the illustration. 2. The numerals on the support and clamp indicate the spark plug cable No. 3. Pay attention to the following items when the spark plug cables are installed. (1) Install the cables securely to avoid possible contact with metal parts. (2) Install the cables neatly, ensuring they are not too tight, loose, twisted or kinked. ٩ "The spark plug cables should each be routed in the directions indicated by the arrows on the rocker cover. ୍ଦି Ο ්ම **(4)** 3 00 Or ◙ 30 The height should be the same as the bolt head. μ P view

6E 10108

 $\left(\begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \right)$

00

16-54

DISTRIBUTOR <SOHC> DISASSEMBLY AND REASSEMBLY

M16GKCDa





INSPECTION

Check the following points; repair or replace if a problem is found.

CAP ROTOR

- (1) There must be no cracking in the cap.
- (2) There must be no damage to the cap's electrode or the rotor's electrode.
- (3) Clean away any dirt from the cap and rotor.

TSB Revision

6EL093

SERVICE POINTS OF REASSEMBLY

Take out and clean the disassembled parts. Do not use cleaning oil or similar products for cleaning.

7. REASSEMBLY OF GEAR

(1) Align with the mark made at the time of disassembly, and install the gear to the distributor shaft.



(2) When aligning the driven gear's mating mark and the housing's mating marks, make the combination so that notch "A" at the shaft end is at the position shown in the figure, and then align the spring pin hole and drive in a new spring pin.

Caution

Drive in the spring pin so that the slits are at a right angle relative to the shaft.

NOTES

CHASSIS ELECTRICAL

CONTENTS

WASHER

AUDIO SYSTEM	112
Antenna Assembly	153
Feeder Cable	155
Power Amplifier	151
Radio and Tape Player	49
Service Adjustment Procedures	148
Speaker	151
Specifications	1 12
Torque Specifications	1 12
Troubleshooting	1 12
BATTERY	2
Service Adjustment Procedures	4
Specifications	2
General Specifications	2
Troubleshooting	3
	100
Cigarette Lighter	100
	108
Specifications	106
	100
i roubleshooting	106
CLOCK	109
Specifications	109
General Specifications	109
Troubleshooting	109
COLUMN SWITCH	100
Column Switch	101
Specifications	100
General Specifications	100
Torque Specifications	100
HORN	103
Horn	105
Relay	105
Specifications	103
General Specifications	103
Troubleshooting	104
	6
Ignition Switch	6
	0
	36
Fog Light	94
Fog Light Switch	99
	98
Headlights	92
High iviounted Stop Light	96
Rear Combination Light	95

Relay					97
Rheostat					99
Service Adjustment Procedures					89
Special Tools					40
Specifications					38
General Specifications					20
Sectorial Specifications		•••••			30
Sealants and Adhesives	•••••		•••••		40
Service Specifications		•••••			40
I roubleshooting					41
METERS AND GAUGES					8
Meters and Gauges					33
Service Adjustment Procedures					29
Inspection					29
Specifications					-0-8
General Specifications					8
Sealants and Adhesives					10
Service Specifications					01
Torque Specifications					10
					10
I roubleshooting	•••••		•••••		12
REAR WINDOW DEFOGGER					156
Defogger Relay					163
Defogger Timer					164
Rear Window Defogger Switch					163
Service Adjustment Procedures					162
Troubleshooting					156
THEFT ALADM SVETEM					100
Created Table		•••••			165
	•••••				165
I roubleshooting					165
ACTIVE-ELECTRONIC CONTROL					
SUSPENSION	REFER		ROU	P 3	3B
AIR CONDITIONING	REFER	то	GRO	UP	55
ANTI-LOCK BRAKING SYSTEM	. REFER	то	GRO	UP	35
AUTO-CRUISE CONTROL		T 0			
SYSIEM	REFER	10	GRO	UP	13
CENTRAL DOOR LOCKING	DEEED	то	CDO	ю	42
		10	GRU	JF	42
DOOR MIRROR	RFFFR	то	GRO	IP	51
HEATER	REFER	τõ	GROI	IP	55
POWER WINDOW	REFER	τÕ	GROI	IP	42
RADIATOR FAN MOTOR	REFER	TO	GRO	IP	14
SFAT RELT (ALITOMATIC		.0	01.01		
SEAT BELT)	REFER	то	GRO	JP	52
SUNROOF	REFER	то	GROI	JP	42
WINDSHIELD WIPER AND			2		

54-1

M5404...

BATTERY

SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

M54EB--

BATTERY

Items	Specifications
Туре	55B24R(S)-MF
Ampere hours (5HR) Ah	40
Cranking rating [at -17.8°C(0°F)] A	433
Reserve capacity min.	79

NOTES

1. CRANKING RATING is the current a battery can deliver for 30 seconds and maintain a terminal voltage of 7.2 or

greater at a specified temperature.
 RESERVE CAPACITY RATING is the amount of time a battery can deliver 25A and maintain a minimum terminal voltage of 10.5 at 26.7°C (80°F).

TROUBLESHOOTING BATTERY TESTING PROCEDURE

	Т	EST STEP			RESUL	т	ACTION TO TAKE
AO VISUAL INSPECTION							
• Remove negative cable, then positive cable.		T	Ø	CLEAN terminals and clamps. GO to Al.			
• Check for dirty or corroded connections.				OK	GO to A1.		
AI LOOSE I	BATTERY POS	ST				(
Chec	k for loose ba	ttery post.			T	X	REPLACE battery.
						OK	GO to A2.
A2 CRACKE	D BATTERY 'C	OVER					<u> </u>
Remo	ove holddowns	and shields.				ØK)	REPLACE battery.
Chec	k for broken/c	racked case or	cove	er.		OK I	GO to A3
A3 TEST IN	DICATOR/OPE	N CIRCUIT VC		E TEST			
• Turn	headlights on	for 15 second	s		+		CHARGE battery at 5
● Turn ł	neadlights off	for 2 minutes	to all	low battery	Blue dot invisibl	e and'	amps then GO to A3.
voltag	ge to stabilize.		to an		open circuit volt	age under	
Discore	nnect cables.				12.4 VOIIS		
Read	open circuit v	oltage.				(OK)	GO to A4.
A4 LOAD TEST							
Conne	Connect a load tester to the battery.				(K)	REPLACE battery.	
 Load the battery at the recommended discharge rate (see LOAD TEST RATE CHART) for 15 seconds. 			Voltage is less the minimum listed indicator).	han (white			
 Read voltage after 15 seconds, then remove load. 			,	(OK)	Battery OK.		
• Read voltage alter 10 seconds, then remove load.			Voltage is more	than			
	LOAD	TEST CHART			minimum listed.		
Minimum Temperature							
Voltage		°F		°C			
9.6	70	and above	:	21 and above			
9.5		60		16			
9.4		<u> </u>		10			
9.3		40 4					
89	8.9 20 -7						
8.7	8.7 10 -12						
8.5 0 -18		- 18					
LOAD TEST RATE CHART			-				
Load Test (Amps)	Load Test Cranking Reserve Application Application		-				
210 amps	433 amps	79 minu	tes	55B24R(S)-MF			
<u> </u>	1	TSB	Re	vision			

M54EHAT



SERVICE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURES

BATTERY INSPECTION

BATTERY VISUAL INSPECTION (1)

The battery contains a visual test indicator which gives blue signal when an adequate charge level exists, and white signal when charging is required.

BATTERY VISUAL INSPECTION (2)

Make sure ignition switch is in Off position and all battery feed accessories are Off.

- Disconnect ground cable from battery before disconnecting (+) cable.
- 2. Remove battery from vehicle.

Caution

Care should be taken in the event battery case is cracked or leaking to protect hands from the electrolyte. A suitable pair of rubber gloves (not the household type) should be worn when removing battery by hand.

- Inspect battery carrier for damage caused by loss of acid 3. from battery. If acid damage is present, it will be necessary to clean area with a solution of clean warm water and baking soda. Scrub area with a stiff bristle brush and wipe off with a cloth moistened with ammonia or baking soda in water.
- 4. Clean top of battery with same solutions as described in Step (3).
- 5. Inspect battery case and cover for cracks. If cracks are present, battery must be replaced.
- 6. Clean the battery post with a suitable battery post cleaning tool.
- 7. Clean the inside surfaces of the terminal clamps with a suitable battery terminal cleaning tool. Replace damaged or frayed cables and broken terminals clamps.
- 8. Install the battery in vehicle.
- 9. Connect (+) and (-) cables to battery in the order of mention.
- 10. Tighten the clamp nut securely.

LOAD TEST RATE CHART			
Load Test (Amps)	Cranking Rating 0°F	Reserve Capacity	Application
210 amps	433 amps	79 minutes	55B24R(S)-MF
LOAD TEST CHART			

Minimum	Temperature			
Voltage	°F	°C		
9.6	70 and above	21 and above		
9.5	60	16		
9.4	50	10		
9.3	40	4		
9.1	30	- 1		
8.9	20	- 7		
8.7	10	-12		
8.5	0	- 1 8		

Note

The temperature is an ambient temperature of the battery that has been exposed to for the preceding few hours.

BATTERY CHARGING

M54EICL

Caution

When batteries are being charged, an explosive gas forms beneath the cover of each cell. Do not smoke near batteries on charge or which have recently been charged.

Do not break live circuits at the terminals of the batteries on charge. A spark will occur where the live circuit is broken.

Keep all open flames away from the battery.

Battery electrolyte temperature may temporarily be allowed to rise to 55°C (131 °F). Increase of electrolyte temperature above 55°C (131 °F) is harmful to the battery, causing deformation of battery cell, decrease in life of battery, etc.

CHARGE RATE

If the test indicator is white, the battery should be charged as outlined below.

OPEN CIRCUIT VOLTAGE TEST (3)

- 1. Turn headlights on for 15 seconds.
- 2. Turn headlights off for 2 minutes to allow battery voltage to stabilize.
- 3. Disconnect cables.
- 4. Read open circuit voltage.
- 5. If the open circuit voltage is under 12.4 volts, charge the battery. (See BATTERY CHARGING)

LOAD TEST (4)

- 1. Connect a load tester to the battery.
- 2. Load the battery at 15 amps for 15 seconds to remove surface charge.
- 3. Load the battery at the recommended discharge rate. (See LOAD TEST RATE CHART)
- 4. Read voltage after 15 seconds and then remove the load.
- 5. If the voltage is not maintained at the minimum voltage in the LOAD TEST CHART throughout the test, the battery should be replaced.

When the dot appears or when maximum charge shown below is reached, charging should be stopped.

NOTE

When the charging is performed at 5 amps, charging is virtually 100% three hours after the indicator's indication changes from white to blue. Use fast charging only in an emergency.

If the indicator does not turn to blue even after the battery is charged, the battery should be replaced; do not overcharge.

Charge Rate Chart

Battery	Slow C	harging	Fast C	harging
55B24R (S)-MF (433 amps)	5 amps 10 hrs.	10 amps 5 hrs.	20 amps 2.5 hrs.	30 amps 1.5 hrs.

IGNITION SWITCH











0940126

TSB Revision

INSPECTION

IGNITION SWITCH INSPECTION

- (1) Remove the instrument panel under cover (or knee protector), the column cover (lower), and the column cover (upper).
 - (Refer to GROUP 52-Instrument Panel).
- (2) Disconnect the wiring connector from the ignition switch and key reminder switch, and connect an ohmmeter to the switch side connector.
- (3) Operate the switch, and check the continuity between the terminals.



NOTE

(1) O—O indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.
 (2) O--O indicates vehicles with ETACS.

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

- 8. INSTALLATON OF THE SLIDE LEVER/7. KEY INTERLOCK CABLE (STEERING LOCK ASSEMBLY SIDE)
 - (1) With the ignition key either at the "LOCK" position or removed, install the slide lever to the steering lock cylinder.
 - (2) Connect, as shown in the figure, the key interlock cable to the slide lever and the steering lock cylinder.
 - (3) Apply a light coating of multi-purpose grease where shown in the figure.
 - (4) Check whether or not the key interlock system is functioning normally.

(Refer to GROUP 23-Service Adjustment Procedures.)



METERS AND GAUGES

SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

Meters and Gauges

M54HB--

٢.

Items	Specifications
Speedometer	
Туре	Rotary magnet type
Tachometer	
Туре	Pulse type
Fuel gauge	
Туре	Cross coil type fixed needle gauge
Fuel gauge unit	
Туре	Variable resistance type (with fuel level warning sensor)
Engine coolant temperature gauge	
Туре	Cross coil type
Engine coolant temperature gauge unit	
Туре	Thermistor type

Indicators and Warning Lights

Items	Specifications
Indicator lights	
Turn signal indicator light W	3.4 (158)
High beam indicator light W	3.4 (158)
Charging warning light W	1.4 (74)
Oil pressure warning light W	1.4 (74)
Door ajar indicator light W	1.4 (74)
Brake warning light W	1.4 (74)
Fuel level warning light W	3.4 (158)
Seat belt indicator light W	1.4 (74)
Auto-cruise control indicator light W	1.4 (74)
*'Anti-lock brake warning light W	1.4 (74)
Check engine/malfunction indicator lamp W	1.4 (74)
* ² Power indicator light W	1.4 (74)
**Economy indicator light W	1.4 (74)
* ² Overdrive OFF indicator light W	1.4 (74)
* ² A/T shift position indicator light W	
Park	1.4 (74)
Reverse	1.4 (74)
Neutral	1.4 (74)
Drive	1.4 (74)
Second	1.4 (74)
Low	1.4 (74)

NOTE

The values in parentheses denote SAE trade numbers.
 The *1 symbol indicates vehicles with anti-lock braking system.
 The *2 symbol indicates vehicles with AA.

METERS AND GAUGES – Specifications

ltems	Specifications
* ¹ A/T fluid temperature warning light W * ² SECURITY I i g h t W	1.4 (74) 1.4 (74)
4WS(4-wheel steering system) warning light W	1.4 (74)

NOTE

1. The value in parentheses denote SAE trade numbers

2. The *1 symbol indicates AWD-AK.

3. The *2 symbol indicates vehicles with theft-alarm system.

SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS

Items Specifications Standard value Speedometer indication error mph 19-22 20 40 38-44 60 57-66 80 76-88 100 94-110 Tachometer indication error rpm Type 1 (8,000 rpm indication) ± 100 700 3,000 ± 150 6,000 ± 300 Type 2 (9,000 rpm indication)* 700 ± 100 3,000 +225-100 + 400 7,000 -100 Operation range of fuel gauge unit mm (in.) <FWD> Point F $45.6 \pm 2.5 (1.79 \pm .1)$ Point E 177.5 ±2 (6.98 ±.08) <AWD> Point F 43 (1.69) Point E 174 (6.85) Fuel gauge unit resistance Ω Point F 3±2 Point E 110 ± 7 Engine coolant temperature gauge unit resistance 104 ± 13.5 Ω [at 70°C (158°F)] Fuel gauge resistance Ω Between A-B Approx. 203 Between A-C Approx. 102 Between B-C Approx. 102

The * symbol indicates DOHC models.

TSB Revision

M54HC-

54-10

METERS AND GAUGES - Specifications

items	Specifications
Engine coolant temperature gauge resistance Ω <vehicles 1988="" built="" dec.="" to="" up=""></vehicles>	
Between A-B	Approx. 130
Between A-C	Approx. 53
Between B-C	Approx. 162
<vehicles 1989="" built="" from="" jan.=""></vehicles>	
Between A-B	Approx. 146
Between A-C	Approx. 60
Between B-C	Approx. 206

TORQUE SPECIFICATIONS

Items	Nm	ft.lbs.
Engine coolant temperature gauge unit	10–12	7-8

SEALANTS AND ADHESIVES

M54HF--

M54HD--

Items	Specified sealant and Adhesive
Engine coolant temperature gauge uni	t 3M ATD Part No.8660 or equivalent

NOTES

M54HHAQb

TROUBLESHOOTING


















WARNING LIGHT CIRCUIT **CIRCUIT DIAGRAM** <From 1991 models> SUB FUSIBLE IGNITION SWITCH(IG1) 7 C-43 1 C-36 1234 5678 J/B Ð 1 10A 10A 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10111213141516 1 C-37-1 7 C-39 1234 RW 4 IOD OR STORAGE CONNECTOR A-07-2X 1234 ☽ Έ ୭ 2 C-37-1 1121314 盟 1 C-39 BW J/B <u>िहिडायाहाराह</u> 8 C-52 <u>णिगावाकाया</u> (RB) COMBINATION METER 3 BRAKE Ĩ(∮ FUEL ð 9 4 21772 15 C-50 10 12345878 9 1011121314151017 GR) Я 沾 12346 8789 でどう WITH WITHOUT ETACS ETACS AWD FWD C-09 123 45 6789101112 5 2 C-44 J/B 1 2 2 3 4 5 8 F-25 1234 56718910 D-26 (YG) 거 5 5 1 BRAKE FLUID LEVEL SENSOR FUEL PUMP AND GAUGE ASSEMBLY A A A \bigotimes ĠĂŬĞE UNIT OPP 077 70N * *****08 F-21-1 A-62 G-03 GR 1234 2 P 000 PARKING BRAKE SWITCH З 2 DOOR SWITCH D-45 ш Ē. α З m 2-B Π ē 13 3 XX35-AC-H1024-NN **TSB** Revision







INDICATOR LIGHT CIRCUIT CIRCUIT DIAGRAM





INDICATOR LIGHT CIRCUIT





OPERATION

<Fuel gauge>

- When the ignition key is at the "ON" position, the fuel gauge is activated.
- When there is much fuel, the unit's resistance is small and the current flowing in the circuit is great, so the gauge's indicator indicates in the "F" area.
- When there is little fuel, the unit's resistance is high and the current flowing in the circuit is small, so the gauge's indicator indicates in the "E" area.

<Engine coolant temperature gauge>

- When the ignition key is at the "ON" position, the engine coolant temperature gauge is activated.
- When the engine coolant temperature is high, the unit's resistance is low and there is a great flow of current in the circuit, so the gauge's indicator indicates in the "H" area.
- When the engine coolant temperature is low, the unit's resistance is high and there is a small flow of current in the circuit, so the gauge's indicator indicates in the "C" area.

<Reed switch>

 Pulses are produced in accordance with the vehicle speed, and vehicle-speed signals are input to systems (the transaxle-control system, etc.) that regulate according to the vehicle speed.

NOTE

For operation of warning light and indicator light, refer to P.54-36.

TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

- 1. The fuel gauge doesn't function, or shows the incorrect indication.
 - (1) Disconnect the connector of the fuel gauge unit; the "F" side is indicated when terminal 3 (FWD) or 2 (AWD) is then grounded.
 - Check the fuel gauge.
- 2. The engine coolant temperature gauge doesn't function, or shows the incorrect indication.
 - (1) The "H" side is indicated when the connector of the engine coolant temperature gauge unit is disconnected and then grounded.
 - Check the engine coolant temperature gauge unit.
- 3. Systems dependent upon control according to the vehicle speed do not function correctly.
 - Check the reed switch (located within the speedometer).
- 4. The meter illumination light does not illuminate.
 - (1) The tail lights illuminate.
 - Check the rheostat.

M54HIAX





SERVICE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURES INSPECTION

SPEEDOMETER INSPECTION

NOTE

For AWD models, refer to the section concerning special handling instructions for AWD models in GROUP 00.

Take note of the following before inspection:

- (1) Assure tire pressure at standard value.
- (Refer to GROUP 31 -Specifications.)
- (2) When placing the vehicle on a speedometer tester drum, make sure the center line of the vehicle is at right angles to the center line of the drum. Also, make sure the drum is positioned so as to center between the front tires.

Rear wheel safety procedures

- (1) Be sure to chock both rear wheels to prevent the vehicle from moving. Secure the stoppers to the floor, or take measures to prevent the stoppers from slipping.
- (2) Make sure the parking brake has been set.

Front wheel away prevention procedure

- (1) Attach tension bars to the front traction hook. Secure the ends of both bars to anchor plates.
- (2) Make sure the tension on the right and left bars is the same. Also be sure there is enough tension on each bar.

Accident prevention procedures

- (1) Attach a chain or wire to the rear traction hook. Make sure the end of the wire or chain is secured firmly.
- (2) Take all other necessary precautions.

Use a speedometer tester to measure the speedometer's indication error.

Standard value:

Standard indication	Allowable range
mph	mph
20	19–22
40	38-44
60	57-66
80	76-88
100	94-110

54-30



TACHOMETER INSPECTION

M54HIBN

Connect engine speedometer and compare the engine speedometer and tachometer readings. Replace tachometer if difference is excessive.

Standard value:

Type 1 (8,000 rp	m indication)
700 rpm	±100 rpm
3,000 rpm	± 150 rpm
6,000 rpm	±300 rpm
Type 2 (9,000 r	om indication)
700 rpm	±100 rpm
700 rpm 3,000 rpm	±100 rpm +225 rpm

Caution

As the tachometer is negative grounded, do not connect battery conversely to prevent damaging transistor and diode.

Connect the engine speedometer.

(1) Insert the paper clip from behind the connector. Caution

Insert the paper clip parallel to the terminal surface as shown in the figure at left.

(2) Connect the engine speedometer to the inserted clip. NOTE (From 1990 models <DOHC>)

For rpm, one-half of the actual engine rpm is indicated, so the actual engine rpm is two times the indicated value shown by the tachometer.



Engine speed detection connector

6FU1448



Engine coolant

G

Test light (12V-3.4W)

temperature gauge unit connector

<DOHC>

FUEL GAUGE SIMPLE INSPECTION

- (I) Remove connector from fuel gauge unit in fuel tank.
- (2) Ground the harness side connector via a test light (12V 3.4W).
- (3) Turn ON ignition key.
- (4) Assure test light goes on and gauge needle moves.
 - (5) If test light goes on but gauge needle does not move, replace fuel gauge.

If test light does not go on (and gauge needle does not move), check fuse for broken wire, or resistance between gauge terminals (refer to P.54-34), or break in harness. Replace or repair defective parts.

ENGINE COOLANT TEMPERATURE GAUGE SIMPLE IN-SPECTION M54HIDK

- (1) Remove connector from engine coolant temperature gauge unit in engine compartment.
- (2) Ground harness side connector via test light (12V-3.4W).
- (3) Turn ON ignition key.
- (4) Check that test light goes on and gauge needle moves.
- (5) If test light goes on but the gauge needle does not move, replace engine coolant temperature gauge.

If test light does not go on (and gauge needle does not move), check fuse for broken wire, or resistance between gauge terminals (refer to P.54-34), or break in harness. Replace or repair defective part.



Ground

16A1465

16A1090

Ground Engine coolant temperature Gauge unit -connector

0

M54HICI

54-31

54-32







FUEL GAUGE UNIT INSPECTION

M54HIIQ

To check, remove fuel gauge unit from fuel tank (Refer to GROUP 13-Fuel Tank.)

Float Height of Fuel Gauge Unit

Move float and measure the height at point F (highest) and point E (lowest) with float arm touching stopper. Standard value:

<fwd></fwd>	Point F	45.6±2.5 mm (1.79±.1 in.)
<awd></awd>	Point E Point F Point E	177.5±2 mm (6.98±.08 in.) 43 mm (1.69 in.) 174 mm (6.85 in.)

Standard Resistance of Fuel Gauge Unit

(1) Check that resistance value between the fuel gauge terminal and ground terminal is at standard value when fuel gauge unit float is at point F (highest) and point E (lowest).

Standard value: Point F 3 ± 2 Ω Point E 110 ± 7 Ω

(2) Check that resistance value changes smoothly when float moves slowly between point F (highest) and point E (lowest).

FUEL SENSOR INSPECTION

Connect fuel gauge unit 'to battery via test light (12V-3.4W). Immerse in water. Condition good if light goes off when unit thermistor is in water and lights when unit is removed from water.

After completing this test, wipe the unit dry and install it in the fuel tank.



METERS AND GAUGES REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION

ENGINE COOLANT TEMPERATURE GAUGE UNIT INSPECTION M54HIITa

To check, remove engine coolant temperature gauge unit from intake manifold. ,

Standard Resistance of Engine Coolant Temperature Gauge Unit

- (1) Immerse unit in 70°C(158°F) water to measure resistance. Standard value: 104± 13.5 Ω
- (2) After checking, apply the specified sealant around the thread of engine coolant temperature gauge unit and install on the intake manifold.

Specified sealant: 3M ATD Part No.8660 or equivalent

M54HJAR













SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL 3. REMOVAL OF THE COMBINATION METER

- (1) Remove the mounting screws; then remove the combination meter by turning the upper part of it toward the front.
- (2) For models equipped with the automatic position indicator, disconnect the harness connector before removing the combination meter.

4. REMOVAL OF ADAPTER

- (1) Disconnect the speedometer cable at the transmission end of the cable.
- (2) Pull the speedometer cable slightly toward the vehicle interior, release the lock by turning the adapter to the left or right, and then remove the adapter.

INSPECTION REED SWITCH INSPECTION

Use circuit tester to check circuit repeats off/on between terminals when speedometer shaft turned several times.

FUEL GAUGE CIRCUIT INSPECTION

Measure resistance between terminals with circuit tester. **Standard value:**

A-B	Approx. 203 Ω
A-C	Approx. 102 Ω
B-C	Approx. 102 Ω

ENGINE COOLANT TEMPERATURE GAUGE CIRCUIT IN-SPECTION

Measure resistance between terminals with circuit tester. **Standard value:**

Vehicles built up	o to Dec. 1988
A-B	Approx. 130 Ω
A-C	Approx. 53 Ω
B-C	Approx. 162 Ω
Vehicles built fro	om Jan. 1989
A-B	Approx. 146 Ω
A-C	Approx. 60 Ω
B-C	Approx. 206 Ω
ion	

DISASSEMBLY AND REASSEMBLY



- Build
 Twin trip counter reset knob
 Meter panel
 Fuel gauge
 Engine coolant temperature gauge
 Speedometer
 Tachometer
 Turbo boost gauge aDOHC Turbos

- 9. Turbo boost gauge <DOHC-Turbo>
- 10. Twin trip holder
- 10. Twin trip holder
 11. A/T indicator lens
 12. Meter color changer switch knob <DOHC>
 13. Meter color changer switch <DOHC>
 14. Printed-circuit board
 15. Meter concerning

- 15. Meter case

INDICATORS

M54HKAXa

Symbol		Operation
4 4	Turn signal indicator	This indicator flashes, as do the same side of turn-signal light flashes. If the turn-signal light is burnt out, the indicator flashes faster than normal indicator. This indicator is common with hazard light.
≣D	High beam indicator	This indicator illuminates when the headlights are on high beam.
	Door-ajar warning	This indicator comes on when the door is either open or not completely closed.

Symbol		Operation
*	Seat belt warning	<vehicles automatic="" seatbelt="" with=""> This warning light warns the driver and front passenger to fasten their seat belts. If one or more seat belts are not fastened, the automatic seat belt control unit detects that fact and causes the warning light to be illuminated or flash. How long the light is illuminated or how many times it flashes depends on whether only one, or both of the belts remain unfastened.</vehicles>
		<vehicles automatic="" seatbelt="" without=""> The seat belt warning light will flash for about six seconds when the ignition key is turned to the ON position. If at this time the driver's seat belt is not buckled, the alarm buzzer will sound four times in synchronism with the flashing of the warning light.</vehicles>
BRAKE	Brake warning	This indicator comes on when the ignition key is in "ON" position, and goes off after the engine has started. This indicator comes on when the parking brake is applied or brake fluid level falls less than the specific level.
	Fuel warning	This indicator comes on when the fuel in the fuel tank falls less than approx. 8 liters (2.1 gals.).
+	Charging warning	This indicator comes on when the ignition key is in "ON" position, and goes off after the engine has started. This indicator comes on when the drive belt breaks or the trouble occurs in the charging system.
Ψ.	Oil pressure warning	This indicator comes on when the ignition key is in "ON" position, and goes off after the engine has started. This indicator comes on when the oil fails or the trouble occurs in the oil circulating system while driving.
O D Off	Overdrive OFF indicator	The light will light up when the overdrive switch is off.
ା	Automatic transaxle-position in- dicator	This indicator light illuminates to indicate the position at which the selector lever is set.
ANTI LOCK	Anti-lock brake warning light	This light illuminates when the ignition switch is switched ON; then, when the ignition key is returned from the "ST" position to the "ON" position, it extinguishes about 0.6 second later, thus providing a check of the anti-lock brake warning light circuit. This light illuminates when a malfunction is discovered in the anti-lock braking system.
CHECK ENGINE	Check engine/malfunction indi- cator lamp	This lamp illuminates when the ignition key is turned to the "ON" position, but should go out in a few seconds. If the lamp illuminates while the vehicle is moving, there is a malfunction of a component related to exhaust gases.
CRUISE	Auto-cruise control indicator light	The light illuminates when the auto-cruise control switch is switched ON, and the auto-cruise control system is activated.

METERS AND GAUGES – Meters and Gauges

Symbol		Operation
	AA fluid temperature warning light <awd-a t=""></awd-a>	This A/T fluid temperature warning light comes on when automatic transmission fluid temperature becomes abnormally high.
SECU RITY	SECURITY light (Vehicles with theft-alarm system)	Illuminates for about 20 seconds when the theft-alarm system can be set, and then the illumination stops.
4WS	4WS(4-wheel steering system) fluid level warning light	With the ignition switch in the "ON" position the warning light is illuminated if the 4WS fluid level falls less than the specific level.

LIGHTING SYSTEM

SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS <Up to 1990 models>

M54IB--

items	Specifications
Exterior lights	
Headlight	
Type I W	65
Type II W	55
Front turn-signal light W	27
Front combination light	
Side marker light CP	3.8
Position light CP	5
Rear side marker light CP	3
Rear combination light	
Turn-signal light CP	32
Stop and tail light CP	32/2
Back-up light CP	32
License plate light CP	3
High-mounted stop light CP	* ¹ 4 or * ² 21
Interior lights	
Front dome light	
Dome light W	* ³ 10
Spot light W	8
* ⁴ Rear dome light	
Dome light W	8
Spot light W	8
Door light W	5
Luggage compartment light W	5

NOTE

*1 : DOHC
*2: SOHC
*3: Vehicles with sunroof.
*4: Vehicles without sunroof

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS <From 1991 models>

Items		Specifications
Exterior light		
Headlight		
Typel	W	65
Type II	W	55
Front turn-signal light	W	
<non-turbo></non-turbo>		27* ³ 27/8 ^{*4}
<turbo></turbo>		27/8
Front combination light		
Side marker light	W	3.8
Position light	W	5
Fog light	W	55
Rear side marker light	СР	3
Rear combination light		
Turn signal light	СР	32
Stop and tail light	СР	32/2
Back-up light	СР	32
Rear lid light		
Stop and tail light	СР	32/2
License plate light	CP	3
High-mounted stop light		
Non-turbo (Vehicles without air spoiler)	СР	21
Non-turbo (Vehicles with air spoiler)	СР	4* ³
		60 pieces (Light Emitting Diode)*4
Turbo		60 pieces (Light Emitting Diode)
nterior lights		
Front dome light		
Dome light	W	10*1
Spot light	W	8
Rear dome light*2		
Dome light	W	8
Spot light	W	8
Door light	W	5
Luggage compartment light	W	5

NOTE

*1: Vehicles with sunroof.
*2: Vehicles without sunroof.
*3: Vehicles built up to 1992 models.
*4: Vehicles built from 1993 models.

54-40 LIGHTING SYSTEM – Specifications/Special Tools

SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS

Items	Specifications
Limit	
Headlight intensity	
Type I	18,000 or more
Туре II	7,000 or more

SEALANTS AND ADHESIVES

M541H---

M54IG--

M54IC--

Item	Specified sealant
Connection of rear combination light and body	3M ATD Part No.8625 or equivalent

SPECIAL TOOLS

Tool	Number	Name	Use
	MB991269 <1989 models> MB991341 <from 1990<br="">models></from>	Scan tool (Multi-use tester <mut>)</mut>	ETACS input check
		ROM pack	ETACS input check
\mathbf{i}	(For the number, refer to GROUP) 00-Precautions Before Service		
	C-4466	Headlight aimer	Aiming of headlight

TROUBLESHOOTING



M54IHBOb







OPERATION

Conditions for switch-ON of headlight relay

Ignition switch	Lighting switch	Dimmer-passing switch	Headlight relay
"ACC" or "ON"	"HEAD"	_	ON
"ACC" or "ON"	_	" PASS "	ON

<Low-beam operation>

- The headlight relay is switched ON when the lighting switch is set to the "HEAD" position.
- The low beam of the headlights will illuminate when, in this condition, the dimmer/passing switch is set to the "LO" position.

<High-beam operation>

- The headlight relay is switched ON when the lighting switch is set to the "HEAD" position.
- The high beam of the headlights will illuminate when, in this condition, the dimmer/passing switch is set to the "HI" position.

<High-beam indicator light>

• This indicator illuminates during use of the high beam of the headlights, and when the passing signal (high beam) is activated, thus indicating that the headlights' high beam is illuminated.

TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

- 1. Headlights don't come on.
 - 1) But the tail lights do illuminate.
 - Check the headlight relay.
 - Check the lighting switch.
 - 2) The tail lights also don't illuminate.
 - Check the sub-fusible link No. (?).
- 2. The low beam at both sides doesn't illuminate.Check the ground.
- 3. The upper beam at both sides doesn't illuminate.
 - 1) The passing signal functions OK.
 - Check the "HI" contacts of the dimmer switch.
 - 2) The passing signal doesn't function.
 - Check the dimmer switch.
- 4. One headlight doesn't illuminate.
 - Check the bulb.
- 5. Can't switch from low to high beam or viceversa.
 - Check the dimmer switch
- 6. The high beam indicator light doesn't illuminate.1) The high beam of the headlights is normal.
 - Check dedicated fuse No.③.
 - Check the bulb.

NOTE

- (1) For information concerning the headlight relay and theft-alarm headlight relay, refer to P.54-97, 98.
- (2) For vehicles equipped with the theft-alarm system, refer to P.54-165.

FOG LIGHT CIRCUIT DIAGRAM





OPERATION

- Set the lighting switch to the "HEAD" position.
- If the fog light switch is set at the "ON" position when the dimmer switch is at the "low" position, current flows through the dedicated fuse, fog light relay, fog light switch, dimmer switch and ground, causing the fog light relay contacts to close.
- Once the fog light relay contacts have closed, current flows through the dedicated fuse, fog light relay (contacts), fog lights, and ground, causing the fog lights to go on.

TSB Revision

TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

- 1. The right or left fog lights only go on.
 - Check the bulb.
- 2. Fog lights do not go on when the fog light switch is set at "ON".
 - Check the dedicated fuse ⑦.

NOTE

For information concerning the fog light relay, refer to P.54-97.

54-47

TAIL LIGHT, POSITION LIGHT, SIDE MARKER. LIGHT AND LICENCE PLATE LIGHT CIRCUIT ;IRCUIT DIAGRAM





TSB Revision

٤

TAIL LIGHT, POSITION LIGHT, SIDE MARKER LIGHT AND LICENSE PLATE LIGHT CIRCUIT

CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

< 1990 models>






TAIL LIGHT, POSITION LIGHT, SIDE MARKER LIGHT AND LICENSE PLATE LIGHT CIRCUIT





Remark * mark indicates Vehicles with THEFT-ALARM SYSTEM

OPERATION

- The tail light relay is switched ON when the lighting switch is set to the "TAIL" or "HEAD" position.
- As a result, electricity flows via dedicated fuse No. 2 to each light, and *each* light illuminates.

TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

- 1. All lights do not illuminate.
 - (1) The headlights also do not illuminate.
 Check sub-fusible link No.⑦.
 - (2) The headlights illuminate.
 - Check the tail light relay.
 - Check dedicated fuse No.2.

LIGHT AND VANITY



MIRROR LIGHT CIRCUIT



OPERATION

<Luggage compartment light>

- Battery voltage is always applied (via sub-fusible link No. ① and multipurpose fuse No. ⑦ to the luggage compartment light.
- When the trunk lid is opened, the luggage compartment light switch is switched ON and the luggage compartment light illuminates.

<Glove compartment light>

- The tail light relay is switched ON when the lighting switch is set to the "TAIL" or "HEAD" position.
- When, with the lighting switch at the "TAIL" or "HEAD" position, the glove compartment is opened, the glove compartment light switch is switched ON, and the glove compartment light is illuminated.

TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

- 1. The luggage compartment light does not illuminate.
 - (1) The dome light also does not illuminate.
 - Check multipurpose fuse No. 1.

DOME LIGHT CIRCUIT **CIRCUIT DIAGRAM** <Vehicles without ETACS and door light (Up to 1990 models)> SUB FUSIBLE LINK () 1 <u>C-</u>36 J/B 17 8 10A 1 C-35 miles RB WITHOUT BUNROOF WITH SUNROOF DOME LIGHT DOME LIGHT D-13 ٩ Ø ۲ OFF OFF D-09 1



KX35-AC-H0640-NN



DOME LIGHT CIRCUIT

CIRCUIT DIAGRAM





.

KX35-AC-H0854-NN



OPERATION

- The dome light is always illuminated when the dome light switch is at the "ON" position.
- The dome light illuminates when any door is opened while the dome light switch is at the "DOOR" position.

TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

- 1. The dome light does not illuminate.
 - (1) The clock is stopped also.
 - Check multipurpose fuse No. 1.
 - (2) The dome light does not illuminate when, with the dome' light switch at the "DOOR" position, any door is opened.

• Check the bulb.

- Check the dome light switch.
- The dome light switches OFF when all doors are closed.
- (3) The dome light does not illuminate when, with the dome light switch at the "DOOR" position, a certain door or doors is/are opened.
 - Check the door switch [the door switch(es) for the door(s) that does not activate the dome light when opened].

DOME LIGHT CIRCUIT **CIRCUIT DIAGRAM** <VEHICLES WITH ETACS (Up to 1990 models)> SUB FUSIBLE LINK ① ¹ C-36 P J/B Ð 10A 1234 C-42 C-35 З 1 WITHOUT B WITH SUNROOF D-09 MAP LIGHT 昭 1 23 RB RB D-10 1 4 DOME LIGHT DOME LIGHT OFF OFF OFF OFF ٢ € ٢ æ D-13 ON Том ON 101 OFF OFF OFF OF ()) ON 12 (ৡ 9 ON DOOR DOOR **ON** TON 2 1 -(GR) 4 C-35 1234 J/B C-44 1 12345 RG 5 16 _ _ ETACS CONTROL Ţ ЧQ C-03 C-04 123456 789101112 21222324252827728 2930313233343536 ∮ GND 12 [<u>3</u>0 23 29 <u>C-40</u> ß 123456 7891011121314 ε Â £ 8 (GR) GR Ĥ B J/B g D-33 D-24 D-22 D-21 DATA LINK CONNECTOR 団 র্ট্রিয চিচি <u>ti</u>? <u>1</u>2 1 1 1 1 C-38 4 2-B C-18 12 FRONT SIDE OFF OFF. OFF OFF 54 321 1211109876 OFF TON OFF TON OFF TON TON OFF Ţон TON TON TON Ō = -REVERSE SIDE (LEFT SIDE) (RIGHT SIDE) (LEFT SIDE) (RIGHT SIDE) 6 3 4 5 FRONT DOOR SWITCH REAR DOOR SWITCH X35-AC-H0841-NM















54-67





BACK-UP LIGHT CIRCUIT CIRCUIT DIAGRAM



OPERATION

When, with the ignition switch at the "ON" position, the shift lever (or the selector lever) is moved to the "R" position, the backup light switch (M/T) is switched ON (or the park/neutral position switch (A/T) is switched to the "R" position), and the backup light illuminates.

TURN-SIGNAL LIGHT AND HAZARD LIGHT CIRCUIT **OPERATION**

<Turn-signal lights>

- When operation is normal 1
- When the ignition switch is switched to the "ON" position, battery voltage is applied (via the hazard-flasher switch) to the turn-signal and hazard-flasher unit.
- When the turn-signal switch is switched to the "LH" (or "RH") position, Trl (within the flasher unit) is switched ON and the relay contact (also within the flasher unit) is switched ON. As a result, the "LH" (or "RH") turn-signal lights and turn-signal indicator light illuminate.
- At the same time, charging to the capacitor (via R2) begins, and charging continues until the lower-limit potential (set by COM3) is reached.
- When the capacitor becomes fully charged, the COM3 output reverses and Trl is switched OFF; the relay contact is also switched OFF, and, as a result, the "LH" (or "RH") turn-signal lights and turn-signal indicator light are switched OFF.
- At the same time that Trl is switched OFF, the capacitor begins discharging, and, when discharging finishes, the output of COM3 once again reverses and Trl is switched ON, after which the "LH" (or "RH") turn-signal lights and turn-signal indicator light illuminate.
- As a result of the continued repetition of the steps described above, the "LH" (or "RH") turn-signal lights and turn-signal indicator light flash ON and OFF repeatedly.
- 2. If one light's wiring is damaged or disconnected
- If the bulb for one turn-signal light is damaged on disconnected, the result is an overall increase of the resistance for the entire light circuitry, resulting is a decrease of the voltage at the R1 part within the flasher unit.
- As a result of this being detected, the lower-limit potential set by COM3 is increased, with the result that the time required for charging of the capacitor becomes shorter.

COMPONENT LOCATION

Name Symbol Turn signal and hazard flasher unit А aL Tum-signal and hazard flasher unit **666** 1340218 **TSB** Revision

As a result, the ON and OFF cycles of Tr1 also become shorter, and thus the number of flashes of the lights becomes greater.

<Hazard-warning lights>

When the hazard-warning switch is switched to the "ON" position, the relay contact of the flasher unit is switched ON and OFF repeatedly, in the same manner as for the operation of the turn-signal lights, and the left and right turnsignal lights and turn-signal indicator lights simultaneously flash repeatedly.

NOTE

The number of flashes of the hazard-warning lights does not change if there is damaged or disconnected wiring of one light.

TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

- 1. The turn-signal lights and hazard-warning lights do not operate at all.
 - Check the hazard-warning switch contact (power supply side).
 - Check the flasher unit.
- 2. All turn-signal lights at the left (or right) side do not function.
 - (1) The hazard-warning lights function normally.
 - Check the hazard-warning switch contact (turn-signal side).
 - Check the turn-signal switch.
- 3. The number of flashes of the turn-signal lights is excessive.
 - Check the bulbs.
- 4. The hazard-warning lights do not function.
 - (1) The turn-signal lights function normally.
 - Check the hazard-warning switch contact (hazard-warning light side).

16A055

TURN SIGNAL LIGHT AND HAZARD LIGHT CIRCUIT CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<1989 models>





TURN SIGNAL LIGHT AND HAZARD LIGHT CIRCUIT

CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<1990 models>













STOP LIGHT CIRCUIT

CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<VEHICLES WITH AUTO-CRUISE CONTROL (Up to 1990 models)>





STOP LIGHT CIRCUIT

<VEHICLES WITH AUTO-CRUISE CONTROL (From 1991 models)> (CONTINUED)



DELAYED SWITCH-OFF DOME LIGHT <ETACS-EQUIPPED MODELS> COMPONENT LOCATION

 Name
 Symbol

 ETACS control unit
 A





INPUT CHECK



Using a scan tool, check whether or not input signals are being input from each switch to the electronic control unit.

- (1) Connect the scan tool to the data link connector (located at the right side of the junction block).
- (2) With the ignition switch at the "ACC" position, set the scan tool to the special test setting.
- (3) Check whether the buzzer of the scan tool sounds one time when each of the switches noted below is operated. Input signals are being input to the electronic control unit if the buzzer sounds, so the operation of that switch can be considered satisfactory; if the buzzer does not sound, check that switch or the wiring for an abnormal condition.
 - Ignition switch
 - Door switches for all doors

TROUBLESHOOTING GUIDE-REFERENCE TABLE

Problem	Probable cause	Check method	Remedy
With the dome light switch at the door-interlocked position, the dome light does not illuminate when any door is opened. (The dome light does illuminate, however, when the dome light awitch is not to the "ON" position)	Damage or disconnec- tion of the door switch (all doors) input circuit.	If a malfunction is indi- cated as a result of the input check (P.54-83), make the circuit and in- dividual part check No.3 (P.54-87).	Replace the door switch, or repair the wiring harness.
	Damage or disconnec- tion of the dome light activation circuit.	Make the circuit and in- dividual part check No.4 (P.54-88).	Replace the dome light, or repair the wiring har- ness.
	Malfunction of the elec- tronic control unit.	-	Replace the electronic control unit.
When the ignition switch is switched to the "ON" position while the dome light illumination is at the dimmed setting, the dome light does not switch OFF.	Damage or disconnec- tion of the ignition switch input circuit.	If a malfunction is indi- cated as a result of the input check (P.54-83), make the circuit and in- dividual part check No.2 (P.54-86).	Repair the wiring har- ness.
	Malfunction of the elec- tronic control unit.	-	Replace the electronic control unit.

NOTE The "ECU" (electronic control unit) indicates the ETACS control unit

CHECKING THE CIRCUIT AND INDIVIDUAL COMPONENT



Description of operation

The battery supplies a stabilized 5V power supply to the electronic control unit, via the constantvoltage circuit and terminal (36) directly connected to the battery. If there is an abnormal condition of the powersupply circuit, the other ETACS systems also will not function.

Electronic control unit terminal voltage (status of the electronic control unit connector)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Conditions	Terminal voltage
36	Electronic control unit power supply	At all times	Battery positive voltage

Checking the ground circuit (Disconnect the connector and check the wiring harness side.)

Terminal	Connected to/measured compo- nent	· Measurement	Tester connection	Check conditions	Standard
29	Electronic control unit ground	Resistance	29-ground At all	times	Continuity
30"	Electronic control unit ground	Resistance	30-ground At all	times	Continuity

NOTE

*: Vehicles without theft-alarm system



Description of operation

With the ignition switch at the "ON" position, send HIGH-level signals to the electronic control unit to switch OFF the timer circuit and interrupt the dimmed-light condition.

Electronic control unit terminal voltage

Disconnect the electronic control unit connector and check the wiring harness side.)

ECU ter	minal No.	Signal	Conditions		Terminal voltage
	3	Ignition switch: "ON"	Ignition switch	OFF	οv
				ON	Battery positive voltage

Individual part check

Ignition switch . . . Refer to P.54-6.
3. DOOR SWITCH (ALL DOORS) INPUT CIRCUIT



Description of operation

When, with the dome light illuminated (with the ignition switch at the "ACC" or "OFF" position), HIGH-level signals are sent to the electronic control unit, the timer circuit is activated and the dimmed-light function of the dome light is started.

If there is an abnormal condition of the door switch system, the dome light will not function normally at the door-interlocked setting of its switch.

Electronic control unit terminal voltage (status of the electronic control unit connector)

	. .		
ECU terminal No.	Signal	Conditions	Terminal voltage
12*1 11* ²	Door switch signal	*Door is opened (door switch: ON).	οv
		All doors are closed (door switch: OFF).	5V

Checking the door switch circuit (Disconnect the electronic control unit connector and check the wiring harness side.)

Terminal	Connected to/measured component	Measurement	Tester connection	Check conditions	Standard
12* ¹ 11* ²	Door switch	Resistance	12- <u>q</u> round* ¹ 11 -ground* ²	All doors are closed	No continui- ty
				*Door is opened.	Continuity

NOTE

*1: Vehicles without theft-alarm system

*2: Vehicles with theft-alarm system

Individual part check

Door switch . . . Refer to GROUP 42–Front and Rear Doors.

symbol, conduct the check for each individual door, checking to be sure that only the door being checked is open.

NOTE

When making the checks indicated by the *

4. DOME LIGHT ACTIVATION CIRCUIT



Description of operation

When a door is opened while the dome light switch is at the door-interlocked setting, the door switch is grounded via the electronic control unit. When, in that condition, the door is then closed, the electronic control unit causes grounding, and the dimmed-light function is activated.

Electronic control unit terminal voltage (status of the electronic control unit connector)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	I	Conditions	3	Terminal voltage
5	Dome light signal	All doors closed	Dome light switch po- sition	Any posi- tion except "DOOR"	٥v
				DOOR	Battery positive voltage
	TSB Revisi	ion		1	





SERVICE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURES

HEADLIGHTS AIMING PRE-AIMING INSTRUCTIONS

- 1. Test dimmer switch operation.
- 2. Observe operation of high beam light mounted in instrument cluster.
- 3. Inspect for badly rusted or faulty headlight assemblies. These conditions must be corrected before a satisfactory adjustment can be made.
- 4. Place vehicle on a level floor.
- 5. Bounce front suspension through three (3) oscillations by applying body weight to hood or bumper.
- 6. Inspect tire inflation.
- 7. Rock vehicle sideways to allow vehicle to assume its normal position.
- 8. If fuel tank is not full, place a weight in trunk of vehicle to simulate weight of a full tank [3 kg (6.5 lbs.) per gallon].
- There should be no other load in the vehicle other than driver or substituted weight of approximately 70 kg (150 lbs.) placed in driver's position.
- 10. Thoroughly clean headlight lenses.

COMPENSATING THE AIMERS (C-4466) FOR FLOOR SLOPE

The floor level offset dial must coincide with the floor slope for accurate aiming. Calibration fixtures are included with the aimers.

- 1. Attach one calibration fixture to each aimer. Fixtures will easily snap into position on aimer when properly positioned.
- 2. Place aimers at **center line** of each wheel on one side of vehicle. Unit A must be placed at rear wheel with target facing forward. Unit B must be placed at front wheel with target facing rearward.
- 3. Adjust thumb adjusting screw on each calibration fixture by turning either clockwise or counterclockwise until level vial bubble registers in a centered, level position.
- 4. Look into top port hole of Unit A. Turn horizontal knob until split image is aligned.
- 5. Transfer plus or minus reading indicated on horizontal dial to floor level offset dial on each aimer. Press floor level dial inward to set reading.
- 6. Remove calibration fixtures from both units.

TESTING AIMER CALIBRATION

The aimer calibration may be off due to extended use. Calibration fixtures used in conjunction with aimers can be used to check and adjust aimers.

- 1. Turn thumb adjusting screw on each calibration fixture until it is approximately the same distance as the supporting posts.
- 2. Attach calibration fixtures to each unit with level vials on top.
- 3. Locate a true vertical plate glass window or smooth surface and secure aimers three to five feet apart so split image targets can be located in viewing ports





- 5. Rotate thumb adjusting screws on each calibration fixture until level vials on fixtures are centered.
- 6. With both calibration level vials centered, turn vertical dial knobs on each aimer until aimer level vials are centered. If aimer vertical dial pointers read between 1/2 up and 1/2 down, aimers are within allowable vertical tolerance. Recalibrate units if beyond these limits.

Vertical dial pointer reading (on each aimer): 1/2 up to 1/2 down

 Adjust horizontal dial knob on each aimer until split image targets align. If aimer horizontal dial pointers read between 1 left and 1 right, the aimers are within allowable tolerance limits. Recalibrate units if beyond these limits.

Horizontal dial pointer reading (on each aimer): 1 left to 1 right

MOUNTING AIMERS

- 1. Remove the calibration fixture from each unit.
- 2. As shown in the figure, install the articulating vacuum cup assembly (A), vacuum extension plate (B) and small universal adaptor (C) to each unit.
- 3. Make the length of the adjustable rod as shown in the figure.

4. Position aimers on headlights by pushing piston handle forward, engaging rubber suction cup. Immediately pull back piston handle until it locks in place.

NOTE

Steel inserts are molded into position on the adaptor to insure accuracy. These inserts must be in contact with the three guide **points** on the lights when the aimers are properly positioned.

HORIZONTAL ADJUSTMENT

- 1. Set horizontal dial to zero.
- 2. Check to see that the split image target lines are visible in the viewing port. If necessary, rotate each aimer slightly to locate the target.
- 3. Turn horizontal screw on side of headlight until split image of target line appears in mirrors as one solid line. To remove "backlash", make final adjustment by turning adjusting screw in a clockwise direction.
- 4. Repeat the last three steps on opposite headlight.



Split image

aligned

Split image

not aligned

Adjustable rod



6A0591



Vertical center line ahead of fog light A: 0–150 mm (0–6 in.) Height of fog light center Level floor 600 mm (23.6 in.) (23.6 in.) (23.6 in.)

VERTICAL ADJUSTMENT

- 1. The vertical dial should be set at zero. (For passenger vehicles an "0" setting is generally required. For special settings, consult local state laws).
- 2. Turn vertical adjusting screw until the level bubble is centered between the lines.
- 3. Repeat the last two steps on the opposite headlight.
- 4. Re-check target alignment on both aimers and readjust horizontal aim if necessary.
- 5. Remove aimers by pressing "vacuum release" button located on piston handle.

AIMING WITH SCREEN

HEADLIGHT AIM PREPARATION

Place vehicle on a known level floor 7.6 m (25 feet) from aiming screen or light colored wall. Four lines of adhesive tape or like are required on screen or wall:

- 1. Position a vertical tape so that it is aligned with the vehicle center line.
- 2. Position a horizontal tape with reference to center line of headlight.
- 3. Position a vertical tape on the screen with reference to the center line of each of headlights.

VISUAL HEADLIGHT ADJUSTMENT

- 1. A properly aimed lower beam will appear on the aiming screen 7.6 m (25 feet) in front of the vehicle. The shaded area as shown in the illustration indicates high intensity zone.
- 2. Adjust low beam of headlights to match the low beam pattern of the right and left headlights.

NOTE

If the visual headlight adjustment at low beam is made, the adjustment at high beam is not necessary.

LUMINOUS INTENSITY MEASUREMENT

Measure the luminous intensity of headlights with a photometer in accordance with the instruction manual prepared by the manufacturer of the photometer and make sure that the luminous intensity is within the following limit.

Limit: Type I 18,000 cd or more Type II 7,000 cd or more

NOTES

- (1) When measuring the luminous intensity of headlight, keep the engine at 2,000 rpm and have the battery charged.
- (2) If there are specific regulations for luminous intensity of headlights in the region where the vehicle is operated, make sure that the intensity conforms to the requirements of such regulations.

FOG LIGHT AIMING

1. Place vehicle on a known level floor 7.6 m (25 feet) from aiming screen or light colored wall.

2. Use adjusting screw to adjust the top end of high intensity zone to dimension A.

HEADLIGHTS

M54IJAK

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION

Pre-removal a	nd Pos	t-installatio	n
•Removal and	Installatio	on of Front	Grilles
(Refer to GRC	DUP 51-	-Grille.)	

Removal steps







(1) Disconnect the front combination light setting spring in the engine compartment.

16A0531

(2) Pull forward and remove the front combination light.

16A0204

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

1. INSTALLATION OF FRONT COMBINATION LIGHT

- (1) Align the projection part of the front combination light with the hole, and then install by pushing toward the rear.
- (2) Pull the setting spring into the engine compartment, twist it 90°, and secure it to the body.



REPLACEABLE BULB REPLACEMENT

- (1) Disconnect the headlight harness connector.
- (2) Detach the socket holder by turning it anticlockwise, and then take out the bulb and socket assembly.

Caution

- 1. Never hold the halogen light bulb with a bare hand, dirty glove, etc.
- 2. If the glass surface is dirty, be sure to clean it with alcohol, paint thinner, etc., and install it after drying it thoroughly.

Be sure to attach the socket cover.

NOTE

Be sure to install the socket cover securely because, if it is not, an insecure installation could cause such problems as clouding of the lens, or intrusion of moisture to inside the light unit.

FOG LIGHT

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



TSB Revision

M54INAA

\$

REAR COMBINATION LIGHT REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION

M54IMAJa





♦ ♦ ♦ 1. Rear combination light



SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

1. REMOVAL OF REAR COMBINATION LIGHT

- (1) Attach tape (cloth adhesive tape) or similar material around the rear combination light.
- (2) Using a flat-tip (-) screwdriver, slowly pry the rear combination light part while pulling the rear combination light toward you in order to remove it.

Caution

Take particular care when prying the rear combination light because excessive force or careless prying might cause scarring of the rear combination light or of the body surface.

SERVICE POINTS OF INSTALLATION

1. INSTALLATION OF REAR COMBINATION LIGHT

- (1) Remove any remaining adhesive material from the body surface and the rear combination light, and then use unleaded petrol to remove any grease or oil from the body side adhesive area.
- (2) Apply sealant to the area indicated in the illustration.

Specified sealant: **3M** ATD Part **No.8625** or equivalent

(3) Install the rear combination light.

HIGH MOUNTED STOP LIGHT





RELAY

INSPECTION

HEADLIGHT RELAY

- (1) Take out the headlight relay from the engine compartment relay box.
- (2) Connect battery to terminal 2 and check continuity between terminals with terminal 4 grounded.

Power is supplied	1-3 terminals	Continuity
	1-3 terminals	No continuity
Power is not supplied	2-4 terminals	Continuity

TAILLIGHT RELAY

- (1) Take out the taillight relay from the engine compartment relay box.
- (2) Connect battery to terminal 2 and check continuity between terminals with terminal 4 grounded.

Power is supplied	1–3 terminals	Continuity	
Dever is not supplied	1–3 terminals	No continuity	
Power is not supplied	2-4 terminals	Continuity	

FOG LIGHT RELAY

(1) Take out the fog light relay from the engine compartment relay box.

M54ISAG

54-97

54-98

860206 16L0312 C

1673658 23 1 5 6 4

716A1271

HAZARD SWITCH REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION

LIGHTING SYSTEM - Relay/Hazard Switch

(2) Connect battery to terminal 2 and check continuity between terminals with terminal 4 grounded.

Power is supplied	1–3 terminals	Continuity
	1-3 terminals	No continuity
Power is not supplied	2-4 terminals	Continuity

THEFT-ALARM HEADLIGHT RELAY

- (1) Remove theft-alarm headlight relay.
- (2) Connect battery to terminal 2 and check continuity between terminals with terminal 5 grounded.

Power is supplied	3-6 terminals	Continuity	
	3-6 terminals	No continuity	
Power is not supplied	1-3 terminals	Continuity	
	2-5 terminals	- Continuity	

7









16A0235



INSPECTION

Operate the switch to check for continuity between terminals.

Terminal				1					1
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	9	10
Switch position									
OFF					Ş		_0	6	2
ON	0	-0-	0	-0	0	-0		lllum tic	nina- on

NOTE

o-o indicates that there is continuity between the terminals

FOG LIGHT SWITCH

M54IYAA

Operate the switch to check for continuity between terminals.

Terminal Switch Position	₁	3	4	5	Illumi- nation	6	7	Indi- cation	8
OFF			6				-0	Í	
ON	0	-0	0	6		-0	م م ا		-0

NOTE

16A0195

o-o indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.

RHEOSTAT

INSPECTION

- (1) Connect the battery and a test bulb (40W) as shown in the figure.
- (2) The function of the rheostat is normal if the intensity of illumination changes smoothly, without flashing or flickering, when the rheostat is operated.





COLUMN SWITCH

SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

M54JBAC

Items	Specifications
Column switch	
Lighting switch	
Rated load A	0.22 ± 0.05
Voltage drop V	0.2 or less
Turn-signal switch	
Rated load A	6.6 ± 0.5
Voltage drop V	0.2 or less
Dimmer/Passing switch	
Rated load A	
High beam	10.7±0.8
Low beam	9.8 ± 0.7
Voltage drop V	0.2 or less
Windshield wipers and washer switch	
Rated load A	
Wiper switch	4
Washer switch	Max. 4
Intermittent wiper switch	
Operation mode	
Type 1	Fixed-timing intermittent wipers
Type 2	Adjustable-timing intermittent wipers
Type 3 <vehicles etacs="" with=""></vehicles>	Vehicle speed-sensing intermittent wipers with interval varying function
Intermittent interval SEC	
Type 1	4
Type 2	Approx. 3–12
Type 3	2-21
Auto cruise control switch	
Rated load A	
SET	0.1-0.3
RESUME	0.1-0.3
Voltage drop V	0.2 or less
Horn switch	
Rated load A	Max. 6

TORQUE SPECIFICATIONS

Items	Nm	ft.lbs.
Steering wheel lock nut	35-45	25-33

TSB Revision

M54JC--

.





Use a steering wheel puller to remove the steering wheel

13A0219

13A0222

Connector B

Connector A

16A0193

9

16A0192

1000

(I) Remove the knee protector or instrument under **Cover and** the lower column cover.

(2) Disconnect the column switch connector and check the continuity between the terminals for each switch.

LIGHTING SWITCH

Operate the switch and check the continuity between the terminals

Terminal Switch position	3	12	13
OFF			
EDDE	0		0
ΞD	0		0

NOTE

c-o indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.

TURN SIGNAL SWITCH

Operate the switch and check the continuity between the terminals.

Terminal Switch position	14	15	16
Left	0	0	
Neutral			
Right	0		0
NOTE			•

NOTE

o-o indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.

DIMMER/PASSING SWITCH

Operate the switch and check the continuity between the terminals.

Switch position	Terminal	11	21	25	26
Dimmer	High			0	0
switch	Low		0		0
Passing switch	[o		-0-+-	• I

NOTE

o-o indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.

WIPER/WASHER SWITCH

Refer to GROUP 51-Wiper and Washer System.

AUTO-CRUISE CONTROL SWITCH

Refer to GROUP 13-Auto-cruise Control System.



Connector A

2 3 4

Connector A

5 14

16A0192

6

8



HORN

SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

M54L8--

Items		Specifications
Туре		Flat type
Effective sounding voltage	V	11.5-15
Power consumption	А	
Horn		3.0
Theft-alarm horn		3.5
Sound level	dB	
Horn		
"low" sound		100–112
"High" sound		100–112
Theft-alarm horn		105–115
Fundamental frequency	ΗZ	
Horn		
"low" sound		370
"High" sound		415
Theft-alarm horn		430

TROUBLESHOOTING HORN CIRCUIT





OPERATION

- When the ignition key is turned to the "ACC" or the "ON" position, battery voltage is constantly applied to the horn.
- When the horn switch is switched ON, electricity flows to multi-purpose fuse (8), the horn, the horn switch and ground.
- In this condition, electricity flows to multipurpose fuse (8), the horn, the horn switch and ground, and horn sounds.

TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

- 1. One of the horns does not sound.
 - Check the horn.
- 2. Horns do not sound.
 - Check the horn switch.
 - Check the multi-purpsoe fuse (8).

HORN

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



Removal steps

- 1. Front bumper
- (Refer to GROUP 51 -Bumper.) 2. Horn (high sound)
- 3. Horn (low sound)
- 4. Theft-alarm horn
- 5. Theft-alarm horn bracket



RELAY INSPECTION

THEFT-ALARM HORN RELAY

- (1) Take out the theft-alarm horn relay from theft-alarm horn bracket.
- (2) Connect battery to terminal 2 and check continuity between terminals with terminal 4 grounded.

Power is supplied	1-3 terminals	Continuity
Power is not supplied	1-3 terminals	No continuity
	2-4 terminals	Continuity

CIGARETTE LIGHTER

SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

Items	Specifications
Max. input W Reset time second	120 Within 18
Thermal fuse fusion temperature °C (°F)	180–250 (356–482)

TROUBLESHOOTING CIGARETTE LIGHTER CIRCUIT



M54MHCB

M54MB-A





INSPECTION

- Take out the plug, and check for a worn edge on the element spot connection, and for shreds of tobacco or other material on the element.
- Using an ohmmeter, check the continuity of the element.

CAUTIONS FOR USE OF THE CIGARETTE LIGHTER SOCKET AS AUXILIARY POWER SOURCE

- 1. When using a "plug-in" **type** of accessory, do not use anything with a load of more than **120W**.
- 2. It is recommended that only the lighter be inserted in the receptacle.

Use of "plug-in" type accesories may damage the receptacle and result in poor retention of the lighter.

The specified load should be strictly observed, because overloaded cord burns the ignition switch and harness.

CLOCK SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

Item	Specification
Туре	, Crystal oscillator
Display method	Fluorescent digital display
Standard error (seconds/day)	±2 [at 20°C (68°F)]

TROUBLESHOOTING **CLOCK CIRCUIT CIRCUIT DIAGRAM** IGNITION SWITCH (ACC) SUB FUSIBLE TAILLIGHT RELAY < 1989 models> RW 25-5-WR 3-L DEDICATED FUSE 2 10A¢ 1234 5578 Β <u>C-36</u> 8 C-37 5878 4 C-43 J/B 17 3 10A 10A 8 ^{C-32} 1234 567 8.910111213141516 11-4 GW J/C (TAIL) 3 <u>G</u> 4 б 5 CLOCK 10: 10 E-04 123 з æ J/C (GROUND) α C-32 1234 567 16 J/B C-38 12 4 2-B Δ 6 KX35-AC-H1406-N

M54MHAEa

M54MB--

CLOCK CIRCUIT





AUDIO SYSTEM

SPECIFICATIONS

TORQUE SPECIFICATIONS

items	Nm	ft.lbs.
Motor antenna ring nut	1.5-2.5	1.1-1.8
Pole antenna mast	5 - 6	3.7-4.3

TROUBLESHOOTING AUDIO SYSTEM

CIRCUIT DIAGRAM



M54NHAQ6

M54ND--



54-113

AUDIO SYSTEM



J/B



54-116

AUDIO SYSTEM

CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<Vehicles without CD player (1991 and 1992 models)>





AUDIO SYSTEM

CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

<Vehicles without CD player (From 1993 models)>





AUDIO SYSTEM







AUDIO SYSTEM




OPERATION

- When the radio power switch. is turned on with the ignition switch at "ACC" or "ON", current flows through fuse No.3 radio, and ground, causing the radio to operate.
- For an electronically tuned radio, battery voltage is always supplied for use of the memory and other functions in the radio.

TROUBLESHOOTING CHART

Item	Problem symptom	Relevant chart		
A. Noise	1. Noise appears at certain places when traveling (AM).			
	2. Noise appears at certain places when traveling (FM).	A-2		
	3. Mixed with noise, only at night (AM).			
	4. Broadcasts can be heard but both AM and FM have a lot of noise.	A-4		
	5. There is more noise either on AM or on FM.	A-5		
	6. There is noise when starting the engine.7. Some noise appears when there is vibration or shocks during traveling			
	8. Noise sometimes appears on FM during traveling.	A-8		
	9. Ever-present noise.	A-9		
B. Radio	. Radio 1. No sound.			
	2. No sound from one speaker.	B-2		
	3. There is noise but no reception for both AM and FM.	B-3		
	4. No sound from AM, or no sound from FM.	B-4		
	5. Insufficient sensitivity.	B-5		
	6. Distortion on AM or on both AM and FM.	B-6		
	7. Distortion on FM only.	B-7		
	8. Too few automatic select stations.	B-8		
	9. Insufficient memory (preset stations are erased).	B-9		
C. Cassette player	1. Cassette tape will not insert.	C-1		
	2. No sound.	C-2		
	3. No sound from one speaker.	C-3		
	4. Sound quality is poor, or sound is weak.5. Cassette tape will not eject.			
	6. Uneven revolution. Tape speed is fast or slow.	C-6		
	7. Automatic search does not work (only for models with automatic search function).	C-7		
	8. Faultv auto reverse.	C-8 I		
	9. Tape gets caught in mechanism.	C-9		
). CD player	1. CD will not be accepted.	D - I		
	2. No sound.	D-2		
	3. CD sound skips.	D-3		
	4. Sound quality is poor.	D-4 I		
	5. CD will not be ejected.	D-5		
Í	6. No sound from one speaker.	D-6		
. Motor antenna	1. Motor antenna won't extend or retract.	E-1		
	2. Motor antenna extends and retracts but does not receive.	E-2		

CHART

A. NOISE

A-I Noise appears at certain places when traveling (AM).



A-2 Noise appears at certain places when traveling (FM).



NOTE

About FM waves:

FM waves have the same properties as light, and can be deflected and blocked. Wave reception is not possible in the shadow of obstructions such as buildings or mountains.

- The signal becomes weak as the distance from the station's transmission antenna increases. Although this may vary according to the signal strength of the transmitting station and intervening geographical formations or buildings, the area of good reception is approx. 20–25 km (12–16 miles) for stereo reception, and 30–40 km (19-25 miles) for monaural reception.
- The signal becomes weak when an area of shadow from the transmitting antenna (places where there are obstructions such as mountains or buildings between the antenna and the car),

and noise will appear. <This is called first fading, and gives a steady buzzing noise.>

- 3. If a direct signal hits the antenna at the same time as a signal reflected by obstructions such as mountains or buildings, interference of the two signals will generate noise. During traveling, noise will appear each time the vehicle's antenna passes through this kind of obstructed area. The strength and interval of the noise varies according to the signal strength and the conditions of deflection. <This is called multipath noise, and is a repetitious buzzing.>
- 4. Since FM stereo transmission and reception has a weaker field than monaural, it is often accompanied by a hissing noise.



, ,

A-3 Mixed with noise, only at night (AM).

The following factors can be considered as possible causes of noise appearing at night.

- 1. Factors due to signal conditions:
- Due to the fact that long-distance signals are more easily received at night, even stations that are received without problem during the day may experience intereference in a general worsening of reception conditions The weaker a station is the more susceptible it is to interference, and a change to a different station

or the appearance of a beating sound* may occur.

- *Beat sound: Two signals close in frequency interfere with each other, creating a repetitious high-pitched sound. This sound is generated not only by sound signals but by electrical waves as well.
- 2. Factors due to vehicle noise: Alternator noise may be a cause.





TSB Revision

۲ ۲

ć

A-5 There is more noise either on AM or on FM.

1. There is much noise only on AM Due to differences in AM and FM systems, AM is more susceptible to noise interference.



2. There is much noise only on FM Due to differences in FM and AM systems, FM is not as susceptible as AM to interference from engines, power lines, lightning, etc. On the other hand, there are cases due to the characteristics of FM waves of noise or distortion

generated by typical noise interference (first fading and multipath). (Refer to A-2.) <Noise (hissing) occurs in weak signal areas such as mountainous regions, but this is not due to a problem with the radio.>

A-o i mere is noise when starting the engin

A-o [There is holse when starting the engine.						
Noise type Sounds are in paren- these [].	Conditions	Cause	Response			
AM, FM: Ignition noise [Popping, Snapping, Cracking, Buzzing]	 Increasing the engine speed causing the popping sound to speed up, and volume decreases. Disappears when the ignition switch is turned to ACC. 	 Mainly due to the spark plugs. Due to the engine noise. 	 Noise filter Noise condenser Ground cable 			
Other electrical compo- nents	-	Noise may appear as elec- trical components become older.	Repair or replace electrical components.			
Static electricity [Cracking, Crinkling]	 Disappears when the vehicle is completely stopped. Severe when the clutch is engaged. 	Occurs when parts or wir- ing move for some reason and contact metal parts of the body.	Return parts or wiring to their proper position.			
	 Various noises are pro- duced depending on the body part of the vehicle. 	Due to detachment from the body of the front hood, bumpers, exhaust pipe and muffler, suspension, etc.	Ground parts by bonding. Cases where the problem is not eliminated by a single response to one area are common, due to several body parts being imperfectly grounded.			

Caution

- 1. Connecting a high tension cable to the noise filter may destroy the noise filter and should never be done.
- 2. Check that there is no external noise. Since failure due this may result in misdiagnosis due to inability to identify the noise source, this operation must be performed.
- 3. Noise prevention should be performed by suppressing strong sources of noise step by step.

NOTE

1. Condenser

The condenser does not pass D.C. current, but as the number of waves increases when it passes A.C. current, impedance (resistance

against A.C.) decreases, and current flow is facilitated. A noise suppressing condenser which takes advantage of this property is inserted between the power line for the noise source and the ground. This suppresses noise by grounding the noise component (A.C. or pulse signal) to the body of the vehicle.

2. Coil

The coil passes D.C. current, but impedance rises as the number of waves increases relative to the A.C. current. A noise suppressing coil which takes advantage of this property is inserted into the power line for the noise source, and works by preventing the noise component from flowing or radiating out of the line.

NOISE SUPPRESSOR LOCATION <SOHC>







Models equipped with the AM/FM radio



Ground cable

1

6

<DOHC>



A-7 Some noise appears when there is vibration or shocks during traveling.



AUDIO SYSTEM – Troubleshootina



*About multipath noise and fading noise

Because the frequency of FM waves is extremely high, it is highly susceptible to effects from geological formations and buildings. These effects disrupt the broadcast signal and obstruct reception in several ways.

• Multipath noise

This describes the echo that occurs when the broadcast signal is reflected by a large obstruc-

tion and enters the receiver with a slight time delay relative to the dierct signal (repetitious buzzing).

54-133

Fading noise

This is a buzzing noise that occurs when the broadcast beam is disrupted by obstructing objects and the signal strength fluctuates intricately within a narrow range.

A-9 Ever-present noise.

Noise is often created by the following factors, and often the radio is OK when it is checked individually.

- Traveling conditions of the vehicle
- Terrain of area traveled through
- Surrounding buildings
- Signal conditions
- Time period
- **B. RADIO**
- B-I No sound.

For this reason, if there are still problem with noise even after the measures described in steps A-I to A-8 have been taken, get information on the factors listed above as well as determining whether the problem occurs with AM or FM, the station names, frequencies, etc., and contact a Service center.



B-2 No sound from one speaker.





*'Conductance check method 1

- (1) Remove 9P and 5P connectors from radio.
- (2) Insert test probe into connector terminal.
 (Concerning speaker connector, refer to P.54-113, 115, 117, 119, 121 and 123.)

	Check result		
Determination	Normal	Malfunction	Malfunction
Resistance (Ω)	4	Near 0	Test needle doesn't move.
Condition	Speater crauktes	. When there is no sound from the speaker, it is shorted out.	No sound from speaker, burns out.

*'Conductance check method 2

- (1) Remove the speaker 2P connector.
- (2) Insert the test probe into the connector terminal.
- (3) Refer the results to the above chart.

54-136

B-3 There is noise but no reception for both AM and FM.



ìe

B-4 No sound from AM, or no sound from FM.

Refer to B-3.

B-5 Insufficient sensitivity.



*For multipath noise and fading noise problems, refer P.54-133.

54-138

AUDIO SYSTEM – Troubleshooting

B-6 Distortion on AM or on both AM and FM.



B-7 Distortion on FM only. Does the distortion persist when the radio is tuned to another station? Yes Does distortion increase or decrease when the vehicle is moved? No Repair or replace radio.

B–8 Too few automatic select stations.



B-9 Insufficient memory (preset stations are erased).



C. CASSETTE PLAYER





C-4 Sound quality is poor, or sound is weak.



C-5 Cassette tape will not eject.

The problems covered here are all the result of the use of a bad tape (deformed or not properly tightened) or of a malfunction of the cassette player itself. Malfunctions involving the tape becoming caught in the mechanism and ruining the case are also possible, and attempting to force the tape out of the player can cause damage to the mechanism. The player should be taken to a service dealer for repair.



C-7 Automatic search does not work (only for models with the automatic search function). No Does the MSS (automatic search) button depress properly? Button improperly operated. Yes No Does the player play OK if the tape* is changed? Tape used is bad. *• When the time between songs on a tape is less than three seconds, or when there is a three second period in the middle of a song in which the volume level is Yes extremely low, the automatic search function may not work properly. • Ensure that the tape label is not loose, that the tape itself is not deformed and that the tape is tightly wound Also, tapes of C-I 20 or greater length often get caught in the mechanism and should not be used. Malfunction of the cassette player unit C-8 Faulty auto reverse. Yes OK Does the player play OK if the tape is changed? *• Ensure that the tape label is not loose, that the tape itself is not deformed and that the tape is tightly wound. No Tapes of C-I 20 or greater length often get caught in the mechanism and should not be used. No Does the problem only occur while the vehicle is being driven? Repair or replace cassette player. Yes No Ensure cassette player installation. Is the cassette player properly installed to the vehicle? Yes Repair or replace cassette player. C-9 Tape gets caught in mechanism.*' *1When the tape is caught in the mechanism, the case may not eject. When this occurs, do not try to force the tape out as this may damage the tape player mechanism. Take the cassette to a service dealer for repair. Yes Does the player play OK if the tape*2 is changed? Tape used is bad. *2Ensure that the tape label is not loose, that the tape itself No is not deformed and that the tape is tightly wound. Also, tapes of C-I 20 or greater length often get caught in the mechanism and should not be used. Repair or replace cassette player. **TSB** Revision

54-144

D - I CD will not be accepted.



- ¹ If the CD is already loaded, doesn't the shutter open to allow insertion when another CD is inserted?
 ² If the key switch is not at ACC or ON, the CD stops at depth
- * If the key switch is not at ACC or ON, the CD stops at depth of 15 mm below the panel surface even when it is inserted. and it will be rejected when pushed farther?
- it will be rejected when pushed farther?
 *³ Even though the CD is loaded, E terror) is sometimes displayed with the CD rejected because of vibration/shock or dew on the CD face or optical lens.

D-2 No sound.



D-3 CD sound skips.

1 Sound sometimes skips during parking Yes Clean Is CD face scratched or dirty? No Does it play properly if CD is replaced with an existing proper CD? No Repair or replace CD player. Yes Replace CD. Sound sometimes skips during driving. (Stop vehicle, and check it.) (Check it by using a proper CD which is free of scratch, dirt or other abnormality.) Check the sound skipping state during driving in detail, and No Does sound skip when the side of CD player is tapped? contact a service shop. Yes Securely mount the CD player. **TSB** Revision

54-146

D-4 Sound quality is poor.



D-5 CD will not be ejected.



D-6 No sound from one speaker.



TSB Revision

,

يعد ا

E. MOTOR ANTENNA

E-I Motor antenna won't extend or retract.

Clean and polish the surface of the antenna rod.



54-148



SERVICE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURES

MAST ASSEMBLY WITH CABLE REPLACEMENT (Motor antenna)

(1) Remove the ring nut.

(2) Switch ON the radio and operate the power antenna. (3) Pull it out with the mast assembly fully extended.

(4) With the antenna fully extended, turn the rack cable gears toward the trunk room as shown at left. Next, insert the rack cable into the motor assembly.

NOTE

Be sure the rack cable tip is straight before inserting it into the motor assembly, If the tip is not straight, correct as shown.

(5) Turn the rack cable gears toward the rear of the vehicle (90° to the right) and engage the cable with the motor gears.

NOTE

Pull the rack cable up gently. The rack cable gears are not engaged with the motor gears if the cable comes out smoothly. If the gears are not engaged, check the cable tip again to be sure it is straight, then repeat (4) and (5).

- (6) Raise the antenna pole vertically. Switch OFF the radio switch and wind in the rack cable. Insert the antenna pole to the motor side as the cable is being wound in.
- (7) Mount the shield pipe onto the antenna pole.
- (8) insert and mount the ring nut onto the shield pipe. Then, after tightening the ring nut at the specified torque (refer to P.54-153), switch the radio switch ON and OFF to house the antenna pole.

RADIO AND TAPE PLAYER <Up to 1990 models>

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



- 3. Radio with tape player
- 4. Radio bracket

RADIO AND TAPE PLAYER <1991 models>

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



M54NJAQb

RADIO AND TAPE PLAYER <1992 models>

REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



Removal steps

- 1. Radio panel
- 2. Radio and tape player mounting screw
- 3. Radio with tape player
- 4. Radio with tape player and CD player
- 5. Radio bracket

RADIO AND TAPE PLAYER <1993 models>



POWER AMPLIFIER <1991 models (Vehicles with CD player)> M54NUAAB REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



SPEAKER <Front speaker> REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



M54NMAH

<Door speaker>



M54NNAE



Removal steps 1. Speaker garnish **4** 2. Rear speaker

SERVICE POINTS OF REMOVAL

1. REMOVAL OF SPEAKER GARNISH

Remove (from the luggage compartment side) the garnish installation nut.

16A0405

ANTENNA ASSEMBLY



- (Refer to GROUP 52-Trim.)
- 2. Ring nut
- 3. Harness connection
- 4. Feeder wire connection
- 5. Motor antenna assembly



INSPECTION

<Vehicles built up to June 1988>

M54NPBG

54-153



ANTENNA RELAY

With the harness connector connected and the antenna mast extending/ retracting, check the antenna relay voltage.

Antenna mast extending

- - Terminal (1)10 to 13V Terminal (4)-1 to +1V

<Vehicles built from July 1988> MOTOR ANTENNA ASSEMBLY

Following inspections should be made with the harness connector disconnected from the power antenna relay. With the (+) power connected to the terminal (10) and the (-) power to the terminal (7), check that the antenna mast extends. With the connection reversed, check that the antenna mast retracts.

ANTENNA RELAY

With the harness connector connected and the antenna mast extending/retracting, check the antenna relay voltage.

Measurement terminals	Measurement conditions	Voltage (V)
Between 1 and 6 Between 2 and 6 Between 8 and 6 Between 8 and 6	Ignition key at "ON" Radio switch at "ON"	10 - 13
Between 1 and 3	When, antenna extended	10 — 13
Between 1 and 30	When, antenna retracted	10 — 13
Between 7 and 10	During antenna operation → stop	10 – 13 → 0

FEEDER CABLE REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION



- 1. Feeder cable and radio connections
- 2. Trunk room side trim
- 3. Motor antenna (or whip antenna) and feeder cable connections
- 4. Feeder cable

Operation

 Removal and Installation of Front Seat, Rear Seat, and Floor Console (Refer to GROUP 52–Seat and Floor Console.)

REAR WINDOW DEFOGGER





DEFOGGER CIRCUIT CIRCUIT DIAGRAM

< 1990 models>




GENERATIOR (L TERMINAL)

DEFOGGER SWITCH

TON

2 BR

E-15 1 2 3 4 5 6

DEFOGGER CIRCUIT CIRCUIT DIAGRAM <From 1991 models> IGNITION SWITCH (IG2) SUEL TUJIBLE C-4<u>3 2</u> 1234 5678 J/B 2 ¢ 10A 12345 6769101112 12345 6789 1011121314151617181920 C-16 C-44 3, OFF 2 w ≰ ٨٨ IC





54-162 REAR WINDOW DEFOGGER - Troubleshooting/Service Adjustment Procedures

OPERATION

- When the defogger switch is turned ON with the ignition switch in ON position, the defogger relay is energized causing defogger to operate.
- At the same time, the defogger indicator light lights up indicating that the defogger is in operation.
- The defogger timer keeps the defogger relay remaining energized for 10 minutes after the defogger switch has been turned ON. If the defogger switch is pushed a second time during this 10-min. period, timer is cancelled and the defogger is turned off.



TROUBLESHOOTING HINTS

- 1. Defogger is inoperative.
 - 1) Indicator does not come on, either.
 - Check multi-purpose fuse No.2.
 - Check defogger relay.
 - 2) Indicator comes on.
 - Check defogger.
- 2. Defogger timer is inoperative.
 - Check defogger timer.
 - NOTE

For information concerning the defogger relay and defogger timer, refer to P.54-163 and 54-164. --

SERVICE ADJUSTMENT PROCEDURES

- (1) Run engine at 2,000 rpm. Check heater element with battery at full.
- (2) Turn ON rear window defogger switch. Measure heater element voltage with circuit tester at rear window glass center A.

Condition good if indicating about 6V.

(3) If 12 V is indicated at A, there is a break in the negative terminals from A. Move test bar slowly to negative terminal to detect where

Move test bar slowly to negative terminal to detect where voltage changes suddenly (0 V).

(4) If 0 V is indicated at A, there is a break in the positive terminals from A. Detect where the voltage changes suddenly (12 V) with the same method described.

THE PRINTED-HEATER LINES REPAIR REQUIRED MATERIALS

• Thinner

- Lead-free gasolineFine brush
- TapeConductive paint
- Conductive paint (1) Clean disconnected area with lead-free gasoline. Tape
- (1) Clean disconnected area with lead-nee gasonne. Tape along both sides of heater element.(2) Mix conductive paint thoroughly. Thin the required
- amount of paint in a separate container with a small amount of thinner and paint break three times at 15 minute intervals.
- (3) Remove tape and leave for a while before use (circuit complete).
- (4) When completely dry (after 24 hours) finish exterior with a knife.

Caution

Clean glass with a soft cloth (dry or damp) along defogger heater element.



REAR WINDOW DEFOGGER SWITCH

INSPECTION

Operate the switch and check the continuity between the terminals.

Switch position	Termina	3	2	1	4	5	6
OFF					D)	La	₽
ON		0-	-0	lllum tion	nina- light	Indic lig	ator ht
NOTE							

NOTE $\ensuremath{\text{O-O}}$ indicates that there is continuity between the terminals.





DEFOGGER RELAY

INSPECTION

- (1) Remove defogger relay.
- (2) Connect battery power source to terminal 3. Check circuit between terminals with terminal 1 grounded.

M54PLAB

Power is supplied	4–5 terminals	Continuity
Power is not supplied	4-5 terminals	No continuity
	1-3 terminals	Continuity

54-164

DEFOGGER TIMER

M54PPAD



INSPECTION

- (1) Remove the defogger timer from indoor relay box.
- (2) Connect the battery and the test light to the timer as shown in the figure.
- (3) Check to be sure that the test lamp illuminates for approximately eleven seconds when battery voltage is applied to terminal ④ for a few seconds.
- (4) Check to be sure that the test light switches OFF when battery voltage is again applied, during the test described above, to terminal ④.

THEFT-ALARM SYSTEM SPECIAL TOOLS

М54СРАСЬ

54-165

Tool	Number	Name	Use
	MB991341	Scan tool (Multi-use tester <mut>)</mut>	To check the input of the theft-alarm system
		ROM pack	
\diamond	For the number, r 00-Precautions E	efer to GROUP Before Service	



TROUBLESHOOTING

M54CNAGa

Using a scan tool, check whether or not input signals are being input from each switch to the electronic control unit.

- 1. Connect the scan tool to the data link connector (located at the right side of the junction block).
- Check to be sure that voltage should be output with the ignition key "OFF", door switch "ON" (door opening) and the following switch "ON".
 - Key-reminder switch
 - Hood switch
 - Door switch

INPUT CHECK

- Door lock actuator switch
- Door and liftgate key cylinder switch
- Trunk lid switch

If the buzzer does not sound, check for a malfunction of that switch or for damaged or disconnected wiring.

QUICK-REFER-TROUBLESHOOTING ENCE TABLE (ETACS-RELATED PROB-LEMS ONLY)

For information concerning the locations of electrical components, refer to GENERAL.

1. ARMING/DISARMING RELATIONSHIP

Problem	em Probable cause Check method		Remedy
The system is not armed even though the arming procedures are followed.	Damaged or disconnected wiring of ECU power supply circuit	Check by the circuit check No. 1 proce- dures. (P.54-169)	Replace the fuse No. 17 or repair the harness.
(The SECURITY light doesn't illu- minate, and the alarm doesn't function.)	Malfunction of the door lock actuator switch	Check by following in- dividual part and the	Replace the door lock actuator or repair the
[The central door locking SyS- tem, however, should function normally. If the central locking	Short-circuit of door lock actuator switch input circuit	circuit check No. 6 pro- cedures. (P.54-174)	harness.
mally, refer to GROUP 42– Troubleshooting.]	Damaged or disconnected wiring of left-front and right- front door switch input cir- cuit	Check by following in- dividual part and circuit check No. 5 proce- dures. (P.54-173)	Repair the harness or replace the door switch.
	Malfunction of the ECU		Replace the ECU.
The arming procedures are fol- lowed, but the SECURITY light doesn't illuminate. (There is an alarm, however,	Damaged or disconnected wiring of SECURITY light power supply or drive cir- cuit.	Check by following in- dividual part and circuit check No. 9 proce- dures. (P.54-176)	Replace the fuse No.9 or repair the harness.
after about 20 seconds have passed.)	Damaged or disconnected wiring of SECURITY light bulb		Replace the light bulb.
	Malfunction of the ECU	-	Replace the ECU.
The armed condition is not main- tained when a door is unlocked while the SECURITY light is illu-	Damaged or disconnected wiring of door lock actuator input circuit	Check by following in- dividual part and the circuit check No. 6 pro-	Repair the harness or replace the door lock actuator.
dures are completed).	Malfunction of the door lock actuator switch	cedules. (1.34-174)	
	Malfunction of the ECU	-	Replace the ECU.
The alarm sounds in error when, while the system is armed, the runk lock is unlocked by using he key.	Damaged or disconnected wiring of trunk lid key cylin- der unlock switch input cir- cuit	If a malfunction is indi- cated as a result of checking the input sig- nals, check by follow- nals, check by follow-	Repair the harness or replace the trunk lid key cylinder.
	Malfunction of the trunk lid key cylinder unlock switch	the circuit check No.7 procedures. (P.54-175)	
	Malfunction of the ECU	-	Replace the ECU.

í

-

ì

5

 $\ensuremath{\mathsf{NOTE}}$ The "ECU" (electronic control unit) indicates the ETACS control unit.

THEFT-ALARM SYSTEM - Troubleshooting

54-167

Problem	Probable cause	Check method	Remedy
The system is not disarmed when, while armed, a left and/or right door is opened by using the key. (Alarm sounds in error.)	Damaged or disconnected wiring, of key cylinder switch input circuit Malfunction of the key cylin- der switch	If a malfunction is indi- cated as a result of checking the input sig- nals, check by follow- ing individual part and the circuit check No. 7 procedures. (P.54-175)	Repair the harness or replace the key cylinder.
	Malfunction of the ECU	_	Replace the ECU.

2. ACTIVATION/DEACTIVATION RELATIONSHIP

Problem	Probable cause	Check method	Remedy	
There is no alarm when, as an alarm test, a door is opened without using the key.	Damaged or disconnected wiring of door switch (all doors) input circuit	If a malfunction is indi- cated as a result of checking the input sig-	Repair the harness or replace the door switch.	
normal, however, and the alarm is activated when the trunk lid or hood is opened.)	Malfunction of the door switch	hars, check by follow- ing individual part and the circuit check No.4. (P.54-172)		
	Malfunction of the electro- nic control unit	-	Replace the electronic control unit.	
There is no alarm when, as an alarm test, the trunk lid is opened without using the key.	Damaged or disconnected wiring of trunk lid switch input circuit	If a malfunction is indi- cated as a result of checking the input sig-	Repair the harness or replace the trunk lid switch.	
er, by the opening of a door.)	Malfunction of the trunk lid switch	ing individual part and the circuit check No. 8 procedures. (P.54-176)		
	Malfunction of the ECU	-	Replace the ECU.	
There is no alarm when, as an alarm test, the hood is opened from within the vehicle.	Damaged or disconnected wiring of hood switch input circuit	If a malfunction is indi- cated as a result of checking the input sig-	Repair the harness or replace the hood switch.	
Pr, by the opening of a door.)	Malfunction of the hood switch	ing individual part and the circuit check No.3 procedures. (P.54-171)		
	Malfunction of the ECU	-	Replace the ECU.	
Engine can't be started. Engine starting should be possi- ple, however, when the starter relay is in the switched-off (nor- nally closed) condition, with the ECU harness connector discon- nected, etc.]	There is a short-circuit of the starter relay drive circuit and a short-circuit of the key- reminder switch at the same time.	Check by following in- dividual part and the circuit check No. 14 procedures. (P.54-180)	Repair the harness and replace the key- reminder switch.	
here is no alarm when, as an larm test, all doors and the deck id are opened without using the	Damaged or disconnected wiring of headlight relay or horn relay drive circuit	Check by following in- dividual part and the circuit check No. 10, 12	Repair the harness or replace the diode.	
vithin the vehicle. The headlights can, however, we switched ON in the usual way	Damaged or disconnected wiring of diode	procedures. (P.54-177, 178)	1	
y using the lighting switch.)	Malfunction of the ECU	-	Replace the ECU.	

THEFT-ALARM SYSTEM - Troubleshooting

Problem	Probable cause	Check method	Remedy	
The headlights flash during an alarm test, but the theft-alarm horn does not sound.	nts flash during an Damaged or disconnected wiring of horn relay drive circuit		 Repair the harness or replace the diode or the horn relay. 	
	Damaged or disconnected wiring of diode			
	Malfunction of the theft- alarm horn relay			
The system is not deactivated when, during an alarm test in which the alarm is intentionally	tem is not deactivated uring an alarm test in e alarm is intentionally		Repair the harness or replace the key cylinder.	
(The system also cannot be dis- armed.)	Malfunction of the key cylin- der switch	ing individual part and the circuit check No. 7 procedures. (P.54-175)		
	Malfunction of the ECU	-	Replace the ECU.	

NOTE

1. If there is abnormally excessive play in the installation of the key cylinder switch of the trunk and for doors, or if there is improper installation, or if there is a malfunction of the switch itself, the signals to disarm the system and to deactivate the alarm won't be sent to the ECU.

In this instance, after the system has been armed, the alarm will be activated even if the door is opened by using the key.

If, however, there is a short-circuit malfunction of key cylinder switch of door, the electronic control unit will judge that there is a malfunction of the detection switch if the ignition switch is switched ON, and the alarm will not be set thereafter until the short-circuit malfunction is reset.

2. If there is a malfunction of the key cylinder switch system (damaged or disconnected wiring, or short-circuit), thus making it necessary to prevent an incorrect (accidental) alarm, the system should not be armed by using the key to lock when all the doors are closed.

54**-169**

CHECKING THE CIRCUIT AND INDIVIDUAL PART 1 ETACS POWER-SUPPLY AND GROUND CIRCUITS



Description of operation

The battery supplies a stabilized 5V power supply to the ECU, via the constant-voltage circuit and terminal 36 (which is directly connected to the battery).

ECU terminal voltage (Connection condition of the ECU connector)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Condition	Terminal voltage
36	ECU power supply	At all times	Battery positive voltage

Checking the ground circuit (Disconnect the connector and check at the wiring harness side)

ECU termii No.	j nal	Connected to measured component	Measurement		Tester connect	Ion	Check condition	Standard
29	ECU	J ground	Resistance	2	_ground	A t	a I I times	Continuity

2. KEY-REMINDER SWITCH INPUT CIRCUIT



Description of operation

The key-reminder switch is switched OFF and HIGH-level signals are sent to the ECU when the key is inserted into the ignition key cylinder: when the key is removed, the key-reminder switch is switched ON and LOW-level signals are sent to the ECU.

ECU terminal voltage (Connection condition of the ECU connector)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Condition	Terminal voltage _I	
9	Key-reminder	Key removed Battery positive voltag		
	switch	Key inserted	OV	

Checking the key-reminder switch circuit (Disconnect the connector of the ECU and check at the wiring harness side)

ECU terminal No.	Connected to measured component	Measurement	Tester connection	Check condition	Standard
٩	Kev-reminder		Key removed	Continuity	
9	switch	Resistan	ce s-ground	Key inserted	No continuity

Checking individual part: Key-reminder switch – Refer to P.54-6. Ignition switch – Refer to P.54-6.

3. HOOD SWITCH INPUT CIRCUIT



Description of operation

When the hood is closed (the hood switch is switched OFF), HIGH-level signals are 'sent to the ECU:

When the hood is opened (the hood switch is switched ON), LOW-level signals are sent to the ECU.

ECU terminal voltage (Connection condition of the ECU connector)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Condition		Terminal voltage
		Lined	Open	0V
U	riooa switch	HUOD	Closed	5V*

* Measurement is not possible by using a voltmeter, but is possible by using an oscilloscope.

Checking the hood switch circuit (Disconnect the connector of the ECU and check at the wiring harness side)

ECU terminal No.	Connected to measured component	Measurement	Tester connection	Check condition		Standard
30	Hood switch	ood switch Resistance @-ground		Hood	Closed	No continuity
			Ū		Open	Continuity

Checking individual part: Hood switch – Refer to GROUP 42–Hood.

4. DOOR SWITCH (ALL DOORS) INPUT CIRCUIT



Description of operation

When the door is closed (the door switch is switched OFF), HIGH-level signals are sent to the ECU:

When the door is opened (the door switch is switched ON), LOW-level signals are sent to the ECU.

ECU terminal voltage (Connection condition of the ECU)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Condition		Terminal voltage
	All door	All	Open	0V
	switches	doors	Closed	5V*

* Measurement is not possible by using a voltmeter, but is possible by using an oscilloscope.

Checking the door switch circuit (Disconnect the connector of the ECU and check at the wiring harness side)

ECU terminal No.	Connected to measured component	Measurement	Tester connection	Check condition		Standard
1	All door	Resistance	①-ground	All	Closed	No continuity
	SWITCHES			doors	Open	Continuity

Checking individual part:

Door switch - Refer to GROUP 42-Door Assembly.

5. DOOR SWITCH (LEFT-FRONT DOOR AND RIGHT-FRONT DOOR) INPUT CIRCUIT



Description of operation

When the door is closed (the door switch is switched OFF), HIGH-level signals are sent to the ECU:

When the door is opened (the door switch is switched ON). LOW-level signals are sent to the ECU.

ECU terminal voltage (Connection condition of the ECU)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Condition		Terminal voltage
	Front door	Front	Open	0V
(43) (43)	switch	door	Closed	5V*

* Measurement is not possible by using a voltmeter, but is possible by using an oscilloscope.

Checking the door switch circuit (Disconnect the connector of the ECU and check at the wiring harness side)

ECU terminal No.	Connected to measured component	Measurement	Tester connection	Check condition		Standard
ŵ	Front door	Resistance	1 - ground	Front	Closed	No continuity
	SWITCH	Tiesistance	e-ground	door	Open	Continuity

Checking individual part:

Door switch - Refer to GROUP 42-Door Assembly.

6. DOOR LOCK ACTUATOR SWITCH INPUT CIRCUIT

Sub fusible link ① J/B $(\mathbf{1})$ 1 2 3 4 IOD or storage <u>connect</u>or M 1 2 3 4 J/B 2 3 4 **ETACS** control unit 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 (electronic 8 control unit) 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 B 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 <FRONT. ä 2 <FRONT, RH> Door lock LOCK DOUL JOEN LOCK LH> 🖌 LÖCK 1234 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 M Door lock Door lock LOCK LOCK ΪIN actuator N 1N ŭnck ĭöcк actuator] switch switch REAR, RH> <REAR, $\frac{1}{3}$ $\frac{2}{4}$ LH> 8 (R 16A1242 IOD: Ignition Off Draw

Description of operation

When a door is locked by the lock knob or the key, the door lock actuator switch is switched CFF, and HIGH-level signals are sent to the ECU. These signals activate the timer circuit of the ECU, there by causing the activation circuit to function, thus activating the door lock actuator of all doors.

ECU terminal voltage (Connection condition of the ECU connector)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Conc	lition	Terminal voltage
0	Door lock actuator	Door lock	Lock: OFF	5V*
<i>U</i>	switch (front, LH)	switch	Unlock: ON	0V
0	Door lock actuator switch (front, RH)	Door lock	Lock: OFF	5V*
		switch	Unlock: ON	0V
	Door lock actuator	oor lock	Lock: OFF	5V*
0	switch (rear door)	switch	Unlock: ON	OV

Measurement is not possible by using a voltmeter, but is possible by using an oscilloscope.

ŧ

7

Checking the door switch circuit (Disconnect the connector of the ECU and check at the wiring harness side)

ECU terminal No.	Connected to measured component	Measurement	Tester connection	Ch cone	eck dition	Standard
Ø	Door lock	Desistance	@	Door lock	Lock: OFF	No continuity
9	switch	Resistance	@-ground	switch	Unlock: ON	Continuity
ସ୍ପ	Door lock	Resistance	@-ground	Door lock	Lock: OFF	No continuity
Ŭ	switch	Resistance	e ground	Door lock actuator switch Door lock actuator switch Door lock actuator switch	Unlock: ON	Continuity
8	Door lock	Posistanco	@_ground	Door lock	Lock: OFF	No continuity
Ű	switch	Resistance	e-ground	actuator switch Door lock actuator switch Door lock actuator Switch Door lock actuator switch Unloc OF OF OF OF OF OF OF OF OF OF OF OF OF	Unlock: ON	Continuity

Checking individual part:

Door lock actuator switch - Refer to GROUP 42-Central door locking system.

No

No

7. DOOR KEY CYLINDER AND TRUNK LID UNLOCK SWITCH INPUT CIRCUIT



8. TRUNK LID SWITCH INPUT CIRCUIT



Description of operation

When the trunk lid is closed (the trunk lid switch is switched OFF), HIGH-level signals are sent to the ECU.

When the trunk lid is opened (the trunk lid switch is switched ON), LOW-level signals are sent to the ECU.

ECU terminal voltage (Connection condition of the ECU connector)

ECU terminal No.	Signal	Condition		Terminal voltage
	Trunk lid	Truck lid	Open	OV
⁽¹⁾	switch	TTUTIK IIU	Closed	5V*

⁺ Measurement is not possible by using a voltmeter, but is possible by using an oscilloscope.

Checking the trunk lid switch circuit (Disconnect the connector of the ECU and Check at the wiring harness side)

ECU terminal No.	Connected to measured component	Measurement	Tester connection	Check condition		Standard
0	Trunk lid	Frunk lid Resistance @-ground Trunk lid		Trunk lid	Closed	No continuity
	Switch				Open	Continuity

í

Į,

3

9. SECURITY LIGHT ACTIVATION CIRCUIT



Description of operation

If all doors are in locked state after key locking or key-less locking, the ECU transistor is turned ON and the security light comes on.

Checking the security light activation circuit (Disconnect the connector of the ECU and check at the wiring harness side)

_					
		Judge	ement		
Step	Check object	ect Normal Mal- function Cause		Remedy	
1	Combination meter connector terminal	Innector terminal Battery positive		Fuse (9) damaged or disconnected	Replace the fuse
	voltage (terminal No.8)			Harness damaged or disconnected, or short-circuit	Repair the harness
2	Combination meter connector terminal voltage	Combination meter Battery OV connector terminal positive voltage voltage		Damaged or discon- nected wiring of SECURITY light bulb	Replace the bulb
	(terminal No. 17)			Harness damaged or disconnected	Repair the harness
3	ECU terminal voltage	Battery positive voltage	ov	Harness damaged or disconnected. or short-circuit	Repair the harness
on					

10. THEFT-ALARM HORN RELAY POWER-SUPPLY CIRCUIT

16A1246



Description of operation

Power voltage is always supplied to the theft-alarm horn relay. Checking the theft-alarm horn relay power-supply circuit (Disconnect the theft-alarm horn relay)

	Judg	ement	ł		
Check object	Normal	Mal- function	Cause	Remedy	
(Wiring harness side) terminal voltage (4 – Ground)	Battery positive voltage	ov	Sub fusible link ⑦ blown	Replace the sub fusible link	
			Damaged or discon- nected harness	Repair the harness	

Checking individual part:

Theft-alarm horn relay - Refer to P.54-105.

11. HORN ACTIVATION CIRCUIT



Description of operation

The ECU transistor is turned ON if the vehicle door, etc. are opened without use of the key.

This energizes the theft-alarm horn relay to activate the theft-alarm horn.

Checking the theft-alarm horn activation circuit (Disconnect the connector of the ECU, then short-circuit terminal No. 2 (YL line), and activate the theft-alarm horn relay)

		Judge	ement		
Step	Check object	Normal	Mal- function	Cause	Remedy
1	Theft-alarm horn re- lay terminal voltage (I-Ground)	Battery positive voltage	οv	Malfunction of the the theft-alarm horn relay	Check the theft-alarm horn relay (Refer to P.54-105.)
2	Theft-alarm horn ter- minal voltage (Battery side terminal-ground)	Battery positive voltage	ov	Harness damaged or disconnected	Repair the harness
3	Theft-alarm horn ter- minal voltage (Ground side terminal-Ground)	Theft- alarm horn sounds (0V)	Theft- alarm horn doesn't sound (OV)	Malfunction of the the theft-alarm horn	Replace the theft-alarm horn
			Battery positive voltage	Damaged or discon- nected wiring of ground circuit	Repair the harness

12. HEADLIGHT POWER-SUPPLY CIRCUIT



Description of operation

Power voltage is always supplied to the headlight relay. Checking the headlight power-supply circuit (Disconnect the headlight relay)

	Judge	ement		
Check object	Normal	Mal- function	Cause	Remedy
(Wiring harness side) terminal voltage (3-Ground)	Battery positive voltage	οv	Sub fusible link ⑦ blown	Replace the sub fusible link
			Damaged or discon- nected harness	Repair the harness

ŧ

Checking individual part: Headlight relay – Refer to P.54-97.

13. HEADLIGHT ACTIVATION CIRCUIT



Description of operation

The ECU transistor is turned **ON** if the vehicle door, etc. are opened without use of the key. This energizes the headlight relay to activate the headlight.

Checking the headlight activation circuit (Disconnect the connector of the ECU, then short-circuit terminal No.2(YL line) and activate the headlight relay)

		Judg	ement		
Step Check object	Normal	Mal- function	Cause	Remedy	
1	Headlight relay ter- minal voltage (1 -Ground)	Battery positive voltage	ov	Malfunction of the headlight relay	Check the headlight re- lay (Refer to P.54-97.)
2	Headlight terminal voltage (2-Ground)	Battery positive voltage	ov	Harness damaged or disconnected	Repair the harness
3	Headlight terminal voltage (1 -Ground)	Battery positive voltage	The head- light isn't turned on.	Malfunction of the headlight. Harness damaged or discon- nected. Malfunction of Dim- mer switch	Replace the headlight or dimmer switch Repair the harness

14. STARTER RELAY ACTIVATION CIRCUIT



Description of operation

The ECU transistor is turned ON if the vehicle door etc. are opened without use of the key. This turns OFF the starter relay and power ceases to be supplied to the starter magnet switch.

Checking the starter relay activation circuit (Disconnect the connector of the ECU, depress fully the clutch pedal and activate the starter relay)

		Judge	ement			
Step Check object	Normal	Mal- function	Cause	Remedy		
1	Starter relay terminal voltage (3-Ground)	Battery positive voltage	ov	Malfunction of the starter relay	Check the starter relay	
2	Starter motor terminal (1 -Ground)	Battery positive voltage	0V	Harness damaged or disconnected	Repair the harness	
(Starter motor connector B-19:Separation)						
3	Continuity between "B-19" connector and ground	0Ω	8Ω	Damaged magnet switch	Replace mag- net switch	

A

ABS	
Checking by the ABS Warning Light	35-68-1
Troubleshooting	35-15-1
ABS POWER RELAY, Check	35-74-1
ACCELERATOR CABLE	
Inspection and Adjustment <auto-cruise control=""></auto-cruise>	13-398-1
Inspection and Adjustment <engine control=""></engine>	. 13-329-1
ACCELERATOR SWITCH, Inspection and Adjustment	. 13-329-1
A/C COMPRESSOR CLUTCH RELAY	
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	. 13-285-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-83-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	. 13-176-1
ACTIVE-ECS ON-BOARD DIAGNOSTIC, Check	. 33B-88-I
ACTIVE-ECS RELAY	33B-141-I
ACTIVE-ECS SENSOR	33B-138-I
ACTIVE-ECS SYSTEM	
Checking by Using Alarm Light	. 33B-87-I
Operation Check	. 33B-90-I
AERO PARTS	51-18-1
AIR CLEANER	15-9-1
AIR CLEANER ELEMENT	
inspection and Replacement	15 - 6-1
Maintenance	00-39-1
AIR COMPRESSOR	33B-125-I
AIR CONDITIONING SWITCH	
Emission control	. 17-21-1
Heater, Air Conditioning and Ventilation	. 55-29-1
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-285-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-83-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	. 13-176-1
AIR TUBE	33B-133-i
ALARM LIGHT, Check.	33B-87-i
ALARM SYSTEM, Theft	. 54-165-ll
ALIGNMENT	
Front Wheel, Adjustment	33A-5-I
Rear Wheel, Inspection <awd></awd>	. 34-23-1
Rear Wheel, Inspection <fwd></fwd>	34-5-1
ANTENNA	54-153-II
ANTI-LOCK BRAKING SYSTEM, Troubleshooting	. 35-15-1
ARM	
Lower <active-ecs></active-ecs>	33B-103-I
Lower <front suspension=""></front>	33A-10-I
Lower <rear suspension-awd=""></rear>	. 34-28-1
Torsion <active-ecs></active-ecs>	33B-119-I
Torsion <rear suspension-fwd=""></rear>	. 34-15-1
Trailing <rear suspension-awd=""></rear>	. 34-31-1
Upper <rear suspension-awd=""></rear>	. 34-28-1
AUDIO SYSTEM	54-112-ll
AUTO-CRUISE CONTROL.	13-408-1
AUTO-CRUISE CONTROL INDIVIDUAL PARTS, Inspection	13-401-l
AUTO-CRUISE CONTROL SYSTEM	13-332-1
AUTO-CRUISE CONTROL SYSTEM, Inspection	13-397-1
AUTOMATIC TRANSAXLE, Maintenance	00-43-1
AXLE	
Rear, Maintenance	00-45-
Torsion <active-ecs></active-ecs>	33B-119-I
	34-15-l
	07 0 1
	. 27-8-1
	. Z/-6-1
AALE OFAFI NAVVU/	Z/-!/-

В

1

BACKLASH, Total, Rear Axle, Check <awd> BALL JOINT</awd>	27-15-1
Rotation Starting Torque Check	3/8-8-1
Tie Rod End, Starting Torque Check	. 37A-15-I
Tie Rod End, Variation Check	. 37A-15-I
BALL JOINT SEALS, MaintenanceBAR	00-45-1
Stabilizer <active-ecs></active-ecs>	33B-106-I
Stabilizer <front suspension=""></front>	. 33A-13-I
Stabilizer <rear suspension-awd=""></rear>	34-37-1
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-266-1
	13-53-1
On-vehicle Inspection < SOHC-16VALVE>	13-154-1
BASIC IDLE SPEED	. 10 1041
Adjustment <dohc></dohc>	13-245-1
Adjustment <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-33-1
	13-133-1
BATTERY	54-2-11
BATTERY. Flat Remedy.	. 35-75-1
BEARING	
Wheel, Adjustment <active-ecs></active-ecs>	33B-87-1
Wheel, Adjustment <pront suspension=""> BELT</pront>	33A-5-I
Drive, Compressor, Adjustment	. 55-17-1
Drive (For Water Pump and Generator), Maintenance	00-41-1
Drive, Tension Adjustment <dohc></dohc>	. 11-61-1
Drive, Tension Adjustment <sohc></sohc>	. 11-12-1
Seat	52-39-1
Timing <dohc></dohc>	11-80-1
Timing <sohc></sohc>	11-34-1
Timing, Maintenance	00-40-1
Timing, Tension Adjustment <sohc></sohc>	. 11-10-1
Clutch	. 21-6-1
4WS	. 37B-4-I
Service Brakes	. 35-57-1
Steering	37A-22-I
BLOWER	. 55-32-1
BOOSTER	
Brake	35-85-1
Brake, Operating Inspection	35-54-1
BOOST METER, On-vehicle Inspection <dohc-turbo></dohc-turbo>	13-31 -
BOOTS, Drive Shaft, Maintenance	. 00-45-1
BRAKE	
Disc, Front	. 35-94-1
Disc, Rear	35-114-1
BRAKE BOOSTER	35-85-1
BRAKE BOOSTER, Operating Inspection BRAKE DISC	. 35-54-1
Front, Run-out Check.	35-63-1
Front, Run-out Correction	35-64-!
Front, Thickness Check	35-65-1
Rear, Run-out Check	35-66-1
Rear, Run-out Correction.	35 - 66-I
Rear, Thickness Check	35-66-1
BRAKE DRUM, Inside Diameter, Check	35-67-1
BRAKE FLUID LEVEL SENSOR, Check	35-54-1
BRAKE FLUID PRESSURE SWITCH	
AWD-ABS (Up to 1991 Models)	35-133-1
AvvD-ABS (Up to 1991 models). Check	35-75-1
	00-45-1
BRAKE LINE	35-87-1

BRAKE LINING Thickness Check	35-67-1
Drum, Rear, Maintenance	00-44-1
BRAKE LINING AND BRAKE DRUM, Connection Check.	35-67 - 1
BRAKE PAD	
Disc, Front, Check and Replacement	35-59-1
Disc, Rear, Check and Replacement	35-65-1
BRAKE PEDAL	35-76-1
BRAKE PEDAL, inspection and Adjustment	35-53-1
BUMPER	51-7-1

С

CABLE	
Accelerator, Inspection and Adjustment <auto-cruise control=""></auto-cruise>	13-398-1
Accelerator, Inspection and Adjustment	- 13-329-1
High Tension, Spark Test < SOHC-8VALVE>	16-42-11
Parking Brake	36-5-1
Spark Plug. Test.	. 16-42-11
Speedometer. Replacement 	23-93-1
Speedometer, Replacement <m t-awd=""></m>	20 00 1
Speedometer, Replacement <m t-fwd=""></m>	22-5-1
CAMSHAFT	
DOHC	11-68-1
SOHC	11.10-1
	11 10 1
	11 60 1
SONC	11 10 1
	11-19-1
CAMSHAFT POSITION SENSOR	10 077
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	. 13-277-1
	13-69-1
CANISTED Evenerative Emission	. 13-165-1
	17-21-1
	. 1/-24-1
	32-8-1
CENTRAL DOOR LOCKING SYSTEM	42-101-1
CHARGE AIR COOLER	15-12-1
CHARGING	55-17-1
CHARGING SYSTEM.	. 16-2-II
CHARGING SYSTEM, Inspection	16 - 5-II
CHECK VALVE, Operation Check	. 35-54-1
CIGARETTE LIGHTER	54-106-II
CLOCK	. 54-109-II
CLOSED THROTTLE POSITION SWITCH	
Adjustment <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-136-1
Fixed SAS, Adjustment <dohc></dohc>	. 13-250-l
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-274-I
On-vehicle inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	. 13-61-1
On-vehicle Inspection < SOHC-16VALVE>	13-160-1
CLUTCH CONTROL	21-10-1
CLUTCH MASTER CYLINDER	21-12-1
CLUTCH PEDAL	. 21-7-1
CLUTCH PEDAL, Inspection and Adjustment	. 21-5-1
CLUTCH RELAY, A/C Compressor, On-vehicle Inspection < D O H C > 13-285-1	
CLUTCH RELEASE CYLINDER	21-13-1
COIL	
Ignition. On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-302-1
Ignition, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-96-I
Ignition, On-vehicle Inspection $<$ SOHC-16VALVE $>$	13-186-I
COLUMN SWITCH	54-100-II
COMBINATION LIGHT, Rear.	54 - 95-II
COMPRESSION PRESSURE	
Check <dohc></dohc>	11-59-1

Check <sohc></sohc>	11-8-
COMPRESSOR	55-38-1
COMPRESSOR, Air	33B-125-
COMPRESSOR DRIVE BELT, Adjustment.	55-17-1
COMPRESSOR NOISE, Adjustment	55-23-1
CONDENSER,	55-48-1
CONDENSER FAN MOTOR	55-48-1
CONSOLE, Floor	52-29 - 1
CONTROL	
Engine	13-328-1
Transaxle 	23-94-1
Transaxle <m t-awd=""></m>	22-19-1
Transaxle <m 1-fwd=""></m>	22-6-1
CONTROL SYSTEM	
Evaporative Emission	17-15-1
Intake Charge Pressure, Inspection	15-/-
Mixture (MFI)	17-29-1
Purge, Inspection <non-turbo></non-turbo>	17-17-1
	1/-18-1
	35-124-
Activo ECS	228-140-1
FPS	374-59-1
CONTROL VALVE $< 4W/S >$	37B-12-
	0,0,2
Engine Concentration Test	14-8-1
Engine Leak Check	14-8-1
Engine, Maintenance	00-44-1
Engine, Replacement	14-8-1
CRANKCASE VENTILATION SYSTEM. Inspection	17-14-1
CRANKSHAFT POSITION SENSOR	
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-280-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-73-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-167 - I
CROSSMEMBER	32-8-1
CURB IDLE SPEED	
Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13 -2 45-i
Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	1 3-32- !
Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	, 13-133-1
CYLINDER	
Master	35-81 - I
Power	37 B-9 -1
Wheel, Rear Brake	35-111-1
Wheel. Rear, Maintenance	· · · · 00-44-I
CYLINDER HEAD GASKET	44
	11-/3-
3UNU	11-25-1

D

DASH POT, Inspection and Adjustment <dohc></dohc>	11-58-I
DEFOGGER, Rear Window	
DEFOGGER RELAY	54-163-11
DEFOGGER SWITCH, Rear Window	54-163 - II
DEFOGGER TIMER	54-164-11
DELAY VALVE, Check < FWD-ABS>	
DIAPHRAGM, Rolling, Check	33B-89-1
DIFFERENTIAL CARRIER <awd></awd>	
DISC	
Brake, Front, Run-out Check	35-63-1
Brake, Front, Run-out Correction	35-64-1
Brake, Front, Thichness Check	3 5-6 5-l
Brake, Rear, Run-out Check	35-66-1
Brake, Rear, Run-out Correction	35-66-1
Brake, Rear, Thichness Check	· · · · · · · · 35-66-I

DISC BRAKE	
Front	. 35-94-1
Rear	35-114-1
DISC BRAKE PADS Maintenance	00-44-1
	55-20-1
	16 55 11
	40 74
	42-74-1
	· 42-51 -1
DOOR DRIP LINE WEATHERSTRIP	40 440 1
Pront	42-112-1
	42-114-1
DOOR GLASS	
	42-52-1
Front	. 42-80-1
Rear,	. 42-83-1
DOOR HANDLE	
Front	. 42-96-1
Rear	42-99-1
DOOR INSIDE HANDLE, Play Check	42-52-
DOOR LATCH	
Front	42-96-I
Rear	42-99-1
DOOR MIRROR	· 51-33-I
DOOR MOULDING	
Front	42-112-1
Rear	42-114-1
DOOR REGULATOR	
Front	. 42-80-1
Rear	42-83-
	A2-110-L
	42 110 1
Front	40.76
Deer	42-70-
	42-70-1
	40 70 1
	42-76-1
	42-78-1
	FF 47 1
Compressor, Adjustment	11 01
Tension Adjustment <sohc></sohc>	. 11-12-1
Water Pump and Generator, Maintenance	. 00-41-1
DRIVE SHAFT	
Front Axle	26 - 12-1
Rear Axle <awd></awd>	27-20-1
DRIVE SHAFT BOOTS, Maintenance	. 00-45-1
DRIVE SHAFT OIL SEALS	
Replacement 	. 23-92-1
Replacement <m t-awd=""></m>	22-18-I
Replacement <m t-fwd=""></m>	. 22-4-1
DRUM	
Brake, inside Diameter, Check	35-67-1
Brake, Rear	35-108-1
DRUM BRAKE, Rear	35-108-1
DRUM BRAKE LININGS, Rear, Maintenance	. 00 - 44-I
DRYER, 3	3B-127-I

Ε

EGR SOLENOID <california></california>	
Emission Control	17-28-1
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-307-l
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-101-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-191-1
EGR SYSTEM	
Inspection <california></california>	17-25-1

inspection <federal></federal>	17-25-1
EGR TEMPERATURE SENSOR <california></california>	
Emission Control	. 17-28-1
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	. 13-288-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-85-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-177-1
EGR VALVE	. 17 - 27-I
EGR VALVE CONTROL VACUUM	. 17-26-
ELECTRONIC CONTROL UNIT <abs></abs>	. 35-134-1
ELEMENT	
Air Cleaner, Inspection and Replacement	15-6-1
Air Cleaner, Maintenance	00-39-1
	220.001
Hub, Inspection < Active-ECS /	26-5-1
Rear Wheel Beering Adjustment (50/0)	20-0-1
Rear, Wheel Bearing, Adjustment CrwD/	27-15-1
	11-63-1
SOHC	11-14-1
	13-328-1
ENGINE CONTROL MODULE POWER GROUND	10 020 1
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-257-1
On-vehicle Inspection < SOHC-8VALVE>	. 13-45-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	. 13-146-1
ENGINE CONTROL MODULE TERMINAL VOLTAGE	
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-315-J
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	. 13-105-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	. 13-192-1
ENGINE COOLANT	
Concentration Test	, 14 - 8-I
Leak Check	. 14-8-1
Maintenance	00-44-1
Replacement	14-8-1
ENGINE COOLANT TEMPERATURE GAUGE UNIT	. 14-31-i
ENGINE COOLANT TEMPERATURE SENSOR	
Cooling	14-31-1
Emission Control	17-21-1
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-268-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-55-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-155-1
ENGINE COOLANT TEMPERATURE SWITCH	14.01.1
	14-31-1
Heater, Air Conditioning and Ventilation	. 55-57-1
	. 32-4-1
	1 1-57-l
ENGINE OIL Check <dohc> Check <sohc></sohc></dohc>	11-57-l
ENGINE OIL Check <dohc> Check <sohc> Maintenance</sohc></dohc>	11-57-I 11-7-I 00-41-I
ENGINE OIL Check <dohc> Check <sohc> Maintenance ENGINE OIL FILTER, Maintenance</sohc></dohc>	11-57-I 11-7-I 00-41-I 00-41-I
ENGINE OIL Check <dohc> Check <sohc> Maintenance ENGINE OIL FILTER, Maintenance ENGINE ROLL STOPPER</sohc></dohc>	11-57- 11-7- 00-41- 00-41- 32-6-
ENGINE OIL Check <dohc> Check <sohc> Maintenance ENGINE OIL FILTER, Maintenance ENGINE ROLL STOPPER EPS CONTROL UNIT</sohc></dohc>	11-57-1 11-7-1 00-41-1 00-41-1 32-6-1 37A-59-1
ENGINE OIL Check <dohc> Check <sohc> Maintenance ENGINE OIL FILTER, Maintenance ENGINE ROLL STOPPER EPS CONTROL UNIT EPS MODE SELECTOR SWITCH</sohc></dohc>	11-57- 11-7- 00-41- 32-6- 37A-59- 37A-59-
ENGINE OIL Check <dohc> Check <sohc> Maintenance ENGINE OIL FILTER, Maintenance ENGINE ROLL STOPPER EPS CONTROL UNIT EPS MODE SELECTOR SWITCH EPS SOLENOID, Check</sohc></dohc>	11-57-I 11-7-I 00-41-I 00-41-I 32-6-I 37A-59-I 37A-59-I 37A-19-I
ENGINE OIL Check <dohc> Check <sohc> Maintenance ENGINE OIL FILTER, Maintenance ENGINE ROLL STOPPER EPS CONTROL UNIT EPS MODE SELECTOR SWITCH EPS SOLENOID, Check EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CANISTER</sohc></dohc>	11-57-I 11-7-I 00-41-I 32-6-I 37A-59-I 37A-59-I 37A-19-I 17-21-I
ENGINE OIL Check <dohc> Check <sohc> Maintenance ENGINE OIL FILTER, Maintenance ENGINE ROLL STOPPER EPS CONTROL UNIT EPS MODE SELECTOR SWITCH EPS SOLENOID, Check EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CANISTER EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CONTROL SYSTEM</sohc></dohc>	11-57-I 11-7-I 00-41-I 32-6-I 37A-59-I 37A-59-I 37A-19-I 17-21-I 17-21-I
ENGINE OIL Check <dohc> Check <sohc> Maintenance ENGINE OIL FILTER, Maintenance ENGINE ROLL STOPPER EPS CONTROL UNIT EPS MODE SELECTOR SWITCH EPS SOLENOID, Check EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CANISTER EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CONTROL SYSTEM EVAPORATIVE EMISSION PURGE SOLENOID</sohc></dohc>	11-57-I 11-7-I 00-41-I 32-6-I 37A-59-I 37A-59-I 37A-19-I 17-21-I 17-15-I
ENGINE OIL Check <dohc> Check <sohc> Maintenance ENGINE OIL FILTER, Maintenance ENGINE ROLL STOPPER EPS CONTROL UNIT EPS MODE SELECTOR SWITCH EPS SOLENOID, Check EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CANISTER EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CONTROL SYSTEM EVAPORATIVE EMISSION PURGE SOLENOID Emission Control</sohc></dohc>	11-57-I 11-7-I 00-41-I 32-6-I 37A-59-I 37A-59-I 37A-19-I 17-21-I 17-21-I
ENGINE OIL Check <dohc> Check <sohc> Maintenance ENGINE OIL FILTER, Maintenance ENGINE ROLL STOPPER EPS CONTROL UNIT EPS MODE SELECTOR SWITCH EPS SOLENOID, Check EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CANISTER EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CONTROL SYSTEM EVAPORATIVE EMISSION PURGE SOLENOID Emission Control On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc></sohc></dohc>	11-57-I 11-7-I 00-41-I 32-6-I 37A-59-I 37A-59-I 37A-19-I 17-21-I 17-21-I 13-307-I
ENGINE OIL Check <dohc> Check <sohc> Maintenance ENGINE OIL FILTER, Maintenance ENGINE ROLL STOPPER EPS CONTROL UNIT. EPS MODE SELECTOR SWITCH EPS SOLENOID, Check EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CANISTER EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CONTROL SYSTEM EVAPORATIVE EMISSION PURGE SOLENOID Emission Control On-vehicle Inspection <dohc> On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve></dohc></sohc></dohc>	11-57-I 11-7-I 00-41-I 32-6-I 37A-59-I 37A-59-I 37A-19-I 17-21-I 17-21-I 13-307-I 13-99-I
ENGINE OIL Check <dohc> Check <sohc> Maintenance ENGINE OIL FILTER, Maintenance ENGINE ROLL STOPPER EPS CONTROL UNIT. EPS MODE SELECTOR SWITCH. EPS SOLENOID, Check EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CANISTER EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CONTROL SYSTEM EVAPORATIVE EMISSION PURGE SOLENOID Emission Control On-vehicle Inspection <dohc> On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve> On - vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve></sohc-8valve></dohc></sohc></dohc>	11-57-I 11-7-I 00-41-I 32-6-I 37A-59-I 37A-59-I 37A-19-I 17-21-I 17-21-I 13-307-I 13-99-I 13-189-I
ENGINE OIL Check <dohc> Check <sohc> Maintenance ENGINE OIL FILTER, Maintenance ENGINE ROLL STOPPER EPS CONTROL UNIT EPS MODE SELECTOR SWITCH EPS SOLENOID, Check EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CANISTER EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CONTROL SYSTEM EVAPORATIVE EMISSION PURGE SOLENOID Emission Control On-vehicle Inspection <dohc> On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve> O n - v e h i c l e I n s p e c t i o n <sohc-16valve> EVAPORATOR</sohc-16valve></sohc-8valve></dohc></sohc></dohc>	11-57-I 11-57-I 00-41-I 00-41-I 32-6-I 37A-59-I 37A-59-I 37A-19-I 17-21-I 17-21-I 13-307-I 13-307-I 13-99-I 13-189-I 13-189-I 17-20-I
ENGINE OIL Check <dohc> Check <sohc> Maintenance ENGINE OIL FILTER, Maintenance ENGINE ROLL STOPPER EPS CONTROL UNIT. EPS MODE SELECTOR SWITCH. EPS SOLENOID, Check EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CANISTER EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CONTROL SYSTEM EVAPORATIVE EMISSION PURGE SOLENOID Emission Control On-vehicle Inspection <dohc> On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve> O n - v e h i c l e I n s p e c t i o n <sohc-16valve> EVAPORATOR EXHAUST GAS RECIRCULATION (EGR) SYSTEM</sohc-16valve></sohc-8valve></dohc></sohc></dohc>	11-57- 11-7- 00-41- 32-6- 37A-59- 37A-59- 37A-19- 17-21- 17-21- 13-307- 13-307- 13-99- 13-189- 55-34- 17-22-
ENGINE OIL Check <dohc> Check <sohc> Maintenance ENGINE OIL FILTER, Maintenance ENGINE ROLL STOPPER EPS CONTROL UNIT. EPS MODE SELECTOR SWITCH. EPS SOLENOID, Check EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CANISTER EVAPORATIVE EMISSION CONTROL SYSTEM EVAPORATIVE EMISSION PURGE SOLENOID Emission Control On-vehicle Inspection <dohc> On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve> O n - v e h i c l e I n s p e c t i o n <sohc-16valve> EVAPORATOR EXHAUST GAS RECIRCULATION (EGR) SYSTEM DOHC-Non-Turbo</sohc-16valve></sohc-8valve></dohc></sohc></dohc>	11-57- 11-57- 00-41- 00-41- 37A-59- 37A-59- 37A-19- 17-21- 17-21- 13-307- 13-307- 13-399- 13-189- 55-34- 17-22- 15-30-

DOHC-Turbo		15-31-
SOHC-8VALV	Έ	15-27-1
SOHC-1	6VALVE	15-28-1
EXHAUST PIPE		
DOHC		15-33-I
SOHC		15-32-1
EXHAUST SYSTE	EM, Maintenance	00-45-1

F

FAN MOTOR	
Condenser	. 55-48-1
Radiator	- 14-12-1
FEEDER CABLE	. 54-155-ll
FENDER	·· 42-61 -
FILLER DOOR, Fuel Tank	42-60-1
FILLER TUBE CAP. Fuel Tank. Inspection	17-21-1
FILTER	
Engine Oil Maintenance	00.41
	10 007
	13-32/-
	13-110-1
	13-195
FITTINGS, Handling	55-22-1
FIXED SAS	
Adjustment <dohc></dohc>	13-250-1
Adjustment <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-138-1
FLAT BATTERY, Remedy	. 35 - 75-1
FLOOR CONSOLE	. 52 - 29-1
FLUID	
Power Steering, Level Check	37A-21-I
Power Steering, Replacement	37A-21-I
Transaxle, Replacement	23-82-1
FLUID LEVEL, Transaxle, Inspection	. 23-82-1
FOG LIGHT	. 54-94-1
FOG LIGHT SWITCH	54-99-11
4WS Function Check	37B-6-1
FRONT BRAKE DISC	
Run-out Check	25-62-1
Run-out Correction	25-64-1
	25 65 1
	. 30-00-1
FRONT DIGC BRAKE DAD, Charle and Darkstonen	. 35-94-1
FRONT DISC BRAKE PAD, Check and Replacemen	11 35-59-1
FRONT DOOR DRIP LINE WEATHERSTRIP	42-112-1
FRONT DOOR GLASS	. 42-80-1
FRONT DOOR HANDLE	. 42-96-1
FRONT DOOR LATCH	42-96-1
FRONT DOOR MOULDING	42-112-I
FRONT DOOR REGULATOR	42-80-1
FRONT DOOR TRIM	. 42-76-1
FRONT DOOR WATERPROOF FILM	42-76-1
FRONT GRILLE	51-12-1
FRONT SEAT	52-35 - 1
FRONT WHEEL ALIGNMENT	
Adjustment <active-ecs></active-ecs>	33B-86-1
Adjustment <front suspension=""></front>	33A-5-I
FUEL FILTER	
DOHC	13-327-I
SOHC-8VALVE	13-115-(
SOHC-16VALVE	13-195-
FUEL HOSES, Maintenance	00-39-1
FUEL LINE	
DOHC-AWD	13-326-0
DOHC-FWD	13-324-1
SOHC-8VALVE	13-112-1
SOHC-16VALVE	13-195-1
	101100-1

FUEL PRESSURE

On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-312-1
On-vehicle Inspection $<$ SOHC-8VALVE>	13-102-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-192-1
FUEL PRESSURE SOLENOID <turbo>. On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc></turbo>	13-307-1
FUEL PUMP	
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-258-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-46-1
On-vehicle inspection $<$ SOHC-16VALVE $>$	13-147-1
FUEL SYSTEM, Maintenance	00-39-1
FUEL TANK	
DOHC-AWD	13-322-1
DOHC-FWD	13-318-1
SOHC-8VALVE	13-109-1
COLIC 1EVALVE	
30HC-16VALVE	13-195-1
FUEL TANK FILLER DOOR	13-195-i 42-60-i
FUEL TANK FILLER DOOR FUEL TANK FILLER TUBE CAP, Inspection.	13-195-1 42-60-1 17-21-1
FUEL TANK FILLER DOOR FUEL TANK FILLER TUBE CAP, Inspection. FUEL TANK PRESSURE CONTROL VALVE.	13-195-/ 42-60- 17-21- 17-21-

G

GARNISHES	51-13-
GASKET	
Cylinder Head <dohc></dohc>	11-73-
Cylinder Head <sohc></sohc>	11-25-1
GAUGE UNIT. Engine Coolant Temperature	14-31-
GEAR BOX, Power Steering	37A-32-1
GEAR OIL, Level Check <awd></awd>	27-15-1
GENERATOR	16-9-11
GLASS	
Door, Adjustment	42-52-1
Door, Front	42-80-1
Door, Rear	42-83-1
Quarter Window	42-70-1
Window	42-63-1
Window, Rear	42-72-1
GRILLE, Front	51-12-1
G-SENSOR	
Service Brakes < AWD-ABS>	35-132-1
Output Voltage, Check	33B-96-I

Η

1

HANDLE	
Door, Front	42-96-1
Door, Rear	42-99-1
Door Inside. Play Check	42-52-1
HAZARD SWITCH	54 - 98-II
HEADLIGHTS	54-92-11
HEADLINING	·· 52-31-I
HEATED OXYGEN SENSOR, On-vehicle Inspection	
<dohc></dohc>	13-290-1
HEATER CONTROL	55-25-l
HEATERUNIT	55-30-l
HEIGHT SENSOR	33B-135-I
HIGH MOUNTED STOP LIGHT	54-96-11
HIGH PRESSURE SWITCH (HIGH-PRESSURE TANK SIDE),	
Actuation Pressure Check.	33B-94-1
HIGH TENSION CABLE, Spark Test <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	16-42-ll
HOOD	42-55-I
HOOD, Alignment Adjustment	42 - 50-I
HORN	54-103-II
HORN RELAY	54-105-li
HOSE	
Brake, Maintenance	00-45-1

4

Fuel Maintenance	00-39-1
Power Steering	374-58-1
	0// 00 1
Transaxle Oil Cooler	23-100-l
Vacuum	17-4-
Water <dohc (non-turbo)=""></dohc>	14-26-I
Water <dohc (turbo)=""></dohc>	14-28-!
Water <sohc></sohc>	14-23-I
HUB	
End Play Inspection <active-ecs></active-ecs>	33B-86-I
End Play. Inspection <front axle=""></front>	26-5-1
Front Axle	26-1-
Rear Axle <fwd-rear brakes="" disc=""></fwd-rear>	27-8-1
Rear Axle <fwd-rear brakes="" drum=""></fwd-rear>	27-6-1
HYDRAULIC UNIT	35-121-1
HYDRAULIC UNIT, inspection	35-70-1

I

IAC VALVE POSITION SENSOR, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-162-1
IDLE AIR CONTROL MOTOR	
DC Motor, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-i 6valve=""></sohc-i>	13-184-I
Stepper Motor, On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-298-1
IDLE SPEED	
Basic, Adjustment <dohc></dohc>	13-245-1
Basic, Adjustment <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-33-1
Basic, Adjustment <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-133-1
Curb, Inspection < DOHC>	13-245-1
Curb, Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-32-1
Curb. Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-133-1
IDLE SPEED CONTROL MOTOR (DC Motor).	
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-93-1
IDLE SPEED CONTROL MOTOR POSITION SENSOR,	
On-vehicle inspection <sohc+8valve></sohc+8valve>	13 - 64-I
IDLE-UP OPERATION, Check	55-24-I
IGNITION COIL	
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-302-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-96-I
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-186-1
IGNITION POWER TRANSISTOR	
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-302-!
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-96-I
On-vehicle Inspection < SOHC-I6VALVE>	13-186-1
IGNITION SWITCH	
Chassis Electrical	54-6-11
On-vehicle inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-284-1
On-vehicle inspection <sohc-8valve, a="" t=""></sohc-8valve,>	13-78-I
On-vehicle Inspection \leq SOHC-8VALVE, M/T>	13-77-l
On-vehicle Inspection \leq SOHC-16VALVE, A/T>	13-172-
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc–16valve, m="" t=""></sohc–16valve,>	13-171-
IGNITION SYSTEM	16-32-ll
IGNITION TIMING	
Adjustment < DOHC>	16-40-II
Adjustment < SOHC>	16-39-II
INDICATOR 3	3B-140-i
INDIVIDUAL PARTS, Auto-cruise Control, Inspection	13-401-1
INFLATION PRESSURE, Tire, Check	31-4-1
INJECTORS	
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-295-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	> 13-90-1
On-vehicle Inspection $<$ SOHC-16VALVE $>$	13-181-1
INSTRUMENT PANEL	52-22-1
INTAKE AIR TEMPERATURE SENSOR	
Emission Control	17-21 -l
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc> 13-263-1</dohc>	
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve> 13-51</sohc-8valve>	~

On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-152-1
INTAKE CHARGE PRESSURE CONTROL SYSTEM, Inspection	15-7-1
INTAKE MANIFOLD	
DOHC	15-21-1
SOHC-8VALVE	15-14-I
SOHC-16VALVE	15-18-1

Κ

KEY	INTERLO	CK	MEC	HANISI	И,	Check.	23-83-1
KICKDOW	N	SEF	RVO,		Adjustm	nent	23-86-1
KNOCK SE	NSOR, C	On-vehi	cle Inspe	ction			
<dohc-< td=""><td>Turbo</td><td>and</td><td>DOHC</td><td>(1992</td><td>From</td><td>models)></td><td>13-287-1</td></dohc-<>	Turbo	and	DOHC	(1992	From	models)>	13-287-1
KNUCKLE							26-6-1

L

LASH ADJUSTERS	
Check <dohc></dohc>	1-57-
Check <sohc></sohc>	11-7-
LATCH	
Door, Front	42-96-1
Door, Rear	42-99-
LATERAL ROD	
Active-ECS	33B-117-!
Rear Suspesion <fwd></fwd>	
LEAK, Refrigerant, Repair Procedure	55-21-1
LEVEL	
Fluid, Transaxle, Inspection	23-82-1
Oil, Transfer, Inspection	23-82-1
LEVER	
Parking Brake	36-4-!
Parking Brake, Stroke Check	36-2-1
Selector, Operation Check	23-83-I
Shift <awd></awd>	22-19-1
Shift <fwd></fwd>	22-9-1
LID	
Trunk	4 2-5 7-I
Trunk, Adjustment	42-50- I
LIGHT	
Alarm, Check	··· 33B-87-1
Rear Combination	54-95-1
Stop, High Mounted	54-96-11
LIGHTING SYSTEM	54-38-11
LINE	
Brake	35-87- I
Fuel <dohc-awd></dohc-awd>	13 - 326-i
Fuel <dohc-fwd></dohc-fwd>	13-324-1
	13-113-1
Fuel < SOHC-16VALVE>	13-195-1
	55-54-1
	13-326-1
	13-324-
	12 105
Vapor <sohc-i 6valve=""></sohc-i>	13-195-1
	23-88-1
Brake Thickness Check	25.67 1
Rear Drum Brake Maintenance	00-44-1
	42-62-1
LOWER ARM	
Active-ECS	33B-103-I
Front Suspension	
Rear Suspesion <awd></awd>	34-28-1

Μ

MAIN MUFFLER	
D O H C	15-33-1
SOHC	15-32-1
MANIFOLD	
Exhaust <dohc-non-turbo></dohc-non-turbo>	15-30-l
Exhaust <dohc-turbo></dohc-turbo>	15-31-I
Exhaust <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	15-27-1
Exhaust <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	15 - 28-I
Intake <dohc></dohc>	15-21-1
Intake <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	15-14-1
Intake <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	15-18-1
Vacuum Inspection <dohc> · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·</dohc>	11-60-1
Vacuum Inspection <sohc></sohc>	. 11-9-!
MANUAL TRANSAXLE	
AWD	22-15-1
FWD	22-2-1
Maintenance	00-42-1
MASTER CYLINDER	
Clutch	21-12-1
Service Brakes	35-81 -1
METER, Boost, On-vehicle Inspection <dohc-turbo> ····</dohc-turbo>	13-311-
METERS AND GAUGES	54-8-li
MIRROR, Door	51-33-l
MIRROR SWITCH, Remote Controlled	51-34-1
MIXTURE CONTROL (MFI) SYSTEM	17-29-
MODE SELECTOR SWITCH EPS	37A-59-I
MOTOR	
ldle Air Control (DC Motor), On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-184-
Idle Air Control (Stepper Motor), On-vehicle Inspection	13 -29 8-i
Idle Speed Control (DC Motor), On-vehicle inspection	40.001
<suhc-8valve></suhc-8valve>	13-93-1
Starter	16-19-1
MOULDING	
Door, Front	42-112-1
Door, Rear · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	42-114-1
Exterior	51-15-1
MOUNTING	
Engine	. 32-4-1
Transaxle	32-5-1
MUFFLER	
Main <dohc></dohc>	15-33-1
Main <sohc></sohc>	15-32-1

Ν

NOISE, Compressor, Adjustment	55-23-l
NORMAL VEHICLE HEIGHT, Check and Adjustment	33B-88-I

0

OIL	
Engine, Check <dohc></dohc>	11-57-I
Engine, Check <sohc></sohc>	11-7-I
Engine, Maintenance	00-41-1
Transaxle. Replacement < AWD>	2 2- 18-I
Transaxle, Replacement <fwd></fwd>	22 - 4-l
Transfer, Replacement 2	23-82-1
OIL COOLER HOSES, Transaxle 23	3-100-1
OIL FILTER, Engine, Maintenance)0 - 41-l

OIL LEVEL	
Gear, Check <awd></awd>	27-15-l
Transaxle, Inspection <awd></awd>	22-17-l
Transaxle, Inspection <fwd></fwd>	22-4-1
Transfer, Inspection	23-82-1
OIL LINE, Rear,	37B-13-
OIL PAN	
DOHC	11-71-1
SOHC	11-23-1
OIL PRESSURE SWITCH, Power Steering, Check.	37A-24-
OIL PUMP	
Power Steering	37A-48-I
Power Steering, Pressure Test	37A-23-1
Rear	37B-15-1
Rear, Discharge Flow Volume Check	37B-6-I
OIL SCREEN	
DOHC	11-71-I
SOHC · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	11-23-1
OIL SEALS	
Camshaft <dohc></dohc>	1 1-68-1
Camshaft <sohc></sohc>	11-19-1
Drive Shaft, Replacement 	23-92-1
Drive Shaft, Replacement <awd></awd>	22-18-1
Drive Shaft, Replacement <fwd></fwd>	22-4-1
Transfer, Replacement <awd></awd>	22-19-1
OUTPUT VOLTAGE, G sensor, Check	33 B-9 6-I
OXYGEN SENSOR	
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-87-
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-179-1

Ρ

PAD	
Disc Brake, Front, Check and Replacement	35-59-1
Disc Brake, Maintenance	00-44-l
Disc Brake, Rear, Check and Replacement	35-65-1
PANEL, Loose	42-62-1
PARKING BRAKE CABLE	36-5-1
PARKING BRAKE LEVER	36-4-1
PARKING BRAKE LEVER, Stroke Check	36-2-1
PARKING BRAKE SWITCH, Check	36-3-1
PARK/NEUTRAL POSITION SWITCH	
Adjustment	23-84-1
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc, a="" t=""></dohc,>	13 - 284-I
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve, a="" t=""></sohc-8valve,>	1 3-7 8-I
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve, a="" t=""></sohc-16valve,>	13-172-
PCV VALVE, Inspection	17-14-1
PEDAL	
Brake	35-76-
Brake, Inspection and Adjustment	35-53-1
Clutch	21-7-1
Clutch, Inspection and Adjustment	21-5-1
PERFORMANCE TEST	55-21-l
PIPE	
Exhaust <dohc></dohc>	. 15-33-l
Exhaust <sohc></sohc>	15 - 32-i
Water <dohc (non-turbo)=""></dohc>	14-26-1
Water <dohc (turbo)=""></dohc>	14 - 28-i
Water <sohc></sohc>	14 - 23-I
PLAY	
End, Hub, Inspection <active-ecs></active-ecs>	33B-86-1
End, Hub, Inspection <front axle=""></front>	26 - 5-I
End, Rear Wheel Bearing, Check <a< td=""><td>WD> 27-15-I</td></a<>	WD> 27-15-I
End, Wheel Bearing, Adjustment <	FWD> 27-3-I

ALPHABETICAL INDEX

PLUG	00.40.1
	. 00-40-1
Spark T e s t	10-42-11 17 12 1
	1/-13-1
	17-14-1
POWER AMPLIFIER	54-151-ll
POWER CYLINDER	37B-9-I
POWER GROUND	
Engine Control Module, On-vehicle Inspection	
	13-257-1
<pre><souch <="" <souch="" control="" inspection="" module,="" on-venicle="" pre=""></souch></pre>	. 13-45-1
Engine Control Module, On-vehicle Inspection	
<sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	. 13-146-1
POWER RELAY	
	. 35-74-1
Air Conditioning and Ventilation, Check	. 55-24-1
	. 37A-18-1
	274 21 1
	27A-21-1
POWER STEERING GEAR BOX	374-21-1
POWER STEERING HOSES	37A-58-1
POWER STEERING OIL PUMP	. 37A-48-1
POWER STEERING OIL PUMP, Pressure Test	37A-23-I
POWER STEERING PRESSURE SWITCH	
Check	37A-24-1
On-vehicle inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-284-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	. 13-81-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-i 6valve=""></sohc-i>	13-175-I
POWER SUPPLY	
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-255-1
On-vehicle Inspection < SOHC-BVALVE>	12 142-1
POWER TRANSISTOR	13-143-1
Ignition On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-302-1
Ignition. On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	. 13-96-1
Ignition, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-186-1
POWER WINDOW	. 42-86-1
PRESSURE	
Compression, Check <dohc></dohc>	11-59-1
Compression, Check <sohc></sohc>	. 11-8-1
Fuel, On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-312-1
Fuel, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-102-1
Fuel, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-192-1
Inflation, Tire, Check	. 31-4-1
Line, Adjustment	23-88-1
PRESSURE SWITCH	23-91 -1
Brake Fluid <awd-abs: 1991="" models="" to="" up=""></awd-abs:>	35-133-1
Brake Fluid, Check AWD-ABS: Up to 1991 Models>	35-75-1
PROPELLER SHAFT	25-4-1
PROPORTIONING VALVE, Function Test	35-56-1
PUMP	
Fuel, On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-258-1
Fuel. On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-46-1
Fuel, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-147-1
	3/B-15-1
Water < 20HC>	14-20-1
	14-15-1
Inspection <non-turbos< td=""><td>17.17.1</td></non-turbos<>	17.17.1
Inspection <turbo></turbo>	17-18-1
PURGE CONTROL VALVE <turbo></turbo>	17-20-1
PURGE PORT VACUUM	17-19-1

Q

QUARTER WINDOW GLASS			42-70-1
----------------------	--	--	---------

R

RADIATOR	. 1 4-9- I
RADIATOR CAP, Pressure Test	4-8-
RADIATOR FAN MOTOR	. 14-12-1
RADIO AND TAPE PLAYER	54-149-11
REAR AXLE	00.45.1
	00-45-1
	2/-15-1
REAR AXLE HUB	
FWD-Rear Disc Brakes	. 27-8-1
FWD-Rear Drum Brakes	27-6-1
REAR BRAKE DISC	
	35-66-1
Run-out Correction	. 35-66-1
Thickness Check	35-66-1
REAR BRAKE WHEEL CYLINDER	35-11 I-I
REAR COMBINATION LIGHT	. 54-95-11
REAR DISC BRAKE	35-114-1
REAR DISC BRAKE PAD, Check and Replacement	. 35-65-1
REAR DOOR DRIP LINE WEATHERSTRIP	42-114-I
REAR DOOR GLASS	42-83-1
REAR DOOR HANDLE	42-99-!
REAR DOOR LATCH	. 42-99-1
REAR DOOR MOULDING	42-114-1
REAR DOOR REGULATOR	42-83-1
REAR DOOR TRIM	42-78-1
REAR DOOR WATERPROOF FILM	42-78-1
REAR DRUM BRAKE	35-108-1
REAR DRI IM BRAKE LININGS Maintenance	00-44-1
REAR HUB Rotany-sliding Resistance (Torque)	00 44 1
Adjustment <fwd> 27-5-I</fwd>	
REAR OIL LINE	37B-13-i
REAR OIL PUMP	
Discharge Flow Volume Check	37B-6-I
4WS	37B-15-I
REAR SEAT	52-37-1
REAR SUSPENSION	
Active-ECS	33B-114-I
A W D	34-24-1
FWD	34-6-1
REAR WHEEL ALIGNMENT	
Inspection <awd></awd>	34-23-
Inspection <fwd></fwd>	34-5-1
REAR WHEEL BEARING	
End Play Check <awd></awd>	27-15-1
Rotation Sliding Resistance Check <awd></awd>	27-16-1
REAR WHEEL CYLINDERS, Maintenance,	00-44-1
REAR WINDOW DEFFOGER	54-156-11
REAR WINDOW DEFOGGER SWITCH	54-163-11
REAR WINDOW GLASS	42-72-1
REDUCING PRESSURE, Adjustment.	23-91-1
REFRIGERANT, Leak Repair Procedure	55-21-1
REFRIGERANT LINE	55-54-1
REGULATOR	
Door. Front	42-80-1
Door, Rear	42-83-1
RELAY	
A/C Compressor Clutch, On-vehicle Inspection	
<sohc-8valve> 13-83-1</sohc-8valve>	
A/C Compressor Clutch, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-i 6valve=""> 13-1</sohc-i>	76-1

ALPHABETICAL INDEX

A C T	I V	Е	-	Е	С	S	33B-141-I
Defogger							54-163-11
Horn							54-105-11
Liaht	in	a S	v	s t	е	m.	54-97-11
Power, Check		0					55-24-1
RELEASE	CYLI	NDE	R.	СI	uto	ch.	21-13-1
REMOTE CON	TROLL	ED M	IIRR	OR	sw	тсн	51-34-
RESE	R V	ΕT	- A	N	к		33B-122-I
RESISTANCE							
Rotary-sliding, F	Rear Hub,	Adjusti	ment	<fw< td=""><td>′D></td><td></td><td>27-5-I</td></fw<>	′D>		27-5-I
Rotation Sliding.	Rear Wh	eel Bea	aring,	Checl	< < A	WD>	27-16-1
RESISTOR							
Heater, Air Con	ditioning a	and Ver	ntilatio	on			55-28-1
On-vehicle Insp	pection <	DOHC	Turb	0> .			13-298-1
RHEOSTAT							54-99-11
ROD							
Lateral <active< td=""><td>e-ECS></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>33B-117-I</td></active<>	e-ECS>						33B-117-I
Lateral <rear s<="" td=""><td>Suspesion</td><td>-FWD2</td><td>></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>34-14-1</td></rear>	Suspesion	-FWD2	>				34-14-1
ROLLING DIAPHRA	AGM, Che	ck			••••		33B-89-I
ROLL STOPPER, Er	igine						32-6-1
ROTARY-SLIDING R Adjustment <fwd< td=""><td>ESISTANC</td><td>СЕ (ТО</td><td>RQUE</td><td>E), Rea</td><td>ar Hu </td><td>b, </td><td>27-5-1</td></fwd<>	ESISTANC	СЕ (ТО	RQUE	E), Rea	ar Hu 	b, 	27-5-1
ROTATION SLIDING Check <awd></awd>	3 RESIST	ANCE,	Rear	Whee	Bear	ing,	27-16-1
RUNCHANNEL, Do	or						42-110-I
RUN-OUT							
Front Brake Disc	c, Correcti	on					35-64-i
Rear Brake Disc	, Check .						35-66-1
Rear Brake Disc	, Correctio	on					35-66-1
Wheel, Check							31-4-1

S

SAFETY PRECAUTIONS	55-12-I
SEALS	00.45
Ball Joint, Maintenance	00-45-1
Steering Linkage, Maintenance.	00-45-1
SEAT	50.05
Front	52-35-1
Rear	52-37-I
SEAT BELT	52-39-I
SELECTOR LEVER, Operation Check	23-83-I
SENSOR	
A C T I V E - E C S	33B-138-I
Barometric Pressure, On-vehicle Inspection < D O H C >	13-266-1
Barometric Pressure, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-53-1
Barometric Pressure, On-vehicle Inspection < S O H C - I 6VALVE>	13 - 154-I
Brake Fluid Level, Check	35-54-1
Camshaft Position, On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-277-I
Camshaft Position, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-69-1
Camshaft Position, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve> 13-165-I</sohc-16valve>	
Crankshaft Position, On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-280-1
Crankshaft Position, On-vehicle Inspection	
<sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-73-1
Crankshaft Position, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-167-1
EGR Temperature California	17-28-1
EGR Temperature California, On-vehicle Inspection	13-288-1
EGR Temperature California, On-vehicle Inspection <pre><sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve></pre>	13-85-I
EGR Temperature California, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve> 13-177-1</sohc-16valve>	

Engine Coolant Temperature <cooling></cooling>	14-31-1 17-21-1
Engine Coolant Temperature Cernission Controls	17-211
<dohc></dohc>	13-268-1
<pre>Engine Coolant Temperature, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve></pre>	13-55-1
Engine Coolant Temperature, On-vehicle Inspection	55-1
G < AWD-ABS>	35-132-1
Heated Oxygen, On-vehicle Inspection <dohc> ·····</dohc>	. 13-290-1
Height	33B-135-I
IAC Valve Position, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-i 6valve=""></sohc-i>	13-162-
Idle Speed Control Motor Position, On-vehicle Inspection	13-64-1
intake Air Temperature	. 17-21 -
Intake Air Temperature, On-vehicle Inspection	13-263-
Intake Air Temperature, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve> 13-51</sohc-8valve>	-1
Intake Air Temperature, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-i 6valve=""> 13-1</sohc-i>	52-I
Knock, On-vehicle Inspection <dohc-turbo and="" dohc<br="">(1992 F r o m m o d e I s) > 13-287-1</dohc-turbo>	
Oxygen, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valv< td=""><td>E>13-87-I</td></sohc-8valv<>	E>13-87-I
Oxygen, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve< td=""><td>>13-179-1</td></sohc-16valve<>	>13-179-1
Throttle Position, Adjustment 	23-92-1
Throttle Position, Adjustment < DOHC	> 13-248-1
Throttle Position, Adjustment < SOHC-16VALV	>13-30-1
Throttle Position, On-vehicle Inspection <dohc:< td=""><td>> 13-270-1</td></dohc:<>	> 13-270-1
Throttle Position, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-57-1
Throttle Position, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-i 6valve=""> 13-1</sohc-i>	57-1
Vehicle Speed, On-vehicle Inspection <dohc< td=""><td>> 13-284-!</td></dohc<>	> 13-284-!
Vehicle Speed, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-80-I
Vehicle Speed, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-173-I
Volume Air Flow, Emission Control	17-21 -
Volume Air Flow, On-vehicle Inspection <dohc:< td=""><td>> 13-261-1</td></dohc:<>	> 13-261-1
Volume Air Flow, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve> 13-49-1</sohc-8valve>	
Volume Air Flow, On-vehicle Inspection	13-150-1
Wheel Speed < ABS>	35-126-1
Wheel Speed, Output Voltage Measurement	35-69-1
SERVO, Kickdown, Adjustment	23-86-1
SHAFT	
Axle <awd></awd>	27-17-1
	26-12-1
	27-20-1
Steering	. 37A-25-I
SHIFT LEVER	00.10.1
A W D	22-19-1
SHIFT LOCK MECHANISM, Check	23-84-1
SHOCK ABSORBER	
Active-ECS	33B-11 O-I
Rear Suspension < AWD>	34-35-1
	. 34-11-1
Active-ECS	33B-127-i
EGR <california></california>	17-28-1
EGR <california>, On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc></california>	I 3-307-I
EGR <california>, On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve> 13-101-I</sohc-8valve></california>	

.

۴.

8

Timing

TEST

THEFT

THERMAL

TERMINAL VOLTAGE

<DOHC> 13-315-1

Belt

Engine Control Module, On-vehicle Inspection

Engine Control Module, On-vehicle Inspection <SOHC-8VALVE> 13-105-1 Engine Control Module, On-vehicle Inspection <SOHC-16VALVE> .

ALARM

VACUUM

Adjustment

PROCEDURES

SYSTEM

VALVE <Federal>

<SOHC>

11-10-I

13-192-1

55-13-1

17**-**27-l

54-165-11

EGR <california>, On-vehicle Inspection</california>	
<sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-191-1
EPS, UNECK	. 3/A-19-1
Evaporative Emission Purge, On-vehicle Inspection	13-307-1
Evaporative Emission Purge, On-vehicle Inspection	. 13-99-1
Evaporative Emission Purge, On-vehicle Inspection	13-189-1
Fuel Pressure <turbo>, On-vehicle Inspection</turbo>	13-307-1
Turbocharger Waste Gate, Inspection	15-8-1
Turbocharger Waste Gate, On-vehicle Inspection <dohc-turbo></dohc-turbo>	. 13-309-1
SPARK PLUG	
Maintenance	00 - 40-I
Test	16-42-1
SPARK PLUG CABLE, Test	16-42-11
SPEAKER	54-151 -li
SPEED SENSOR	
Wheel <abs></abs>	35-126-1
Wheel, Output Voltage Measurement SPEEDOMETER CABLE	. 35-69-1
Replacement 	23-93-1
Replacement <m t-awd=""></m>	22-19-1
Replacement < M/T-FWD>	22-5-I
STABILIZER BAR	
Active-ECS	33B-106-I
Front Suspension	33A-13-I
Rear Suspension < AWD>	. 34-37-1
STARTER MOTOR	. 16-19-11
STARTING SYSTEM	. 16-14-11
STEERING GEAR BOX, Power	37A-32-I
STEERING LINKAGE SEALS, Maintenance	00-45-1
STEERING SHAFT	37A-25-I
STEERING WHEEL	37A-25-I
STEERING WHEEL	
Angle Check	37A-15-I
Centering	37A-16-I
Free Play Check.	37A-15-I
Return to Center Check.	37A-19-I
STOP LIGHT, High Mounted	54 - 96-II
STOPPER, Roil, Engine	32-6-I
STRUT	
Active-ECS	33B-97-I 33A-6-I
SUNROOF	
Body	42-116-1
Fit Adjustment	42-53-i
SUPERCHARGING PRESSURE, Turbocharger, inspection	on 15-7-1
SUSPENSION	
Rear < Active-ECS>	33B-114-I
Rear <awd></awd>	34-24-I
Rear <fwd> SWITCH</fwd>	. 34-6-1
Accelerator, Inspection and Adjustment	13-329-i 17-21 -i
Air Conditioning <heater, air="" and="" conditioning="" ventilation=""></heater,>	55-29-1
Air Conditioning, On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-285-1
Air Conditioning. On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-83-1
Air Conditioning, On-vehicle Inspection	13-176-1
Brake Fluid Pressure <awd-abs: Up to 1991 Models></awd-abs: 	35-133-l

Brake	Fluid Pressur	e, Check <a< th=""><th>WD-ABS:</th><th>10.</th><th>25 75 1</th></a<>	WD-ABS:	10.	25 75 1
Up Close	to d Throttle	Position	Adjustment		13-250-1
Close		sition, Adjustr	nent	001107	13-136-1
Closed	Throttle Pos	ition, On-veh	icle Inspection		10 100 1
Closed <soi< td=""><td>d Throttle Pos</td><td>ition, On-veh</td><td>icle Inspection 3-61-!</td><td></td><td></td></soi<>	d Throttle Pos	ition, On-veh	icle Inspection 3-61-!		
Closed <sof< td=""><td>I Throttle Pos</td><td>ition, On-veh ></td><td>icle Inspection</td><td></td><td>13-160-i</td></sof<>	I Throttle Pos	ition, On-veh >	icle Inspection		13-160-i
Colum	n				54-100-II
Engi	ne Coolan	t Temper	ature <co< td=""><td>oling></td><td>14-31-1</td></co<>	oling>	14-31-1
Engine <hea< td=""><td>e Coolant Ten ter, Air Co</td><td>nperature nditioning</td><td>and ventil</td><td>ation></td><td>55-57-1</td></hea<>	e Coolant Ten ter, Air Co	nperature nditioning	and ventil	ation>	55-57-1
Fog	Light			· · · · · · · · ·	54-99-11
Hazaro High-P	l ressure (High	Pressure Ta	nk Side),		54-98-II 38-94-I
Ignitio	n, Chassis	Electrical			54-6-11
Ignitic	on, On-veh	icle Inspec	ction <doh< td=""><td>C-A/T> 1</td><td>3-284-1</td></doh<>	C-A/T> 1	3-284-1
Ignitic	on, On-vehi	cle Inspec	tion <doh< td=""><td>C-M/T> 1</td><td>3-284-1</td></doh<>	C-M/T> 1	3-284-1
Ignitior	. On-vehicle	Inspection <	SOHC-8VALV	E, A/T>	13-7 8 -I
Ignition	, On-vehicle C-8VALVE, N	Inspection 1 / T >	13-77-1		
Ignition <soh< td=""><td>. On-vehicle C-16VALVE,</td><td>Inspection A/T> 13-17</td><td>2-1</td><td></td><td></td></soh<>	. On-vehicle C - 16VALVE,	Inspection A/T> 1 3- 17	2-1		
Ignition <soh< td=""><td>, On-vehicle C-16VALVE, I</td><td>Inspection M/T></td><td>. 13-171-l</td><td></td><td></td></soh<>	, On-vehicle C -16VALVE , I	Inspection M/T>	. 13-171-l		
Ignition <do⊦< td=""><td>, Power Supp IC> 13-255-</td><td>ly, On-vehicle</td><td>e Inspection</td><td></td><td></td></do⊦<>	, Power Supp IC> 13-255-	ly, On-vehicle	e Inspection		
Low-Pr Actuation	essure (Low-F on	Pressure Tanl Pressure	< Side), Check		33B-95-I
Parking		Brake,	Check.		36-3-1
Park/ Dork/N/	Neutral P	OSITION,	Adjustmen	t < A/I >	23-84-1
< D	O H C -	A / T :	> 1 3-284-		
Park/Ne	utral Position C-8VALVE, A	, On-vehicle /T> 1 3-78- I	Inspection		
Park/Ne	utral Position C-16VALVE,	, On-vehicle	Inspection A/T>		13-172-1
Power	Steering	Pressure	, Check, S	teering 3	37A-24-1
<pre>Power = <doh< pre=""></doh<></pre>	C > 13-284-	sure, On-veni	cle inspection		
<pre>Power 3 <soh< pre=""></soh<></pre>	C-8VALVE>	13-81-i	cie inspection		
Power SOH	Steering Press C-16VALVE>	sure, On-vehi 1 3-175-I	cle Inspection		
Rear	Win	dow	Defogger	5	4-163-ll
Remote	C	ontrolled	Mirror		51-34-1
		т			
TANK					
		> 13-322-1			
Fuel		10 022 1	<dohc-f< td=""><td>WD> 1</td><td>3-318-1</td></dohc-f<>	WD> 1	3-318-1
Reser	ve				B-122-I
TENSION				50	_ · ·
Drive	Belt	Adjustmer	nt <doh< td=""><td>+C></td><td>11-61-I</td></doh<>	+C>	1 1- 61-I
Drive B	elt Adjustmer	nt <sohc></sohc>	11-1		2-1

ALPHABETICAL INDEX

THERMOSTAT	14-13-1
THICKNESS	
Brake Lining, Check	35-67-1
Front Brake Disc, Check	35-65-1
Rear Brake Disc, Check	35-66-1
THROTTLE BODY (THROTTLE VALVE AREA)	
	13-248-
	13-35-1
	13-130-1
Adjustment 	23-92-1
Adjustment <dohc></dohc>	13-248-1
Adjustment <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-35-1
Adjustment <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-136-1
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-270-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	. 13-57-I
On-vehicle inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-157-l
TIE ROD END BALL JOINT	
Starting Torque Check	37A-15-I
Variation Check	37A-15-I
TIMER, Defogger	54-164-ll
	10 10 11
Ignition, Adjustment < SOHC>	16-40-11
	10-39-11
DOHC	11-80-1
Maintenance	00-40-1
SOHC	11-34-1
Tension Adjustment <sohc></sohc>	11-10-1
TIRE	31-5-1
TIRE, Wear Check	31-4-1
TIRE INFLATION PRESSURE, Check.,	31-4-1
TORSION ARM	
TORSION ARM Active-ECS	33B-1 19-I
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE</fwd>	33B-1 19-I 34-15-I
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS</fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment</fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM < AWD></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRANSAXI F</awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> AWD></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> Automatic <fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-101-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic, Maintenance</fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRANSAXLE Automatic <fwd> Automatic, Maintenance Manual <awd></awd></fwd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1 22-20-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic, Maintenance Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1 22-20-1 22-10-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRANSAXLE Automatic <awd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Manual <awd> Manual <fwd> Manual, Maintenance</fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1 22-20-1 22-20-1 22-10-1 00-42-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Manual <awd> Manual <fwd> Manual, Maintenance TRANSAXLE CONTROL</fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1 22-20-1 22-10-1 00-42-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRANSAXLE Automatic <awd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Manual <awd> Manual <fwd> Manual, Maintenance TRANSAXLE CONTROL A/T</fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1 22-20-1 22-20-1 22-10-1 00-42-1 23-94-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRANSAXLE Automatic <awd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic, Maintenance Manual <awd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual, Maintenance TRANSAXLE CONTROL A/T M/T <awd> MAT</awd></fwd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1 22-20-1 22-20-1 22-10-1 00-42-1 23-94-1 22-19-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRANSAXLE Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic, Maintenance Manual <awd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual, Maintenance TRANSAXLE CONTROL A/T M/T <awd> M/T <fwd> TRANSAXLE LUD</fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-I 34-15-I 33B-1 19-I 34-15-I 42-51 -I 27-15-I 34-31-I 23-105-I 23-101-I 00-43-I 22-20-I 22-20-I 22-10-I 00-42-I 23-94-I 22-19-I 22-6-I
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRANSAXLE Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Manual <awd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual, Maintenance TRANSAXLE CONTROL A/T M/T <awd> TRANSAXLE FLUID Level Inspection</awd></fwd></fwd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1 22-20-1 22-20-1 22-10-1 00-42-1 23-94-1 22-19-1 22-6-1 22-02-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRANSAXLE Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic, Maintenance Manual <awd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual, Maintenance TRANSAXLE CONTROL A/T M/T <awd> M/T <fwd> TRANSAXLE FLUID Level Inspection Replacement</fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1 22-20-1 22-20-1 22-10-1 00-42-1 23-94-1 22-19-1 22-6-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-92-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRANSAXLE Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic, Maintenance Manual <awd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual, Maintenance TRANSAXLE CONTROL A/T M/T <awd> M/T <fwd> TRANSAXLE FLUID Level Inspection Replacement TRANSAXLE MOUNTING</fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1 22-20-1 22-20-1 22-20-1 22-10-1 00-42-1 23-94-1 22-19-1 22-6-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-82-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRANSAXLE Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Manual <awd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual, Maintenance TRANSAXLE CONTROL A/T M/T <awd> M/T <fwd> TRANSAXLE FLUID Level Inspection Replacement TRANSAXLE MOUNTING TRANSAXLE OIL</fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1 22-20-1 22-20-1 22-20-1 22-10-1 00-42-1 23-94-1 22-19-1 22-6-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 32-5-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRANSAXLE Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Manual <awd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual, Maintenance TRANSAXLE CONTROL A/T M/T <awd> M/T <fwd> TRANSAXLE FLUID Level Inspection Replacement TRANSAXLE OIL Replacement <awd> </awd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1 22-20-1 22-20-1 22-20-1 22-10-1 00-42-1 23-94-1 22-19-1 22-6-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 22-25-1 22-18-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRANSAXLE Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic (Maintenance Manual <awd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual, Maintenance TRANSAXLE CONTROL A/T M/T <awd> M/T <fwd> TRANSAXLE FLUID Level Inspection Replacement TRANSAXLE OIL Replacement <awd> OIL. Replacement <fwd> OIL. Replacement <fwd></fwd></fwd></awd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1 22-20-1 22-20-1 22-10-1 00-42-1 23-94-1 22-19-1 22-6-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 22-18-1 22-4-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRAINSAXLE Automatic <awd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Manual <awd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual, Maintenance TRANSAXLE CONTROL A/T M/T <awd> M/T <fwd> TRANSAXLE FLUID Level Inspection Replacement TRANSAXLE OIL Replacement <awd> OIL. Replacement <fwd> TRANSAXLE OIL COOLER HOSES TRANSAXLE OIL COOLER HOSES</fwd></awd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1 22-20-1 22-20-1 22-10-1 00-42-1 23-94-1 22-19-1 22-6-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 22-18-1 22-4-1 23-100-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRAINSAXLE Automatic <awd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Manual <awd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual, Maintenance TRANSAXLE CONTROL A/T M/T <awd> M/T <fwd> TRANSAXLE FLUID Level Inspection Replacement TRANSAXLE OIL Replacement <awd> OIL. Replacement <fwd> TRANSAXLE OIL COULER HOSES TRANSAXLE OIL LEVEL</fwd></awd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1 22-20-1 22-10-1 00-42-1 23-94-1 22-19-1 22-6-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 32-5-1 22-18-1 22-4-1 23-100-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRANSAXLE Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Manual <awd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual, Maintenance TRANSAXLE CONTROL A/T M/T <fwd> TRANSAXLE FLUID Level Inspection Replacement TRANSAXLE OIL Replacement <fwd> OIL. Replacement <fwd> TRANSAXLE OIL COOLER HOSES TRANSAXLE OIL LEVEL Inspection <awd> </awd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1 22-20-1 22-10-1 00-42-1 23-94-1 22-19-1 22-6-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 22-18-1 22-17-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRAISAXLE Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Manual <awd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual, Maintenance TRANSAXLE CONTROL A/T M/T <fwd> TRANSAXLE FLUID Level Inspection Replacement TRANSAXLE OIL Replacement <fwd> OIL. Replacement <fwd> TRANSAXLE OIL COOLER HOSES TRANSAXLE OIL LEVEL Inspection <fwd> Inspection <fwd> Inspection Inspection Inspec</fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></fwd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1 22-20-1 22-20-1 22-10-1 00-42-1 23-94-1 22-19-1 22-6-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 23-82-1 22-18-1 22-4-1 22-17-1 22-4-1
TORSION ARM Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION AXLE Active-ECS Rear Suspension <fwd> TORSION BAR. Trunk Lid, Adjustment TOTAL BACKLASH, Rear Axle, Check <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRAILING ARM <awd> TRANSAXLE Automatic <fwd> Automatic <fwd> Automatic, Maintenance Manual <awd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual <fwd> Manual, Maintenance TRANSAXLE CONTROL A/T M/T <awd> M/T <fwd> TRANSAXLE FLUID Level Inspection Replacement TRANSAXLE OIL Replacement <fwd> OIL. Replacement <fwd> ITRANSAXLE OIL COOLER HOSES TRANSAXLE OIL LEVEL Inspection <fwd> TRANSAXLE OIL LEVEL Inspection <fwd> TRANSAXLE OIL COOLER HOSES TRANSAXLE OIL LEVEL Inspection <fwd> TRANSAXLE OIL COOLER HOSES TRANSAXLE OIL LEVEL Inspection <fwd> TRANSAXLE OIL COOLER HOSES TRANSAXLE OIL LEVEL Inspection <fwd> TRANSAXLE OIL LEVEL Inspection <fwd> TRANSFER</fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></fwd></awd></fwd></fwd></awd></awd></awd></fwd></fwd>	33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 33B-1 19-1 34-15-1 42-51 -1 27-15-1 34-31-1 23-105-1 23-105-1 23-101-1 00-43-1 22-20-1 22

M/T-AWD	22-23-1
TRANSFER OIL, Replacement	23-82-1
TRANSFER OIL Level Inspection	23-82-1
TRANSFER OIL SEAL, Replacement <awd></awd>	22-19-1
TRANSISTOR, Ignition Power, On-vehicle Inspection	3-302-1
TRIM	5 502 1
Door, Front	42-76-1
Door, Rear	42-78-1
Interior	52-33-I
TRUNK LID	42-57-l
TRUNK LID. Adjustment	42-50-1
TRUNK LID TORSION BAR, Adjustment	42-51 -l
TUBE, air	3-133-I
TUBING, Handling	55-22-1
TURBOCHARGER	15-24-I
TURBOCHARGER BYPASS VALVE, Inspection	15 - 8-I
TURBOCHARGER SUPERCHARGING PRESSURE, Inspection	15-7-
TURBOCHARGER WASTE GATE SOLENOID	
Inspection	15-8-1
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc-turbo></dohc-turbo>	3-309-1

U

UPPER ARM < AWD> 34-28-1

V

VACUUM	
EGR Valve Control	17-26-1
Manifold Inspection <dohc></dohc>	. 11-60-1
Manifold Inspection <sohc></sohc>	11-9-1
Purge Port	17-19-1
VACUUM HOSES	17-4-1
VACUUM HOSES, Routing	17-4-i
VALVE	
Bypass, Turbocharger, Inspection	15-8-1
Check, Operation Check	. 35-54-1
Control	37B-12-I
Delay, Check <fwd-abs></fwd-abs>	. 35-74-1
EGR	17-27-1
Fuel Tank Pressure control	17-21-1
Positive Crankcase Ventilation (PCV), Inspection	. 17-14-1
Proportioning, Function Test	35-56-1
Purge Control <turbo></turbo>	. 17-20-1
Thermal Vacuum <federal></federal>	. 17-27-1
VAPOR LINE	
DOHC-AWD	13-326-1
DOHC-FWD	13-324-1
SOHC-8VALVE	13-113-1
SOHC-16VALVE	13-195-1
V-BELT, Tension Check.	37A-21-I
VEHICLE HEIGHT, Normal, Check and Adjustment	33B-88-I
VEHICLE SPEED SENSOR	
On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-284-I
O n – v e h i c l e inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	· 13-80-I
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-173-1
VENTILATION SYSTEM	
Crankcase, Inspection	17-14-1
Positive Crankcase	17-13-1
VENTILATORS	
Air Inlet and Air Outlet	55-56-1
Instrument Panel and Floor	55-55-l
VOLUME AIR FLOW SENSOR	
Emission Control	17-21-1

10

On-vehicle Inspection <dohc></dohc>	13-261-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-8valve></sohc-8valve>	13-49-1
On-vehicle Inspection <sohc-16valve></sohc-16valve>	13-150-6

W

WASHER, Windshield	. 51-20-1
WATER HOSE	
DOHC (Non-Turbo)	. 14-26-1
DOHC (Turbo)	. 14-28-1
SOHC.	14-23-1
WATER PIPE	
DOHC (Non-Turbo)	. 14-26-1
DOHC (Turbo)	. 14-28-1
SOHC	14-23-1
WATERPROOF FILM	
Door, Front	. 42-76-1
Door, Rear	. 42-78-1
WATER PUMP	
DOHC	. 14-20-l
SOHC	14-15-1
WATER TEST	42-52-1
WEAR, Tire, Check	. 31-4-1
WEATHERSTRIP	
Front Door Drip Line	42-112-1
Rear Door Drip Line	42-114-1
WHEEL	31-5-1
WHEEL	
Bunout Check	31-4-1
Steering	374-25-1
WHEEL ALIGNMENT	0// 201
Front Adjustment <active-fcs></active-fcs>	33B-86-1
Front Adjustment <front suspension=""></front>	33A-5-1
Rear Inspection <awd></awd>	34-23-1
Rear Inspection <fwd></fwd>	34-5-1
WHEEL BEARING	
Adjustment < Active-ECS>	33 B- 87-I
Adjustment <front suspension=""></front>	334-5-1
Find Play Adjustment < FWD>	27-3-1
WHEEL CYLINDER	. 2/0/
Rear Brake	35-11 1-1
Rear Maintenance	00-44-1
	00 44 1
ABS	35-126-1
Output Voltage Check	35-68-1
Output Voltage Measurement	35-69-1
WINDOW Power	42-86-1
WINDOW GLASS	42-63-
WINDOW GLASS	
Quarter	42-70-1
Rear	42-72-1
WINDSHIELD	42-66-1
WINDSHIELD WASHER	51-20-1
WINDSHIELD WIPER	51-20-1

RJAK206014-588

NOTES

,e

.....